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| am pleased to present the 2021 annual results of Xingfa
Aluminium Holdings Limited (the “Company” and, together with
its subsidiaries, the “Group”, “the Company”, “Xingfa
Aluminium” or “Xingfa”).

In 2021, the real estate industry in the PRC has undergone
significant adjustments due to the intermittent outbreak of the
COVID-19 pandemic in the PRC, coupled with the impact of a
series of incidents, which had a certain impact on the aluminium
profile industry. However, with our high quality aluminum profiles,
we continued to gain customer support and managed to achieve
satisfactory performance during the year.

As a long-term supplier of high-end aluminum profiles to many
major real estate developers in the PRC, the Group continued to
participate in the construction of major landmark projects as the
main supplier and provided high-end aluminium profiles for the
Memorial Hall of the 100th Anniversary of the Communist Party
of China* (FF B #t & E 100/ & 4 & #8), Chengdu Tianfu
International Airport, Hangzhou Asian Games Village, Beijing
Daxing International Airport Terminals, Wuhan Yangtze River
Center and Xi’an Olympic Sports Center Gymnasium. Of which,
Chengdu Tianfu International Airport was officially opened on 27
June 2020 and Hangzhou Asian Games Village project was
completed on schedule, demonstrating that the quality of the
Group's products is reliable and highly trusted by the market. The
construction of landmark projects and stable orders not only
helped to drive the revenue and profit of the Group to new highs
during the year but also strengthened Xingfa's leading position as
the premier brand of construction aluminium profiles in the PRC.

In 2021, the Group’s revenue increased by 29.8% to
approximately RMB15,432,900,000 (2020: RMB11,886,900,000)
and sales volume rose by approximately 5.1% to 685,006 tonnes
(2020: 651,721 tonnes). Of which, the sales of construction
aluminium profiles and industrial aluminum profiles accounted for
78.4% and 18.6% of the revenue, respectively. Gross profit
reached RMB1,811,800,000 for the year, representing a year-on-
year increase of 11.2%. The gross profit margin was 11.7% and
net profit attributable to shareholders increased by 16.0% to
approximately RMB887,800,000 (2020: RMB765,400,000). The
Directors recommended the payment of a final dividend of
HKDO0.80 per ordinary share of the Company for the year ended
31 December 2021 (2020: HKDO0.36) as a reward to shareholders
for their support to Xingfa.

Chairman’s Statement
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Chairman’s Statement

ERHRE

Riding on the continuous efforts of the Company in technology,
R&D, product quality, services and management, Xingfa has been
able to establish its presence in the industry for years and
maintained its industry leading position, leading the industry in
terms of technology and formulating industrial standards. Xingfa
Aluminium actively explores the cutting-edge new trends of the
aluminium industry and expands the application fields of
aluminium with market orientation and from the perspective of
customers’ needs, continuously strengthens investment in R&D,
builds core product advantages and promotes sustainable and
stable development of the enterprise. In adhering to the path of
new industrialization, we will continue to improve the standard of
intelligent manufacturing and construction, modify the process by
applying modern digital management approaches, enhance the
quality of intelligent services, and achieve cost reduction and
efficiency enhancement.

In the past year, Xingfa insisted on pragmatic development and
received numerous awards. In the list of Management Benchmarks
for key state-owned enterprises announced by the State-owned
Assets Supervision and Administration Commission of the State
Council, Xingfa Aluminium was successfully selected as one of the
three benchmark enterprises in Guangdong Province. In addition,
after being selected as an individual champion demonstration
enterprise in manufacturing industry in 2018, Xingfa was named
as “ Individual Champion Demonstration Enterprises in
Manufacturing Industry” (2 3% % 8 18 & ¥ 'R & (& %) again in
recognition of its comprehensive advantages of advanced
technology, brand products and market services.
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The Group continued to devote to the “construction profiles +
industrial profiles” dual-engine development roadmap to expand
the source of revenue of the Group. With the continuous
improvement of the PRC's economy, the Group believes that the
consumption of aluminium will continue to rise and the market
for aluminum profiles has huge potential. As a major supplier of
construction aluminium profiles, Xingfa is likely to earn stable
revenue from the construction materials industry. Meanwhile, the
Group will leverage its technology and experience in the
construction materials industry and expand into the industrial
materials industry, manufacture electronic consumer products and
lightweight transport products. With the official commissioning of
the precision manufacturing base situated at Sanshui Industrial
Park in Guangdong Province, the Group plans to start investing in
new production bases to support the huge production capacity
demand for construction aluminium profiles and industrial
aluminium profiles in the future, it will facilitate the Group to
better seize market opportunities in the construction and industrial
materials industry.

To support the long-term development of construction aluminium
profiles and the business expansion on industrial aluminum
profiles, Xingfa actively carries out the upgrading plan of
intelligent production base and digital production management.
The Group also synchronously improves our service, technology
and processing quality to enhance the overall long-term operating
operational efficiency, increase product mix and improve quality
from multiple perspectives in a bid to provide customers with the
best aluminum profiles. In addition, the Group’s reforms in various
aspects such as production process, product R&D, information
technology, sales process and human resources management have
been generally completed and the integrated strategy of
production, supply and marketing has achieved preliminary results,
which not only have significantly improved the overall
effectiveness and efficiency, but also significantly increased
customer retention and improved loyalty, laying a solid foundation
for the Group to deliver more orders quickly in the future.

Chairman’s Statement
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Chairman’s Statement
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Looking ahead to the new year, Xingfa Aluminium will continue
to closely follow the national development strategy and industry
policies, base the new development stage, carry out the new
development concept, strongly support new technologies, new
models and new business modes, develop and extend the relevant
industry chain and enhance the value chain, create a new engine
for enterprise development, and realize further enhancement of
Xingfa's corporate value.

Finally, Xingfa would like to thank its shareholders and customers
for their continuous support to the Group. In the future, Xingfa
Aluminium will continue to work hard to enhance its corporate
core competitiveness and cooperate with its shareholders to reach
new heights and deliver greater and sustainable returns for our
shareholders. Thanks every one again.

LIU Libin, Chairman

Foshan China, 25 March 2022
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Management Discussion and Analysis

INDUSTRY AND BUSINESS OVERVIEW

Industry Review

2021 was a year of both challenges and gains for the domestic
aluminium processing industry. Uncertainties such as the
COVID-19 pandemic, fluctuating aluminium prices, dual energy
control and high international shipping costs have led to higher
production costs and higher operating risks for aluminium
processing enterprises. However, under the direction of “Ensuring
Supply for Stable Price ({##t#2% )" by the PRC government and
the explosive growth in some sub-sectors during the Year, the
aluminium products, profits and exports nationwide have their
growth trends maintained. According to the National Bureau of
Statistics and the Chinese customs, the output and export volume
of aluminium profiles for 2021 increased by 7.4% and 17.9%
respectively with the major annual indicators expected to exceed
the pre-epidemic level, achieving a good start for the “14th Five-
Year Plan (T F)".

As the largest consumer of the aluminium profile market in the
PRC, the real estate sector continues to experience significant
adjustments under the combined impact from the uncertain
macro environment and the domestic policy of “three red lines (=
(4T4R)". During the Year, the capital chains of a number of
major real estate developers were affected and their projects in
various places had to be suspended. This has not only weakened
the demand for construction aluminium profiles but also given rise
to bad and doubtful debts, affecting the cash flow of upstream
aluminium suppliers. However, even though the development of
real estate projects had slowed down, the Group believes that
there is still a huge demand for construction aluminium profiles in
the PRC market, as construction aluminium profiles are needed
whether in home remoulding and renovation as well as functional
renovation, etc. As a leading domestic manufacturer for
construction aluminium profiles, the Group is expected to seize
the opportunity of adjusting the industry, strengthening resource
integration and solidifying its foundation to prepare for long-term
development.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEFWR DM

After years of development, many new applications have emerged
in the aluminium profile industry. As the country has accelerated
towards the “reaching carbon peak and carbon neutralization (%
fix)" policy, processed aluminium profiles are further recognized
by the public for their advantages in environment protection and
energy saving. Among those processed aluminium profiles,
aluminum for photovoltaic use has become one of the fastest
growing sub-sectors of aluminium applications in the PRC, with
the market expectation of annual consumption of aluminium for
photovoltaic use to double by 2025. With the gradual
improvement of our business layout in areas other than
construction profiles and with the official commencement of
production at the precision manufacturing base in Sanshui,
Foshan, Guangdong Province which has the capacity of producing
industrial aluminium profiles during the Year, we shall be in a
better position to expand into this new blue ocean and to seize
the opportunities arising from the fast-growing new applications
for the realization of the dual-engine strategy of “construction
profiles + industrial profiles” that the Group is promoting in recent
years.

Business Review

Xingfa Aluminium is one of the leading aluminium profile
manufacturers in the PRC and is principally engaged in the
manufacture and sale of aluminium profiles which are being used
as construction and industrial materials. In 2002, 2012 and 2017,
the Group was awarded the “No. 1 of the National Construction
Aluminium Profiles Enterprise” by the China Non-Ferrous Metals
Fabrication Industrial Association for three consecutive sessions
and was awarded the “Made-in-China Beauty — Industry
Benchmark Award (FF B3 7 24T 42T 2E)” and the “Top 500
Enterprises in Guangdong Manufacturing Industry (ranking 60th)”
in 2020 and 2021 respectively. As of 31 December 2021, the
Group had obtained approximately 1,550 national patents and
participated in the drafting of approximately 103 national and
industry standards. Currently, we are also one of the largest global
suppliers of electrical conductive aluminium profiles for metro
vehicles. In recent years, the Group focuses on gradually
establishing our sales outlets in the prefecture-level cities in
Southern China and Eastern China, and at the same time has
invested its resources to increase its establishment of sales outlets
mainly in key cities of relatively under-developed regions, and
apparent positive results were seen from the regional sales data.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

In 2021, amidst a complex and volatile macro environment, the
Group adopted a relatively conservative sales approach to
consolidate its existing business while achieving steady growth in
production and sales volume. In view of the further tightening of
financing conditions imposed on the domestic real estate industry,
the Group has prudently selected to work with real estate
developers who were relatively financially sound to reduce the risk
of bad and doubtful debts. Concurrently, the Group has
strengthened its ties with real estate developers whom it has been
working with to provide more flexible payment cycles, so as to
ride out the hard times with them while maintaining healthy cash
flow and to enhance customer loyalty in the long run. Despite the
challenging environment in the industry as a whole, by virtue of
our strong capabilities in the field of construction aluminium
profiles, the Group still has ample contracts in hand for full
production at our production facilities generally.

During the Year, the Group actively strengthened its strategies in
the industrial aluminium profile sector and gradually increased its
production capacity in the hope of being adequately equipped
before entering this new blue ocean which is full of opportunities.
After two years of construction and debug, the precision
manufacturing base situated at Sanshui, Foshan, Guangdong
Province commenced official production finally in 2021. Currently,
staff training for the plant has been generally completed and the
overall operation is in line with the expectation of the
management. Out of the nine production lines in aggregate,
seven were put into service during the Year and assemblance of
the other two will be completed and put into operation in 2022.
With the unique positioning of the precision plant ({2 EE), it is
expected that the Group could utilise the fruitful research results
of the Xingfa Research Institute in the field of industrial profiles in
the mass production stage, allowing the Group to launch more
top-selling products that are well recognized by the market in
addition to Xingfa Door and Window Systems (E22%P9% £ 4%) to
drive the growth of its performance.
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For overseas market, as the pandemic remained severe, some of
the markets that the Group has been vigorously developing in
recent years, such as Vietnam and Australia, have once
experienced temporary underproduction locally, resulting in the
shortage of aluminium profile products in the market. However,
given the persistently high sea freight rates and the severe
shortage of warehouse spaces, the Group has also encountered
certain difficulties in expanding its overseas business. In addition,
immigration control imposed by various countries has also
hindered the plan of exploring new markets by our sales staff.
Therefore, the Group shall strengthen our domestic business
during this period and satisfy the needs of our overseas customers
when circumstances permit while preparing for the full expansion
into overseas markets in the post-epidemic period.

Revenue

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the revenue and sales
volume of the Group increased by 29.8% and 5.1% to
approximately RMB15,432.9 million and 685,006 tonnes
respectively (2020: RMB11,886.9 million and 651,721 tonnes
respectively), of which the sales of construction aluminium profiles
and industrial aluminium profiles accounted for 78.4% and
18.6% of the revenue respectively. The gross profit of the Group
for the Year increased by 11.2% year-on-year to approximately
RMB1,811.8 million. The gross profit margin was 11.7% (2020:
13.7%), and such a decrease was mainly due to the increase in
the procurement costs was stronger than expected during the
Year as a result of general increase in the price of raw materials.
During the Year, the profit attributable to owners of the Company
was approximately RMB887.8 million, representing an increase of
16.0% year-on-year.

Construction aluminium profiles

The construction aluminium profiles are aluminium profiles with
surface finishing, which are mainly used for the construction and
installation of doors and windows, curtain walls, ceilings and
blinds and other decorative products.

In 2021, the revenue of construction aluminium profiles increased
by 30.6% to approximately RMB12,093.5 million (2020:
RMB9,261.7 million), and sales volume increased by 6.2% to
approximately 534,309 tonnes (2020: 502,948 tonnes).
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ERFEMBEEBAEY - XEBR AR
RBIEFHE AKARREFHENNRE
SN IR

ERE

BE-_ZE-_—F+-_A=+—B1LFE " ~5£E
ZEERBNEED R IN29.8% K5.1% =4 A
E@M 5,432,900,0007T X 685,006 ( — & — T4 :

2Rl AB AR 11,886,900,000 7T K 651,721 H8) -
HA @& RAM R TEERAMEE D AR L X5
H78.4% [ 18.6% - FRNAREEEFEHEARKE
1,811 8000007_5 B LI AN11.2%  EF R A
M7%(ZFE-FF:13.7%) EFMETRIE
ERVMEHER R L BEF AR ARRIE
INRFEHAESIFTE - TN - R BEAE ATEIEF)
A AR 887,800,000 7T * RIELIEHN16.0% °
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ERTEME  BiE  RIEREBEEFEHK

[}
am °

REZZT-—F - EEPAMEEFEEIN30.6% 2
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Industrial aluminium profiles

The industrial aluminium profiles are mainly plain aluminium
profiles, which can be used as container frames and other
products such as new conductive profiles of urban railway
locomotives and ship components. Moreover, the industrial
aluminium profiles can be produced into different forms and
shapes, such as central processing unit (CPU) and display thermal
sinks and electronic consumer product frames.

The revenue of industrial aluminium profiles in 2021 increased by
23.7% to approximately RMB2,869.9 million (2020: RMB2,320.3
million), and sales volume remained stable at approximately
144,096 tonnes (2020: 144,142 tonnes).

PROSPECT

At the beginning of 2022, the Group is still optimistic about the
domestic economy and the aluminium profile industry. Since the
inception of the “14th Five-Year Plan (+9 )", by virtue of the
smooth implementation of domestic policies and cooperation
among different parties and coupled with the decisive and
efficient anti-epidemic policies, the economic growth rate has
been higher than that of other major economies. Under this
environment, the level of national consumption continues to rise
with increasing demand for ancillary commodities, one of which is
housing. Although a number of policies of the Chinese
government has been executed to suppress the irrational
expansion of the real estate industry, the healthy development of
the real estate industry is still being supported in the long run, in
hopes of satisfying the housing demand and allowing the living of
citizens ensured with felicity. Therefore, the Group believes that
the construction aluminium profile market will gradually recover
after this round of adjustment. In addition, with the improvement
of living standards, the demand for home remoulding and
renovation will be increased. As a leading manufacturer of
construction aluminium profiles in the PRC, the Group will benefit
from the healthy development of the real estate industry.

BEEFNWR DM

TREBEM

THEWHEE RN AW - LA
FEE {70050 4 5 8 0 28 B T T A T
% 25N RABRTRMRRAE - Gl
REIDE (CPU) RERE MBS RETHBES
=

TERAMEEENR T —FHEBR23T%EL
AR #2869,879,000t(Z T =FF: AR
2,320,300,0007T) * 84 = 435 FI2E 47 144,096
WE (=T -4 : 144,1420F) ©
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Besides, the Group well understands the importance of diversifying
its businesses for long-term development, so we have actively
participated in the flourishing market for industrial aluminium
profiles which have been widely used in recent years. The precision
manufacturing base in Guangdong, which was put into operation
in 2021, focuses on the production of high-end industrial
aluminium profiles to be applied in the fields of high-end
electronic communication equipment, heat cooling equipment,
medical equipment and military applications, etc., shouldering the
important task of vitalizing the aluminium industry and the dual-
engine backed up by construction aluminium profiles and
industrial aluminium profiles. Meanwhile, the exclusive research
and development team for industrial aluminium profiles is also
working round the clock to study the technology in this area,
aspiring to improving the production capacity of industrial
aluminium profiles and to developing additional new applications,
especially products that can help achieve the direction of
“reaching carbon peak and carbon neutralization (27%)" policy,
so as to develop new growth engines for the Group.

In order to undertake more and larger orders, the Group has never
slowed down its pace in capacity expansion. Following the precision
manufacturing base in Guangdong, we are constructing a new
manufacturing base in Zhejiang with its trial production expected to
begin in the second half of 2023. The new plant has a designated
area for industrial aluminium profiles, which is capable of satisfying
orders for industrial aluminium profiles and construction aluminium
profiles and is larger than the precision manufacturing base in
Guangdong in terms of both site area and production capacity,
with its expected annual output reaching 200,000 tonnes and
accounting for 30% of our existing overall production capacity.
Moreover, the Group is preparing to establish its first overseas
manufacturing base in Australia, while the specific plan will be
finalized after the end of the pandemic. We believe that setting up
factories overseas is the key to expanding overseas business. By
setting up factories locally, the required cost and time can be
reduced for export of products while the recognition of the Group
can also be enhanced at the same time, playing an important role
in our stable development.

AN AEBRPADRZ TEBHREZRNE
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

The revenue and sales volume of the Group for the Year increased
by 29.8% and 5.1% year-on-year to approximately RMB15,432.9
million and 685,006 tonnes respectively (2020: RMB11,886.9
million and 651,721 tonnes respectively). The growth was
attributable to the increase in sales orders during the Year.

The sales volume of construction aluminium profiles for the Year
increased by 6.2% to 534,309 tonnes (2020: 502,948 tonnes).
Meanwhile, the sales volume of industrial aluminium profiles for
the Year remained stable at 144,096 tonnes (2020: 144,142
tonnes).

The following table sets forth the details of our revenue by
reportable segments for the years ended 31 December 2021 and

Bt 75 1ol

EE 4

RAFE  AEBZEEBMESETED LN
29.8% K 5.1% % # A R #15,432,900,000 7T &

685,006M8( — T — T 4 :

R RHERT BB AR -

DR A AR
11,886,900,000 7T % 651,721l ) °

BERTEE

RAFE  BERAMBEEENNG6.2% = 534,309
W (— B -4 : 502,048M8) o HA L FIFE - PAAE
[ THIRRM S 445 FIBM 144,096 (—Z

— T 144,1421) o

TREVNAEERBE_S-_—FR-_ZT-_ZFF
T_A=t—HLFERAZHNHBEDHEE

2020: LS
2021 2020
—E-—F —ECERF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMFRT ARKTTT

Manufacturing and sale of aluminium profiles 4= % $4%5 $2 70 4

— Construction aluminium profiles — BREIRTAIM 12,093,485 9,261,704
— Industrial aluminium profiles — TEIRAM 2,869,879 2,320,269
14,963,364 11,581,973
All other segments FT A E Ath 55 &P 469,536 304,889
Total 45 15,432,900 11,886,862

Note: Our Group's revenue from all other segments represented revenue generated
from processing service contracts related to aluminum products, sale of office
premises and residential properties and sale of aluminium panels, aluminium
alloy, moulds and spare parts.

fifet - AEBERAMAEEMO NN EEFIRAWBER ZINT
RBEH  HEMRIMERFTEMEARBERR - 8
G% BARTHHEMELNERE -
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Gross profit and gross profit margin

The gross profit of the Group for the Year increased by 11.2%
year-on-year to approximately RMB1,811.8 million (2020:
RMB1,629.4 million).

The overall gross profit margin for the Year of the Group
decreased by 2.0% to 11.7% (2020: 13.7%), and the sales to
production ratio remained stable at 97% (2020: 99%,).

The following table sets forth the gross profit margin of our
aluminium profiles in 2021 and 2020:

EFMRERNER

RAFE  AEEZEFIZFEMI 2% ELHA
R #1,811,800000( — T T F: AR#
1,629,400,0007T) °

REFE AEEZEBENXTRE20%EL
MNI%(ZZTZTF 1 13.7%) r MHELELX
HRBERI7T% (ZTFF 1 99%) °

TERENAEFR - E-—F R -_E-_FFEA
MZEME

2021 2020

—E-—F —ZETHF

Construction aluminium profiles FREEIRTIM 11.8% 13.5%
Industrial aluminium profiles T ZE5RAM 7.4% 9.8%

The gross profit margin of construction aluminium profiles and
industrial aluminium profiles deceased to 11.8% and 7.4% for the
Year respectively as compared to that of 2020. Such decrease was
mainly because the increase in the procurement costs was
stronger than expected during the Year as a result of general
increase in the price of raw materials.

Other income

Other income of the Group for the Year decreased by 9.2% year-
on-year to approximately RMB133.0 million (2020: RMB146.4
million), which was mainly attributable to the decrease in changes
in fair value of commodity future contracts as a result of a more
effective hedging.

BRI R TERAUMNRAFTE 2 BRI RE -
E_EENRTEEI11.8%N74% BHE NEET
THREMAERER FA - SHFRRERAR
Y38 INEXTE SR S o

H iy 55

RAFE  AEBZEMKFIEF TEI2%EH
A R #133,000000c( ZE T F: AR
146,400,0007T) * JIEEHREABE F - B
AmBESNNAFERZ LR
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Distribution costs

The distribution costs of the Group for the Year decreased by
12.6% to approximately RMB314.6 million (2020: RMB360.0
million), which accounted for 2.0% of the revenue (2020: 3.0%).
The decrease was mainly due to the effective cost control
implemented by the Group.

Administrative expenses

Due to business expansion of the Group, the number of
management staff increased, resulting in an increase in staff costs
during the Year. As a result, the administrative expenses of the
Group for the Year increased by 1.3% to approximately
RMB401.1 million (2020: RMB396.1 million), which accounted for
2.6% of the revenue (2020: 3.3%).

Finance costs

Finance costs remained stable at approximately RMB101.1 million
for the Year (2020: RMB101.6 million) mainly due to the overall
decrease in effective interest rate despite the increase in loans and
borrowings during the Year.

Profit for the Year and net profit margin

The profit attributable to shareholders of the Company
("Shareholders”) for the Year increased by 16.0% year-on-year
to approximately RMB887.8 million (2020: RMB765.4 million). The
increase was primarily attributable to the increase in sales orders
during the Year.

BEEFNWR DM
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ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Current and quick ratios

The following table sets out our Group’s current and quick ratios
as at 31 December 2021 and 2020:

B R AR R 2 4
RE R R E

TR AEER_ZE_—FR-_ZF_FF+ =
H:"” ElZ/m@J&?ﬁ@ttz‘{‘:-

2021 2020
—EBE-F —ETHF
Current ratio (Note j) mENELE (BaED) 1.48 1.30
Quick ratio (Note ii) REN R (ML) 1.21 1.01
Notes: B -
(i) Current ratio is calculated based on the total current assets divided by the (i) AL RANFER A EELEGA RS BERRETE -
total current liabilities at the end of the year.
(ii) Quick ratio is calculated based on the difference between the total current (ii) R RAFER A EERERTEE 2 EZERIARH
assets and the inventories divided by the total current liabilities at the end of BEATETE -

the year.

Both ratios as at 31 December 2021 increased as compared to
those as at 31 December 2020. Such increases were in line with
higher level of cash and cash equivalents as of 31 December 2021
due to higher utilization of banking facilities.

Gearing ratio

The following table sets out our Group's gearing ratio as at 31
December 2021 and 2020:

BE-Z-—4+-A=+—B MALIHE
BE-T-ZTF+-A=+—BLtFH - ABLHA

HEAPAELRTEEERBE_T_—F1+=
A=t BRE RS FEWKFRES —

=R/

TRENAEBENR T —FR_T_TF+_
A=t—Rz&aEkx:

2021 2020
—E-—fF ZEZTF
Gearing ratio (Note) BELLXR (M) 15.4% 13.4%

Note:

Gearing ratio is calculated based on the loans and borrowings divided by total assets
and multiplied by 100%.

The gearing ratio increased for the Year as compared to that of
2020 which was mainly due to the increase in the balances of
loans and borrowings as at 31 December 2021.

Hfet -

BELEUNERREERAEERBEBRIA100%:TE -

RAFEZRBELRR_F_TFEN - HEE
HRR -_ZE-_—Ft+-_A=+t—HHNERREE

REERIEDOFTER -
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Inventory turnover days

The following table sets out our Group’s inventory turnover days
during the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020:

EEREWR DM

FERAEHY

TR ARBRBE-_T-_—FR_FT_FTF
T A=+t—BULFEZFERAHE :

2021 2020

—E-—F —ETEF

Inventory turnover days (Note) GFEREMS(KZ) 37 42
Note: Bt

Inventory turnover days is calculated based on the average of the beginning and
ending inventory balance before provision for the periods divided by the total cost of
sales during the years multiplied by 365 days.

The production efficiency was improved due to better
arrangement on production plans, leading to a reduction in
inventory backlog and the inventory turnover days for the Year.

Debtors’ turnover days

The following table sets out our Group’s debtors’ turnover days
during the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020:

FERESHUGIRBEI Z BN RPE 2 FEEHRTFHER I
FAZHERRBIEHAIRA35 H5HE -

EEMXRBRREDHRNEEFSEL T EEDN

2 SEAGEERERFEREBHRD -

P& Wi B RC R B

TR ARENRBE_T_—FR_FT_FTF

TZA=t—BLFEZRERRCRS
2021 2020

—E-—F —E-THF

Debtors’ turnover days (Note)

Note:

Debtors’ turnover days is calculated based on the average of the beginning and
ending balance of trade and bills receivables (net of allowance for doubtful debts) for
the periods divided by revenue during the years multiplied by 365 days.

The debtors’ turnover days decreased slightly for the Year as
compared to that of 2020. This was mainly because a tighter
credit control over the debtors was implemented during the Year.

FE W RRFRFC AR HA (A aT) 94 9%

it -

& W2 B R R AR B LA R 40 T A48 2 32 5 B MR IR B R MR AR A
(FBRREREE) 2 FHBRIAFAZ &R EBRIA365 BAHHE -

RAFEZ BUBRFCHEHR T _TFHMUT
fE o WIHEEARFAHRUIRAER T EBRSE

MEEEE -
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Creditors’ turnover days

The following table sets out our Group’s creditors’ turnover days
during the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020:

FEAY BR TR AC AR A

TR AKERNEBE-_T-_—FR-_F-_FTF
T-RA=1t—BLFEZRNERGCERES

2021 2020
—E-—F —ETEF
Creditors’ turnover days (Note) FEATBRFRGCBR AR (M 77) 88 83

Note:

Creditors’ turnover days is calculated based on the average of the beginning and
ending balance of trade and bills payables for the periods divided by the total cost of
sales during the years multiplied by 365 days.

The creditors’ turnover days for the Year increased as compared to
that of 2020. This was mainly because longer credit period was
granted by the main suppliers due to better negotiation power of
the Group.

Loans and borrowings

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s loans and borrowings
dominated in RMB amounted to approximately RMB1,751.4
million (31 December 2020: RMB1,130.3 million), of which
approximately RMB632.6 million were fixed rate borrowings (31
December 2020: RMB518.6 million).

Save for typically lower borrowing requirements in the first quarter
of the Year due to holidays during the Chinese Lunar New Year,
there was no seasonality in the Group’s bank borrowing
requirements.

Banking facilities and guarantee

As at 31 December 2021, the banking facilities of the Group
amounted to approximately RMB9,023.0 million (31 December
2020: RMB9,377.0 million), of which approximately RMB5,185.0
million were utilised (31 December 2020: RMB2,770.0 million).

No banking facilities were guaranteed by related parties of the
Group.

Bet

N BRRRRBAB MR PR Z X5 BN KBRENRIRER
ZFHBERIAFRZ SHEK A B ERIA365 HAtH -

RAFE  BNERRCERR _ZT_TF LIt
HHEEHRAEENEREIRE  AEEE
TEHERS TRR KRS -

BEXREE

R-ZE-_—F+-A=+—8 AEEZEZK
BEUARKEN BARE,751,400,0007T(=

—TF+-A=+—H: AR®1,130,300,000
JT) - HA#) A R# 632,600,000 7T A B E AR &
B(ZE2E-_ZF+_-_A=+—"H8B: AR%
518,600,000 7T) °

BRREHFRASAFEE -FTENEEREXR
BERES  NEBWRITEEERW BTN -

RITEEEERER
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+=ZA=+—H: AR%29,377,000,0007T) *
A4 AR#5,185,000,000 T ( ZE-FBF+ = H
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Capital expenditure

Capital expenditure was used for acquisition of property, plant
and equipment and lease prepayment. During the Year, our
Group’s capital expenditure amounted to approximately
RMB686.8 million (2020: RMB438.9 million). The significant
increase in capital expenditure during the Year was mainly due to
the acquisition of equipment and lease prepayment for our
production plants.

Capital structure

As at 31 December 2021, the Company had 419,496,334 ordinary
shares of HK$0.01 each in issue. During the Year, a total of
1,428,134 ordinary shares of the Company were issued upon the
exercise of share options granted under the share option scheme
of the Company at an exercise price of HK$5.46 per share by
certain Directors and employees of the Group.

Financial instruments for hedging purposes

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group used
aluminium products futures contracts in the Shanghai Futures
Exchange to manage the commaodity price risk exposure in respect
of the highly probable forecast purchase of aluminium products.
The Group designates those futures contracts as hedging
instruments in cash flow hedges and does not separate the
forward and spot element of the futures contracts but instead
designates the futures contract in its entirety in a hedging
relationship.

TREASURY POLICIES

The Group's policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity requirements
and its compliance with lending covenants, to ensure that it
maintains sufficient reserve of cash and adequate committed lines
of funding from major financial institutions to meet its liquidity
requirements in both short term and long term.

Certain sales and purchases of inventories of the Group are
denominated in the United States (“US"”) dollars and Hong Kong
("HK") dollars. Furthermore, certain trade receivables, trade
payables, bank balances and bank loans are denominated in US
dollars and HK dollars, therefore exposing the Group to the
currency risk of US dollars and HK dollars.
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CASH FLOW HIGHLIGHTS

The following table sets out our Group's cash flow highlights

during the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020:

RERERE

TREJNAEERHBEZE-_ZT - —FR_Z-_FF
+_ A=+ HUEFEZRERERE

2021 2020
—E-—F —ERCEF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMFT ARETT

Net cash generated from operating activities KETEB SRS F5R 1,333,295 973,398
Interest received B U FI 8 78,083 53,899
Payment for purchase of property, plant and BEWME BEMREBE MR
equipment (686,834) (438,918)
Interest paid SASFLE (92,742) (101,351)
Net increase/(decrease) in bank borrowings RITEER I, (R ) F58 621,067 (568,816)
Dividends paid to equity shareholders of EARARR R SRR 2R E
the Company (123,631) (106,904)

We generally finance our operations through internally generated
cash flows and bank borrowings. Our Directors believe that on a
long-term basis, our liquidity will be funded from operations and,
if necessary, additional equity financing or bank borrowings.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had cash and cash
equivalents of RMB1,643.1 million (31 December 2020: RMB509.6
million), among which 0.76% was held in US dollars, 2.0% was
held in HK dollars and the remaining balance was held in RMB.

AEE-REBBABELZRERERRITEER
REBRHES -EFMHRE REME  A%H
ZRBEEHARBEER(MEFE) BINEA
MESRITRBERE -

R-ZE-_—F+-_A=+—H A&EEHERSE
NIReEEYWARY1,643,100,000c(ZF=F
F+ZA=+—8: AR¥509,600,0007T) ' &
F0.76% AETHEA ~ 2.0% BT A K arEE N
ARBREE -
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PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT

“Xingfa Plaza” (£%% KX H), a property project wholly-owned by
the Group, is located at the northern side of Jihua Road and
western side of Changang Road, Chancheng District, Foshan City,
Guangdong Province, the PRC. The land use rights of the property
were granted for a term of 40 years expiring on 19 May 2050 for
commercial service, office, culture and entertainment uses. The
property comprises a parcel of land with a site area of
approximately 16,961.36 sq.m. and a gross floor area of
approximately 123,527.29 sq.m..

During the Year, 8 units of “Xingfa Plaza” (#1%K/E) had been
sold and delivered. The revenue recognized from such sale for the
Year amounted to approximately RMB13.1 million (2020:
RMB15.0 million).

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2021, our Group employed a total of
approximately 8,854 full time employees in the PRC and Hong
Kong which included management staff, technicians, salespersons
and workers. In 2021, our Group's total expenses on the
remuneration of employees were approximately RMB1,019.1
million, represented approximately 6.6% of the revenue of our
Group. Our Group's emolument policies are formulated on the
performance of individual employees, which will be reviewed
regularly every year. Apart from the provident fund scheme
(according to the provisions of the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance for Hong Kong employees), housing fund,
medical insurance, unemployment insurance and other relevant
insurance (according to the PRC rules and regulations for PRC
employees), discretionary bonuses and employee share options are
also awarded to employees according to the assessment of
individual performance. In-house and external training
programmes are provided as and when required.
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Directors
Executive Directors

Mr. Liu Libin (“Mr. Liu”), aged 50, was appointed as the
Chairman of the Company (“Chairman”) since 8 September 2011.
Mr. Liu obtained a Degree of Executive Master of Business
Administration from South China University of Technology and
has held various senior positions in financial, marketing and
governmental fields. Mr. Liu had been the vice section chief (2%}
i) of finance division of Department of Foreign Trade and
Economic Cooperation of Guangdong Province, finance manager
and deputy general manager of Sinomart Development Co.
Limited (AZ & BB AR /A 7)), director and general manager of the
finance department of Goldsland Holdings Company Limited (&
FTEARER A 7)), deputy chairman of Guangdong Advertisement
Co., Ltd. (EREEEERAR]) and chairman of Guangdong
Guangxin PACO Technology Co., Ltd. (EREEFHMSREHER A
A)), a subsidiary of Guangdong Guangxin Holdings Group Ltd. (&
REBEIEREEEMRAT) ("Guangxin Holdings”). Mr. Liu is
the chairman of the board of directors of Guangdong Xingfa
Aluminium Co., Ltd. (EREZIZEEPR A F]) ("Guangdong
Xingfa”, together with its subsidiaries as “Guangdong Xingfa
Group”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and an
executive director of Foshan Xingfa Real Estate Co., Ltd., a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company.

Mr. Liao Yuging (“Mr. Liao”), aged 53, is an executive Director
and the chief executive officer of the Company. He is in charge of
the sales and marketing activities of the Group and is responsible
for the planning, development, implementation and evaluation of
the marketing strategies of the Group. Mr. Liao joined the Group
in January 1993. Prior to that, Mr. Liao was in the military
between 1986 to 1991. Mr. Liao worked at the Agricultural Bank
of China Jiujiang Branch from 1991 to 1992. Mr. Liao is the
director of Guangdong Xingfa and an executive director of Foshan
Xingfa Trading Co., Ltd., Guangdong Xingfa Precision
Manufacturing Co., Ltd. , Guangdong Xingfa Aoke Architecture
Technology Co., Ltd., Alxin Investment Co., Ltd. (RIEIREBR A
@]) and Alxin Development Co., Ltd. (SR{5%EBR A ). Mr. Liao
is the son-in-law of Mr. Luo Su, the Honourable Adviser of the
Group.
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Mr. Law Yung Koon (“Mr. Law"), aged 64, has been appointed
as an executive Director since 28 April 2009. He is responsible for
the sales and marketing of our products in overseas market. Prior
to joining the Group, Mr. Law was the general manager of Hang
Fat Aluminium Profiles Company Limited, which was the sole
distributor of the Group in Hong Kong and Macau and one of the
suppliers of aluminium ingots.

Mr. Wang Lei, aged 52, is a senior engineer. Mr. Wang obtained
his bachelor’s degree in mechanical engineering from University of
Science and Technology Beijing (At REHZ A E) and master's
degree in business administration from Central South University
(FFFRE) in 1991 and 2004 respectively. He has extensive
business management experience. Mr. Wang was the executive
president of Guangzhou Zhongyong Group Co., Ltd.* (/i
FEEEABBR A A]) from 2005 to 2006 and the general manager of
Guangdong Venture Capital Group Co., Ltd.* (EREEBILEE
BB R A 7)) stationed in Guangdong Hongli Machinery Co., Ltd.*
(BEHLF 23 F PR A A]) from 2006 to 2009. Since 2009, Mr.
Wang has served various group companies of Guangdong
Guangxin Holdings Group Ltd.* (BREFIZREBER Q)
("Guangxin Holdings”). He was the vice president of FSPG Hi-Tech
Co., Ltd. (BEILEEBRIFE LB D BR AR, the shares of which
are listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code: 000973),
from 2009 to 2016 and was a member of the party committee of
FSPG Hi-Tech Co., Ltd.. From 2016 to 2017, Mr. Wang served as
the deputy director of the operation department of Guangxin
Holdings and the deputy general manager of Guangxin Maritime
Heavy Industry Co., Ltd.* (E¥EEE TR BERAR]). He was
also the chairman and secretary of the party committee of
Guangdong Guangqing Metal Technology Co., Ltd.* (ERES &
BRI AR A A]) as well as the executive director of Guangdong
Guangging Metal Rolling Company* (ERE& < BELEAR])
from 2017 to 2020. From 2020 to present, he is a director of
Guangxin Shengte Investment Co., Ltd.* (EREFRFREER
RA)).

*  For identification purpose only
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Mr. Wang Zhihua (“Mr. Wang”), aged 51, is an executive
Director. Prior to joining the Group in January 2003, from 1992 to
1997, Mr. Wang worked at Guanglian Industrial Co., Ltd. and the
Guangzhou Branch of Huaxia Securities Co., Ltd. Mr. Wang
obtained a bachelor’s degree in statistics from the Jiangxi
University of Finance and Economics in 1992. Mr. Wang is also an
executive director of Xingfa Aluminium (Chengdu) Co., Ltd..

Mr. Luo Jianfeng, (“Mr. Luo”), aged 50, has been appointed as
an executive Director since 16 April 2018. Mr. Luo has
approximately 29 years of experience in accounting and finance.
He worked in (i) Shunde City Accounting Firm from July 1993 to
March 1996; (ii) Guangdong Dezheng Accounting Firm with
Limited Liability from April 1996 to December 2001; (iii)
Guangdong Gongcheng Accounting Firm from January 2002 to
December 2007. He then worked in Foshan City
Zhongzhengcheng Accounting Firm Co., Limited as a certified
public accountant from January 2008 to April 2016. In addition,
Mr. Luo was the independent non-executive director of Bestsun
Energy Co. Ltd. (B)IIseIRAx D BR A F]) (stock code: 600681),
the shares of which are listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange,
from June 2009 to June 2015. Mr. Luo obtained a bachelor’s
degree in economics from Guangdong University of Business
Studies in the PRC in June 1993 and is a non-practising member
of The Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Luo
is an executive director of China Lesso Group Holdings Limited (&
5 Bt 8 £ [ Fe IR B PR A &)) (stock code: 2128) (“China Lesso™), the
shares of which are listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (”Stock Exchange”). He is also a
director/general manager/supervisor of various companies in China
Lesso and its subsidiaries (“China Lesso Group”).
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Mr. Zuo Manlun (“Mr. Zuo”), aged 49, has been appointed as a
non-executive Director since 16 April 2018. Mr. Zuo has
approximately 22 years of experience in the industry of plastic
pipe. Mr. Zuo has extensive business management experience. He
is the chief executive officer of China Lesso Group and was
appointed as an executive director of China Lesso in February
2010. He is also a director/general manager/supervisor of various
companies in China Lesso Group. Mr. Zuo's expertise was
recognised by several awards including “Outstanding Worker of
the Plastic Industry in the PRC” accredited by China Plastics
Processing Industry Association in 2009 and “Senior Plastic
Product Engineer (Technical Entrepreneur)” accredited by
Guangdong Human Resources and Social Security Department in
2019.

Ms. Xie Jingyun (“Ms. Xie"), aged 41, has been appointed as a
non-executive Director since 6 December 2018. Ms. Xie is
experienced in strategic investment and capital operation and is
currently the general manager of the operating management
centre of Guangxin Holdings. Ms. Xie first joined the Guangxin
Holdings group in 2003. She became the deputy department head
of the investment development department of Guangxin Holdings
in 2008 and was subsequently promoted as the department head.
She then joined the capital operation department of Guangxin
Holdings as an assistant to department head in 2015 and was
promoted as the deputy department head and department head
in 2016 and 2018 respectively. She served as the general manager
of the operating management centre of the Guangxin Holdings
group in 2021. Ms. Xie obtained a bachelor’s degree in business
administration from the Guangdong University of Foreign Studies
in 2003. Ms. Xie is also a director of (i) Guangdong Advertising
Group Co., Limited* (ER&ESESERMHBPRAF]), a company
established in the PRC whose shares are listed on the Shenzhen
Stock Exchange (stock code: 002400); (ii) Guangdong Shengyi
Technology Co., Ltd.* (BRAmEHIRMD B R AF]), a company
established in the PRC whose shares are listed on the Shanghai
Stock Exchange (stock code: 600183); and (iii) SHENGYI
ELECTRONICS CO., LTD.* (=B FRMHBPRAFA]), a company
established in the PRC whose shares are listed on the Shanghai
Stock Exchange (stock code: 688183).

*  For identification purpose only
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Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Chen Mo (“Mr. Chen"), aged 57, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 29 February 2008. He
obtained the lawyer qualification certificate issued by the
Guangdong Provincial Department of Justice in June 1989. Mr.
Chen has been a practicing lawyer in the PRC since 1993 and has
been a partner of (i) Goldsun Law Firm (E{z 84 2EIE 4 AT)
from 1998 to 2011; and (ii) Guangdong King & Land Law Firm (&
HEEREMESFT) from 2011 to March 2019. Mr. Chen was
admitted as a lawyer by the Department of Justice of Guangdong
Province in June 1989 and obtained =A%/2RI&E & (Third Grade
Lawyer) from the Department of Personnel of Guangdong
Province in 1999. Mr. Chen graduated from the Political Education
Department of South China Normal University (Z & Bfi&3 A Z2) in
1986. He has been granted the (2RIt EHEF AR EKERE
£) (Certificate of Engaging in Securities Law Business) jointly by
the Ministry of Justice and China Securities Regulatory Commission
in 1996, the (EMEERBRIRGEERRTEEZEBERSE
£) (Certificate of Engaging in Delimitation of Property Rights of
Collective Science and Technology Enterprises) jointly by the
Ministry of Justice, the Ministry of Science and Technology of the
PRC and the State-owned Asset supervision and Administration
Commission of the State Council in 1998, and the { £ A &)
T EEEEEE) (Certificate of Completion of Training on
Independent Directors of Listed Companies) by the China
Securities Regulatory Commission and the School of Management
of Fudan University jointly in 2001. Mr. Chen joined Guangdong
Lianyue Law Firm (& SE 2N EFT) in April 2019.
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Mr. Junius K. Y. Ho (“Mr. Ho"), aged 59, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 29 February 2008. He is a
Senior Partner of Messrs. K.C. Ho & Fong, Solicitors & Notaries
where he is the head of the Litigation and Commercial
Department. He is also the Principal Representative of the
Guangzhou Office. Having studied at Anglia Ruskin University in
the United Kingdom (formerly known as Chelmer Institute of
Higher Education), Mr. Ho obtained his Bachelor of Laws Degree
in 1984. He then joined the University of Hong Kong for the
Postgraduate Certificate in Laws. Mr. Ho was further awarded
with the honorary degree of Doctor of Laws by China University of
Political Science and Law in 2019.

Mr. Ho was admitted as a solicitor in Hong Kong in 1988. He was
subsequently admitted in Singapore, England and Wales in 1995
and 1997 respectively. In 2003, he was appointed as a China-
Appointed Attesting Officer.

Mr. Ho has over 30 years of legal experience. Being the Past
President (2011-2012) and the Council Member (1995-2017) of
The Law Society of Hong Kong, he is committed in serving the
community and contributing to the economic co-operation
between Hong Kong and Mainland China. Apart from serving the
legal profession, he also serves on various government and public
boards as follows:

1. Justice of the Peace of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region (2016-present);

2. New Territories Justice of the Peace of the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region (2016-present);

3. Member of Legislative Council of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region (2016-present);

4. Elected Member of Lok Tsui District of Tuen Mun District
Council (2016-2019);

5. Founder and Director of International Probono Legal Services
Association (2018-present);

6.  Member of the Council of Lingnan University of Hong Kong
(2015-2021);
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Member of the Panel of Adjudicators of the Obscene Articles
Tribunal (2013-present);

Ex-officio Executive Councillor of Heung Yee Kuk
(2016-present);

Spokesman of New Territories Concern Group
(2013-present);

Indigenous Village Representative of Leung Tin Village
(2011-present);

Director and Chairman of Yan Oi Tong (1993-1997) and
Advisory Board Member of Yan Oi Tong (1997-present);

Founder of Butterflyers Association (a charitable
organization) (2010-present);

Independent Director of Hong Kong Football Association
(2011-2019);

Arbitrator of Zhengzhou Arbitration Commission (2009-
2018);

Arbitrator of South China International Economic and Trade
Arbitration Commission (Shenzhen Court of International
Arbitration) (2012-present);

Member of the Political Consultative Conference of
Huangpu District, Guangzhou (2013-present);

Special Adviser of “One Belt One Road” Legal Services
Research Centre of the Guangdong Lawyers Association
(2017-present);

Part-time Tutor of Master of Public Administration, China
University of Labor Relations (2018-2021); and

Arbitrator of Hong Kong Arbitration Centre of China
International Economic and Trade Arbitration Commission
(2021 to 2026).
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Mr. Lam, Ying Hung Andy (“Mr. Lam”), aged 57, was
appointed as an independent non-executive Director on 29
February 2008. He is an associate member of various professional
organisations, namely The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators, The Hong Kong Institute of Company Secretaries
and The Hong Kong Institute of Bankers. Mr. Lam is also a fellow
member of The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He
obtained his master’'s degree in professional accounting from The
Hong Kong Polytechnic University. Mr. Lam has over 30 years of
experience in the accounting, banking and finance sectors and
currently is the managing consultant of Lontreprise Consulting
Limited. Mr. Lam was also the president of Dragon Junior
Chamber, a local chamber affiliated with Junior Chamber
International Hong Kong in 2004 and was elected as the national
vice president of the Junior Chamber International Hong Kong in
2005. He is currently an independent non-executive director of
each of Brilliant Circle Holdings International Limited (stock code:
1008), Synertone Communication Corporation (stock code: 1613)
and Weiye Holdings Limited (stock code: 1570), the shares of
which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
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Mr. Wen Xianjun (“Mr. Wen"), aged 59, graduated from
Central South University (B8 X £8) with a bachelor of engineering
majoring in metallic materials in July 1984 and Beijing Non-Ferrous
Research Institute* (At RA B2 BHRAEFT) with a master of
engineering majoring in metallic materials in June 1990. Mr. Wen
has approximately over 37 years of experience in the industry of
non-ferrous metals. He successively served as an associate
engineer of Beijing Non-Ferrous Research Institute* (Jlt R & &
BT 48Ft) from 1984 to 1987, an engineer of the technology
department of China National Non-ferrous Metals Industry
Corporation* (FEBEEEE T4/ 7)) from 1990 to 1992, a
deputy director and a senior engineer of Development and
Exchange Centre of China Nonferrous Metals Industry
Technology* (R A & ¢ BHMFE ML) from 1992 to
1996, a deputy director of the investment and operations
department and a senior engineer of China National Non-ferrous
Metals Industry Corporation* (FRE A @& B T X442 7]) from
1996 to 1998, the deputy head, a director level consultant and a
senior engineer of Industry Administration Department of the
State Non-ferrous Metals Industry Administration of the People’s
Republic of China* (“PRC") (AXEECCBIXBITEEER)
from 1998 to 2000, as well as the director of CPC Central
Enterprise Working Committee (R £ 123 T Z) from January 2001
to March 2001. He also served as the chairman of China
Nonferrous Metals Processing Industry Association* (FEIH &%
BT TE%HE) from 2010 to 2017, and has successively served
as the deputy head of industry coordination department, head of
the aluminum department, and the vice chairman of China
Nonferrous Metals Industry Association* (FEE 4B T EHE)
from April 2001 to April 2021.

*  For identification purpose only
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Mr. Liang Shibin (“Mr. Liang”), aged 82, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 14 December 2013. He
completed the programme of Nonferrous Metal and Heat
Treatment in the Department of Special Metallurgy from A FHE)&
E2BT (unofficial English translation being Central South Institute of
Mining and Metallurgy) (now known as A EJAZ (Central South
University)). From 1965 to 1982, Mr. Liang had worked in the
special workshop of HRIL&E & & INITH (unofficial English
translation being Northeast Light Alloy Processing Factory) first as
technician and later as engineer and specialized in atomic reactor
technical matters. From 1982 to 1992, Mr. Liang had worked in
BREBELBIMIM (unofficial English translation being
Guangdong Nonferrous Metal Processing Factory) first as
workshop manager, and later as deputy factory general manager
and then factory general manager. From 1988 to 1992, he also
served as the president of ER& A& (unofficial English
translation being Guangdong Aluminium Profile Association).
From 1992 to 2003, he first served as the general manager of
M7= E$RZEA R (unofficial English translation being Hangzhou
Hongchang Aluminium Company) and later as the deputy general
manager and chief engineer of %) #r2 72 7] (unofficial English
translation being Ningbo Aluminium Company). From 2003 to
2011, he served as a senior consultant of 124 B2 iR 25 A
fRAF] (Fujian Minfa Aluminium Co., Ltd.) (a company listed on
Small and Medium-sized Enterprise Board of Shenzhen Stock
Exchange with stock code: 002578). From 2008 to 2013, Mr.
Liang was an independent director of @2 & BEIRX£R B ER A
&) (Fujian Minfa Aluminium Co., Ltd.). Mr. Liang resigned from
the position of independent non-Executive Director on 4 August
2021.

EENREREEAER

PHBEETREE]D 25 RZT—=F
T A+ NBEEZEABYIRITES - HAF
BRAER(RETFEAB)HEARSENEECS
BRAREBEEXZEE BN AFE—NN\Z
F o REECTBREILES SN TRISHRER -
BAEHARME  BEOTIEM  ZINET
RELEFMEE - B —AN_FE2—ALNL=F -
PREECARREREECSBINIRH &L
TEEET  BEHTIRIAEER T HAR
B mg—hAN\N\EE-—NN_F HITETER
LAV HEER - B NWN_FE-_TT=F -
BEEETMNEERERRZRIEE  BEIE
AEFRREQARCZEABLERBTIREM 8 =F
T=FET——F FETEREEEBREER
BAERAE (—ERRYESHFRBAIPNEERE
Mz AR BRHASE  002578) 2SR ER - B
ZERNEFE_E-=F REEETREES
BIRERMEBERRARZBIES - REERN T
——FEN\ANBBIB I ERITESE B -

33



34

XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED 287 242 i B R 2 5] / Annual Report 2021 F 3

Directors and Senior Management

EENREREERAE

Senior Management

Ms. Zhang Li ("Ms. Zhang”), aged 42, has been appointed as an
executive Director and the chief financial officer of the Company
since 10 May 2018. Ms. Zhang is also a director of Guangdong
Xingfa. Ms. Zhang has extensive business management
experience, before joining the Group, she has worked in various
departments of the group companies of Guangxin Holdings since
July 2001. She worked at the finance department of Guangdong
Dong Fang Import and Export Corp.* (BRA R Fi#H O 7)) as
an accountant from July 2001 to December 2003 and was then
promoted to be the deputy manager from January 2004 to
December 2004. She then joined the clearings department of
Guangxin Holdings as the deputy head from January 2005 to
December 2006 and was promoted to be the head of the
clearings department from January 2007 to April 2013. Ms. Zhang
worked for the capital management department of Guangxin
Holdings as an assistant to the head from May 2013 to June 2014
and as the deputy head of the capital management department
from June 2014 to April 2018. She has also been a director of
Guangxin Shipbuilding & Heavy Industry Co. , Ltd.* (B¥/8EE
T BRAR]) since September 2014. Ms. Zhang was
accredited as a senior accountant in the PRC in April 2011. Ms.
Zhang obtained a bachelor’s degree in economics from Central
University of Finance and Economics in the PRC in 2001 and a
master’s degree in accounting from Sun Yat-Sen University in the
PRC in 2009.

Mr. Lin Yan (“Mr. Lin"), aged 53, is the deputy general manager
of Guangdong Xingfa Group. Mr. Lin is responsible for the sales
operation of the Group. Prior to joining Xingfa Aluminium, Mr. Lin
worked in a state-owned enterprise, Guangdong Metals &
Minerals Import & Export Group Corporation (ERE A& EE#E
H O£ B /A 7]), with more than 20 years of experience in
international trade. He was awarded a certificate of Economist by
Ministry of Human Resources of the PRC in 1996. Mr. Lin held a
Bachelor Degree in Economics from Jinan University, the Degree
of Executive Master of Business Administration (EMBA) at South
China University of Technology.

*  For identification purpose only
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Mr. Liu Yuntang, aged 53, is the deputy general manager of
Guangdong Xingfa Group and is responsible for production
management of the Group. Mr. Liu Yuntang joined Guangdong
Xingfa Aluminium Profiles Factory in 1993. Prior to joining the
Group in October 1993, Mr. Liu Yuntang worked at Nanhai
Guangdong Cable Factory Co., Ltd. from 1991 to 1993. Mr. Liu
Yuntang was granted a bachelor’s degree in engineering by the
Guangdong Mechanics Institute in 1991. He was certified as
assistant engineer in 1993 by the Nanhai City Science Technology
Committee and certified as engineer in 2001 by the Foshan City
Human Resources Bureau. He was awarded as senior engineer by
Guangdong Human Resources and Social Security Department on
4 May 2015, and was granted a senior Executive Master in
Business Administration Degree by Sun Yat-sen University on 29
December 2015. On 15 December 2020, he was awarded as
Intermediate Certified Safety Engineer by Human Resources and
Social Security Department of the PRC.

Mr. Chen Wensi (“Mr. Chen"), aged 51, is the deputy general
manager of Guangdong Xingfa Group. Mr. Chen is responsible
for the technology research and development, quality control and
safety in environmental protection of the Group. Mr. Chen joined
Guangdong Xingfa Aluminum Profiles Factory in 1997. Prior to
joining the Group in January 1997, Mr. Chen worked for
Guangdong Chang’e Thermal Insulation Container Factory (5
HEEBRARRESMER) from 1995 to 1996. Mr. Chen graduated from
Guangzhou Zhongkai Institute of Agricultural Technology (5 {#
18 2 ZERMTER) in 1995. He was qualified as a senior engineer in
mechanical engineering in 2018. He is also a member of the
Measurement Technology Committee of China Nonferrous Metals
Industry Association and an expert of the Expert Committee of
China Non-ferrous Metals Processing Industry Association. Mr.
Chen has participated in the development, management and
standardization of scientific research projects from various
national, provincial, municipal and district governments. He has
won 5 excellence awards in patents in China, 3 first prizes of the
excellence awards in technical standards by the National Non-
ferrous Metals Standardization Technical Committee, and 2
progress awards in science and technology by Guangdong
Province. On 4 November 2020, he was awarded as senior
engineer in metal pressure processing by Foshan Science and
Technology Association (31U B E2RIT1H ).
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Mr. Guan Dubiao (“Mr. Guan”), aged 51, is the deputy general
manager of Guangdong Xingfa Group. Mr. Guan is a senior
Economist and is currently the council member of Foshan City
CPA Institute and Foshan City Association of Chief Financial
Officers. His education background is undergraduate, studying
business management (accounting) and economic management.
Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Guan started his accounting career
in the business department of Foshan Nanzhuang Economic
Development Company. Subsequently, Mr. Guan served as
different important financial positions, such as chief accountant,
chief of finance, etc., within several group companies of Foshan
Nanzhuang Economic Development Company. Mr. Guan joined
the Group in 1999 as deputy head of finance department and
chief accountant and subsequently promoted as head of finance
department. He was further promoted as deputy general manager
of Guangdong Xingfa Group since September 2011.

Mr. Wu Xi Kun (“Mr. Wu"), aged 50, is the deputy general
manager of Guangdong Xingfa Group since 12 May 2020. Mr.
Wu obtained Bachelor of Material Science and Engineering from
Guangdong Industrial University in the PRC and joined
Guangdong Xingfa Group in July 1994. Currently, Mr. Wu is a
postgraduate student of Master of Philosophy (Engineering) in
Central South University in the PRC.

Mr. Wu has over 20 years of experience in the production
management, quality control and research of manufacturing of
aluminium ingots and aluminium profiles. Mr. Wu participated in
the academic research and seminars in the industry. He published
the “Practical Handbook in the Processing Techniques of
Aluminium Profiles” in 2006. He also participated in the set up of
various national standards regarding aluminium profiles.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Pang Wai Ching (“Mr. Pang”), aged 33, joined our Group
as the company secretary of the Company since February 2021.
Mr. Pang has been a member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants since March 2015. He obtained the
Bachelor degree of Business Administration in Accountancy from
City University of Hong Kong in July 2010. He has more than 10
years' experience in accounting, auditing and company secretarial
matters. In addition, Mr. Pang was the independent non-executive
director of China Shenghai Group Limited (stock code: 1676) from
19 October 2019 to 1 April 2021.
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The directors (“Directors”) of Xingfa Aluminium Holdings Limited
(“Company”) present their report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”), for the year
ended 31 December 2021 (“Year").

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
Details of the principal activities of other members of the Group
are set out in note 3(a) in notes to the consolidated financial
statements.

There were no significant changes in the nature of the Group’s
principal activities during the year ended 31 December 2021.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATION

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021
are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss on page
171 of the annual report.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Directors recommended the payment of a final dividend of
HKDO0.80 per ordinary share for the year ended 31 December
2021 (2020: HKDO.36).

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For the purpose of determining the right to attend the
forthcoming annual general meeting to be held on Friday, 27 May
2022, the register of members of the Company will be closed
from Tuesday, 24 May 2022 to Friday, 27 May 2022 (both days
inclusive). During such period, no transfer of the shares of the
Company will be registered. In order to qualify for the attendance
in the annual general meeting, all transfers, accompanied by the
relevant share certificates, must be lodged with the Company’s
branch share registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong not later
than 4:30 p.m. on Monday, 23 May 2022.

Report of the Directors
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For the purpose of determining the entitlement to the final
dividend, the register of members of the Company will be closed
from Wednesday, 8 June 2022 to Friday, 10 June 2022 (both days
inclusive). During such period, no transfer of the shares of the
Company will be registered. In order to qualify for the final
dividend, all transfers, accompanied by the relevant share
certificates, must be lodged with the Company’s branch share
registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m.
on Tuesday, 7 June 2022.

The current Hong Kong branch share registrar and transfer office
of the Company (“Share Registrar”) is Tricor Investor Services
Limited at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East,
Wanchai, Hong Kong. With effect from 1 May 2022, the Share
Registrar will be changed to Computershare Hong Kong Investor
Services Limited at Shops 1712-1716, 17/F, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong (“New Share Registrar”).

Application for registration and transfer of shares of the Company
should be lodged with the New Share Registrar with effect from 1
May 2022. Share certificates uncollected on or after 29 April 2022
shall be collected from the New Share Registrar from 3 May 2022
onwards.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for
the past five years is set out on page 315.

LOANS AND BORROWINGS

Details of the Group’s loans and borrowings at the balance sheet
date are set out in note 24 in notes to the consolidated financial
statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year are set out in note 11 in notes to the
consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the Company’s paid-in capital for the year ended 31
December 2021 are set out in note 29 in notes to the consolidated
financial statements.
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DONATIONS

The Group made donation of RMB554,000 (2020: RMB353,000)
for charitable or any other purposes during the Year.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENT

Details of the equity-linked agreements entered into during the
Year or subsisting at the end of the Year are set out below.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company conditionally adopted a new share option scheme
("Share Option Scheme”) on 29 December 2017. The Share
Option Scheme became effective for 10 years commencing from 5
January 2018.

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable the Group
to grant options to eligible participants as incentives or rewards
for their contribution to the Group and/or to enable the Group to
recruit and retain high-calibre employees and attract human
resources that are valuable to the Group and any invested entity in
which the Group holds an equity interest (“Invested Entity”).

Eligible participants under the Share Option Scheme include
directors and employees of the Group or any Invested Entity; any
suppliers, customers, advisers or consultants of the Group or any
Invested Entity; any persons or entities that provide research and
development or other technological support to the Group or any
Invested Entity; any holders of securities issued by any member of
the Group or any Invested Entity; any adviser (professional or
otherwise) or consultant to any area of business or business
development of any member of the Group or any Invested Entity;
and any other groups or classes of participants whom the Board
considers have contributed or will contribute to the Group.

The principal terms of the Share Option Scheme are summarised
as follows:

The maximum number of shares which may be allotted and issued
upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the Share Option Scheme and any other share
option scheme adopted by the Group must not in aggregate
exceed 30% of the shares of the Company in issue from time to
time.

Report of the Directors
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The total number of shares of the Company which may be allotted
and issued upon exercise of all options (excluding, for this
purpose, options which have lapsed in accordance with the terms
of the Share Option Scheme and any other share option scheme
of the Group) to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and
any other share option scheme of the Group must not in
aggregate exceed 41,800,000 shares, being 10% of the shares in
issue as at the date of approval of the Share Option Scheme by
the Shareholders at the extraordinary general meeting held on 29
December 2017. As at the date of this report, the total number of
ordinary shares available for issue under the Share Option Scheme
is 37,791,533 shares, which represents 9% of the issued shares of
the Company as at the date of this report.

The maximum number of shares of the Company issued and to be
issued upon exercise of the options granted under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option scheme of the Group
to each eligible participant (including exercised and outstanding
options) in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the
issued shares of the Company from time to time.

The subscription price for shares of the Company under the Share
Option Scheme shall be a price determined by the directors of the
Company, but shall not be less than the highest of (i) the closing
price of shares of the Company as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheet for trade in one or more board lots of the
shares on the offer date, which must be a business day; (ii) the
average closing price of shares of the Company as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for trade in one or more
board lots of the shares for the five business days immediately
preceding the offer date; and (iii) the nominal value of a share of
the Company.

Upon acceptance of the grant of an option, the grantee shall pay
HK$1.00 to the Company as nominal consideration for the grant.

The Company has granted 4,180,000 share options pursuant to
the Share Option Scheme on 15 October 2018. The closing price
of the shares of the Company immediately before the date of
grant of share options was HK$5.39.
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Details of the outstanding share options and movements of the
share options during the year ended 31 December 2021 are as
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follows:

Outstanding

Lapsed/  Outstanding

as at Exercised Cancelled Expired as at
1 January during during during 31 December
Category of grantees Date of grant 2021 the Year the Year the Year 2021
i i
—BC-F “R--F
-B—H rEE rEE XEE +=ZA=t+-H
ARAER RHBH e RITBE 217t B BEAMER e RITBE
Directors
2=
LIU Libin 15.10.2018 229,000 (76,334) - (76,333) 76,333
257w
WANG Zhihua 15.10.2018 192,000 (64,000) - - 128,000
ITEE
Sub-total 421,000 (140,334) - - 280,666
/J\'EH-
Employees of the Group 15.10.2018 3,605,800 (1,287,800) - (10,200) 2,307,800
XEEES
Total 4,026,800 (1,428,134) - (86,533) 2,512,133
fazt
Note: Bz

In relation of each grantee of the share options granted on 15 October 2018,
1,376,334 share options and 1,272,800 share options were vested on 15 October
2020 and 15 October 2021 respectively and 1,359,333 options will vest on 15
October 2022 and the share options vested are then exercisable on or before 14

October 2023. The exercise price per share is HK$5.46.

Further details of the options granted under the Share Option
Scheme are set out in Note 27 in notes to the consolidated

financial statements.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s articles of association (“Articles”) or the laws of the
Cayman Islands, being the jurisdiction in which the Company was
incorporated, which would oblige the Company to offer new
Shares on a pro rata basis to existing Shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company's listed securities during
the year ended 31 December 2021.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group during the Year
are set out in note 29 in notes to the consolidated financial
statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2021, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution calculated in accordance with the Companies Law,
Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the
Cayman Islands amounted to RMB579,095,000 (2020:
RMB572,208,000).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Details of the contingent liabilities of the Group as at 31
December 2021 are set out in note 32 in notes to the consolidated
financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2021, sales to the Group'’s five
largest customers accounted for 16.0% (2020: 20.1%) of the
Group’s revenue where sales to the largest customer accounted
for 6.0% (2020: 6.2%) of the Group’s revenue.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021, purchases from the
Group'’s five largest suppliers accounted for 81.6% (2020: 79.1%)
of the Group's total cost of purchase whereas purchases from the
largest supplier accounted for approximately 61.0% (2020:
64.5%) of the Group's total cost of purchase.

None of the Directors or any of their close associates or any
Shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors, own
more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any
beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest customers or five
largest suppliers during the year ended 31 December 2021.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Below is a business review of this report as required by Schedule 5
to the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong
Kong). The discussion on a fair review of the Group’s business,
financial key performance indicators and performance indicators
and performance and indication of future development of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2021 can be found in the
sections headed “Chairman’s Statement” and “Management
Discussion and Analysis” in this annual report. Those discussions
form part of this report of the Directors.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES FACED
BY THE GROUP

The Group is exposed to various risks and uncertainties. The
effects of such risks may vary over time. The following sets forth
material risks classified by the Group and the relevant alleviating
measures for each material risk for the management of such risks.

Business risks

Firstly, most of the Group’s revenue was generated from
customers in the PRC. Should there be any material adverse
change in the political, economic, legal or social conditions in the
PRC and the Group is unable to divert sales to other markets
outside of the PRC, the turnover, profitability and prospects may
be adversely affected.
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In order to alleviate such risk, the Group will continue to put
efforts to expand overseas market and increase the proportion of
overseas sales. During the Year, we have export sales to Australia
and Vietnam. The Group will also continue to review competitive
edges of the Group in the industry and market trend.

Secondly, the Group’s production activities of aluminium profiles
rely on, among other things, sufficient and uninterrupted supply
of aluminium ingots, being our principal raw materials. The Group
procures such principal raw materials from several major suppliers
and has not entered into any long-term purchase contracts with
any of our major suppliers of aluminium ingots for flexibility in
purchasing aluminium ingots at competitive prices at various
times.

In order to alleviate such risk, the Group will conduct investigation
and assessment on suppliers periodically to ensure stable supply
source of raw materials.

Financial risks

Delayed payments of customers who were granted credit period
by the Group will increase the Group’s exposure to financial risks
and have an impact on financial performance and operating cash
flows of the Group.

In order to alleviate such risk, the Group will review accounts
receivables due from major customers on a regular basis and
control over it to an appropriate level. The Group will also manage
and maintain strict control internally and put additional efforts to
collect trade receivables overdue.
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KEY RELATIONSHIPS

1.

Employees

Human resources are the most valuable asset of the Group.
Developing and retaining talents are vital to our success. The
Group is committed to providing our employees with a safe,
pleasant and healthy working environment. The Group
rewards and recognises employees by competitive
remuneration package and implements a key performance
index scheme with appropriate incentives, and promote
career development and progression by providing
opportunities for career advancement to employees.

In addition, each department of the Group is responsible for
determining its training needs for employees in its
department and any suggested applicable training courses
either arranged internally or by external service providers
shall be submitted to the senior management of the Group
for approval. Knowledge, skills and capacities of employees
are vital to continuous business growth and success of the
Group. The Group strives to ensure that all employees can
fulfill the relevant job requirements in terms of education,
training, technical and work experience.

Suppliers

We have developed long-standing relationships with a
number of our vendors and take great care to ensure that
they share our commitment to quality and ethics. We
carefully select our suppliers and require them to satisfy
certain assessment criteria including track record, experience,
financial strength, reputation, ability to produce high-quality
products and quality control effectiveness.

Distributors and customers

We sell our products to distributors and customers. We
require our distributors and customers to comply with the
relevant laws and regulations and our sales and marketing
policies, including but not limited to selling price,
promotional activities and usage of our ERP system. We also
monitor the financial condition and repayment history of our
distributors and customers, and their sales performance.
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCES

As a supporter of environmental protection and taking into
account of the national green manufacturing development plan
and guided by enterprise strategy, the Group formulated the
Xingfa Aluminium Protection System. The primary mission of the
Group's environmental production policy is to govern production
emissions by relying on technology, comprehensive utilisation of
production waste residue, reduce environmental pollution and
develop clean production.

The Group has been in compliance with the relevant
environmental laws and regulations in both PRC and Hong Kong.

A further discussion of the environmental policies of the Group is
contained in the Environmental, Social and Governance Report of
the Company.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Group recognises the importance of compliance with
regulatory requirements and the risk of non-compliance with
relevant requirements could lead to adverse impact on business
operation and financial position of the Group. The Board as a
whole is responsible to ensure the Group is in compliance with
relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
Company. During the course of the business operations, the
Group shall comply with different laws and regulations, including i)
laws regarding employee recruitment and benefits, such as the
“Labor Law of the PRC”, the “Labor Contract Law of the PRC",
and the “Rulings of Implementing the Labor Contract Law of the
PRC"; and ii) the PRC national and local laws and regulations with
respect to environmental protection, including the Environmental
Protection Law of the PRC. For the year ended 31 December
2021, the Group was in strict compliance with the aforesaid laws
and regulations.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year ended 31 December 2021 and as at
date of this report were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. LIU Libin (Chairman)

Mr. LIAO Yuging (Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. WANG Lei (appointed on 4 August 2021)

Ms. ZHANG Li (Chief Financial Officer)
(resigned from the position of executive Director on
4 August 2021)

Mr. LAW Yung Koon

Mr. WANG Zhihua

Mr. LUO Jianfeng

Non-executive Directors:

Mr. ZUO Manlun
Ms. XIE Jingyun

Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. CHEN Mo

Mr. HO Kwan Yiu

Mr. LAM Ying Hung, Andy

Mr. WEN Xianjun (appointed on 4 August 2021)
Mr. LIANG Shibin (resigned on 4 August 2021)

None of the Directors has a service contract with the Company or
any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group
within one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”) and the
Company considered all the independent non-executive Directors
to be independent.
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UPDATE OF INFORMATION PURSUANT TO
RULE 13.51(B)

During the Year, the emoluments of the following Directors have
been changed as follows:

Name of Directors Details of change

BRIEE13.51(B) IREHE R

RAFE - LTESHMED 28T

EEHE BEEE

Mr. Chen Mo The director’s fee of Mr. Chen Mo has been increased to RMB180,000 per annum
(2020: RMB150,000).

BRERSE A& REEENESNEEHEETFARK 180,000t (ZF=FF : AR 150,000

JL) °

Mr. Ho Kwan Yiu
annum (2020: RMB150,000).
ABZ=LEE
150,0007T) °

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management
of the Group are set out on pages 24 to 36 of the annual report.

CONTRACT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in note 33 in notes to the consolidated financial
statements and in paragraph headed “Connected transactions” in
this report, (i) there is no transaction, arrangement or contract of
significance subsisting during or at the end of the Year in which a
Director or an entity connected with a Director is or was materially
interested, either directly or indirectly; (i) no other contract of
significance was entered into by, and/or subsisted between the
Company or any of its subsidiaries with its controlling shareholder
or any of its subsidiaries during the Year; and (iii) no other contract
of significance in relation to provision of services to the Company
or any of its subsidiaries by the controlling shareholder or any of
its subsidiaries during the Year.

The director’s fee of Mr. Ho Kwan Yiu has been increased to RMB180,000 per
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF
THE COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED
CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2021, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executives of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Future Ordinance (Cap. 571, Laws of Hong Kong)
(“SFO")) as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under section 352 of the SFO, or were required,
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers contained in Appendix 10 of the Listing
Rules (“Model Code”), to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange, were as follows:

Report of the Directors
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EEHA g1 ZBER HHE R 5 HmE EREIL
LIAO Yuging Founder of a discretionary 48,200,100 - 48,200,100 11.49%
BEE trust who can influence how
the trustee exercises his
discretion
EHEETEIZA  AIRES
FEATTEERERE 2 TR
LAW Yung Koon Beneficial owner 19,432,000 - 19,432,000 4.63%
Z& A EmHEA A
Interest of spouse 1,719,000 - 1,719,000 0.41%
il (B e
LIU Libin Beneficial owner 76,334 76,333 152,667 0.04%
237 78 EmHEAA
WANG Zhihua Beneficial owner 64,000 128,000 192,000 0.05%
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, none of the
Directors or the chief executive of the Company had registered an
interest or short positions in the shares, underlying shares of the
Company or any of its associated corporations that was required
to be recorded pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBT SECURITIES

Other than the share options granted under the share option
scheme disclosed in note 27 in notes to the consolidated financial
statements, at no time during the year ended 31 December 2021
were rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisitions of
Shares in or debentures of the Company granted to any Director
or their respective spouse or minor children, or were any such
rights exercised by them; or was the Company,or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the Director to
acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

DIRECTOR'S INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

Save as disclosed in the prospectus of the Company dated 17
March 2008, none of the Directors hold any interests in any
business apart from the Company’s business, which competes or
is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the
Company’s business for the year ended 31 December 2021.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND OTHER
PERSONS WHO ARE REQUIRED TO DISCLOSE
THEIR INTERESTS PURSUANT TO PART XV OF
THE SFO

As at 31 December 2021, the following persons, other than a
Director or the chief executive of the Company, had interests or
short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company which are required to be recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under section 336 of the
SFO:
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Long position HaE
Total number Percentage
of ordinary shares of interest in
Name of entities Capacity of the Company the Company
KATZ HARRAT
BEREE 54 ZEREH EEEOE
Guangxin Aluminium (HK) Limited Beneficial owner 132,382,000 31.56%
BEBBRMaEGRAA] EmlEa A
Guangdong Guangxin Holdings Group Ltd*  Interest of controlled 132,382,000 31.56%
corporation
BREBENIEREBEERA A RIEHLEERER
State-owned Assets Supervision and Interest of controlled 132,382,000 31.56%
Administration Commission of The People’s  corporation
Government of Guangdong Province*
BREARBNEEEAEEEERZEE® XIEHZERE=
Lesso Group Holdings Limited Beneficial owner 109,842,900 26.18%
R EZERER AR EmEaA
China Lesso Group Holdings Limited Interest of controlled 109,842,900 26.18%
corporation
P EIE B R E IR B IR A RIEHLEERER
New Fortune Star Limited Interest of controlled 109,842,900 26.18%
corporation
New Fortune Star Limited SR AE R
Xi Xi Development Limited Interest of controlled 109,842,900 26.18%
corporation
RERAR LA RERIEE R
UBS Trustees (B.V.1.) Limited Interest of controlled 109,842,900 26.18%

UBS Trustees (B.V.1.) Limited

corporation
RIEHLEERER
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Total number
of ordinary shares
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Percentage
of interest in

Name of entities Capacity of the Company the Company
ERATFZ RN
EREE 51 LZERAE EREIL
WONG Luen Hei Founder of a discretionary 109,842,900 26.18%
trust who can influence
how the trustee exercises
his discretion
=R ZHETEIA - A&
SZEEAITHERIBE .
A=
Sure Keen Limited Beneficial owner 48,200,100 11.49%
MIEE R A A Em#EAA
Glorious Joy Limited Interest of controlled 48,200,100 11.49%
corporation
Glorious Joy Limited RIEFLEE R
TMF (Cayman) Limited Trustee 48,200,100 11.49%
TMF (Cayman) Limited SEEA

Save as disclosed above and in the paragraph headed “Directors’
interests in shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company and its associated corporations” above, as at 31
December 2021, no other person had interests or short positions
in the shares and underlying shares of the Company which were
required to be recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under section 336 of the SFO.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS BERS

A.  The following entities are connected parties of the Company A, L‘AT%@%$’“’TZF§LJ\i WHREZE—
and had connected transactions and/or continuing T _—F+_A=+— Eﬁﬁﬁﬁq;ﬁgﬁﬁl
connected transactions with the Group during the year 5&?7%@ EX GRS HIFEMETS

ended 31 December 2021:

Name of the entity Relationship with the Company

BEEE HADNRZEE

Guangdong Xingfa Curtain Wall, Door & Window Co., Ltd. Owned as to 21% by Mr. LIAO Yuging and as to 46% by Mr.
("Xingfa Curtain Wall") LUO Su. Mr. LIAO Yuging is an executive Director and Mr.

EREZEEFAEARAA ([HEER]) LUO Su is the father- in-law of Mr. LIAO Yuging.

HEEERERE N % RENEHELRE46%1EE - B
EBEAERMTESREHRALREIBAENER -

China Lesso Group Holdings Limited (“China Lesso"”) A substantial shareholder of the Company, holding, through
B R R EIERAR AR ([P EIHE ) its wholly-owned subsidiary, approximately 26.16% of the

issued shares of the Company as at the date of this report.
ARAFERREBEZEMBRRANARE A HHEAL
AIC BTN 2#26.16% °

TIPS 2 EEEREEER AR Owned as to 80% by the Company through its wholly-owned
(in English for identification only, Jiangxi Province subsidiary, and a connected subsidiary of the Company during
Jingxing Aluminium Panel Manufacturing the period from 1 January 2021 to 11 March 2021. On 12
Co., Ltd. "Jiangxi Jingxing”) March 2021, the date on which completion of the Equity

IHEREERRRERR AR (IARE]) Transfer (as defined below) took place, the Group ceased to

hold any interest in Jiangxi Jingxing and Jiangxi Jingxing
ceased to be accounted for as an associate of the Group.
BARRBREZEWBARIEAS% #m  R2F = —
F-A-BRE_ZE-_—F=A+—-HILHEREKRR 2 #
BREAR - RZFZ—F=ATZH BREEE(EER
TX)RBEERY - ARETHNIARBRE Efks
RIARENBEAREE 2 HE AR -
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Name of the entity
BEEE

Relationship with the Company
BANE 2B

BREENERERBRAR
(in English for identification only, Guangdong Guangxin
Holding Group Co., Ltd. “Guangxin Holding")
BERARFEREBER AR ([ EHER])

BN R EZERBRERAF
(in English for identification only, Guangzhou lingxing
Construction Technology Company Limited
“Guangzhou Jingxing”)

BMEERENEARAR (TEMNEH])

AR B RREERR AR
(in English for identification only, Henan Province
Jingxing Aluminium Panel Manufacturing
Co., Ltd. “Henan Jingxing”)

AmE R RPRRREBRAR (AERE])

TEKERREIEABRAA
(in English for identification only, Jiangsu Yongbao
Environmental Technology Co., Ltd.)
“Yongbao Environmental ")

TEOKERFERBBERAR ([KERE])

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the following  B.
continuing connected transactions were non-exempt

The controlling shareholder of the Company and is indirectly
interested in approximately 31.56% of the total issued shares
of the Company.

RARERRR - FEHEBARQRDEITRG B85
#731.56% °

A 20% shareholder of Jiangxi Jingxing and a non-wholly
owned subsidiary of China Lesso.

TPAREZ 20% BB RAR T EEE 2 E2EMB AR -

A non-wholly owned subsidiary of China Lesso, a substantial
shareholder of the Company.

PR (RREN—REBERR) ZHFEEMBLF -

Indirectly owned as to approximately 59.5% by China Lesso, a
substantial shareholder of the Company
RAREEIRR - A BB B £959.5% 5 -

REZE_E-_—F+_A=+—BILFE -
THHEMET G EIERCHERERS

continuing connected transactions and are subject to the WEETRE AMOREEERRT - AT

reporting, announcement and annual review requirements.

REERER S 2B

The following is a brief description of the continuing

connected transactions:
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1.

Xingfa Curtain Wall Agreement

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Nature of transactions

Reference is made to the announcements of the
Company dated 30 September 2020 and 19
October 2021. Guangdong Xingfa and Xingfa
Curtain Wall entered into a master supply
agreement (“Xingfa Curtain Wall Agreement”)
dated 30 September 2020 in relation to the
supply of aluminium profiles to Xingfa Curtain
Wall by Guangdong Xingfa and its subsidiaries
("Guangdong Xingfa Group”), for a term from
1 January 2021 to 31 December 2023 (both
dates inclusive). The aluminium profiles
purchased by Xingfa Curtain Wall were further
processed into window and curtain wall and
sold to its customers.

Annual Cap

The annual cap for the year ended 31 December
2021 of the continuing connected transactions
set out above was RMB163 million, and the
actual aggregate amount of sale transactions
was approximately RMB132.9 million for the
Year.

Internal control procedures

The Group has complied with the following
internal control measures to monitor the pricing
and terms of the transactions in relation to the
sale of aluminium profiles by Guangdong Xingfa
to Xingfa Curtain Wall and ensure that the
prices and terms offered by Guangdong Xingfa
to Xingfa Curtain Wall will be no more
favourable than prices and terms offered to
independent customers and that the annual cap
is not exceeded:

(@  monitoring the prevailing average price of
aluminium ingots as quoted on the
Guangdong Nanhai Nonferrous Metals
Market and/or Shanghai Nonferrous
Metals Market and the prevailing spot
prices of aluminium as quoted on London
Metal Exchange Limited on a daily basis;

Report of the Directors
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(iii)

EFHRAARNFARAE T -F
FAA=F+TBR-_ZE-—%F+A
THABZRE - BRI
BTy —hEBEAE-ZT-F
NA=+HzEHERR ([HE%
Bzl AABHEBERE
BEREMBAR(IEREESE
B ) mEEEREAERIIM - %
EHER - -—F—H—Ai
EZE-=F+ZA=+—HIt
(BREEEMB) - BEELIGE
AZSEMMBINTIANERERE
BHEEPHE -

FELER

EXAEBERERIREES
T _—F+-_A=1+—HILEE
Z2EE LR ABEARE
163,000,000t R AFE 2 E
BHEEXZREEHAARE
132,900,000 7T °

PR RAE

AREBEEETIA TR EZEEE
N5 A B R 3 R MRS
HERAM 2R 52 EE MK
R B R R IR 3 () BB R i
Rt 2 ERRGETETERAE
VR PR ERE M AR R &
HBHFEER

() BREEREREEAE
(BB R/ HLBFEES
BTS2 RIT R
RERERRAZERS
FIBRARAE2RITIA
REBER
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2.

2021

(b) comparing the price and terms of the
supply of aluminium profiles to Xingfa
Curtain Wall with the prices and terms of
aluminium profiles supplied by the Group
in China as agreed with independent
customers on a regular basis;

(c) adhering to the relevant internal control
policy of the Group on connected
transactions in monitoring the price and
terms of supply of aluminium profiles
offered by the Group to Xingfa Curtain
Wall to ensure that they shall be no more
favourable than those offered by the
Group to independent customers; and

(d) periodic financial report which contains
information on all connected transactions
carried out by the Group including the
continuing connected transactions under
the master supply agreement was
submitted to the Board.

Master Supply Agreement A
Nature of transactions

On 29 December 2020, Guangdong Xingfa and
China Lesso entered into a master supply
agreement (“2021 Master Supply Agreement
A") pursuant to which Guangdong Xingfa
Group, as suppliers, would supply and China
Lesso and its subsidiaries (“China Lesso Group”),
as purchasers, would purchase aluminium
profiles and/or panels supplied by Guangdong
Xingfa Group members on an on-going basis for
a term from 1 January 2021 to 31 December
2021 (both dates inclusive).

—=F
—=

(i)

() EHHEREZREEEL
8 B A (B AR R R AR £
[ 4% B8 57 Pt E R R
B RE 2 SR 2 BIE R
ERFEITELE

@ RAEAAEERERBERS
Z AR BEEBRER
AEERREREREE
HESRA M 2 B8 & IF
R ERESTIERAE
ERBIEPMIEHRE
54

d BERAEFSERXFABRN
AEBETZAERER
S (BREHEHZEATZ
REBERS) ZERZE
HIRI s

——FHRHERZEA
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AZEEF+_HA=+NA8 -
J& B B B R BB YB AT S AR R
wE( T —FEHEHZ
Al Bl BREREE(EA
HER) A & R B R H
WEBAR(THEEEERE]) (1E
ABEH)BAEREREEER
KB R ERIFE R A 2 ta 7
MR/ SEREER - BRE =%
——F—A—BEBEZZT-_—F
T+ AZ+—H(BEEEM
H) -
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(i)

(iii)

Annual Cap

The annual cap in respect of the transactions
contemplated under the 2021 Master Supply
Agreement A for the Year was RMB125.0
million, and the actual aggregate amount of sale
transactions was approximately RMB69.8 million
for the Year.

Internal control procedures

During the Year, the Group has complied with
the following internal control measures to
monitor the pricing and terms of the
transactions under the 2021 Master Supply
Agreement A and ensure that the prices and
terms offered by Guangdong Xingfa Group to
China Lesso Group were no more favourable
than prices and terms offered to independent
customers and that the annual cap was not
exceeded:

(@  monitoring the prevailing average price of
aluminium ingots as quoted on
Guangdong Nanhai Nonferrous Metals
Market on a daily basis;

(b) comparing the prices and terms of the
supply of aluminium profiles and/or panels
to China Lesso Group with the prices and
terms of aluminium profiles and/or panels
supplied by the Group in the PRC as
agreed with independent customers on a
regular basis;

(¢ adhering to the relevant internal control
policy of the Group on connected
transactions in monitoring the prices and
terms of supply of aluminium profiles
offered by Guangdong Xingfa Group to
China Lesso Group to ensure that they
would be no more favourable than those
offered by the Group to independent
customers; and
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NEEBB-_ZE - —FREER
EABTEHETZIRGZ2FE L
IR A& A R #125,000,0007C @ &
KFEEZERBEERF BB
A ANRE 69,800,000 7T °

N EBES IR

RAEE  AEEDETATA
MEEEENEREE _T——
BERHBEAR N IR S LEE
R AGRR - I HEE R IR B ZE 52 (B [A)
o BB 28 SR PR AR 2 (B AR R AR R
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KAGF R BB FE LR
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() & 55 A o B 28 SR it
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B8 3B P i5 E X B
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(ii)

(d) periodic financial report containing
information on all connected transactions
carried out by the Group including the
continuing connected transactions under
the 2021 Master Supply Agreement A was
submitted to the Board.

Master Supply Agreement B
Nature of transactions

On 29 December 2020, Guangdong Xingfa and
Jiangxi Jingxing entered into a master supply
agreement (“2021 Master Supply Agreement B”)
pursuant to which Guangdong Xingfa Group
members, as suppliers, would supply and Jiangxi
Jiangxing, as purchaser, would purchase
aluminium profiles supplied by Guangdong
Xingfa Group members on an on-going basis for
a term from 1 January 2021 to 31 December
2021 (both dates inclusive).

Annual Cap

The annual cap in respect of the transactions
contemplated under the 2021 Master Supply
Agreement B for the Year was RMB30 million,
and the actual aggregate amount of sale
transactions was approximately RMB9.1 million
for the Year.

d) BEREZERIFFER
REBETZATBEBER
S (BE_E - —REER
FABETZHEBRERS)
ZER 2 ERB R

—E--FHHERHES

(i)

(ii)

RHME

NZZB_TF+_A=+NA -
[ 3R LB BT 7 B ET 7 AR P
mE(—_E_—FRHERZ
Bl)  #Ek - BREEFERELNF
(ERHER) e MoT s &
(ERER)BEREHEREES
BB QAR FEAEMHE iR
Bt R T —F—H—
AEE—_T - —F+_-_A=+—
H(BEEREMA) -

FELR

NEERBB_T_—RBHERE
BIATHET I RHIZFE LR
A AR # 30,000,000 7T © K ARF
ErERHEERIBESBHAA
R# 9,100,000 7T °



XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED 2587 242 §% B R 2 5] / Annual Report 2021 F 3§

(iif)

Internal control procedures

During the Year, the Group has complied with
the following internal control measures to
monitor the pricing and terms of the
transactions under the 2021 Master Supply
Agreement B and ensure that the prices and
terms offered by Guangdong Xingfa Group to
Jiangxi Jingxing were no more favourable than
prices and terms offered to independent
customers and that the annual cap was not
exceeded:

(a)

monitoring the prevailing average price of
aluminium ingots as quoted on
Guangdong Nanhai Nonferrous Metals
Market on a daily basis;

comparing the prices and terms of the
supply of aluminium profiles to Jiangxi
Jingxing with the prices and terms of
aluminium profiles supplied by the Group
in the PRC as agreed with independent
customers on a regular basis;

adhering to the relevant internal control
policy of the Group on connected
transactions in monitoring the prices and
terms of supply of aluminium profiles
offered by Guangdong Xingfa Group to
Jiangxi Jingxing to ensure that they would
be no more favourable than those offered
by the Group to independent customers;
and

periodic financial report containing
information on all connected transactions
carried out by the Group including the
continuing connected transactions under
the 2021 Master Supply Agreement B was
submitted to the Board.
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4.

Tenancy Agreement A

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Nature of transaction

On 29 December 2020, &5 8 % §5 % (J7/ /)
£ BR 2 Al (in English for identification only,
Guangdong Xingfa Aluminium (Henan) Co.,
Ltd.) (“Xingfa Henan"), an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, as landlord,
and Henan Jingxing, as tenant, entered into a
tenancy agreement (“Tenancy Agreement A”)
pursuant to which Xingfa Henan would lease
the property located at # BRI Eg & 05T 0L
T % % Z [& (in English for identification only,
Qingbei Industrial District, Qinyang City, Henan
Province, the PRC) to Henan Jingxing for the
welding, assembling, recycling and maintenance
of aluminium panels which were applied as
construction materials and the sale of such
aluminium panels for a fixed term of one year
from 1 January 2021 to 31 December 2021
(both dates inclusive).

Annual Cap

The annual cap for the transactions
contemplated under the Tenancy Agreement A
for the period from 1 January 2021 to 31
December 2021 was RMB2,758,176, and the
actual aggregate amount of rent was
approximately RMB2,758,176.

Internal control procedures

During the Year, the Group has complied with
the following internal control measures to
monitor the rent and terms of the transactions
under the Tenancy Agreement A and to ensure
that the rent and terms offered by Xingfa Henan
to Henan Jingxing would be no more favourable
than the rent and terms offered to independent
tenants and that the annual cap was not
exceeded:

4.

HEwHEA

(i)

(iii)

RHME

RZZEZTF+_A=+NA8 "
ARARZEBEEZENBRARER
R CUE) AR AR ([#3%
Al (EA¥E)ENmsHE
(WERMP) IV HERz((HE
Wk AL) - ¥R I BB ] B G (R 0T
meEBANATEDTEEA IS
Tt TEEEE 2WE - BE
128 R DR R EERER
EME I R ER R E G e
BER - BEHRRE T = —

—HA—BREZZTE=-_—F+=H
=+—H(BEEEMR) B8—
E °

FELR
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BEREESHOBARE2,758,176

JC ©
MEBEE IR

RER > NEBECEBTA TR
EREmLERAREERZEA
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KGR BT ER[ABILE PR
ZHEERGER R EBLFE £
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(@  monitoring the prevailing market rent in
the same district on a quarterly basis;

(b) adhering to the relevant internal control
policy of the Group on connected
transactions in monitoring the rent under
Tenancy Agreement A to ensure that they
were no more favourable than those
offered by the Group to independent
tenants; and

() periodic financial report containing
information on all connected transactions
carried out by the Group including the
continuing connected transactions under
Tenancy Agreement A was submitted to
the Board.

5. Tenancy Agreement B

(i)

Nature of transactions

On 29 December 2020, B R # & tr % (VL 7A)
£ BR 2 Al (in English for identification only,
Guangdong Xingfa Aluminium (Jiangxi) Co.,
Ltd.) (“Xingfa Jiangxi”), an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, as landlord,
and Jiangxi Jingxing, as tenant, entered into a
tenancy agreement (“Tenancy Agreement B”)
pursuant to which Xingfa Jiangxi would lease
the property located at BT A& HHELLER
flr 7 % [& £ % K #2198 (in English for
identification only, No. 21, Jingfa Road, Yichun
Economic Development Zone, Jiangxi Province,
the PRC) to Jiangxi Jingxing for the welding,
assembling, recycling and maintenance of
aluminium panels which were applied as
construction materials and sale of such
aluminium panels for a fixed term of one year
from 1 January 2021 to 31 December 2021
(both dates inclusive).
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(i)

(iii)

Annual Cap

The annual cap for the transactions
contemplated under the Tenancy Agreement B
for the period from 1 January 2021 to 31
December 2021 was RMB3,645,852, and the
actual aggregate amount of rent was
approximately RMB3,645,852.

Internal control procedures

During the Year, the Group has complied with
the following internal control measures to
monitor the rent and terms of the transactions
under the Tenancy Agreement B and to ensure
that the rent and terms offered by Xingfa Jiangxi
to Jiangxi Jingxing would be no more favourable
than the rent and terms offered to independent
tenants and that the annual cap were not
exceeded:

(@) monitoring the prevailing market rent in
the same district on a quarterly basis;

(b) adhering to the relevant internal control
policy of the Group on connected
transactions in monitoring the rent under
Tenancy Agreement B to ensure that they
were no more favourable than those
offered by the Group to independent
tenants; and

(c) periodic financial report containing
information on all connected transactions
carried out by the Group including the
continuing connected transactions under
Tenancy Agreement B was submitted to
the Board.

(iii)

FELER

HMEHBZBETHENTRZHAEZ
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6.

Engineering Service Agreement

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Nature of transactions

On 19 October 2021, Guangdong Xingfa, an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, and Xingfa Curtain Wall entered into
a service agreement (“Engineering Service
Agreement”) pursuant to which Xingfa Curtain
Wall agreed to provide the certain engineering
services, including but not limited to the
installation of windows, doors and curtain walls
(“Engineering Services”), to Guangdong Xingfa
Group members for a fixed term from 1 July
2021 to 31 December 2021 (both dates
inclusive).

Annual Cap

The annual cap for the transactions
contemplated under the Engineering Service
Agreement for the period from 1 July 2021 to
31 December 2021 was RMB15,000,000 and
the actual aggregate amount of service fee was
approximately RMB8.4 million for the period
from 1 July 2021 to 31 December 2021.

Internal control procedures

During the period from 1 July 2021 to 31
December 2021, the Group has complied with
the following internal control measures to
monitor the pricing and terms of the
transactions contemplated under the
Engineering Service Agreement and ensure that
the service fees and terms offered by Xingfa
Curtain Wall to Guangdong Xingfa Group will
be no less favourable than service fees and terms
offered to Guangdong Xingfa Group by
independent suppliers and that the proposed
annual cap was not exceeded:

(@  monitoring the prevailing average market
service fee of the engineering service
which is identical to or comparable to the
Engineering Services;

6.
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(b)  comparing the service fees and terms of
the provision of Engineering Services by
Xingfa Curtain Wall with the service fees
and terms of the provision of engineering
services in the PRC as agreed with or
quoted by independent suppliers on a
regular basis;

() adhering to the relevant internal control
policy of the Group on connected
transactions in monitoring the service fees
and terms of provision of Engineering
Services by Xingfa Curtain Wall to
Guangdong Xingfa Group to ensure that
they shall be no less favourable than those
offered by independent suppliers;

(d) periodic financial report which contains
information on all connected transactions
carried out by the Group, including the
continuing connected transactions under
the Engineering Service Agreement, was
submitted to the Board;

Views of the independent non-executive Directors

The independent non-executive Directors have
reviewed the continuing connected transactions
carried out pursuant to Xingfa Curtain Wall
Agreement, 2021 Master Supply Agreement A, 2021
Master Supply Agreement B, Tenancy Agreement A,
Tenancy Agreement B and Engineering Service
Agreement, and have considered the information on
internal control procedures referred to in sections
B.1(iii), B.2(iii), B.3(iii), BA4(iii), B5(iii) and B6(iii) above,
and confirmed that the transactions have been
entered into:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of
the Company;

(i) on normal commercial terms or terms no less
favourable to the Company than terms available
to or from independent third parties; and
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(i) in accordance with the relevant agreement
governing them on terms that are fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the
Shareholders as a whole.

The auditor of the Company was engaged to report
on the Group’s continuing connected transactions in
accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 (Revised) "Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of
Historical Financial Information” and with reference to
Practice Note 740 "Auditor’s Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing
Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. The auditor has issued its letter to
the Board containing its findings and conclusions in
respect of the continuing connected transactions as
set out in this section “B” above in accordance with
Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the
auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited which
stated that:

(i) nothing has come to the attention of the auditor
that causes the auditor to believe that the
disclosed continuing connected transactions
have not been approved by the Company’s
board of directors;

(i) for transactions involving the provision of goods
or services by the Group, nothing has come to
the attention of the auditor that causes the
auditor to believe that the disclosed continuing
connected transactions were not, in all material
respects, in accordance with the pricing policies
of the Group;

(i) nothing has come to the attention of the auditor
that causes the auditor to believe that the
disclosed continuing connected transactions
were not entered into, in all material respects, in
accordance with the relevant agreements
governing such transactions;
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(iv)

with respect to the aggregate amount of the
continuing connected transactions, nothing has
come to the attention of the auditor that causes
the auditor to believe the disclosed continuing
connected transactions have exceeded the
annual cap as set by the Company.

9. The 2022 Lesso Master Supply Agreement, 2022
Tenancy Agreement A, 2022 Tenancy Agreement B
and the 2022 Engineering Service Agreement
(collectively as the “2022 CCT Agreements”)

Given that the parties to each of the 2021 Master
Supply Agreement A, Tenancy Agreement A, Tenancy
Agreement B and the Engineering Service Agreement
expected that the continuing connected transactions
contemplated thereunder would continue on an on-
going basis, on 31 December 2021:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Guangdong Xingfa and China Lesso entered
into a new master supply agreement (“2022
Lesso Master Supply Agreement”) for a term
from 1 January 2022 to 31 December 2022
(both dates inclusive);

Xingfa Henan and Henan Jingxing entered into a
new tenancy agreement (“2022 Tenancy
Agreement A”) for a fixed term from 1 January
2022 to 31 December 2022 (both dates
inclusive);

Xingfa Jiangxi and Jiangxi Jingxing entered into
a new tenancy agreement (“2022 Tenancy
Agreement B”) for a fixed term from 1 January
2022 to 31 December 2022 (both dates
inclusive); and

Guangdong Xingfa and Xingfa Curtain Wall
entered into a new service agreement (2022
Engineering Service Agreement”) for a term
from 1 January 2022 to 31 December 2022.
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The terms and conditions of each of the 2022 Lesso
Master Supply Agreement, 2022 Tenancy Agreement
A, 2022 Tenancy Agreement B and the 2022
Engineering Service Agreement (including the pricing
policies) are substantially similar to those of the 2021
Master Supply Agreement A, 2021 Tenancy
Agreement A, 2021 Tenancy Agreement B and the
Engineering Service Agreement respectively. Further
details of the 2022 CCT Agreements were disclosed in
the announcement of the Company dated 31
December 2021.

C.  During the year ended 31 December 2021, the following
connected transactions were non-exempt connected
transactions and were subject to the reporting and
announcement requirements. The following is a brief
description of the connected transactions.

1. Disposal of Jiangxi Jingxing interest

On 4 February 2021, BR#E2% (OT ) AR AA (in
English for identification only, Guangdong Xingfa
Aluminium (Jiangxi) Co., Ltd.) (“Jiangxi Xingfa”)
entered into an equity transfer agreement with
Guangzhou Jingxing in relation to the disposal
(“Disposal”) of the 80% equity interest held by Jiangxi
Xingfa in Jiangxi Jingxing through listing-for-sale
("Listing-for-Sale”) carried out through Guangdong
United Assets and Equity Exchange (“GUAEX"). The
consideration of the Disposal was RMB10 million.
Please refer to the announcements of the Company
dated 18 December 2020 and 4 February 2021.

2. Capital injection of Xingfa Environmental

On 6 September 2021, Guangdong Xingfa, /&5 fH2
RIBRE AR AR (in English for identification only,
Guangdong Xingfa Environmental Technology Co.,
Ltd.) (“Xingfa Environmental”), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Guangdong Xingfa, and Yongbao
Environmental entered into a capital injection
agreement pursuant to which Yongbao Environmental
agreed to inject capital of RMB18 million to Xingfa
Environmental for the subscription of 60% of the
enlarged equity interest in Xingfa Environmental as
additional registered capital of Xingfa Environmental.
Please refer to the announcement of the Company
dated 6 September 2021 for further details.
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3. Acquisition of equity interest in Guangxin Innovative

On 3 December 2021, Guangdong Xingfa, FSPG Hi-
Tech Co., Ltd. (R ILBF BRI R EB RN ER A F)
("FSPG") and Star Lake Bioscience Co., Inc Zhaoging
Guangdong (ERZE 2\ EMEHERMDER A A])
("Star Lake"”) entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with Guangxin Holding, pursuant to which
Guangxin Holding agreed to sell an aggregate of 10%
equity interest in ERE EHBIFTAELBR AT (in
English for identification only, Guangdong Guangxin
Innovative Research Centre Co., Ltd.) (“Guangxin
Innovative”) and each of Guangdong Xingfa, FSPG
and Star Lake agreed to purchase approximately
3.3333% equity interest in Guangxin Innovative. The
aggregate consideration of the acquisition amounted
to RMB33,549,000 and the consideration in respect of
the acquisition of the approximately 3.3333% equity
interest in Guangxin Innovative by Guangdong Xingfa
amounted to RMB11,183,000. Please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 3 December
2021 for further details.

D. The Directors confirm that the material related party
transactions as disclosed in note 33 to the consolidated
financial statements fall under the definition of “connected
transaction” or “continuing connected transaction” (as the
case may be) in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The
Directors confirm that the Company has complied with the
disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

In the opinion of the Directors, save as set out in the Company’s
corporate governance report in this annual report, the Company
had complied with all the code provisions of the then prevailing
Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the
Listing Rules for year ended 31 December 2021.
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MODEL CODE

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) set out
in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as the code of conduct (“Code
of Conduct”) regarding Directors’ securities transactions. After
having made specific enquiry with all Directors, the Company has
received confirmations from all Directors that they have complied
with the required standards set out in the Model Code and the
Code of Conduct for the Year.

The Company has also adopted procedures on terms no less
exacting than the Model Code in respect of the securities
transactions of the employees who are likely to be in possession of
unpublished inside information of the Company.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

A permitted indemnity provision (as defined in section 9 of the
Companies (Directors’ Report) Regulation (Chapter 622D of the
Laws of Hong Kong)) for the benefit of the Directors is currently in
force and was in force throughout the Year.

EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE FINANCIAL
YEAR

Exercise of share options

Subsequent to the end of the Year and up to the date of this
report, an aggregate of 320,000 ordinary shares were issued upon
exercise of share options granted under the share option scheme
of the Company at an exercise price of HK$5.46 per share. As at
the date of this report, 419,816,334 ordinary shares of HK$0.01
each in the share capital of the Company were in issue.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has
maintained sufficient public float as at the date of this report.
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AUDITORS

The financial statements have been audited by KPMG who shall
retire and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-appointment
at the forthcoming annual general meeting. A resolution will be
proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting to reappoint
KPMG as auditors of the Company.

There has been no change of auditors of the Company in any of
the preceding three financial years.

On behalf of the Board of Directors

LIU Libin
Chairman

Foshan China, 25 March 2022
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The Company has adopted the then prevailing Corporate
Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules
("Corporate Governance Code”) during the year ended 31
December 2021. In the opinion of the Directors, save as
mentioned in this Corporate Governance Report, the Company
had complied with all the code provisions of the then prevailing
Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the
Listing Rules for the year ended 31 December 2021.

The Directors are committed to upholding the corporate
governance of the Company to ensure that formal and transparent
procedures are in place to protect and maximise the interests of
the Shareholders.

Set out below is a detailed discussion of the corporate governance
practices adopted and observed by the Company throughout the
year ended 31 December 2021.

A. DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules ("Model Code”) as its own
code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities transactions.
Having made specific enquiry of all Directors, all Directors
confirmed that they had complied with the required
standards set out in the Model Code and its code of conduct
regarding directors’ securities transactions during the year
ended 31 December 2021.
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B. BOARD OF DIRECTORS

0}

Board composition

The Board currently comprises a combination of
executive Directors and non-executive Directors. As at
the date of this report, the Board consisted of the
following Directors:

Executive Directors:

Mr. LIU Libin (Chairman)

Mr. LIAO Yuging (Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. WANG Lei
(appointed on 4 August 2021)

Ms. ZHANG Li (Chief Financial Officer)
(resigned from the position of executive Director
on 4 August 2021)

Mr. LAW Yung Koon

Mr. WANG Zhihua

Mr. LUO Jianfeng

Non-executive Directors:

Mr. ZUO Manlun
Ms. XIE Jingyun

Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. CHEN Mo
Mr. HO Kwan Yiu
Mr. LAM Ying Hung Andy
Mr. WEN Xianjun
(appointed on 4 August 2021)
Mr. LIANG Shibin
(resigned on 4 August 2021)

The executive Directors, with the assistance from the
senior management, form the core management team
of the Company. The executive Directors have the
overall responsibility for formulating the business
strategies and development plan of the Group and the
senior management are responsible for supervising
and executing such plans of the Group.
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(i)

Board meetings

During the Year, four full board meetings were held,
at which, among other matters:

—  the Directors approved the annual results of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2020
and reviewed the related results announcement,
annual report and the circular to the
Shareholders in relation, amongst others, to the
general mandate proposal and re-election of the
Directors retiring by rotation;

—  the Directors approved the interim results of the
Group for the six months ended 30 June 2021
and reviewed the related results announcement;
and

— the Directors approved the annual caps of
continued connected transactions for the year
ending 31 December 2022.

During the Year, the Board also discussed and
approved the Group's affairs by way of circulation of
written resolutions.

Prior notices convening the Board meetings were
despatched to the Directors setting out the matters to
be discussed. At the Board meetings, the Directors
were provided with the relevant documents to be
discussed and approved. The company secretary of the
Company is responsible for keeping minutes of the
Board meetings.
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during the year ended 31 December 2021:

(iii) Attendance record (iii) HELE
The following is the attendance record of the board ATREFGREAZ T _—F+=
meetings held by the Board and general meeting held A=+—BULFEMBETzEEEE

mM IR AE AL

Attendance at meeting

ERHER
Board General
Meetings Meeting
Ezgez eV
Executive Directors: HITEE
Mr. LU Libin (Chairman) AR (FE) 3/4 17
Mr. LIAO Yuqing (Chief Executive Officer) BEELE (TTH#EH) 3/4 11
Mr. WANG Lei ITERE
(appointed on 4 August 2021) (RZZE—FN\AHBEZE) 2/4 0/1
Ms. ZHANG Li (Chief Financial Officer) REIR T (A HEE)
(resigned from the position of executive (R=E=-_—F )\ ANA
Director on 4 August 2021) BIHITESR) 1/4 171
Mr. LAW Yung Koon ZEREEE 4/4 11
Mr. WANG Zhihua TEELE 4/4 1/1
Mr. LUO Jianfeng FBRIESE 4/4 1/1
Non-executive Directors: FHITEE :
Mr. ZUO Manlun mimfmik s 4/4 11
Ms. XIE Jingyun HEELt 1/4 1/1
Independent non-executive Directors: BUFHTEE
Mr. CHEN Mo PREA A 4/4 11
Mr. HO Kwan Yiu MEZELEE 4/4 17
Mr. LAM Ying Hung Andy MEBEE 4/4 171
Mr. WEN Xianjun NEELE
(appointed on 4 August 2021) (RZZZ—FNANBEZME) 3/4 0/1
Mr. LIANG Shibin iyl
(resigned on 4 August 2021) (RZE-—FN\AWBE&HT) 1/4 11
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(iv)

(v)

Independent non-executive Directors

In compliance with Rule 3.10(1) of the Listing Rules,
the Company has appointed four independent non-
executive Directors. The Board considers that all
independent non-executive Directors have the
appropriate and sufficient industry or finance
experience and qualifications to carry out their duties
so as to protect the interests of shareholders of the
Company. One of the independent non-executive
Directors, Mr. LAM Ying Hung, Andy, has over 27
years of experience in the accounting, banking and
finance sectors and is a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants.

The Company has received the annual written
confirmations from all independent non-executive
Directors in respect of their independence. The Board
considers that all independent non-executive Directors
are independent. Particular consideration is paid in
assessing the independence of those independent
non-executive Directors who have been serving on the
Board for more than 9 years and seeking re-election in
the forthcoming annual general meeting. When
appropriate, reasons will be given in the annual
general meeting circular to explain why the Board
believes those independent non-executive Directors
are still independent and should be re-elected.

Relationship among members of the Board

Mr. LIAO Yuging, an executive Director and the chief
executive officer of the Company, is the son-in—law of
Mr. LUO Su, the Honourable Adviser of the Group.
Save as aforesaid, there is no other family relationship
between any of the Directors and chief executive
officer of the Company. All of them are free to
exercise their independent judgement.
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(vi) Continuous professional development

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the
Company has provided regular updates to Directors
on material changes to regulatory requirements
applicable to the Directors and the Company and on
the latest business development of the Company. The
Directors confirmed that they have complied with
code provision A.6.5 of the Corporate Governance
Code on directors’ training. During the year ended 31
December 2021, all Directors, namely Mr. LIU Libin,
Mr. LIAO Yuging, Mr. WANG Lei, Ms. ZHANG Li, Mr.
LAW Yung Koon, Mr. WANG Zhihua, Mr. LUO
Jianfeng, Mr. ZUO Manlun, Ms. XIE Jingyun, Mr. CHEN
Mo, Mr. HO Kwan Yiu, Mr. LAM Ying Hung, Andy,
Mr. LIANG Shibin and Mr. WEN Xianjun, have
participated in continuous professional development
by reading materials to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills in areas related to their roles,
functions and duties of Directors such as corporate
governance, regulatory updates and topics related to
aluminium industry, and provided their respective
record of training to the Company.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER

The roles of the Chairman and the chief executive officer are
segregated. Mr. LIU Libin is the chairman of the Board. The
Chairman is chiefly responsible for managing the Board. Mr.
LIAO Yuqing is the chief executive officer of the Company
who takes charge of the supervision of the execution of the
policies determined by the Board. The Chairman also chairs
the Board meetings and briefs the Board members on the
issues discussed at the Board meetings.

Code provision A.2.7 of the Corporate Governance Code
requires the Chairman to hold meetings at least annually
with the independent non-executive Directors without the
presence of other Directors. During the Year, Mr. LIU Libin,
the Chairman, did not hold any meeting with the
independent non-executive Directors without the presence
of other Directors. However, the Chairman held meetings
with the independent non-executive Directors with the
presence of other Directors periodically during the Year to
understand their concerns, to discuss pertinent issues and to
ensure that there was access to adequate and complete
information. The independent non-executive Directors could
have direct contacts with the Chairman after meetings if
necessary.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS AND NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Each of Mr. CHEN Mo, Mr. HO Kwan Yiu, Mr. LAM Ying
Hung Andy and Mr. LIANG Shibin (resigned on 4 August
2021) has been appointed for a fixed term of three years
commencing from 1 April 2020 and Mr. WEN Xianjun has
been appointed for a fixed term of three years commencing
from 4 August 2021.

Each of Mr. ZUO Manlun and Ms. XIE Jingyun has been
appointed for a fixed term of three years commencing from
1 April 2020.

The independent non-executive Directors have attended the
Board meetings and provided independent judgement on
the issues discussed thereat.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

The Company established a remuneration committee with
written terms of reference in compliance with the Corporate
Governance Code. During the year ended 31 December
2021, the remuneration committee comprised Mr. HO Kwan
Yiu (Chairman), Mr. CHEN Mo, Mr. LAM Ying Hung, Andy,
Mr. LIU Libin and Mr. LIAO Yuging. The primary duties of
the remuneration committee are to review and make
recommendations to the Board on the terms of
remuneration packages, bonuses and other compensation
payable to the Directors and senior management.

It is the Company’s policy that the remuneration package of
each Director and senior management shall be determined by
reference to the duties, responsibilities, experience and
qualifications of each candidate.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the
remuneration committee has held one meeting, at which
the remuneration committee members have reviewed and
made recommendations to Board on the appointment of an
executive Director and an independent non-executive
Director.
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NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

The Company established a nomination committee with
written terms of reference in compliance with the Corporate
Governance Code. During the year ended 31 December
2021, the nomination committee comprised Mr. LIU Libin
(Chairman), Mr. HO Kwan Yiu, Mr. CHEN Mo, Mr. LAM
Ying Hung, Andy and Mr. ZUO Manlun. The primary duties
of the nomination committee are to make recommendations
to the Board on the nominees for appointment as Directors
and senior management of the Group.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the nomination
committee has held one meeting, at which the nomination
committee members have reviewed and made recommendations
to Board on the appointment of an executive Director and
an independent non-executive Director.

According to the articles of association of the Company,
one-third of the Directors are subject to retirement by
rotation or, if their number is not three or a multiple of
three, then the number nearest to but not less than one-
third shall retire from the office and offer themselves for re-
election. The Directors to be retired by rotation shall be
those who have been longest in office since their last
appointment. At a full Board meeting held on 26 March
2021, the Directors have reviewed the performance of the
Directors who would retire at the annual general meeting of
the Company held on 27 May 2021 and approved to
recommend the re-election of such Directors at the aforesaid
annual general meeting of the Company.
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The Company continuously seeks to enhance the
effectiveness of the Board and to maintain the highest
standards of corporate governance and recognizes and
embraces the benefits of diversity in the Board. The Board
has adopted a Board Diversity Policy (“Board Diversity
Policy”) to comply with the code provisions of the Corporate
Governance Code which was effective from 1 September
2013. The Company believes that a diversity of perspectives
can be achieved through consideration of a number of
factors including, but not limited to, skills, regional and
industry experience, cultural and educational background,
race, gender and other qualities. In informing its perspective
on diversity, the Company will also take into account factors
based on its own business model and specific needs from
time to time. The composition, experience and balance of
skills on the Board retains core members with longstanding
knowledge of the Group alongside new Director(s)
appointed from time to time who bring fresh perspectives
and diverse experiences to the Board. The process for the
nomination of Directors is led by the nomination committee,
which has been made on a merit basis. A nomination policy
("Nomination Policy”) was adopted on 31 December 2018
and became effective on 1 January 2019, which serves to
improve the transparency of the process and criteria in
selecting and recommending candidates as directors of the
Company for the Board's approval from time to time and at
any time to appoint any person as a Director either to fill a
casual vacancy or as an addition to the Board. The Directors
and the nomination committee will consider and nominate
candidates according to the Nomination Policy based on
objective criteria with due regard to the benefits of diversity
as set out in the Board Diversity Policy, to the Board for
approval. In identifying individuals and making
recommendations for nominations, the nomination
committee considers whether such individuals have the
appropriate qualifications, ability and perspectives that
would enable them to effectively fulfill their roles and
responsibilities as directors of the Company. The Board will
review the Board Diversity Policy and the Nomination Policy
on a regular basis to ensure their continued effectiveness.
During the year ended 31 December 2021, the nomination
committee was satisfied with the diversity of the existing
Board composition and did not, for the time being, set up
any measurable objective regarding board diversity.
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AUDITORS" REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2021, KPMG, the Group’s
external auditors, provided annual audit services and other
non-audit services to the Company. A breakdown of the
remuneration of the Group’s external auditors is as follows:

BT &

REE-_ZTZ-_—F+-_A=+—HILFE -
REBINEBIZEEN R BB & 5TR0 B 5P M A
NERHFEEERE K EMIEETZRE -
REBINIBIZEEN 2 NSRRI T

For the year ended
31 December 2021

BE-_ZT——
+t=HA=+—H
IEFE
(RMB’000)
(AR®TT)
Audit service BERE
Annual audit services FEFEZRE 1,395
Other non-audit services H M IEE AR
(among others, for reviewing the interim (PREEMNAEEFHIBER)
financial information of the Group) 784

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an audit committee with
written terms of reference based upon the code provisions
and recommended practices of the Corporate Governance
Code. The primary duties of the audit committee are to
review and supervise the financial reporting process and
internal control systems of the Group. During the year
ended 31 December 2021, members of the audit committee
comprised Mr. LAM Ying Hung, Andy (Chairman), Mr. CHEN
Mo and Mr. HO Kwan Yiu, being the independent non-
executive Directors, and Ms. XIE Jingyun being the non-
executive Director.

BEREES
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During the year ended 31 December 2021, the audit REBEE-_Z-—F+-_A=1+— EIJLiF
committee has held two meetings, at which: ERZECCBITMATH &

%*’7‘2,\ EXNEBEHAKEHRE_F

— the audit committee members have reviewed and

discussed with the external auditors of the Company —EF+_A=1t—"HIEFEZHEE
the Group’s consolidated financial statements for the E?H%i&i%{’ﬁ.‘:lj%ﬁﬁ j’[éﬁi$" BENE
year ended 31 December 2020, who is of the opinion T?§5{EfﬁL%§Fﬁ*T ERBZBERETA
that such statements complied with the applicable SHER] - FHRBIREADIRRE -
accounting standards, the Listing Rules and legal DTE(’EHjE%@TBZ?E :

requirements, and that adequate disclosures have

been made;

—  the audit committee have reviewed the reasonableness — %V§ BENERAARRAEEET
and fairness of the continuing connected transactions TEFE+ A=+ —RILEEIEBE
of the Company for the year ended 31 December BEBESHZEEERATS &
2020; and

— the audit committee members have reviewed and — BERREEKBEEHEARNRINZE
discussed with the external auditors of the Company MEH LR mASEHZ T = —%F
the Group's unaudited consolidated financial NAZTHLERNEAZREEZERE
statements for the six months ended 30 June 2021. B TS EREKR -

The following is the attendance record of the committee UTNAEEZZEeRnEE2 - —F+_A8

meetings held by the audit committee during the year ended ST -HBULEFERTZESERIHFER

31 December 2021: 8 -

Attendance
at meeting
SRHESR

Mr. LAM Ying Hung Andy B A4 2/2

Mr. CHEN Mo BRERSE A& 2/2

Mr. HO Kwan Yiu A FERE 2/2

Ms. XIE Jingyun AREL L 2/2

I. DIRECTORS’ ACKNOWLEDGEMENT . EEHER
All Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing EEEHPEARSREEBEEZ T - —F

the accounts for the year ended 31 December 2021. +TZA=t+—HIEFERBEZEF -
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibilities for maintaining a
sound and effective risk management and internal control
system of the Group. The Board has not established a risk
management committee. Instead, the full Board is
responsible for performing the risk management function,
including establishing and approving the overall risk
management strategies of the Group form time to time,
overseeing senior management’s implementation of those
strategies to align with the Company’s risk profile,
overseeing risk management framework structure, reviewing
key risks and mitigation strategies and ensuring risk
management effectiveness.

A bottom-up and top-down approach is utilised to ensure a
holistic risk management process. The bottom-up approach
is supported by key business units to identify and prioritise
risks while the top-down approach reviews and assesses if
risks are comprehensively identified, prioritised, and properly
addressed by key business units to accomplish the Group’s
objectives. The management team is regularly monitoring
emerging risks for continuous risk assessment purpose and
for building the risk-management based internal audit plan
and periodically assesses the adequacy and effectiveness of
risk management and internal controls for ongoing risk
assurance purposes. This enhances the effectiveness of the
Group's risk and control framework.

J.
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The Group's risk management and internal control system is
designed to reduce risks, safeguard the Group’s assets,
prevent and detect fraud and protect shareholders’
investment as well as to ensure that proper accounting
records are maintained and applicable legislation and
regulations are complied with. During the year under review,
through discussions with the management, the internal
audit team and external auditors and with reference to a
report submitted by the internal audit team and a risk
assessment report prepared by a professional audit firm, the
Board has conducted assessments and reviews of the
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal
control system in various perspectives, including, among
others, financial control, operational and compliance
controls and risk management. The risk management and
internal control systems are reviewed by the Board annually
and each review covers a whole financial year.

The internal audit unit of the Company, which is
subordinated to the Board, formulates the internal audit
plan of the Group based on the strategic objectives analysis,
business flow analysis, risk assessment and performance
evaluation and the self-inspection mechanism with
comprehensive risk management functions under the
authority of the Board and the guidance of the audit
committee. It regularly reports to the audit committee and
the Board for its audit findings and recommendations on
internal control. The system is designed to provide
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material
misstatement or loss, and to manage rather than eliminate
risks of failure in the Group’s operational systems and in the
achievement of the Group’s business objectives.
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During the year under review, the internal audit unit of the
Company continuously optimized job responsibilities and
functions of different departments according to the annual
audit plan approved by the Board. Such audit work covered
financial, operation, statutory compliance and connected
transactions, etc., of the Group. During the year under
review, the Board has reviewed the effectiveness of the
Group'’s risk management and material internal controls
system. Based on information furnished to it and on its own
observations, the Board is satisfied with the present risk
management and internal control systems of the Group and
considers them effective and adequate. During the year
under review and up to the date of this annual report,
nothing has been found which requires substantial
improvement.

The Company has formulated policies on information
disclosure and regularly reminded Directors and employees
to properly comply with relevant policies on inside
information while notifying the Directors (who are also the
senior management of the Group) and employees the latest
guidance announced by the regulatory body on such
information disclosure from time to time to keep all of them
abreast of the latest information.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board has taken up the corporate governance functions
in accordance with code provision D.3.1 of the Corporate
Governance Code and has reviewed the Company’s policies
and practices on corporate governance and compliance; has
reviewed and monitored the training and continuous
professional development of the Directors and senior
management of the Company; has reviewed and monitored
the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements; and has reviewed the
Company’s compliance with the Corporate Governance
Code during the Year as well as the disclosures in this
Corporate Governance Report.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Since 2 February 2021, Mr. Pang Wai Ching was the
company secretary of the Company (“Company Secretary”).
In delivering his service as Company Secretary, Mr. Pang
directly reported to the Chairman. Mr. Pang has confirmed
that for the year under review, he has taken no less than 15
hours of relevant professional training.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS AND INVESTOR
RELATIONS

Pursuant to article 64 of the Company’s articles of
association, any one or more shareholder(s) holding, at the
date of deposit of the requisition, not less than one-tenth of
the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of
voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times
have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the
Company Secretary to require an extraordinary general
meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of any
business specified in such requisition and such meeting shall
be held within two months after the deposit of such
requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit the Board fails
to proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s)
himself(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all
reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a
result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the
requisitionist(s) by the Company. The written requisition
must state the objects of the meeting, and must be signed
by the relevant shareholder(s) and deposited to the
Company Secretary at the Company’s principal place of
business, which is presently situated at Unit 605, 6/F, Wing
On Plaza, 62 Mody Road, Tsim Sha Tsui East, Kowloon,
Hong Kong. Any shareholder enquiry may be directed to the
Board through the Company Secretary by sending to the
Company's principal place of business in Hong Kong.
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There is no provision allowing shareholders to put forward
proposals at the general meeting under the Company’s
articles of association or under the Companies Act, Chapter
22 of the Laws of the Cayman Islands (Act 3 of 1961, as
consolidated and revised). Shareholders may follow the
procedures set out above to convene an extraordinary
general meeting for any business specified in such written
requisition.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, there was no
change in the Company’s constitutional documents.

On behalf of the Board of Directors

LIU Libin
Chairman

Foshan China, 25 March 2022
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

ABOUT THIS REPORT

1.1

1.2

Basis of Preparation

This 2021 Environmental, Social and Governance
(“ESG") Report of Xingfa Aluminium is prepared in
accordance with the requirements of the
“Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting
Guide"” of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
("Hong Kong Stock Exchange”), covering the
reporting period from 1 January 2021 to 31 December
2021 (the “Year” or “Reporting Period”). This report
is prepared in Chinese and the English version is the
translation version. If there is any discrepancy between
Chinese and English, the Chinese version shall prevail.
Unless otherwise stated, the denominated currency in
the report is in Renminbi. For the content of corporate
governance, please refer to the Corporate Governance
Report in the 2021 annual report of the Group.

Reporting Principle

This report is prepared in compliance with the
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting
Guide (hereinafter referred to as the “Guide") set out
in Appendix 27 to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange. It
complies with the reporting principles regarding
“materiality”, “quantitative”, “consistency” and
“balance”, and discloses in detail the concept, practice
and performance of Xingfa Aluminum in terms of
ESG. In order to enhance the completeness and
comparability of the report, some previous or recent
related activity reports are also included.
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1.4

Scope of the Report

The subject of this report covers the core business of
Xingfa Aluminium Holdings Limited and its
subsidiaries, including the manufacture and sale of
construction aluminium profiles and industrial
aluminium profiles. This report focuses on reporting
the environment and social policies relating to the
Group's core business during the Reporting Period.
The board of directors of Xingfa Aluminium is fully
responsible for the Group’s sustainable development
strategy, its reporting and risk management. During
the Reporting Period, we addressed our important
environmental and social issues using the same key
performance indicators (KPIs) as in 2020, and the
disclosures regarding the KPIs of environmental and
social issues only cover four subsidiaries located in
Sanshui, Chengdu, Jiangxi and Henan, and Precision
Manufacturing Company.

Information and Feedback

We value your suggestions or opinions in seeking
constant improvement. If you have any comments
about this report, please contact us in the following
ways:

Address No. 5, Zone D, Central Science and
Technology Industrial Park, Sanshui
District, Foshan City, Guangdong
Province

Telephone 0757-85332727

E-mail xingfazhb@126.com

1.3

1.4
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2 SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT

BR - HEgRERERS

2 TEEZRER

MANAGEMENT
2.1 Sustainable Development Strategy 21 URERERK
The United Nations Sustainable Development Goals iA B Al &3 R B 1Z (UN SDGs)E&
(UN SDGs), as the only current UN guidance on BMAEBBREEERERE N
sustainable development issues, provide guidance for —RBEBUHER  BROERMHETES
businesses: to achieve their own sustainable CTEREFAEEZENRE £
development while promoting the sustainable MtEAAFEZEE © UN SDGs 2117
development of society. The UN SDGs include 17 main BEFXFrZAGMIOEARAEE  HE
goals and 169 targets covering the global challenges ESHEeEmENEIIE  piEE
facing society today, including those related to BN FFE - Gk RBRENEL
poverty, inequality, climate, environmental RARFMFREEZFBOKE - K&
degradation, prosperity, and peace and justice. The BT NBITEENSEE - A
Group puts relentless efforts to practice corporate BAFERER - AFE  AEBRXE
social responsibility to facilitate sustainable O ASHREAIEEE - BN EEUN
development. During the Year, the Group was SDGs - BiE [1Baskis BskE|] -
committed to creating value in four major aspects, [IRERE HEHEZ] [UAB
including “Striving for Perfection and Pursuit of A UHEEE] R([HEasE HES
Excellence”, “Protecting the Environment, Co-existing Z - BRPEFIF[FIREASABEEN
and Co-prosperity”, “Human-oriented, Sincerity and HEERER | (PR EWHRIE - thElE
Trustworthy” and “Community Participation and TRAIFRERERERR  MEUTAR -
Sharing”, endeavour to respond to the UN SDGs.
While adhering to the corporate mission of “let
aluminium industry bring excellence for better human
life”, we formulated the sustainable development
strategy, which covered the followings:
Sustainable
Development
Strategy Strategic Objectives UN SDGs
A B R iRk B Fr& FEH UN SDGs B 12
Striving for Adhering to the vision of “creating Goal 3: Good Health and Wellbeing
Perfection and excellence in Xingfa as a century-old Goal 12: Responsible Consumption
Pursuit of brand”, strengthening technological and Production
Excellence innovation, developing high-tech BiR3: RIFEREREREL 3 ar
BERE products, and accelerating the BiZ12: BEAHEENAEE
BREM industrialization of patented products —/\,\/\'

FAE (AT @ 2RFmE]
BZEFRS - SRAC A RIFT -
FZERRHRER @ MREF
EmEFR(

12 525-

O
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RIE HEBRERRE

Sustainable
Development
Strategy
AR R

Strategic Objectives
BB R

UN SDGs
Fr&fERI UN SDGs B 12

Protecting the
Environment,
Co-existing and
Co-prosperity

RERR
HastE

7~

Human-oriented,
Sincerity and
Trustworthy

BARAE
LU EE

While consolidating Xingfa products,
we are committed to protecting the
environment and leading the green
production in the industry

EEEEEERNORE - BUOITE
RERE 5| BITRZEOERE

Adhering to the talent concept of
“Human-oriented, Sincerity and
Trustworthy”, constantly optimizing
the talent management model, and
building an excellent management
team

FANAANBRUAREUZ ] AT ER -
TEEBIEAT EBER
ITEEFHE R E K

Goal 7: Affordable and Clean Energy
Goal 13: Climate Action

BR7 : KBERNBRER
BiE13 : RIRTTE)

13 SRTE

Goal 1: No Poverty

Goal 8: Decent Work and Economic
Growth,

Goal 10: Reduced Inequalities

BiF1: EEE

BiZ8 : BEE LIEMAERER

BiR10: AP FE

REI{EM
2K

o

10 *7=

A
(=)

v
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RIE #HEBRERRE

Sustainable

Development

Strategy Strategic Objectives UN SDGs

AR R BB R FR&FEHI UN SDGs B 1%

Community In the critical period of fighting against Goal 3: Good Health and Wellbeing
Participation and COVID-19, we are actively ensuring  Goal 11: Sustainable Cities and
Sharing the safety of staffs, giving back to Communities

HESH community, and working with all BiE3 : RIFHEEREEEHE
HEASE parties to achieve growth and BiE11 : AT REN T AL

win-win situation

EIEM RS ETERRREET
W e - BEEtE - BFEH
BERKEER

|| ettt

ale
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i -

2.2

HERERRE
Stakeholder Engagement 22 RF@EBERFEBER
The Group attaches great importance to the ARARFTEHDEEMEEFZEBEEN
communication with stakeholders. By actively BERZ  FRBANSH=AEE S -
identifying stakeholders, the Group constantly T &S EBRKLT - BBEERE
improves various communication mechanisms. mMHEEARN  BHERKE 81
Through active and effective communication, the HEEXFFEOAEFE - XEH#E
Group interacts with internal and external stakeholders BARINE BR BENBER-&E
such as customers, governments, partners, staffs, and IR T B a5 AE R 7 HA SR B AR sk &
regulatory agencies to improve the relationships. B R RS A AE R U7 RO R £ B
Based on an in-depth understanding of the SFRMAANTAIBEEREZE WA
expectations and requirements of stakeholders, the BRR{THHEBROE - AIBEMNSEE
Group incorporates their concerns and requirements FHEKEK RNFE > BHPEEUR
into the Company’s sustainable development issues, BREATHEE SR SERE R EEE -
and actively responds with practical actions to strive AR MR B T B F
for the common growth with stakeholders. During the BB BB o
Year, we continued to engage regularly with key
stakeholder groups in a variety of formats to ensure
we communicate effectively on topics of stakeholder
concern.
Stakeholder category Main expectations Main communication methods
F 55 46 B8 75 2 B FEHE FEBBEAFN
Staffs Equal opportunities Intranet
BT FERE NS
Salary and benefits Training and employee activities
MR A &8 TGS
Occupational health and safety Trade union and workers’ congress
BERRERZ S TekBTRERZ
Employee Development Various seminars
BTH%RE EREHE
Governments and Compliance operation Regular reporting
regulatory institutions BIRESE T EAME R
IR T R 25 B A 1 Tax compliance Supervision and inspection
HOE TR EERE
Job creation
BliERt

Promote local economic

development
fRsEHh 7 B R
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Stakeholder category
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Main expectations

EFRHE

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

BRIR HERERRS

Main communication methods

FEBBARX

Investment institutions/shareholders

RE#E R

Suppliers/outsourced producers

HRER, M EER

Customers
=P

Corporate governance
NSIpEsL

Shareholders’ equity
PR #E 5

Information disclosure
EERE

Risk management and control
[\ B i 12

Integrity

BIEEA

Mutual benefit for win-win results
BHHE

Brand influence
mhEEN
Product quality
EmEE
Service standard
RR 757K

Customer opinion

EFER

Company announcements

UNGIYNCS

General meetings

BERE

Roadshow and reverse roadshow

OB % R [ B

Strategy meeting

REEE

Email, telephone, WeChat and
corporate website

BH - B MERATEH

Bidding and tender

RIRIZ

Review and evaluation meeting

ELHENAE

Regular communication

EHIZ B R

Email, telephone, WeChat and
corporate website

BE - B - WERA R

Customer opinion survey
EEERBE

Customer centre and hotline
F RO ANEER

Customer visit

BPFT

Exhibition fairs

EEe
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Stakeholder category

Main expectations

Main communication methods

F 5 48 B8 75 2 Bl FTEHE FEBBAN
Industry Comply with industry regulations  Industry forums and exchanges
7% FEASRRE L TEREBNRNE
Promote industry development Site visit
RIETERR HitHH LB
Industrial innovation Research
ERAH Bkt
Media Information disclosure Result announcement conference
eg EEAH E Rl
Social contributions Media open day
HeaR HRERMA
Special report
HEHRE

Local community

EiitR

Support public welfare
FRESYNGEE 3

Create a harmonious community
EER R R

Community activities

HEES
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2.3

Materiality Assessment

In 2020, we conducted online questionnaire surveys

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

BRI HERERERSE

23 EEMEENG

20205 - RMEBLE =TT HE

through an independent third-party institution to MBI THE TESGEZRETHH

identify the important ESG issues of concern to us and

BRE - BRI LB SR AR S

our stakeholders. This year, we have updated the HERRKFENEEHZE - ~FE

important issues based on the 2020 results, the latest
industry trends, peer company practices, Sustainability
Accounting Standards Board (SASB) industry topics
and the focus of ESG-related rating criteria. The
following sets out the degree of importance of various
issues identified from the Group’s materiality

assessment during the Year:

Important ESG issues

EEMEE

BHIA 2020 F MV AE R BET - KIB&
MNTEBE REQFNEE Al
Bt EAEZEGCASBITERBER
ESGHEBFRIZENEHBINS
EHTEEMERE - AFE AEH
BEEMTHBINREEEHARN
T

Overview

J B

Greenhouse Gas Emissions

BERBHR

Exhaust Emissions and
Management

BERFHRERE

Waste Management

BEEYEE

Use of Energy

RER £ A

Management measures to reduce greenhouse gas emissions (e.g.,
carbon dioxide, methane, etc.) and mitigate global warming during
the operation

WEBEELEARFTRARDBRERE(FIW : —SHk - FhiE) B
B R IR MR B IR i

The impact of air pollutants (e.g., nitrogen oxides, sulphur oxides,
particulates, volatile organic compounds, etc.) emitted during the
operation on the ecological environment and human health, and the
mitigation measures taken to reduce their impact

I L ERREFRHERNZERGRY (Bl BREAY - HA(
) KLY BEMARDE) HERRBERABERRENZE - A
R AR EL 52 2 T AR ER B R HE HE B

The methods of handling hazardous and non-hazardous waste
during the operation and the waste reduction measures taken to
minimise the impact on the ecology and human health

WAL ERRTREAENBEEREYNE  URRRMESE
REIRIE M ARG R B M ERER B R 1

Energy management measures taken to reduce energy consumption
and enhance energy efficiency in its operations (e.g., reducing the
use of dyes, electricity, heating, steam, etc.)

WML EREPRRDERER - IRITEERE AR mEREa s
RETRHERE (PIIR - MAMERRE - B - BBR - E9F)
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EEMNEE
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RIE HEBRERRE

Overview
EE

Wastewater Discharge and
Management

Bk BE R E R

Use of Water Resources

KERER

Land Resources and Their
Impact on Biodiversity

THERREEHEY
ZRENTE

Environmental Compliance

The impact of water pollutants (e.g. heavy metals, ammonia,
nitrogen, organic matter, etc.) discharged during the operation on
the surrounding water bodies and ecology, and the mitigation
measures taken to reduce the impact
WEELERETRABERNAOTRY(FIW: EE A A
WE) EEEKE R AERNTE - AR ARIEE &2 2 W B R BE
=3l

Water conservation measures taken to consume water reasonably
and enhance water efficiency in the course of its operation

BB LEREPREIBEFKER - R AR M EREE £k
t:9iic)

The impact of the operation on land resources and its impact on
biodiversity (e.g., diversity of micro-organisms, flora and fauna) and
the measures taken to mitigate its impact
BETLEREPH T MERREHEYZHM (B - ED -
EVENSNRENZEN)NTE - A RARIERZE KIS
3

Environmental compliance in the operation and identification of
areas for improvement (e.g. whether all environmental permits
required by laws and regulations are in place and in compliance with
the relevant legal and regulatory requirements)
EEALERREPERENENARIBN - I B BRI H T ASCED
(PR - RERFB A ERERIRTENRFITAIZL RS A8
FAEVER  ERBRF)
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Important ESG issues

ERMRE

BRI HERERERSE

Overview
B

Human and Labour Rights

ARG B ES

Occupational Health and Safety

BEREEZD

Anti-corruption

k&S

Xingfa Aluminium’s role in upholding basic human rights protections
(e.g., religion, basic human rights protections such as prevention of
child labour and forced labour, trade union organisation and a living
wage (a wage level sufficient to cover the basic living expenses)
WMBEAEHEERNAERE (DI R ERARREOHIEET
Neg#S T METE@ABRREETE (RABRNEEMRBHER
X ITEKT)ESTHE)

To protect the occupational safety of our employees, provide a
suitable working environment, and promote their physical and
mental health

HEAREEINBERLZSE  RHSENTHERE  UARRERS
DR ER

Policies and controls in place to prevent bribery, extortion, fraud and
money laundering (e.g. anti-corruption training, effective awareness
and reporting mechanisms, etc.) in our daily operations and
procurement processes
HEENAESEMRBSBIREMETONIEHE  $R  HEER
HEEZHENBRRAR (PN BITREBEN - BRAHE
BN BRI E)
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RIE -HERER

|E

3 STRIVING FOR PERFECTION AND PURSUIT
OF EXCELLENCE

3.1

Smart Manufacturing with Craftsman’s Spirit

The Group takes full implementation of the State
Council’s "Quality Development Outline (2011-2020)"
and “National 13th Five-Year Plan for Safe
Production” as its primary mission. The Group abides
by the ISO 9001 quality management system,
government recognized laboratory management
system, measurement and certification management
system, military certification system and other systems.
Our requirements for product quality are higher than
industry average. We introduced world-advanced
production equipment to optimize the physical and
chemical properties of our products. The introduction
of lean manufacturing has not only improved
productivity, but has also reduced the number of
workers, reduced staff workload and reduced costs.

The followings are the progress made by the
companies in performing lean works during the Year:

o Lean specialists in each workshop of the Jiangxi
Company conducted at least one lean work
education session and summary of unsafe
behaviours once a week;

o The workshops of the Jiangxi Company redrew
and repositioned the site, added various types of
alarms and other safety equipment, used site
equipment markings, position warning signs and
responsibility area signs, etc.;

o The Equipment Department of Jiangxi Company
solved more than 200 problems of “evaporating,
emitting, dripping or leaking of liquid or gas”
and more than 600 problems of “electric cabinet
lines”, and carried out 19 TPM training sessions;

o The Henan Company'’s aluminium ash separator
was updated to improve the recovery rate of
aluminium in the melting slag, reduce electricity
consumption, etc.;

3

3.1

Eo &

REBUEHEREERE(EE%EM
T(2011-2020) VA 2 A E[+=H |
RE)AEZTHEZAH  BKESTISO

QUVTEEEERR BHRAUERE
#:EEFLL/? uﬂ—iuun %IE %EI
RERBREERX  HEREEMNEX

BRITEFHRE - RABEBSIEY
RAELEERE BLEMNYELE
BEMILEIEREEM *ami%ﬂ’\]?&ﬁ
TMERSTHEEREX MARDT
TAB BETEISHRE - ﬁﬁ/ﬂz
Tﬁ2$§iﬁ

AEE UTNAEREIERm TFL
B R -

. ImARMEEMEREASHE
ELBERBHEE R

PRETTRHELE  ARTE

o ITARAMNBERYRGENS
BREM MESBRERZTLE
B MEERRSREEES
R ETRENEEREEE

o IAARAIMBREINEAIBER
B ERE20064 718 - [ ENERE
RE 6008418 * FERTPMEZE 19
IR

o AR ABRERDBERETT
FHaA - RRERETENE
Wk REERSE
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o The Precision Manufacturing Company set
quality control plans for each model of high
precision products and arranged training to
implement them, established a one-person-one-
file system for customer complaints, rework and
repainting, quality process violations, etc., and
initially built a quality file system for employees;

o The Precision Manufacturing Company
streamlined operation of the wrapping process
to improve productivity; and

o The subsidiaries upgraded automated and semi-
automated equipment.

In order to regulate the quality inspection and
evaluation of engineering projects, improve the
engineering management standard, and reduce quality
and safety risks, we strictly control the process quality.
We had quality control points in every segment from
casting, extrusion, molds, surface treatment to ex-
warehouse delivery, and continue to improve while
preventing defective products from flowing into the
next process. We also strictly controlled every detail of
the operation process, carefully checked whether
there were quality problems such as grooves, rough
lines, and scratches on profile surface, and check the
profile angle and flatness through square ruler.

We fully implement the “Product Quality Management
Manual”, “Quality Department Management Plan”,
“QUASCAP Pearlescent Electrophoresis Profile
Inspection Regulations” and “Internal Control
Standards”, emphasize product quality management,
and strive to provide customers with satisfactory
products, protect the ecological environment and
maintain staff safety and health. The general manager
of the Company holds a dealer meeting every year and
visits key customers on an ad hoc basis every month to
solicit opinions from customers on product quality and
improvement.

In order to manage the recycling and processing of
faulty products, we implement the “Control Procedure
on Faulty Products” and the “Bad Quality Behaviour,
Process Specification Supervision and Deduction
Treatment System”. During the Reporting Period, the
Group did not violate any laws and regulations related
to product liability.

BRI HERERERSE

s RERHEQRERUSREMRE
ERSENEERGIVEATHEE
ZHIETE] - WA E M - &
BEPRF RIRE BETE
BREEVEE - A—EHE -
VPBEETHERRE

. BEMBEATMEGT IR
1BE  REAERE R

DREMEFEBCRFEBE
e

78

BEBHTIREENESREMTE
R IlREEKkYE REEENZE
Bk - PR RIESBIEEE - {5
F R EA REEEIEAE
ENSERGEREEEE6HE -
BARBRATNELFS RSN
oo AN BRI ERIEEEBRENSE
EMEn - MBREAMREREFE
O M NEEEERHNE W\
BAREAM AEHFRAEETRE -

BM2AEHR(EREEEETFM)
(EEPERHER)  { QUASCAPER
BT RERIRIR) RAAIRIZAE) - 34
FAEREETE  BMHOABERRHR
EMNES RELRREUANEES
TLZEHEER - ARBKIESF AR
—REEREE BATTEHEDE
EF BZARKEFHEREEMN
MMHERENER -

REBTABEMNEIYKEIE - 3,
BTN ERmIERREF) M(TRE
BIR - T8REBEE M EIBH
B) - MEHA - REBRBETME
REBEREEHDERMRHIHITAS o
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3.2 Research and Development and Innovation

The Group has all along been committed to building
core enterprise competitiveness by enhancing its
technological innovation capabilities. Since its
inception, the Group has obtained more than 1,700
domestic and foreign patents, providing over 200,000
product specifications and models covering all major
areas of aluminum alloys, provides aluminum products
and engineering solutions relating to door, window
and curtain wall systems in construction, electronic
equipment, mechanical equipment, rail transportation,
aerospace, and ships etc. With our strong research
and development capabilities and persistent pursuit of
excellent quality, a wide and stable sales network has
been established in China and globally in the past over
30 years, so as to meet the needs of global customers
for high-quality products. During the Year, Xingfa
Aluminum obtained 9 invention patent, 66 utility new
models, and 145 appearance patents.

Furthermore, the Company conducts Industry-
University-Research collaboration with universities and
research institutes. Xingfa Aluminum, Guangdong
Institute of Intelligent Manufacturing, Guangdong
Institute of Materials and Processing under
Guangdong Academy of Sciences, Central South
University and Guangdong University of Technology
jointly carried out the major special project of “Chip,
Software and Computing” (software and computing
category) of Guangdong Provincial Key Area R&D
Program, “R&D and Application Demonstration of
Series Industrial Software for Aluminum Extrusion
Process Control”. The Jiangxi Company jointly
developed a key research and development project,
“Key technology development and industrialization of
high-strength and corrosion- resistant rare earth
aluminum alloys for automobiles”, with South China
University of Technology and Foshan University. In
addition, the Jiangxi Company co-operated with South
China University of Technology to carry out the Jiangxi
Provincial Technology Innovation Guidance Science
and Technology Project “Microalloying of High-
Strength Weldable 7xxx Aluminum Alloys and
Research on Key Technologies of Friction Stir Joining”
and other projects to promote the transformation and
industrialization of scientific and technological
achievements.

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE  #HERERKRE

3.2

TF 3% SR AR

REB—E B BBEABAIF L
NHRITE L ENZODRE N - B
R - ANEEESHEBE 1,700 AN
FRHEE RHEERASETAE
HA20% BREEMBBI - P RE
BMERREG  EFRME BWE
e BERE MAMZE  MMEE
HHEAMERMIERRAIE &
HERKNMBEE N REEBRENH
EFBK EBREIZFEEFE LT
FEMEL TR MIRTERNHEERLS
MEEKMBEPHSMEMMFERK -
REE - ElT R RIS EPAEF9IE -
EAMAEFG66E - INE R E A
14578 -

BE AREZKSR - B
RESHIAFEE - BRAXEER
BEREREM R - ERER B
FEMTHFEH  PEAE  ERT
EREEHARRTEREEHRE
FREEET & DB - SR E | (Fh e
FER)BEATECGREMBEETES
EEERI T XA ERERTR
#) IR RREERIE T RS R
MEBRMBRBERR TIRAER
PEE I ERIA R Gt RTEES A
=M e A IR SR B 2K R LB S
BERAMATTE)  TAARRERET
REBEHRRETIIOARMEIFSIE
BRREB(RRAR I REBATH
e A BHERBEBRRM
MEIFRB A HERKKREL
MEZEI -
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The Group highly values intellectual property rights
management, and in accordance with the
requirements of the “Enterprise Intellectual Property
Management” (GB/T 29490-2013) issued by National
Intellectual Property Administration (CNIPA), w

passed the “Enterprise Intellectual Property
Management” system certification in the year. We
formulate rules and regulations, including the
“Company Intellectual Property Rights Management
System”, “Patent Management System”, “Trademark
Management System”, “Intellectual Property Rights
Training Measures”, “Scientific Research Project
Management System” and “Intellectual Property
Rights Strategic Planning Programme”, so as to
strengthen the promotion of patent laws and
regulations, the popularization of patent knowledge,
patent training, patent application and protection.

Products and Services

The Group always values the rights and satisfaction of
customers. Apart from satisfying customers’ demands
for high-quality products, the Group also focuses on
providing timely and effective services to customers to
solve their problems. The Group’s sales network covers
China nationwide, and we are committed to building
a customer service management mechanism through
various customer service channels, including customer
opinion surveys, customer service centers and hotlines,
customer visits, exhibitions and large-scale reception
activities such as super factories. At the same time, we
have established an enquiry method enabling a quick
search on sales outlets locations on the Company’s
website, and provide online messages, dealer portal
website, anti-counterfeiting enquiry and other options.

3.3

BRI HERERERSE

BRI AEETF+OERMHE
BEE RRERIAAEEREMY
(I BN EE W 12 45 80 ) (GB/T 29490-
2013) &3k - LﬂT<¢¥ﬂ%F%E
BIRE ) RRE - BMFIECA R
HEEETESE) (ENEEHE) -
(EEEREBE) (ANHBERESII
EY (BRI R BIREIE ) RCHBE
BRI STR)EREHE - BER
CEFEREE EFHEALTR - F
FEES - EF PR ERRESTTE -

E m R

REBREEREFPHNERIMEE -
BRImERFPHREEEST K &
EEMIERAATFPRERBAER
HRTS  BAEPHE - NEBMHE
ERBEREZE  BMBOREART
BEEREREREREFEAALT &
fREOMBGE BEFEG - RES

hﬁi@@mﬁﬂﬁqéﬁﬁkﬁg
BEEFREEEHES - BT RPRA
RIS TR RIE RS £
MERAN  WIREBERES « &8
AP IR - AT REIRE -
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In order to standardize customer service management
and improve customer service quality, we provide the
following after-sales service undertakings in our tender
contracts:

o After receiving the customer’s quality feedback,
Xingfa Aluminium will respond within 24 hours
or dispatch service staff to the site as soon as
possible for after-sales service until the customer
is satisfied,;

o Xingfa Aluminium will send technicians to the
site to provide technical guidance services when
needed;

o If there is any damage caused by the quality of
the materials provided by Xingfa Aluminium,
such materials will be replaced free of charge;

o Actively participate in engineering co-ordination
meetings organised by customers, strictly
implement meeting minutes or signed
agreements between the parties, and pay return
visits regularly to understand the use of materials
by users;

° After the contract is fulfilled, Xingfa Aluminium
undertakes to continue provide users with the
relevant technical services and answer users’
inquiries at any time;

o Xingfa Aluminium will further improve its
services, and implement timely service, advanced
service, full-process service, and high-quality
service throughout the entire product
manufacturing and installation process.

RRBEFPRBEERE BREEPR®
BE- ﬁﬁ'ﬂEAEPT? #1912
ARG 20 T A

s RIEFPMESMERME
B E 24/ E Eiﬁ
HIRBEAE  URRHOERERE
RBETERRE  EE2EF®

= .
SN

s WMEAFTEWNHEZTHIRLRIMA
BRRGETRIMNE SR

o MEREZMEMHMEERZE
REVREE - BRBETER

s RBHR2SNFFAMSNIREWHSR
g BRUITETERNGHEL
BRI THEE - T
R P MR ERER

o  ARBEITTMAR BRI
A F IR AR R BT AR %5 - BB
RERPRME

o BETGE SR TE L
KBRS - EBRIARTS - 2BEMR
% BERGEREERRE
ZERHNEBIE -
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Information Security and Privacy Protection

The Group attaches great importance to information
security and customer privacy protection, strict
compliance with relevant national and local laws and
regulations. The Group is the first enterprise in the
industry to apply the “ERP modern management
information network project”, and passed the
“Integration of Informatization and Industrialization
Management System Assessment” in 2017.

The Group also regulates the collection and
preservation of customer information. For software
that may contain customer information, customer’s
private information will be encrypted, and relevant
records will be kept for customer information
operation purpose only.

We combined Xingfa Aluminium’s informatization and
digitalization standard, utilize multiple information
systems, adopt new cloud computing, big data,
Internet of Things, mobile 5G and other new
technologies, integrate smart profile WMS, automated
material three-dimensional warehouse, automated
mold three-dimensional warehouse, energy
information integrated management platform,
production equipment data acquisition and the
comprehensive performance analysis platform and
strive to promote the construction of big data to
ensure the continuous improvement of the Group’s
operational efficiency and overall management
standard.

We are committed to protecting customer personal
privacy and attaching great importance to information
security and customer privacy. The Group is in strict
compliance with the relevant national and local laws
and regulations, and ensures that customer
information is used properly, and prevents customer
privacy leakage in accordance with the laws.

3.4

BRI HERERERSE

EEREZHEBALRE
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3.5

We strengthen the “digital centre” information level
protection security construction, strengthen the
network centre, industrial control security construction
content, we believe that information security system
construction is a comprehensive, three-dimensional
construction, in addition to strengthening the
introduction of security equipment on the one hand,
on the other hand, we also need to carry out
information security knowledge training for all staff,
to reduce the security risks caused by unnecessary user
operation behavior. We will complete the security
equivalence assessment of two digital centres and one
network centre, and harden the security of user
terminals, while accelerating the process of building
the security of industrial control networks to ensure
that security risks are reduced to a minimum.

Sustainable Supply Chain
3.5.1 Supply Chain Environmental Risk Management

While developing, we never forget to join hands
with upstream and downstream partners in the
industry chain to promote a responsible supply
chain, constantly improve service quality, and
facilitate the healthy and sustainable
development of the industry. We conduct a
qualification review when bidding, and stipulate
that the bidder must be a registered enterprise
in the People’s Republic of China, and meet the
relevant requirements as a legal person, and
must possess a business licence and tax
registration certificate. Moreover, materials such
as product manuals, quality certificates, various
quality system certification certificates (including
environmental management systems), and
reputation certificates must be provided. At the
same time, we also require suppliers to meet the
three different dimensions of corporate social
responsibility, including economic sustainability,
environmental sustainability and social
sustainability.

3.5
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The raw materials used in products production
of the Group are mainly aluminium ingots and
aluminium rods. Most of its upstream suppliers
are highly- polluted and high energy-
consumption enterprises. We are committed to
reducing the environmental impact of upstream
suppliers. We require our supply chain partners
to strictly comply with the specific requirements
of the Environmental Protection Law of the
People’s Republic of China, the Environmental
Impact Assessment Law of the People’s Republic
of China and other relevant laws and
regulations. Our environmental and social risk
management policy for supply chain include the
followings:

o The policy requires suppliers to satisfy the
requirements of regulatory, reporting and
operational measures. For chemical
materials purchases, general safety will be
enhanced through strengthening
environmental management, preventing
environmental pollution incident, and
integrating supplier environmental risk
management and supply chain
management to achieve “overall safety”;

o Supplier assessment covers the assessment
of risks associated with the supplier, in
which aspects relating to product quality
and hazardous material control, supplier
environment and safety control accounted
for 40% of the overall risk assessments;

° Letters of guarantee are to be entered into
with suppliers on exclusion of
environmentally hazardous substances so
as to ensure all materials and components
provided by suppliers are free from
hazardous substances. All of those
materials and components are required to
pass the tests conducted by professional
testing organization, and testing report
with official seal shall be provided.
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Based on such policy, companies formulate and
implement supply chain environmental risk
management measures based on actual
production and operation conditions. For
example, when Chengdu Company organizes its
supplier files every year, it requires suppliers to
confirm that they are not accountable for any
safety and environmental incidents in previous
year. Whether the suppliers passed the
environmental impact and safety evaluation is
the key inspection item of the Company in
evaluating suppliers. If any supplier fails to pass
the evaluation, no procurement contract will be
signed with the supplier by the Company. The
Sanshui Company updated the supplier selection
criteria, qualification check and trial process
during the year.

During the Reporting Period, there was no
breach of any laws and regulations relating to
environmental emissions by the Group nor has
the Group received any notice of violation from
the government environmental protection
department.

3.5.2 Supply Chain Social Risk Management

The Group has established supplier evaluation
control procedures, major raw and auxiliary
materials inspection procedures, major raw and
auxiliary materials procurement procedures,
quality objectives management and statistical
regulations for the specification and control of
supplier evaluation processes and procurement.
The Group’ s tender purchasing team is led by
senior management, comprising of the sourcing
director and head of each branch companies
and department. The main method of
purchasing raw materials is by tender invitation.
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In order to reduce the social risk in supply chain,
our social risk management policies for supply
chain include the followings:

o Investigation on bidder’s qualifications:
The policy states that bidder must be an
entity incorporated in the People’s
Republic of China, and meets the legal
person capacity required by bidding units
and possesses an enterprise business
license and tax registration certificate.
Bidder must provide product specifications,
quality certificate, quality system
certification (including environmental
management system), credit certificate,
etc,;

. Corporate Social Responsibility
Management: The policy requires the
suppliers of the Group to satisfy social
sustainability.
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4 PROTECTING THE ENVIRONMENT, CO-
EXISTING AND CO-PROSPERITY

4.1

Environmental Compliance

Through integrating with the national green
manufacturing development plan, the Company has
formulated a comprehensive environmental protection
system, constantly improves the environmental
management standard, and successfully obtained the
ISO 14000 environmental management system
certification and the ISO 50001 energy management
system certification. All subsidiaries strictly abide by
the Environmental Protection Law of the People’s
Republic of China, the Environmental Impact
Assessment Law of the People’s Republic of China, the
Water Pollution Prevention and Control Law of the
People’s Republic of China, the Atmospheric Pollution
Prevention and Control Law of the People’s Republic
of China, the Prevention and Control of Environmental
Pollution Caused by Solid Waste Law of the People’s
Republic of China, the Environmental Noise Pollution
Prevention and Control Law of Law of the People’s
Republic of China and other relevant national laws
and regulations, persist in conducting environmental
emergency drills, and improve staffs’ awareness of
energy conservation and environmental protection and
work capabilities. The Company has set up a safety
and environment office to lead and be accountable for
the Group's environmental protection work. We
implemented the reward and penalty system for
environmental protection to reward environmental
protection staffs with outstanding performance or
penalise those who have violated the regulations in
respect of environmental protection.

4.1

NARBEABRRGORISRRES
BT 2 EAIRIBIRESE - TEIRA
IRIBEEKTE - WA IHELFISO 14000
IRIEETRRE ZAISO 50001 fL/RE IR
ARE - SFRABEBET(REAR
HAMBIRBEREER) (PEAREM
BUIRIBR B2 EE) (hEARKEM
BIARSRBIEEY (P EAREME
ARFREAE) - (hEAREME
BB IS RREHAE) - (REA
REFBIRER RS 2B 8% SHH
BIZOARER  BRARREESE
IR B THERREHEMIIER
e RABRETRULERENAE
HEVEHBESBENRRIE  XET
RIBREBREMEY  HERKAI®E
FERHSERBTENET 45T 18
BB o



XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED 2587 242 §% B R 2 5] / Annual Report 2021 F 3§

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

During the Year, the Group invested a total of
RMB45.218 million in environmental protection, which
was mainly used for the preparation of corporate
environmental emergency plan, environmental
facilities renovation, replacement of environmental
protection equipment parts, and environmental
protection facilities renovation and hazardous waste
disposal. The Jiangxi Company updated the Hazardous
Waste Management System, Self-Monitoring
Programme and other systems. The Sanshui Company
carried out management training on industrial
hazardous waste and emergency drills such as liquid
ammonia leakage emergency drills. The Henan
Company carried out the environmental protection
credit evaluation, and the final score received after the
assessment by the Qinyang Branch of Jiaozuo
Ecological Environment Bureau was 98 points, and the
credit rating is “Integrity”. The Henan Company has
completed the new version of the sewage discharge
permit and was rated as a grade B enterprise in 2021.
The Precision Manufacturing Company has established
the Environmental Protection Management System,
the Sulphuric Acid Safety Operation Procedures, the
Sewage Treatment Operation Procedures, the
Environmental Protection Work Responsibility System,
the Environmental Pollutant Prevention and Control
System, and the Energy Conservation and
Consumption Reduction Management Regulations.
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In terms of implementing various environmental EBNEESHERBEEEIE S AF
management tasks, the Group companies were able EEERRREE2EERATERENE
to achieve all set goals for the Year as follows: e

mm  Sanshui Company =K A ]

e No environmental pollution accidents throughout the Year
SERRFESRAENW

I Jiangxi Company JIFE A A

* No penalty for non-compliance of environmental protection throughout the Year
2FEERRERTN

e Environmental management of the plant site
R IR AR

* Regulated management and transfer of industrial hazardous waste throughout the Year
PFIXBREVROBEENRGE @ BEREE

el Chengdu Company S#EQ R

* No environmental pollution accidents throughout the Year
RFEEBRIFEISREN
* wastewater discharge, exhaust gas and noise emissions were in compliance with the national and
local emission standards
BEIK - BESR - REBBENAT & R M BER L
e Compliance disposal of solid waste
BlEEEREE

el Henan Company SR A &

* No environmental pollution accidents and environmental impact incidents
PEERBSRERSIRETEEN

* \Wastewater discharge, exhaust gas and noise emissions meet the national and
local emission standards
REK - BER - BB A BR KT BEiR 2

e Compliance disposal of solid waste
BEESHRRE

Precision Manufacturing Company & 83

* wastewater discharge and noise emissions were in compliance with the national and
local emission standards
FEK MR BHET & BIR Rt 77 BE iR 248

¢ All hazardous waste handed over to qualified entities for disposal
2 EPEREY R EE B EIE

During the Reporting Period, there was no breach of WERN  AEBERBEEAMERIER
any laws and regulations relating to environmental FHERAERE R A REARNIT R - R
emissions by the Group nor received any notice of B BARAREFINEEAS o

violation from the government environmental
protection department.



XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED 2587 242 §% B R 2 5] / Annual Report 2021 F 3§ 1 1 1

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE #HERERRE

42 HFHMER

4.2 Emissions Management

4.2.1 FERBEIKL

4.2.1 Exhaust Gas Emissions

Exhaust gas emissions generated during the
production and operation of the Group include
nitrogen oxide, particulates, sulphur dioxide and
organic waste gas. We strictly complied with the
relevant laws and regulations, such as the
Atmospheric Pollution Prevention and Control
Law of the People’s Republic of China. In our
environmental policies, the Group requires
stringent restriction of exhaust gas and
particulates emission into the atmosphere. Prior
to emissions, exhaust gas must undergo
purification treatment and shall not exceed the
specified standard prescribed by the national or
local environmental protection bureau.

Nitrogen oxide and particulates are mainly
generated from casting workshop. The Group
has purchased natural gas energy transforming
equipment and used natural gas as production
energy to effectively reduce exhaust gas
emission in workshops. During the Year, our
companies had strengthened the exhaust gas
purification management:

° Sanshui Company added activated carbon
adsorption technology and is installing
equipment to monitor the treatment of
exhaust gas;

° Jiangxi Company introduced auxiliary fume
and dust collection facilities for smelting
furnaces to improve fume and dust
collection;

° Henan Company introduced new dust
removal system in aluminium rod shop to
enhance the removal of particulate matter;

° Precision Manufacturing Company
introduced in a new exhaust gas treatment
system as well as a dust removal system.
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Precision Manufacturing Company has taken the
following measures to reduce the environmental
impact of the site when building new
wastewater stations and plant expansions:

o Adopting energy efficient products to
replace traditional high energy
consumption production equipment, e.g.,
adopting double stage compression air
compressors, direct cooling ice machines,
variable frequency motors, servo motors,
switching power supplies, double stage
energy efficient heating ovens, and
making energy efficiency a standard for
selecting new equipment;

o formulating a scientific construction plan
during construction of the workshop,
which included: enhancing construction
management, advocating civilized
construction; strengthening transportation
management, and prevention of material
loss and leakage measures on material
transportation and usage;

o materials were not jammed together
during transportation or overflow and
transport vehicles were travelling at
medium speed to prevent loss and dust
floating during transportation, and the
speed limit of entering and leaving the
construction site was limited to 5
kilometres per hour;

o a simple work shed was set up to store
powder, and outdoor storage was strictly
prohibited;

o the construction waste should be
reasonably piled up and cleaned in time,
and dry construction waste should be
sprinkled to reduce dust pollution during
loading, unloading and transportation;

o watering the ground and roads in
operation area, or regularly clearing road
soil to reduce the impact of floating dust
pollution on the environment and
minimize the impact on ambient air.
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4.2.2 Wastewater Discharge 4.2.2 BERHERL

Industrial wastewater generated by each of the
Group' s production lines mainly consist of acidic
and alkaline wastewater, chromium wastewater
and nickel wastewater. We strictly abide by the
Emission Standards of Pollutants for Inorganic
Chemical Industry, the Water Pollution
Prevention and Control Law of the People’s
Republic of China and other relevant laws and
regulations and the takeover standard for
sewage treatment plant. The annual qualification
rate of wastewater discharge is 100%.

In addition, our environmental policy requires
strengthening the wastewater treatment to
reduce its discharge volume. The policy also
requires good maintenance of the closed-circuit
circulation and integrated treatment of
production wastewater, including:

o Operating and upgrading wastewater
treatment and purification facilities;

o Oily, acidic, alkaline and highly toxic
wastewater is prohibited from discharging
into the water body. Discharging
pollutants into the water system is strictly
restricted to prevent pollution;

o Cleaning of vehicles and containers that
contained greasy or poisonous substances
with water body is prohibited;

o Adding a new defluorination process to
the wastewater treatment station, added a
dosing tank and maintained the
wastewater sedimentation tank;

o Testing centre is responsible for
conducting daily sewage inspection, newly
added online wastewater monitoring
facility, strictly controlling wastewater
discharge within standards, as well as
preparing inspection reports;
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o The safety and environment office of the
Group as well as the environmental
protection management personnel of
production workshop shall cooperate and
accept inspection by the environmental
protection agency on waste gas emission,
and wastewater discharge from time to
time;

o Adding a new process for online recovery
of water resources from nickel wastewater
and extraction of nickel metal resources,
realising efficient recycling of resources
and a water reuse rate of over 95%;

J Introducing the pot mould lye resource
utilisation system to realise the recycling of
lye.

Moreover, to reduce the environmental impact
from construction site, Jiangxi Company took
the following measures during the construction
of new finished goods workshop: during the
construction process, avoid any leakage in
manual transportation of cement mortar and
clean up leaking cement mortar in time, place
containers and other appliances in one place
and clean up in time, and rinse water into grit
pool and set up intercepting trenches around
the construction yard to reduce construction
materials loss. The Precision Manufacturing
Company has put in a new wastewater
treatment station for the comprehensive
treatment of wastewater.
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4.2.3 Hazardous Waste Management 423 FEEEYEE

The Group strictly abides by relevant laws and
regulations such as the Law of the People’s
Republic of China on the Prevention and Control
of Environmental Pollution Caused by Solid
Waste and the Measures on the Management of
Hazardous Waste Manifests, and specify the
management requirements for hazardous wastes
in the environmental policy. The hazardous
waste generated by our production and
operation mainly includes waste corrosive liquid,
waste washing liquid, waste tank liquid, tank
slag, wastewater treatment sludge, waste
engine oil, etc. Henan Company included
aluminium ash and fly ash in the 2021
Hazardous Waste Management List and
standardised their management as hazardous
waste.

We strictly follow the National Directory of
Hazardous Wastes and other relevant
regulations, and all hazardous waste are
entrusted to qualified third-party bodies for
proper recycling and treatment. When pollution
incidents may occur or have occurred,
emergency measures must be taken immediately
to prevent pollution from spreading out, alleviate
and even eliminate the impact of incidents.
Major incidents or emergent events should be
reported to the safety and environment office of
the Company for investigation within two hours
after occurrence.

During the Year, the Group continued to propel
the process of hazardous waste recycling,
reduction and non-hazardous treatment. The
companies introduced the pot mould lye
resource utilisation system to realise the recycling
of lye. Sanshui Company added a new process
for online recovery of water resources from
nickel wastewater and extraction of nickel metal
resources, realising efficient recycling of
resources and a water reuse rate of over
95% ,which significantly reduced the production
of nickel-containing sludge; At the same time,
the companies conducted training on hazardous
waste knowledge and emergency drills for
emergency environmental incidents such as
sulphuric acid and liquid ammonia leaks.
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4.2.4 Non-hazardous Waste Management

The non-hazardous waste generated by the
Group’s production and operation mainly
includes aluminium slag, scrap steel,
construction waste, office and domestic waste,
etc. The Group also attaches great importance
to non-hazardous waste treatment, especially
the recycling of waste materials and non-
hazardous waste residue. Some of the waste
materials can be directly used for production
after being processed, for example, the product
scraps can be used as raw materials after
recycling to the furnace. Other waste materials
such as mold steel can be handed over to the
steel plant for recycling and reuse after recycling.
The main components of non-hazardous waste
slag such as aluminium slag in casting workshop
are alumina powder, aluminium powder and
refractory particles, which can be used as raw
materials for high-aluminium cement production
after being handed over to the cement plant for
treatment.

424 EEEZYEIE
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During the plant construction process, we strictly
abide by national and local environmental
protection laws and regulations and control
construction waste through a series of
environmental protection measures. During the
Year, when building a new finished goods
workshop, Jiangxi Company collected
construction waste and domestic waste, and
strictly prohibited mixing them for
transportation. A small part of the generated
construction waste was collected in time for the
relevant departments to handle, and disposal at
will was strictly forbidden to reduce the
environmental impact from construction waste.
During the Year, when building a new
hazardous waste storage, Jiangxi Company
collected construction waste and domestic
waste, and strictly prohibited mixing them for
transportation. Domestic waste is promptly
handed over to the sanitation department for
removal and disposal, and disposal at will was
strictly forbidden to reduce the environmental
impact. A small part of the generated
construction waste was collected in time for the
relevant departments to handle, and disposal at
will was strictly forbidden to reduce the
environmental impact from construction waste.
When the Precision Manufacturing Company
builds new wastewater stations, boiler rooms
and plants, the construction unit is unified for
reusable construction waste to be used on site,
and for non-reusable construction waste, the
construction unit is unified to contact a third
party to clean up.
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4.3 Use of Resources

4.3.1 Use of Energy

The Group has energy management center
system to collect statistics and analyse the
consumption amount and trend of water,
electricity, gas and other resources, enabling
each production base to monitor resource
consumption in real time, and timely debug and
repair controlling equipment to improve
efficiency.

In order to increase the utilization efficiency of
electricity resources, we took effective measures
including using LED lamps, energy-efficient
equipment, replacing electrical machine with
new and highly efficient motors, reclaiming
waste heat of boiler, installing solar PV power
generation equipment on plant roof top. In
addition, the Group also made full use of the
energy generated during the production process,
such as applying the heat generated from the
operation of the air compressor in the workshop
in heating the technology groove in the
oxidation workshop, and also hot water supply
for staffs for daily use, in order to effectively
reduce the use of electricity resources and
natural gas and reduce safety problems caused
by the use of liquefied gas facilities. During the
Year, different companies continued to
strengthen staffs’ energy conservation
awareness training and supervision and use
pragmatic production activities to reduce process
waste and improved operating efficiency,
thereby reducing energy consumption per unit
of product.
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During the Year, Sanshui Company took the
following energy management and saving
measures:

o The use of permanent magnet variable
frequency air compressors to replace the
company’s original industrial frequency air
COMpressors;

o Replacement of the high frequency
oxidation power supply to ensure a power
saving of 15% on the equipment;

o Renewal of old rod and ageing furnaces to
reduce the natural gas consumption of the
section bars.

4.3.2 Use of Water Resources

Water resources are of vital importance to our
production process as it is indispensable in every
process such as squeezing and casting. The
Group uses both municipal water and water
from its own well, so as to ensure there is no
suspension in production due to water supply
shortage. The ratio of the municipal water use
to well water use is approximately 8:2. In order
to enhance water resources management
capabilities and improve usage efficiency, the
Group continued to implement the water
reclaim system, and reuse reclaimed water for
daily life activities such as watering, toileting,
and cooling water production in facilities
through water towers and water tanks. During
the Year, the electrophoresis workshop of
Jiangxi Company has the reclaimed water reuse
equipment in place and its reclaimed water
reuse rate was 100%.
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4.3.3 Use of Packaging Materials

The packaging materials of the Group are mainly
packaging tapes, labels, stick band, lumps of
wood and sealing glue. We source from
packaging materials suppliers that meet the
requirements of relevant national laws and
regulations. For sourcing products packaging
materials, the Group formulated the group-level
sourcing management plan as its principal
policy. Packaging materials suppliers are selected
by tender, which the Group has already
established long-term cooperative partnership
with them.

4.3.4 Greenhouse Gas Emissions and Management

Climate change is a severe challenge facing
humanity in the global community. As a
manufacturing enterprise, Xingfa Aluminium
actively responded to the call by Ministry of
Industry and Information Technology to
construct a green manufacturing system. In
2017, it was selected as the first batch of green
manufacturing demonstration lists by Ministry of
Industry and Information Technology in 2017
and ranked among the first 201 “green
factories” in the PRC. Our project of “Aluminium
Profile Production Line Air Pollutant Emission
Reduction Technology Reform” won “the
National Industrial Clean Production
Demonstration Project” of Ministry of Industry
and Information Technology, and Xingfa
Aluminium was the only company in Guangdong
Province that won the project. It has also won
the “Guangdong Province Clean Production
Enterprise” and the “First batch of resource
saving and environmental-friendly enterprise
piloting” in Guangdong Province and other
honorary titles.
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In order to reduce direct and indirect greenhouse
gas emissions in production operations, not only
did the Company implement green production,
it also promoted green office practices. The
Group continued to use natural gas as one of
the energy supplies for production operations
during the year because the carbon emissions of
natural gas is lower than coal and reduce
greenhouse gas emissions correspondingly. In
addition, while different companies adopt the
OA network office system, promote video
conferencing system and paperless office and
standardize the use of official vehicles and travel
management to reduce energy consumption,
use of papers and travel carbon emissions while
ensuring office efficiency. The recycling of
domestic and office water was also encouraged.
The companies plan to:

° Retrofit or install photovoltaic power
generation at all bases where possible
(including new infrastructure projects);

o Gradually promote intelligent and digital
transformation in existing bases and
gradually replace motorised logistics with
rail logistics; and

° Scientifically lay out production lines for all
new and renovated projects based on the
lean manufacturing concept, further
reducing duplication of processes and
achieving high energy efficiency.

In the future, we will further optimize the
management system related to green factories,
continuously improve the environment and
energy management system, and leverage fully
our corporate technology, resources, and
external collaboration conditions to make Xingfa
Aluminium the advanced and smart green
factories with high energy efficiency, low
pollution and low emission, contributing to the
nation’ s green and low-carbon transformation
and development.

BRI HERERERSE

BB EEESTNERMER
BEREEN - ARTEEITHR
BEE RRETEREHRIT
R RNFEE - AEBEREFERR
AREREEELNRRHTEZ
— - BRI - EAER D
BERBBBEN - WO BRFK
FROAMERR M R &AL - HETTIR A
SHREARMELERS  RER
BEWMEAMERER - REMR
REHBME R - B RETRHFE M
MERNER - B HITHRE
P SRR MR KRR
MM - REHKETE

o B EM(BENER
HE) 2EMEHL LN

BE

e REEMETHHER
b~ BF g ZFH
BRI EE DR -
&

e HERNEEBEZIEBRE
S ESNMEMBER £
—FRIEERE BR

= ARERRE °

RE - BAKE—FBLEET
PR E IR HIE - FHEUCER
BoRREEER  YRONA
DA A~ B IR A SN BB 9 1F 15
o IR R ITER — A =6
M AKISR - REEEER S
e TR B hBRE 2B
BAHR -

121



122

XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED 287 242 i B R 2 5] / Annual Report 2021 F 3

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE HEBRERRE

5 HUMAN-ORIENTED, SINCERITY AND
TRUSTWORTHY

5.1

Employment Practice

The Group strives to provide staffs with a working
environment providing diversified and equal
opportunity, and to form a highly qualified team.
Meanwhile, we aim to create comfortable and safe
working conditions to ensure social and cultural
diversity and the dynamic development of the
Company.

We strictly comply with national and local labour
regulations such as the Labour Law, the Labour
Contract Law, the Law on the Protection of Minors
and Provisions on Prohibition of Child Labour of the
PRC and protects the legitimate rights and interests of
staffs.

We follow the principle of equal employment, namely
“fairness, openness and impartiality”, and focus on
the job applicants’ business abilities, personal qualities,
and development potential during the recruitment
process, and none of them will be treated differently
for reasons such as age, gender, ethnicity, nationality,
marriage and family status, health condition and
religion.

We emphasize communication and participation
among staffs, disseminated policy and information
through posting announcements on bulletin boards,
e-mails, employee manual or training. Staff can put
forward their opinions and questions to management
through interview, functional e-mails or group
discussion. We encourage staffs to offer suggestions
for corporate operation and development purposes.

At the same time, the Company'’s internal trade union
organization strictly abides by the relevant
requirements of the Trade Union Law of the PRC,
protects the rights and interests of staffs in accordance
with the law, performs democratic procedures, and
gives full play to the role of staffs in enterprise
democratic management. In order to enhance their
sense of belongings and enthusiasm for work, we
have enriched staffs in their spare time by arranging
outstanding employee activities, employee birthday
parties, daily fruit distribution, a series of festival
activities, and various cultural and recreational
activities, and helping staffs in need through union
organizations.
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Employee birthday parties organised by the Precision

5.2

Manufacturing Company

BR - HEgRERERS

S AEER

Henan Company distributed green bean porridge,
chrysanthemum tea, honeysuckle tea and other herbal teas

to production workshop staff to prevent summer heat
MEARGEESBE TRXFEZN -
BIER - @RIEREMBRAE

During the Reporting Period, the Group complied with
the laws and regulations in relation to employment
and labour in all material respects, including the laws
and regulations relating to equal opportunity, diversity,
anti-discrimination and welfare.

Labour Standard

The Group offered competitive remuneration packages
in the same industry for staffs to ensure staff with
excellent performance would obtain corresponding
returns. We issue policies relating to employee
compensation and dismissal, recruitment and
promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal
opportunities, diversity, anti-discrimination and other
benefits and welfare in the employee handbook.
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We reviewed regularly the remuneration packages at
all levels internally, collected industry information on
remuneration from the labour market, and adjusted
the remuneration and benefits standards with
reference to position, work capability, work
performance, staff skills and benefits to the Group.
The personnel management principle that we adopted
is performance-based incentives and assurance of
internal fairness. For example, the monthly salary of
production line staff is calculated according to the
comprehensive piecework on a team or group basis,
S0 as to ensure that staff who works more will be paid
more. At the same time, for employee performance
appraisal process, they are being implemented across
different positions according to the performance
appraisal method of the respective department in
which they work. We adopted a policy whereby
management personnel shall abstain from any human
resource matter relating to their family members and
relatives, with an aim to ensure internal fairness, and
require such family members and relatives of
management personnel are not allowed to work in
the same respective departments.

The Group strictly abides by the minimum age of
employment requirements stipulated by the PRC and
the location where it operates. Our corporate social
responsibility has expressly stipulated the prohibition
of recruiting child labour under 16 years old. For
minors between 16 to 18 years old, we carried out
special protection in accordance with the laws of the
PRC. Moreover, the Group illustrated the policy of
preventing forced labour in the employee handbook
and adopted an order-oriented production model.
Pursuant to the approval from local labour
department, we implemented a work system with
integrated computation of working hours to ensure
staffs’ right to rest and leave are protected, and
production and work tasks can be completed through
collective working, collective rest, on shift and
adjustment leave and flexible working hours, etc.

Apart from prohibiting employment discrimination and
forced labour exploitation and ensuring that child
labour is eradicated, we also adopt a zero-tolerance
approach to any form of discrimination or harassment.
During the Reporting Period, there was no misconduct
nor regulatory non-compliance related to employment
of child labour or forced labour in the Group.
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5.3 Occupational Health and Safety

The Group regards protecting the life safety and
occupational health of its staffs as its paramount
mission. We adhere to the policy of “Safety First,
Focus on Prevention and Comprehensive Treatment”
and the principle of “Production Management must
Encompass Safety Management and Person-in-charge
is the Responsible Person”. We prepared the safety
production management system, which emphasised
that "all activities are based on the life and health of
staff” and established the safe production committee
which is responsible for our overall safety production
management works of the Group. For
implementation, every production department has
established its own safe production leading group
respectively and is responsible for staff’s production
safety work in respective departments.

We strictly follow the relevant regulations of the
Group’s safety and quality control, actively carry out
promotion on safe production, and regularly organized
safety experts to conduct safety evaluations on every
segment of production process and all equipment and
facilities, including the evaluation of performance and
risk factors. At the same time, we replace the filter
element of the dust removal tower in melting furnace
to improve its dust treatment effect. In the hot
summer season, each machine in the extrusion
workshop is equipped with air coolers to prevent staffs
from heat stroke.

We attach great importance to staff occupational
health, and resolutely comply with the Law on the
Prevention and Control of Occupational Diseases of
the PRC to ensure staffs’ occupational health. We set
up safety facilities on construction sites to improve the
working environment and ensure timely provision of
safety helmets, gloves and other labour protection
supplies.

The environmental measures adopted during
production could reduce hazardous exhaust gas,
waste and wastewater discharge, which are crucial to
the health of staff that work in workshops constantly.
We are committed to indoctrinating environmental
protection concept to staff and successfully achieved
the following safety goals during the year:
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Safety incidents Occupational health
REEBW BERE

e Major safety incidents: Nil ¢ Incidence of occupational diseases:
BALEREH T Nil

e General safety incidents: 1 BEREER T
—MEEREW: — e Detection rate of occupational

e Class C/minor incidents <8%o hazard factors: 100%
C AR/ B IR E < 8%o BREEREMRAIE : 100%

e Class B and above incidents: Nil e  Occupational health check rate
BN LS : & before employment: 100%

e Fire safety incidents: Nil e ATE SE I R S AR K - 100%
HEZE2ER T e Occupational health check rate

e Environmental pollution when in employment: 100%
incidents: Nil T B R FERR B8R - 100%

REBFREWR T

e Major chemical leakage
incidents: Nil
BEAREEmBRER T

e Major equipment/facility
incidents: Nil
BAREB/RBEL T

e Major production and business-
related traffic incidents in which
we take up the main
responsibility or material damage
incidents: Nil
BREELEMNTEIBEN
EMIEEW T

Apart from this, we offered a comprehensive safety
consciousness and skills training for staff and at the
beginning of each year, an annual training programme
is prepared according to the training requirements of
each production workshop and the entire process is
tracked and implemented as scheduled. The General
Department organized and launched specific training
and drills on fire safety, driving safety knowledge,
specific training on practical operations and first-aid
training, etc.

Rectification rate of hidden danger
RBERNE

e Rectification rate of due hidden
dangers causing incidents > 95%
EHE BRI MELRE  295%

e Rectification rate of hidden dangers
causing major incidents: 100%
BREHEBEHEEX  100%

e Inspection rate of special equipment

and accessories: 100%

PR AR 8 S P 1 TE B R K

100%

Signing rate of safe production

commitment letter: 100%

TERHEEAREEERIX

100%

e Administrative penalties for safety
and environmental protection
violations from competent
government authority: Nil
KB BATBEERBPIM R ERIR
ERITBERS : T
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Monthly safety production activity

June 2021 is the “20th National Safety Production
Month”. Henan Company and Jiangxi Company
launched a series of activities for the Safety Production
Month. Relevant activities and trainings mainly include
fire safety training, mechanical injury safety training,
heat stroke safety training, limited space safety
training, traffic safety training, electricity safety
training, safety training for outsourced construction
units, safety training for new employees, safety
production hazard inspection, workshop emergency
drills, safety knowledge competition, etc. The main
person in charge, departmental managers, team
leaders and employees signed the “Safety
Responsibility Letter” to clarify their responsibilities
and obligations for safety production, inaugurating a
better implementation of safety production
responsibilities.

BR - HEgRERERS
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Crane Skill Competition PH AL E

In order to extensively carry out job training through BRESKBIEAEEGEDEZH
competition and comprehensively improve the crane REMNKIT 2HEIESE T HEIZRE
operation skills of crane operators, the Company FeeXkFE-6ANMBLEF REAR
carried out a crane skills competition on the morning mEREELLE - L 1B BETRE -

of 11 June, with a total of 18 employees participating.

Skill Relay HEELE

In order to build a culture of production safety, to BENTEEEX  ERARRE ]
achieve the purpose of “promoting learning through HER BBER—58 T ERE
competition”, and to test the firefighting skills and the FMEBEEAGE S BSREREENE
ability to identify hidden dangers of the front-line staff HARETRE -

in the workshop, a skill relay competition was held, in
which a total of 40 staff participated.
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Safety Speech Contest

We organise regular safety and fire drills, staff training
on fire prevention and on the use of fire-fighting
equipment in our workshops and office buildings. We
require staff, whether working frontline in workshop
production line or in administrative office, must
possess firefighting knowledge and are able to use
firefighting equipment properly, to improve staff
capability in responding incidents.

In-depth launch and full participation in Fire
Safety Awareness Month

Broadcasting fire prevention videos at workshops to
staff.

BR - HEgRERERS
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Jiangxi Company invited the Economic Development
Zone Fire Brigade to the company to conduct fire
safety training.

We allocate different labour protection gear to staff
according to the national regulations on the
prevention and treatment of occupational diseases,
and conduct propaganda training for staff in respect
of occupational hazards factors that exist in production
environment. The safety production leading group in
each department conducts inspection on the actual
compliance of staff safety management, and for any
staff who does not wear safety equipment properly,
warning will be given for the first time of non-
compliance discovery, and a fine will be imposed on
the responsible leader and respective staff for the
second time of non-compliance discovery, i.e. strictly
adheres to the principle of “Person-in-charge is the
Responsible Person”. At the same time, the companies
invites the local Occupational Disease Prevention and
Control Centre to conduct occupational health
examination for front-line workers.
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To improve, reconstruct, install and maintain safety
protection equipment continuously, the Jiangxi
Company has invested a total of RMB7.95 million in
safety works, which are mainly used for the inspection
and maintenance of special equipment and facilities,
fire-fighting facilities and firefighting equipment,
purchase, update, and improve on-site work safety
and production conditions, as well as purchasing
necessary emergency rescue facilities, equipment and
safety protection gear for on-site workers. The Jiangxi
Company has also strengthened the inspection and
evaluation of safety production at construction sites,
rectified hidden accidents, conducted safety skill
training and emergency rescue drills. In addition, the
Sanshui Company has invested a total of RMB6.24
million in safety works, which are mainly used for
safety education and training, purchase of labour
protection supplies, fire-fighting facilities and
equipment, safety and accident prevention facilities,
emergency rescue equipment, accident prevention
facilities fees, etc. The Precision Manufacturing
Company invested approximately RMB6.66 million,
mainly for safety education and training, purchase of
fire-fighting facilities and equipment, safety and
accident prevention facilities, emergency rescue
equipment and drills, occupational hazard protection
costs, safety control staff salary, intelligent traveling
crane costs, and gas leak prevention facility
installation. The Chengdu Company has invested a
total of RMB2.58 million in safety works, which are
mainly used for safety education and training, safety
testing and evaluation, purchase of labour protection
supplies, fire-fighting facilities and equipment, safety
and accident prevention facilities, emergency rescue
equipment, occupational hazard protection, etc.

BRI HERERERSE

RFBETE W& MEREELSE
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Precision

Sanshui Chengdu Jiangxi Henan Manufacturing

Company Company Company Company Company

=k i pyil A BRRE

Safety inspections (times) Z2RE(R) 126 367 75 93 47
Accident emergency drills EMEZER(R)

(times) 95 34 36 14 14
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5.4

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not violate
any law and regulation on health and safety. In
response to employee injury accidents that occurred
during the Year, we promptly and properly treated
injured staffs, reviewed and investigated the causes of
accidents, and adopted measures to strengthen staffs’
safety production education and improve workplace
protection conditions to prevent accidents from
happening again.

Development and Training

The Group firmly believes that the development and
training of staffs is conducive to reach our business
objectives, improve performance and achieve
sustainable development. We are committed to
attracting and retaining high-quality talents and
enhance their sense of belonging by rendering
sustainable development and training opportunities.
The staff development and training policies are set out
in the employee handbook, and staff training is guided
in accordance with the “Staff Training Management
System” and “Administration Methods for Staff
Career Development”. We carry out diversified
training programs, which are conducted through
classroom training and online learning, to continuously
help staffs’ rapid growth and self-improvement.

During the Year, the companies were active in
providing safety and environmental protection and
occupational health training.

5.4

BEHR AEERBLEFNERE
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R fkFRC B THRFI E R BIE ) A RCE
TREZREEMEZEEETHEIR
HRABTENHT RFARERZ T
LM IBIIIER  BIBREFIMELR
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Precision

Sanshui Chengdu Jiangxi Henan Manufacturing

Company Company Company Company Company

=k B PN AE BERE

Safety trainings (times) 228 0R) 460 340 214 221 84
No. of participants 28R 23,278 9,449 8,510 11,265 1,730
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We made the following achievements during the Year
in respect of safety training:

o examination rate of occupational health after
employment of 100%;

o safety education and training rate of newly
recruited/transferred/reinstated staffs of 100%;

o percentage of staffs holding necessary
certificates for special jobs (100%);

o percentage of the Company’s principal
responsible person and safety management
personnel that have received training (100%).

We develop an annual training implementation plan
based on the results of the survey on employee
training needs and integrated with the training
resources and the Company’s human resources activity
plan. Our training works adhered to the principle of
comprehensive coverage and key development, mainly
covering the following aspects:

New Staff Training

Through various forms of training, new staffs are able
to fully understand the Company’s development
status, organizational structure, rules and regulations,
process flow, etc., enhance their recognition and
confidence in corporate culture, and give full play to
their initiative and enthusiasm.

BRI HERERERSE

ER2ENHE - AFERMNEN
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B ABRI -

BMAEFREE THIIF AL
YHEEBNERRRBANEREZS
8 BIEFEEIERE - R
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“The Power of Role Models, Let Your Dream Set
Sail” — Thematic Sharing Session for Newly
Recruited Young Staff in 2021

As the Company’s production scale continues to
expand, the introduction of talent is one of the long-
term plans. Since the start of the year, there have
been a number of new faces in the Company. In order
to guide the staff and unite the youth, help them
deeply understand the development strategy and
corporate culture and integrate into the company
environment as soon as possible, on 20 March 2021,
the Youth League Branch of Guangdong Xingfa
Aluminum (Jiangxi) Co., Ltd. organized a learning and
sharing activity with the theme of “The Power of Role
Models, Let Your Dream Set Sail” for the new young
staff.

“BEAR, BB 202145585

Management Training

To conduct general management training to all staffs,
such as management skills improvement, business
etiquette, emotional management, safety training,
communication skills improvement, office automation,
laws and regulations, and policy presentations to
improve staff quality and comprehensive skills.

[BENE  BEEM]— 2021 F3
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Professional Training

To offer a wide range of professional training for
staffs, such as trainings on sales skills, financial
operations skills, human resources management, and
training for specific projects. The purpose of such
trainings is to improve the know-how and skills of
professional staff, thereby improving work efficiency.
At the same time, we hire highly skilled staffs as
internal lecturers to share work experience and
professional skills with other staffs and use this as an
opportunity to explore outstanding talents, to form an
efficient internal training instructor team, and to
inherit the company’s culture and skills knowledge.

On-line Training

We integrate with current intelligentized and Internet-
based platform learning methods and collaborate with
third-party training institutes to develop an on-line
training platform. The platform will match different
training programme for staffs at each stage and
incorporate the training assessment into the annual
assessment to ensure training effectiveness and
timeliness and improve the pro-activeness of staffs in
learning.

Anti-corruption

The Group attaches great importance to the integrity
of its team and requires managers at all levels to set
an example of integrity and to maintain a high level of
“zero tolerance” for fraud. The Group has always
been committed to operating with integrity and
prohibiting any form of corruption and fraudulent
acts, including bribery, extortion and money
laundering. We have been continuously improving the
internal control mechanism and whistle-blowing
mechanism to eradicate corruptive behaviour.
Adhering to the attitude of zero tolerance for
corruption, we reinforced supervision among key
segments and staff in key positions that are vulnerable
to corruption. We have also strengthened the
awareness of the integrity of party members and
cadres by conducting conferences on discipline
education.

5.5

BRI HERERERSE
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We strictly implement the code of conduct for anti-
corruption and anti-bribery in accordance with the
relevant national policies, laws, rules and regulations.
It is applicable to material procurement, outsourced
processing, facility projects, business sales, equipment
procurement and maintenance, quality supervision,
other economic activities, and the process of
management of individuals, properties and
belongings. At the same time, all customers, suppliers,
service providers and underwriters who had business
relationships with the Group are also covered by the
code, which contained the following aspects:

o Requirements of anti-corruption and anti-bribery
conduct for purchasing and sales staff;

o Requirements of capital management involving
anti-corruption and anti-bribery conduct during

the purchasing and selling processes;

o Requirements of anti-corruption and anti-bribery
conduct for accounting cashiers;

o Regular check on evaluation system;
o Whistle-blowing registration system.
During the Reporting Period, there was no misconduct

or regulatory non-compliance related to bribery,
extortion, fraud and money laundering in the Group.
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The Henan Company held a conference on
integrity building and anti-corruption work in
2021

On the morning of September 20, the party committee
of the Company held a training session on the topic of
party rules and regulations and party discipline in 2021
education and the construction of party style and
clean government and anti-corruption work. Mr. Liu
Libin, Secretary of the Party Committee and Chairman
of the Board of Directors of the Company, gave a
special party lecture on the topic of “Discipline”
throughout the operation and management. The
meeting was chaired by Lin Yan, Deputy Secretary of
the Party Committee and Secretary of the Discipline
Inspection Committee of the Company, and the Party
branch of Henan Company participated in the meeting
by video conference.

BR - HEgRERERS
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MITHEER
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COMMUNITY PARTICIPATION AND
SHARING

Over the years, Xingfa Aluminum has been actively assuming
social responsibilities all the times. By adhering to the
“reciprocate of where you get” spirit, the Company has
carried out various community construction and social
assistance projects. Through a variety of ways and initiatives
to care for vulnerable groups, participating in environmental
public welfare activities, charitable donations, and poverty
alleviation, and conduct practical actions to unify corporate
development goals and social responsibility.

While constantly pursuing our development, we always bear
in mind that we shall contribute to the society and devote
with heart. We have set up a dedicated charitable fund and
have actively participated in social charitable donations in
the name of companies and individuals, and donated funds
to socially disadvantaged groups or charitable associations,
and proactively assuming social responsibilities. During the
Year, the Group donated a total of RMB554,000 for
charities, including lighting projects to help communities,
road maintenance, visited poor households, and solved the
crisis of shortage of supplies in pandemic prevention and
control.
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The Jiangxi Company offered help to the community

Our staff from the Jiangxi Company visited Fenglin
Community in Yichun Economic Development Zone and
delivered rice, oil and other living materials to Fenglin
Community Happy Canteen, sending warmth, greetings and
love to the people in the community and making them feel
the warmth of the community family deeply.

o X % &% IR 5%

il

Donation from Henan Company

The Party Branch and the Trade Union of Henan Company
issued a donation initiative for a seriously ill colleague, and a
huge donation drive was quickly launched in the company.
Company leaders took the lead in making donations.
Colleagues all lent a helping hand and actively participated
in the donation to help the family of a colleague who was
seriously ill to tide over their difficulties. A total of
RMB102,059.76 was donated, of which RMB30,000 was
allocated by the labor union of the Group to provide
subsidies for employees in difficulty.

BRI HERERERSE
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APPENDIX I: MAJOR AWARDS AND fftk— : FRAEERIFMEE

HONOURS DURING THE YEAR

Since its establishment, Xingfa Aluminum has always been firmly &7 AR - B2 4R 204 4B E h B EZ LR A
being the leader of construction aluminum profiles in China. The 4BEEMERFHK - KEE - KAEFESHTE
Group was awarded the following major national awards and #1828 40K -

honours during the year:

Awards Sponsor Awardees Honours

MBEBEN BRTE RELR

Ministry of Industry and Information Guangdong Xingfa Aluminium Co., National Technology Innovation
Technology of the People’s Republic of Ltd. Demonstration Enterprise
China

T{=4 BREZREFRAA BREMEIF R EEE

Ministry of Industry and Information Guangdong Xingfa Aluminium Co., National Manufacturing Single-Sector
Technology of the People’s Republic of Ltd. Champion Enterprise
China

T=H BREFREARAA] FREXRERTERBEE

General Office of SASAC Guangdong Xingfa Aluminium Co., Benchmark Enterprise under SASAC's

Ltd. Developing Key SOE Management
Benchmarking Initiative
HEZHNE BREZREARAA BBl A Z B A EHAEERITR
BRITBIRIRRE

China Non-ferrous Metals Industry Science Guangdong Xingfa Aluminium Co., China Non-ferrous Metals Industry Science
and Technology Award Office Ltd. and Technology Award

TEEECBIENERMERITIENLAE EREZXREFRAAF FEEESE T ER SRR

China Enterprise Confederation,China Guangdong Xingfa Aluminium Co., China’s Top 500 Manufacturing
Enterprise Directors Association Ltd. Enterprises (485th)

PRAXEAE TREERBE BREEREARAA Hh B3 25 500 38 5 485 fif

The People’s Government of Guangdong Guangdong Xingfa Aluminium Co., The 21st China Patent Award
Province Ltd.

BRE ARBM BREHREFARAF F21ETEZNEFE
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Awardees

BRI

BRI HERERERSE

Honours

RELE

Institute of Industrial Economics, Jinan
University, Guangdong Manufacturers
Association, Guangdong Provincial
Development and Reform Institute

BEPABERKLBEWRER -
BREREXDS
BEREERMAEARR

Department of Industry and Information
Technology of Guangdong Province,

Environment Bureau, Hong Kong Special

Administrative Region
BREIEMERMLE
BERRTHRIRER

Bureau of Industry and Information
Technology of Foshan City
BT IRMERLR

Foshan Enterprise Confederation, Foshan
Entrepreneurs Association
BLTEERDBE - LT EERES

Foshan Science and Technology Talent
Association

FRILTHREAT HE

The People’s Government of Henan
Province

7 A U

Intellectual Property Office of Henan
Province

A B ERR

Guangdong Xingfa Aluminium Co.,
Ltd.

BERAFRZARAT

Guangdong Xingfa Aluminium Co.,
Ltd.

BEREEREARAT

Guangdong Xingfa Aluminium Co.,
Ltd.
BRBEEERERR AR

Guangdong Xingfa Aluminium Co.,
Ltd.
BEREZREARAR

Guangdong Xingfa Aluminium Co.,
Ltd.
EREBIRERR AR

Guangdong Xingfa Aluminium
(Henan) Co., Ltd.

BREZRE(TE)ARAT

Guangdong Xingfa Aluminium

(Henan) Co., Ltd.

BREZRE(TE)ARAT

Guangdong Top 500 Manufacturing
Enterprise (60th)

BRARESE 500985 60

Hong Kong-Guangdong Cleaner
Production Partner

BEBREEBRABH

Foshan Industrial Internet
Demonstration Benchmark Project
BT L BB REEIRIER

Foshan Top 100 Enterprise (25th)

L2 100385 254

Technology Pioneer Award

PR Lig 8

The 12th List of Exemplary Unit for
Innovation on Energy-saving &
Emission Reducing Technology in
Henan Province

E+ BN EA SRR R R R &
hREEE

Henan Province Intellectual Property
Strong Enterprise Cultivation Record
List

AHENBERRLEERRAE
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Awards Sponsor
HREN

Awardees

BRI

Honours

RELE

Foshan Municipal Committee of the
Communist Party of China and Foshan
Municipal People’s Government

RAFILTE - FILTARB
People’s Government of Yichun City
BEMBF

People’s Government of Yichun City
HEMBRF

People’s Government of Yichun City
BEEMBF

The People’s Government of Jiangxi

Province

TRRABT

Guangdong Xingfa Aluminium
(Sanshui) Co.,Ltd.

BERAFERE(ZK)ERAF

Guangdong Xingfa Aluminium
(Jiangxi) Co.,Ltd.
BREZRE(OIR)ERAF

Guangdong Xingfa Aluminium
(Jiangxi) Co.,Ltd.
BREERE(IR)ERAF

Guangdong Xingfa Aluminium
(Jiangxi) Co.,Ltd.
BREZRE(OIA)ERAF

Guangdong Xingfa Aluminium
(Jiangxi) Co.,Ltd.
BREERE(OIR)ERAF

2021 Foshan Model Entity

kole

2021 LT TR R
2020 Top 50 Manufacturing Enterprise
2020FE 2 M BER 508 (¥

2020 Technology Innovation
Demonstration Enterprise
2020 FERIRAIFT RE X

Yichun City Model Labour Relations
Harmonious Enterprise
BEEMESSHBEMBRE

Advanced Public Enterprises in the
Province

PEEEREHLE
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KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

&= BERHEHERENER

Key performance indicators Unit 2021 2020
BREARER B 20214 20204
Total Aluminum output’ ten thousand tonnes 62.8 63.3
REMAES A
Environment Aspect
RIREE
Emissions
23587
Total non-hazardous wastes disposed of Tonnes 1,012.2 997.8
BEEEMHEE M
Density of non-hazardous waste Tonnes/ten thousand tonnes 16.1 15.8
BEEEVTE WA, WA
Total hazardous waste? Tonnes 3,554.1 1,029.7
EEREEMHEE? 7
Density of hazardous waste Tonnes/ten thousand tonnes 56.6 16.3
BEEBEEDTE WA, & WA
Air pollution emission
RRF R
Total nitrogen oxide Kg 22,993.0 21,681.8
REYEE T
Total sulphur dioxide Kg 12,369.3 10,407.0
Bt T
Total VOCs Kg 15,503.6 29,2824
#VOCs & T
Total fluoride Kg 1,145.7 2,596.6
mILYBE T
Total general dust Kg 2,513.2 2,218.2
—MRIEWERS T

y Total output of the self-made products of four companies located in Sanshui, !
Chengdu, Jiangxi, Henan and Precision Manufacturing.

Management List.

Aluminium ash and fly ash were included in the 2021 Hazardous Waste 2

BTKRE - IE - M REREERAEARAGE
MABES °
2021 Fi58E R KRR A fERE B 8% o
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Key performance indicators Unit 2021 2020
HREARER B 20215 2020 4
Wastewater discharge
BE KB
Total chemical oxygen demand Kg 44,461.1 29,965.1
tE2FaEHE TR
Total ammonia Kg 3,703.38 779.34
aREE TR
Exceedance or other non-compliance situations times 0 0
8 R fl st B A T & RIF R IRER
Fines and prosecutions due to inconformity times 0 0
with environmental laws and regulations IRE
B ERRERER MR E KL F
Use of Resources
ERER
Total energy consumption? kWh 958,082,655.2 919,713,949.4
BERHFAE TRk
Energy consumption density kWh/ten thousand tonnes 15,267,395.5 14,540,012.5
RERERERE TEE,BW
Total purchase of electricity kWh 318,939,504.8 300,137,093.9
BEEHRE T B
Consumption density kWh/ten thousand tonnes 5,082,417.0 4,744,950.4
REZmE TRE, &W
Total natural gas usage volume m’ 59,102,212.9 57,293,074.4
RARERE MK
Density of natural gas usage m’/ten thousand tonnes 941,815.3 905,762.1
AARAERE MK B
Total water consumption Tonnes 3,116,614.0 3,036,877.6
FKk#EE 7
Water density Tonnes/ten thousand tonnes 49,664.4 48,010.8
RKEE WA, WA
Usage of packaging materials Tonnes 21,311.0 16,177.1
(carton and kraft paper etc.) 7
BEMHAE (M8 FRES)
Density of packaging materials Tonnes/ten thousand tonnes 339.6 255.7
(carton and kraft paper etc.) Mg, B A
BEMHEE (B8 FREZE)
Usage of packaging materials Tonnes 6,550.6 7,970.6
BEMHAE I
Density of packaging materials Tonnes/ten thousand tonnes 104.4 126.00
(carton and kraft paper etc.) 1B, B2 1A

BRI (A8 FRES)

natural gas is made by reference to the conversion factor in the “Guidelines
on the Calculation Method and Reporting of Greenhouse Gas Emission by

Other Industries”.

Energy includes electricity and natural gas, among which, the calculation of 4

BEREFBENMRAR  Hf » RRRWAHEZ2ET(T
EEMTEROERERBHRGE TN EARREER) TN
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Key performance indicators Unit 2021
BARERIER By 20214
Social Aspect*
HEHE
Employment
EfE
Total number of staffs number 7,944
BIEE AH A
By gender
RIERIE S
Male number 6,252
St N ¢
Female number 1,692
poglia AE
By age
RERE D
16-30 number 1,504
16-30 5% AR
31-50 number 5,757
31-505% AL
>50 number 683
>505% AEL
By employment type
REREREIS
Full-time staffs number 7,944
F=lEE AH
Contract labour or part-time staffs number 0
HHFIFIFHIES N ¢
4 Employees for the five companies: Sanshui, Chengdu, Jiangxi, Henan and 4 REKCKREIE TERBEERELBAFNES

Precision Manufacturing. The employees are all from Mainland China.

B0 - BEBRETEAM
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Key performance indicators Unit 2021
BREARER B 20215
Turnover rate
BERAE
Overall turnover rate % 46.2
EEImAR
By gender
RIERIE D
Male % 48.5
Ft
Female % 37.9
Xt
By age
RFWRE D
16-30 % 86.0
16-30 5%
31-50 % 39.8
31-505%
>50 % 12.9
>50 5%
Health and Safety
BEEZZ
Number of work-related fatality number 3
EITERT AR A
Number of work-related injuries number 25
BHIERBAH A
Number of working days lost due to work related injuries days 2,103
HITEGEAATERH =i
Fines and prosecutions due to inconformity with laws and times 0
regulations related to health and safety RE

RRG A R ERR 2 AR AR MR SRR
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Unit
By

2021
2021 %

Development and Training
B FR R IE T
Average training hours
F IG5 IR 2K
By employment type
RERELE D
Senior management
EREEE
General management
—REEE
Non-management
FEEE
By gender
RIERIEI 5
Male
it
Female

gogid

The percentage of employees trained

XilEEADL

By employment type

REREALEIS
Senior management
EREEE
General management
—REHEE
Non-management
FEEE

By gender

IR
Male
Ft
Female

gogid

hours
N
hours
N
hours
INEE

hours
INEE
hours
INEE

%

%

%

%

%

25.4

33.1

20.2

20.6

204

96.6

100

100

100

94.4
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Key performance indicators Unit 2021
HREVER B 20215
Suppliers

IR

Number of suppliers by region

iR eI DR EREE

Mainland China number 1,007
o [ (A H A
Hong Kong number 1
E% #H
Overseas number 1
AIp #H

Labour Standard

BT

Fines and prosecutions due to inconformity with laws and cases 5

regulations related to health and safety RER

BT & RS AR MR S e 3

Product Responsibility

EmEE
Fines and prosecutions due to inconformity with laws and cases 0
regulations related to product responsibility RER
B E BB E AR M 1 5 e Ff
New products and technical patents acquired during the year number 174
F NS B E a MR i A 1@
Anti-corruption
RES
Legal cases regarding corrupt practices brought against the cases 0
issuer or staffs =

HETASERERBYCEENESHFARMF

Community Investment

HERE
Total Group’s community investment ten thousand RMB 55.4
HERERENEES BAREK



XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED 2587 242 §% B R 2 5] / Annual Report 2021 F 3§

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

BRI HERERERSE

APPENDIX lil: INDEX OF HKEX ESG &= BEBBIM(RE HER
REPORTING GUIDE EhEIgE) R a|
Aspects Section Remarks
g =4:1] B
A Environment Aspect
A RRER
Aspect A1: Emissions 4
BEA1: BER
General disclosures
relating to air and greenhouse gas
emissions, discharges into water and land,
and generation of hazardous and non-
hazardous waste
(a) Policies; and
(b) Compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer
—RiRE
FHBERIREREYN - MKkt
BT  BERBEEEVNELS
7y
(a) B &
(b) BFHBITABBEAZENEBE
BRABIER -
KPI'AT.1 The types of emissions and respective APPENDIX I
BB IEIR AT emissions data ENVIRONMENTAL AND
HERUIE SR AR B B R - SOCIAL KEY
PERFORMANCE
INDICATORS
Mgk — : IRIR At 2 AR
BIIEE
KPI A1.2 Direct (Scope 1) and indirect (Scope 2) - The Group is

RSB IRIEAT.2 GHG emissions (in tonnes) and, where
applicable, intensity (e.g., per unit of
production volume, per facility).

B (8BE) RgRHEE (BE2)RE
RESBEME (LANEETE )&(ZZHL%) 2

(WMABEEEM - BIEKRMTE

currently assessing
the feasibility of
collecting and
disclosing such
information.
REERIETHKE
NIRBEZEEREA]
1% -
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RiIE HERERRE
Aspects Section Remarks
il =1 fBa
KPI'A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced (in APPENDIX II:
BASRIEBUEIR A3 tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity  ENVIRONMENTAL AND
(e.g., per unit of production volume, per ~ SOCIAL KEY
facility) PERFORMANCE
FTEXAEREEDHEE (UIEETE) R (1 INDICATORS
LﬁH)FF(QDL/(lFE B - BERE i RIBERSSER
E BIIEE
KPIA1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced (in ~ APPENDIX II:
FARENIEIRZA1.4 tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity  ENVIRONMENTAL AND
(e.g., per unit of production volume, per ~ SOCIAL KEY
facility) PERFORMANCE
FESEREEEDHEE (UBEETE) R (1 INDICATORS
BR)ERE(MABESSEM §EKXE M- BREELSHE
FTE) - BRIER
KPI A1.5 Description of the emission targets and 4.1
RASEAE WIBIZA1.5 the steps taken to achieve them.
M FTET LB E B IE R BERE L
B IRFTERENH) P8R
KPI A1.6 Description of how hazardous and 4.2
AR EBUIEIZA1.6 non-hazardous wastes are handled,
reduction initiatives and results achieved
HEIEEERBEEEZEMNTE &
A AT ET T HBRE B iR R RET S
IEFTERER A 25 o
Aspect A2: Use of Resources 4
BEA2: EREA

General disclosures

Policies on the efficient use of resources,
including energy, water and other raw
materials
—RIE
ERERER(
MED BIBER

BREER - KEEAMR
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Aspects Section Remarks
g E=4:0] s

KPI'A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption APPENDIX II:

R BUEIZA2.1 by type (e.g., electricity, gas or oil) in total ENVIRONMENTAL AND
(kWh in '000s) and intensity (e.g. per unit  SOCIAL KEY PERFORMANCE
of production volume, per facility) INDICATORS
RERNEISNERER SEZER(N MR- RRERH SRR
B Rmyvm)BEECATETRERGE) SBRUER
REE (WA SESEN - §IERMEET
g

KPI A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity ~ APPENDIX II:

FARIEUIEIRA2.2 (e.g., per unit of production volume, per ~ ENVIRONMENTAL AND
facility) SOCIAL KEY
RIEKERTR (IMASEEEN - PERFORMANCE
TRRMEAE) © INDICATORS

BigE— : BRIRRAH G
RBREIR

KPI'A2.3 Description of the energy efficiency 4.1

AR A SUIEIRA2.3 targets, and the steps taken to achieve 4.3
these targets.

A PTET LR BERE AR B iR R R
FE L B R ATERERE) P8R o

KPI A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue 4.1

FRESIEIRA2.4 in sourcing water that is fit for purpose, 4.3
water efficiency initiatives and results
achieved
it SR BUE A R ] B EEE - A
KPET B FK W B iR R AE T 5t
BIRPTERER B 08K -

KPI'A2.5 Total packaging material used for APPENDIX I

RSB AEIRIZEA2.5 finished products (in tonnes) and, if ENVIRONMENTAL AND
applicable, with reference to per unit SOCIAL KEY
produced PERFORMANCE

INDICATORS
SIKmATABRME MBS (NEETE)  Misk— - IR R 2R
R (an@EmR) BEERMGE - BRIEIR
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%iﬁ * ?‘igﬁﬁé/ﬁ

wE

Aspects
Col

Section

E4: 0]

Remarks

(S

Aspect A3:
EHEA3:

KPI A3.1
RABHR ISR A3.1

Aspect A4:

EHA4 :

KPI A4.1
RABHARUIETR A4.1

Environment and Natural Resources

BRERXRER

General disclosures

Policies on minimising the issuer’s
significant impact on the environment
and natural resources

—RiKE
BIEZHITABIRBERRABIREKNE KR
FEWBUE

Description of the significant impacts of
activities on the environment and natural
resources and the action taken to
manage them

ML S B EIRIE R RNERWER
FENOENEREHETENITE -

Climate Change
RIREL

General disclosures

Policy for identifying and responding to
significant climate-related issues that
have and may have an impact on the
issuer

—RE

Bl R EHE AN AR BT AELER
ENEARKEBEEEABOR -

Description of significant climate-related
issues that have had and may have an
impact on the issuer, and actions to
address them

R ER KA HETAELETLED
BEARGHEBEE - REHTH -

4

4

4.3

4.3

This performance
indicator is not the
most material aspect
of the Group during
the year, we will
update according to
relevant regulations
in future.
RNEFFIIRIEIZIIE
AEEREENE
iR HABERERY
TR FEHTHER o
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Aspects
Lol

Section

-0

Remarks

(S

B Social Aspect
B EEE

Aspect B1:
[EEB1:

KPI B1.1
RABAARIEIR B

KPI B1.2
RSN IEIRB1.2

Employment

&=

General disclosures

relating to compensation and dismissal,

recruitment and promotion, working

hours, rest periods, equal opportunity,

diversity, antidiscrimination, and other

benefits and welfare. Information on:

(a) Policies; and

(b) Compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer

—RHE

BRAF MR E  BREREA - TER

RE- FERE Sl RIER

A Ko At 155 388 K 4@ N

(@ Bk &

(b) BFHBITABEATENEBE
BRIROINER -

Total workforce by gender, employment
type, age group and geographical region
BRI - EIEEE (N2 BERE) - F
B R KR & o BB B AR -

Employee turnover rate by gender, age
group and geographical region

IR FEBR RRESHESR
KHE o

5.1

APPENDIX II:
ENVIRONMENTAL AND
SOCIAL KEY
PERFORMANCE
INDICATORS

fifsx— « RE R SRR

R IEIR

APPENDIX II:
ENVIRONMENTAL AND
SOCIAL KEY
PERFORMANCE
INDICATORS

ffr— : IRERAL S RIS

IR IR
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Aspects
Col

Section

E4: 0]

Remarks

(S

Aspect B2:
[EmEB2:

KPI B2.1
PR AA BT B2.1

KPI B2.2
PR M IE1R B2.2

KPI B2.3
RASRAE WIEIZB2.3

Health and Safety
REEZZ

General disclosures

relating to providing a safe working

environment and protecting staffs from

occupational hazards. Information on:

(a) Policies; and

(b) Compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer

—RiKE

FRERMHZ2TIERRIRERS R R

BEMBER

(@ BER &

(b) BPHBEITARE AT EMMERE
RO ER -

Number and rate of work-related
fatalities for the last three years
(including the reporting year)

BEZF (PEERFE)BFRITK
BABU R & o

Lost days due to work injury

EHIGEATIERE -

Description of occupational health and
safety measures adopted, how they are
implemented and monitored

fast FTER AN BB R 2 R B 2 246 3t - DA
KRIEBERITRERTE -

53

APPENDIX II:
ENVIRONMENTAL AND
SOCIAL KEY
PERFORMANCE
INDICATORS

fifs— « RE R SRR

R IEIR

APPENDIX I:
ENVIRONMENTAL AND
SOCIAL KEY
PERFORMANCE
INDICATORS

fifsr— : BRIE AL SR

IR

53

There were no
work-related
fatalities in 2019 and
2020.

20194 2 2020 15
BERITHNSE
o
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Aspects Section Remarks
g -} s
Aspect B3: Development and Training 5.4
B3 : B R B
General disclosures
Policies on improving staffs’ knowledge
and skills for discharging duties at work.
Description of training activities.
—RE
BRRAREBITIIEREN MR
BEEVIRSR © HHLIZFIEE -
KPI'B3.1 Percentage of trained staffs by gender APPENDIX II:
RSB RUIEIR B3 and employee category (e.g., senior ENVIRONMENTAL AND
management, middle management, etc.)  SOCIAL KEY
MR RESER(INSHREERE -+ PERFORMANCE
MEERE)EDNZIREANL ° INDICATORS
Mg — - IRIB R 2 RAGRE
BRIEIR
KPI B3.2 The average training hours completed APPENDIX I
RASRAE MFEIRB3.2 per employee by gender and employee ENVIRONMENTAL AND
category SOCIAL KEY
IR REBERIE D - FHEETK  PERFORMANCE
Sl IR o INDICATORS

ffg— - IRmRAL SRR

RRER
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Aspects Section Remarks
g -] s
Aspect B4: Labour Standard 5.2
[EmEBa : BITAR

General disclosures

relating to preventing child and forced

labour:

(a) Policies; and

(b) Compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer

—RIE

BRI IEET & H 4 TH)

(@ BFE: &

(b) BFHEITABEARTENERE
ERBOIEERS o

KPI B4.1 Description of measures to review 5.2
RASRAEHEIR B4 employment practices to avoid child and
forced labour
s MIBE PN E AR E T R

SREIEE T o
KPI B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate 52
RASRAE IEIR BA.2 such practices when discovered

R RERBERE R BRRIE AT
PREVH) 22 5R. o
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Aspects Section Remarks
g -} s
Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management 35
FEEBS : HrEEER
General disclosures
Policies on managing environmental and
social risks of the supply chain
—REE
EIRMEENRIE R ERBRBUE -
KPI B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical APPENDIX II:
RA B AR 1R B5.1 region ENVIRONMENTAL AND
mEEIDHHERHEA - SOCIAL KEY
PERFORMANCE
INDICATORS

KPI B5.2
RS AR RIE1R B5.2

KPI B5.3
RABAAMIETIRB5.3

KPI B5.4
PR AR IE1R B5.4

Description of practices relating to
engaging suppliers, number of suppliers
where the practices are being
implemented, how they are implemented
and monitored

st B REERNED - AERT
BREMNNHEEREE - UKIEEIMIT

Description of practices relating to
environmental and social risks in each
link of the supply chain, how they are
implemented and monitored

et A BRI R B ERET A IRIE K
MtERBRAER - LARAERITRER
JIE e

Description of practices relating to
promoting the use of environmentally
friendly products and services in the
selection of suppliers, how they are
implemented and monitored.

it EREREERREZAREREM
NRIGEMED] - ARMEERITRERT
A e

e — - RE R SRR

IR

3.5

3.5

3.5
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Aspects Section

Ll E4: 0]

Remarks

(S

Aspect B6:
JEEB6 :

KPI B6.1
A% AE IE1R B6.1

KPI B6.2
R AN 1515 B6.2

Product Responsibility 3
EREE

General disclosures

Information that have a significant

impact on the issuer relating to health

and safety, advertising, labelling and

privacy matters relating to products and

services provided and methods of redress

(a) Policies; and

(b) Compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer

— R E

BHMRTEERNREHNERERZ S -

EE  BRELLEEEARMERITE

)

@)

(b)

HER R
BTHBRTABERZENHERZE
BRBBIHER -

Percentage of sold or delivered products -
recalled due to safety and health reasons
EERDEXEMERTEL 2 EER
BARMmARKNBE D

Number of product and service related 3.1
complaints received and how they are 3.3
dealt with

5 M A 2 TR PR 42 3 2 DA TR
#775% o

During the Reporting
Period, there was no
product recalled due
to safety and health
reasons.
HREHA - REDREA
ENfergeentic e 2 2:2Nii)
AOKRHEmM °

During the Reporting
Period, there was no
product and service
related complaints
received.
WREHR - REDRA
BRI 2 mn M AR
B o
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Aspects Section Remarks
g -} B
KPI B6.3 Description of practices relating to 3.2

RASE 4B 515 B6.3

KPI B6.4
FABAIE15B6.4

KPI B6.5

RG4S IEIZ B6.5

Aspect B7:
[EHEB7 :

KPI B7.1
RASR AR IEIR BT 1

observing and protecting intellectual
property rights
it L 4 R ARIE KR ERE R RV 1B I

Description of quality assurance process 3.1
and recall procedures

Wil EERERRENEREIKER

Description of consumer data protection 3.4
and privacy policies, how they are

implemented and monitored
OB E BIRREMLERBER - AR
HERITRERITEA -

Anti-corruption 55
RES

General disclosures

Information that have a significant impact
on the issuer relating to bribery, extortion,
fraud and money laundering:

(a) Policies; and

(b) Compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer

—RE

BEEPIERREE - BR - MGFROERE

)

(@) BUR : M

(o) BFHBETABERZENERE
BRBROINER

Number of concluded legal cases 5.5
regarding corrupt practices brought

against the issuer or its staffs during the
Reporting Period and the outcomes of

the cases
REFRBAEETASEERRLLE
BRENBSRARMEE RFAER °
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Aspects Section Remarks
g -] s
KPI B7.2 Description of preventive measures and 55

whistleblowing procedures, how they are
implemented and monitored

BB A R 1R BT.2 F B E 45 b MR A - AR
TRERTE -

KPI B7.3 Description of the anti-corruption 515
training provided to directors and
employees
BB EEIR BT 3 Rt AESEN B8 TRENREISEI -
Aspect B8: Community Investment 6
[EmEBS : HERE

General disclosures

Policies on community engagement to
understand the needs of the communities
where the issuer operates and to ensure
its activities take into consideration the
communities’ interests

—RiEE

ERUHRSERT REEMTMHARES
ENRREEB ST ERTRART

K o
KPI B8.1 Focus areas of contribution (e.g., 6
AR 45 IEIEBS. 1 education, environmental concerns,

labour needs, health, culture, sport)
EIEREE(WHE  REEH 4
TEK - XL - BE) -

KPI B8.2 Resources contributed (e.g., money or 6
time) to the focus area
RSB N IEIEBS.2 EEIHEMBAE RN ERLRME) ©
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KPMG

Independent Auditor’s Report to the Members of
Xingfa Aluminium Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Xingfa
Aluminium Holdings Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together “the Group”) set out on pages 171 to 314, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2021, the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended and
notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group
as at 31 December 2021 and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (“IASB”) and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

REVBBRRZBIBARE

BYRBETRE
HERBEERERAAKRRK
(REESHBEMA LA BFRLA])

=r
=

Az BEm (AT 58 [ 4P ) EFEAFIHMNE 171
E34EMEBMEERARAF (A TEREIE
REDREMBRRUATHRREEEE ) HNES
MBHmE UMBHRREBER_T_—F+_-A
=t HNGEAMBIRKREBEZA LFER
ek SRR REMEZERER HFA
RSB ERMGARERNER - WREEMHR
RIEE BREIESHBRRME -

BMRE ZEREVBHRRCREBEEB ST
AZEe (BB eTERZES]) BHM R
HREEAD (KBRS REEAD D EEMT S
k7 BEER-_ZT-_—F+-_A=+—H
NEATBRAREEZA LFENGENBER
BRGARERE  YEEREB(QARIEHHN
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REVBBRRZBILBARE

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA™). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (“the Code”) together with any ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated
financial statements in the Cayman Islands and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

ERWER

HPEREEESHMAS(HESHMAE])
B EEEER) ([(FEFEFERD ) ETT
Fit e HMEZSEATAENEEEEARS
[ B ED B T Ar & IR AL EE | D+
1EE— R - RIBEB S A SBMH(EX
B a1 ATEE A (AT [ 57 A1 1) LA e 223 4
HHSRSGREMHHRRNFEBENERES
BABUN E&EE UCETELBERENRMNA
RSrRIR R ERER AT - RAEE - 3
PIERHE BRI LEE AT MINE
BRIRMERE -

BRESNEE

BAREAFREREBRMNEXHE  RREA
PG BHRANBEATRREERNTH GLF
At RMEFBREAVMBHRRALREL AR
REETREN - R TSR ELFTREHRER
MER -

Revenue recognition: distributor arrangements

W DEE R

Refer to Note 3 to the consolidated financial statements
and the accounting policies in Note 1(w).

BRI B MTEHREXN i3 KRB BEM T 1(w)

The Key Audit Matter
BREESEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BAENETNWEEZSEE

Revenue mainly comprises sales of aluminium profiles to
distributors and other customers in a variety of end-user
markets.
WHFERGMEBRRmTISZOEEREMESHE
BN o

Our audit procedures to assess the recognition of revenue
from distributor arrangements included the following:
BRI E D HER LB MR RRNBFIZEF BN
TRIE :
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Key audit matters (Continued)

REVBBRRZBIBARE

HREESTEE )

Revenue recognition: distributor arrangements

R DEE R

Refer to Note 3 to the consolidated financial statements
and the accounting policies in Note T(w).

=7
S

BItrE B R R M et 3 R & 51BN & 1(w) ©

The Key Audit Matter
BREESEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BAENETNMEEZSE

Sales to distributors accounted for approximately 47% of
the Group's revenue for the year. Each year, the Group
enters into a framework distribution agreement with each
distributor and sells its products in accordance with the
terms of separate purchase orders. Once the products are
delivered to the location designated by the distributor, the
control of the goods are considered to have been
transferred to the distributor and revenue is recognised.

FMOHEBZHEN EEEFAKRENT% - BE5EE
BFEEDHBILIERD HRRBBEIRBITIEZ
BRHEEEMm - —BEEMIXNEDHEEEHME - Bl
BmiiE R R e B T o iR W RE R HE R A o

We identified the recognition of revenue from distributor
arrangements a key audit matter because revenue is one
of the key performance indicators of the Group and
therefore there is an inherent risk of manipulation of the
timing of recognition of revenue by management to meet
specific targets or expectations.

BFS DALz WA R AR RRERESFFE R
ARWKzm) EXERERRBEREZ— BUWEEERN
BRRRZHFBAERAB A RABRARFEREGE

@ o
2

assessing the design, implementation and operating
effectiveness of management’s key internal controls
which govern revenue recognition;

FHEERBR AR ER BB N E 2 RS
B ETRN ¢

reading distribution agreements entered into with
distributors, on a sample basis, and considering
whether any agreements contain terms permitting
the distributors to make sales returns;
MEHEEDHERI L2 D E®E  REBES
EABEE AT HEBEERE Z K

for a sample of revenue transactions recorded just
before and after the year end, inspecting the related
goods delivery notes, which had been signed and
dated by the distributors as evidence of their receipt
of the goods, to assess if the related revenue had
been recognised in the appropriate financial period
on the basis of the terms of sale as set out in the
distribution agreements and the terms of the
purchase orders; and

HRFRAMECHEZWRARIEARANS BREEH
REE(HERDHBHEE LA B BUMMERER
F) UHEEBAREREERE D HBEMH
E R NIRIBR] B 2 IR0 B E 1% B T LARERR

X

inspecting significant manual adjustments to revenue
raised during the reporting period, enquiring of
management the reasons for such adjustments and
comparing the details of the adjustments with
relevant underlying documentation.
EEMEHANHBEMENERTFHHAE  AEE
BAMAMEARNREA - WiEHAENFIEEMEEX
HEITHE o
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REVBBRRZBILBARE

Key audit matters (Continued)

HEESTEE )

Expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables

REZEWRTNAREESERE

Refer to Note 30(a) to the consolidated financial
statements and the accounting policies in Note 1(m).

B2 TSN i 30(a) R & BRI EE 1(m) ©

The Key Audit Matter
BEETEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BMWETNETEEZER

The carrying value of the Group’s net trade receivables as
at 31 December 2021 totalled RMB3,082,208,000, net of
an allowance of RMB223,611,000 for expected credit
losses (ECLs).

RZZBZ—F+ZH=1T—0H  EBEEEXRSERENF
REREE(KHNREREEEERE AR 223,611,000
7T) A& H A AR 3,082,208,000 7T °

Management measured loss allowance at an amount
equal to lifetime ECL of the trade receivables, based on
ageing of the receivables and estimated loss rate, current
market conditions and forward-looking information.
According to the experience of the Group, the loss
patterns for different customers are not significantly
different and therefore, the receivables are not segmented
for the purpose for measurement of loss allowance.
EIRERB UGB R RAFTEEX - BaimR R
AU ERHZIBENR R HRIERE HEHEEEEN
LHRAEBERRE - BE E5ENKR TREFHN
FEEANTESAER - REEKFIAIL R A
EEERE -

Our audit procedures to assess the expected credit loss
allowance for trade receivables included the following:
BAAUNFERZSREREERZ BREEERRENET
BEFEENTEIE :

o obtaining an understanding of and assessing the
design, implementation and operating effectiveness
of key internal controls relating to credit control, debt
collection and estimate of expected credit losses and
making related allowances;

e TEHEIEEHEEERR  BRULORAHEERE
BT RAERBEE MR AEZE Rt B
W RGBT

o evaluating the Group's policy for estimating the
credit loss allowance with reference to the
requirements of the prevailing accounting standard;

e RBEZEMGIEANRE  TE EXEGEE
BERBHEOBR

o obtaining an understanding on the key data and
assumptions of the expected credit loss model
adopted by the management, including the historical
default data and the assumptions involved in
management’s estimated loss rate;

e THERERANHERBEBIAHEEBEEHN
BR - BEABEERBENEREGABRER SR
BRER
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Key audit matters (Continued)

REVBBRRZBIBARE

HREESTEE )

Expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables

REBURZRNEREEBERRE

Refer to Note 30(a) to the consolidated financial
statements and the accounting policies in Note 1(m).

B2 E TSN 7 30(a) R & 5 BRI T 1(m) o

The Key Audit Matter
BREESEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BAENETNMEEZSE

We identified the expected credit loss allowance for trade
receivables as a key audit matter because trade receivables
and loss allowance are material to the Group and because
the recognition of expected credit losses is inherently
subjective and requires the exercise of significant
management judgement.

B ZRUERFNTEREEEBERERN SERE
SRR REAZXRSERUERREEREGY E5EE
BEENREHEERENREFENETHEN B K
BANEIRE A

o assessing the appropriateness of management’s
estimates of loss allowance by examining the
information used by management to derive such
estimates, including testing the accuracy of the
historical default data and evaluating whether the
historical loss rates are appropriately adjusted based
on current economic conditions and forward-looking
information;

e HRAETEERUASLEAGENEH(BFEANHA
BEEREIRAERE N EBTEEERESIRE
ATAR AR S AT IR MR B R R H) SR B ) SR AP B IR
EBREZEBREENES T

° assessing, on a sample basis, whether items in the
trade receivables ageing report were classified within
the appropriate ageing category by comparing
individual items with underlying sales invoices; and

s  BREHBURFERRNE AR EAAFEEREL
B mETEEBARRREANEBRTSOREES
HERECER R - &

o re-performing the calculation of the loss allowance as
at 31 December 2021 based on the Group's credit
loss allowance policies.

e RE EXENCEHEREIE  ENAERC
E_—F+A=+—HBHEERE -
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REVBBRRZBILBARE

Information other than the consolidated
financial statements and auditor’s report
thereon

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information included in the annual
report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there
is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

@gﬂﬁ'ﬁ&%‘%&,ﬁ&ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ué’l‘ﬂ’ﬂ

N

i}

EEFHHMERAE - HUEEBETERE
BANZEER  ETEREEAVBERER LEM
FAZ BB RS

BAESEEMBRRNELL NRERLMES
BT EZEEMEERRREAMANERS

A
i

FBABMERAMBERRNES  RMANEER
FIEEMER  HlBRY  ZEREMESEES
BGAMBEHRRIBMIEEBRETHATHENE
MEEERBEREUTFFEERHERBLNE

EREMACTATOHILE  IREMRBRREMESR
FHEEXFERRL BT ERELZFE-GEE
S BFPRBEMAERE -
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Responsibilities of the directors for the
consolidated financial statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging
their responsibilities for overseeing the Group'’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is made
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

REVBBRRZBIBARE

EENREUBBRRARENEL

SEAAAREEE S ENZ BB Mme(BIR
B R E R R FECR RMED] ) B 3% B8 Z 5Kk
BEEMTENGEAMBRE  YHER/RE
RAEMBRROBB I FERRIGFXERTE
B ERBRRAFAFAANBENEE -

ERESAMBHRRE EFA5TM E5E
FERKEMREN  YTEEABRTRERSEL
LSEENEER URERAFELESSTER
RIEZTEEHR BEEEBRMFLEE L5
BHMBRNERTSR

B LZEEMPETETEE ESENMBR
EBEMNEE -

%E&Eﬁﬁ%%‘l‘%%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ%ﬂ@ﬁ

ZFMBER EHGRAMBERABRBES T FE
HRFFRERMEBMNEABRBAREAE
RE ULHABREMBROZBERSE - HM
EREBBEREES o Rt - RAWBETA
REEEMAE - RPABM IR ABENARE - H{E
MEMALTAERARERE(E -
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REVBBRRZBILBARE

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements (Continued)

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud
is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

%%ﬁlﬁﬁﬁ%%‘l‘ﬁéﬂﬂﬁi&%ﬁ%ﬂ@ﬁ
(%)

BRRARFRSKTHORE - BTERBER(ER
ETERDETHER - AR -EAHRBLFE
P AR REZE 3R o SARRIRUM AT LA R ERRF SR ER ARSI #E -
MR EEHEMEBNELLERAETERS
TS MAE R E RIS RER LR EERE
AIE BR B R BRI AT IR AR E K o

ERB(EABRAERDETETNBES - KM
ERTERAE RS TEREEEE - R

o BBIFFHEANKEFRERM BB E W
BRFEERERBOAORR - RETRATT
BT EF ARG LER - ARERFE M
BEENETRE  ERRMEENER - i
REGERIBES R EBR - Bl E2ER &
RERA - SR BRABESIZ £ - Bt ReE
BHRRBFMEFNEARFERRAN AR
MARBEHR IR R MBI E AR A
R o

o THRERFEBEMAEES - URFHEER
FTERF  BEMXIEE BEREAHES
MBEBMERRER

o EEEMRASHBRRNREMLELS
AHERTMMER R ER A -
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements (Continued)

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of
the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence and, where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

REVBBRRZBIBARE

%%ﬁlﬁﬁﬁ%%‘l‘ﬁéﬁﬂ%iﬁ%ﬁ%ﬂ@ﬁ
(%)

o HERRAHELESITERNBELIEL
i o RIBFTERMETBE  BEEEHF
ERFEXIFEREEOEANTREEN - 1M
AREEHY BERENBELEENELE
REES - MREFIRRTFEERNTHEEME -
AE B EEZHEBETIRFERETER
EVBBRTORBRE  ABREAEOE
B ARMEERRGFEREER -
P& e E N ZBENRE B LRSS E
AAERE A ARXRFEKBRATESE

B BEREETREFELE -

o  FHERAMBHmMRNBEIEIA - BEM
NE - BREEKE  UREEHMBRRES
BRI ZHIEIR

o 3 BEEERNERIEBKIDNUBKEEE
R  EENETERE  AEHREMTE
BREXRER -RMAE BEKEZETHNS
M~ EEEMIMIT - ZASFA T EAEEH
Bif-

FREMEERIN  RABEAFZBGBBTFIEN
BIHE KREZH EAEFERE BRER
IR RN A BRI B A B ARG ©

BFEREFZESRIEN SRARMETE
BRBIMMARERBRER  YEMFIEE
Bt B AR ERMB I N AA R
BEMEMEIER - ARIEERNBRT - FHERE
BMEBMITEI R RA M EEE -
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REVBBRRZBILBARE

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements (Continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Lam Kai Wa.

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road
Central, Hong Kong

25 March 2022

%%ﬁlﬁﬁﬁ%%‘l‘ﬁéﬂﬂﬁi&%ﬁ%ﬂ@ﬁ
(%)

RBEAZESRBNFET  RAEEWLE
BHARRAMBREANEIRAER  BME
PREBSE AT F I o MR BED & P S
B BIFERERTANAFARBEELEE
HERFBFERNBERT - MREBEREMERFIR
ERERAXFRENNBERREBELENAR
M WFPRENEERSTBBZLER -
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
mEeEmE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
B —E-——F+ - /A=+—HIFFZF

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(UAAR3T)
2021 2020
—E—— —E-FF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
it AR¥T T ARMFIT
Revenue =2 3 15,432,900 11,886,862
Cost of sales HEAA (13,621,056)  (10,257,443)
Gross profit ER 1,811,844 1,629,419
Other income Eofth W e 4 132,983 146,409
Distribution costs SAk 1) %N (314,575) (359,999)
Administrative expenses THHEX (401,076) (396,106)
Impairment loss on trade and R 5 EWFRIE I E At FE U R IE 19 &
other receivables BB E 30(a) (79,455) (53,058)
Profit from operations KRR 1,149,721 966,665
Finance costs B FE P AR 5(a) (101,063) (101,592)
Share of (loss)/profit of an associate DR —FEE & N R (E518), % R 15 (581) 8,339
Gain on disposal of an associate & — B E QT2 s 15 3,460 -
Gain on loss of control on a subsidiary 2 25 ¥ — 5 B 8 A 7] 2 120 il
2 Was 15 3,664 =
Profit before taxation R A E A 5 1,055,201 873,412
Income tax FT{g %% 6 (168,084) (111,953)
Profit for the year FERF 887,117 761,459
Attributable to: BUR AL RS
Equity shareholders of the Company RARERR 887,800 765,385
Non-controlling interests FEVERR M 2 (683) (3,926)
Profit for the year FEBH 887,117 761,459
Earnings per share BRER 10
Basic (RMB yuan) ER(AR®ET) 2.12 1.83
Diluted (RMB yuan) g (ARKIT) 2.1 1.83

The notes on pages 178 to 314 form part of these financial
statements. Details of dividends payable to equity shareholders of
the Company attributable to the profit for the year are set out in

Note 29(b).

FIVBEEIVLAZMERZEFHHHRERN — 8
oo ARRIERRREEFREGNZ BANREH

TEERHIEE 29(b) °
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REBERRAEMZERER

For the year ended 31 December 2021

BEr T —Ff+_HA=+—HILFZE

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AARZT)
2021 2020
—E-—F —ECEREF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Hite AR¥FT AE®FT

Profit for the year FEER 887,117 761,459
Other comprehensive income HETREF S EZERZFE

for the year may be reclassified Hitp2mEE (NBRBIER) !

subsequently to profit or loss

(after tax): 9
Exchange differences on translation of ~ #& rh B APELASNETS >

financial statements of operations B mR ZIEH =58

outside the Mainland China (1,287) 3,094
Cash flow hedge: net movement REMEBLH :

in the hedging reserve B E) TR 12,557 (4,828)
Other comprehensive income FEHMZERS

for the year 11,270 (1,734)
Total comprehensive income FEXHEHKRERE

for the year 898,387 759,725
Attributable to: BT AL :

Equity shareholders of the Company 7N Al #E 5 IR 899,070 763,651

Non-controlling interests IR (683) (3,926)
Total comprehensive income FEZHKNGHALE

for the year 898,387 759,725

The notes on pages 178 to 314 form part of these financial

statements.

E178EE3148 2 M R TEH B MmARH —#17 -



XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED 2587 242 §% B R 2 5] / Annual Report 2021 F 3§

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

RE AR R &R

At 31 December 2021
R-ZFE-Z—#+=-H=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AARMEZITR)
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
—E-—F —ETEF
+=—B=+—-H +=-A=1+—H”
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Mt ARYT T ARBF T
Non-current assets kRBEE
Investment property KEE 11 169,427 73,008
Property, plant and equipment M R NMERE 11 2,534,160 2,271,247
2,703,587 2,344,255
Right-of-use assets FREEE 12 330,465 336,187
Intangible assets W EE 13 3,410 3,779
Interest in an associate RN o - e 15 8,975 6,319
Equity securities designated at fair value $§F AR A FET AE M 2 EEE
through other comprehensive (MR FEFAHEMZE Y]
income (FVOCI) Y A% 2N 58 25 16 11,183 =
Deferred tax assets RIETHIRE = 28(b) 68,434 53,171
3,126,054 2,743,711
Current assets REEE
Derivative financial instruments PTESmIA 17 15,289 14,471
Inventories and other contract costs FEREME DBAR 18 1,481,803 1,252,507
Trade and other receivables R 5 R H b W GRIE 19 4,667,569 3,546,003
Prepayments TERT IR 199,421 199,172
Pledged deposits [REEETIESN 20 208,919 170,558
Cash and cash equivalents WL RESZEEY 21 1,643,133 509,639
8,216,134 5,692,350
Current liabilities RBEE
Trade and other payables L5 & E A FE R FRIE 22 4,725,224 3,321,622
Contract liabilities SHaE 23 228,274 197,670
Loans and borrowings BERREER 24 492,617 811,424
Lease liabilities HEaE 25 2,005 2,368
Derivative financial instruments PTESRIA 17 5,908 =
Current taxation BIEAFR 18 28(a) 89,057 54,013
5,543,085 4,387,097
Net current assets RBEEFE 2,673,049 1,305,253
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e AR R ER
At 31 December 2021
RZF-Z—F+=-H=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi)

(XARB3T)
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
—E-—F —TEF
+=—B=+—-H +=-A=1+—H”
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Mt ARYT T ANRBF T
Total assets less current liabilities HWEERARBEE 5,799,103 4,048,964
Non-current liabilities kRBERE
Loans and borrowings B RER 24 1,258,742 318,868
Lease liabilities MHEaRE 25 5,447 6,523
Deferred income PRIEW A 26 25,566 14,663
Deferred tax liabilities FEEFIEAE 28(b) 29,948 10,977
1,319,703 351,031
Net assets EEEE 4,479,400 3,697,933
Capital and reserves BRAR R
Share capital R 29 3,744 3,732
Reserves & 4,475,598 3,693,460
Total equity attributable to equity ARATERRREGERLE
shareholders of the Company 4,479,342 3,697,192
Non-controlling interests IR R 58 741
Total equity EREAE 4,479,400 3,697,933

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on

25 March 2022.

Liu Libin
23738,
Chairman
*E

The notes on pages 178 to 314 form part of these financial

statements.

RIE-_—F=A-t+thBEE=eHELERE

HER

Liao Yuqing

BEE

Executive Director

HITEE

F178AE3NAR ZMERZER B RERN —HF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
MERREER

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE—FT-—F+-A=1+—HIFE

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(UARBIT)
Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
AREERRRER
Non-
Share Share  Capital Other Statutory Exchange  Hedge Retained controlling Total
capital  premium  reserve  reserve  reserves  reserve  reserve - eanings Total  interests equity
Bx  RGEE E4EE EnEE iEHE EXRE  HNEE  REEA @i FERER 48R
Notes ~ RMB'000  RMB000 ~ RMB'OO0 ~ RMB'000  RMB000  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB000  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000
Wi ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETL AREFL \RETT ARETT ARETT ARETT AREFT ARETT
Note 29(c) - Note 290)f) Note 29(fii)  Note 290)i) Note 29)i)  Note 29y Note 29
Hit290  Wizoen W20 W20 KE20m K900 K29
Balance at 1 January 2020 RZECEE-F-RrER 3731 179,568 9086 20982 332418 (1,03) () 230485 3038335 545 3,038,880
Changes in equity for 2020: CECRERESY.
Profit for the year EEEF - - - - - - - 765385 765385 (3926) 761,459
Other comprehensive income Hh2ENE - - - - - 3,09 (4,828) - (1,734) - (1,734)
Total comprehensive income FENEEE - - - - - 3,094 (4828) 765385 763,651 (3926) 759,725
Shares issued due to exercise of BirfEBRETHESTHRE
share option scheme 29 1 47 (102) - - - - - 316 - 316
Recognition of Employees' share option scheme ERESERE:TE 27(b) - - 1,794 - - - - - 1,794 - 1,79
Appropriation to reserves HETRE - - - - 992 - - (2992 - - -
Capitalinjection of non-controlling interest in HEARFERERTE
subsiciaries in the form of intangible assets (HEREENTA) = - - - - - - = = 41 412
Dividend approved in respect of the previous year  BEEEFHENRE 29(0) = = = = = = - (106904)  (106,904) - (106,904)
Balance at 31 December 2020 RZB-BE+ZR=1-BR
and 1 January 2021 “BC-F-F-AkH 3732 179,985 10778 209,822 362440 1,891 (4830) 2933374 3,697,192 741 3697933
Changes in equity for 2021: CEC-FRREE:
Profit for the year FRER - - - S = = - 887,800 887,800 (683) 887,117
Exchange reserve ERGE S S S S - (1.28) - - (1) - (18
Other comprehensive income Htp 2N - - - - - - 12557 - 12557 - 12557
Total comprehensive income PENGAE = = = = - (1287) 12557 887,800 899,070 (683) 898387
Shares ssued due to exercise of BirfsBRETHESTHRN
share option scheme 29(0) 12 8,063 (1,991) - - - - - 6,084 - 6,084
Recognition of Employees' share option scheme AR BRIESE 27(b) - - 627 - - - - - 627 - 627
Appropriation to reserves HETRE - - - - 350 - - (35240) - - -
Dividend approved n respect of the previous year B EESHEHRS 29b) - - - - - - - (13831)  (123631) - (13631
Balance at 31 December 2021 RIBC-E+ZA=t-HzER 3744 188,048 9414 20982 397,680 604 7727 3662303 4479342 58 4,479,400

The notes on pages 178 to 314 form part of these financial

statements.

E178EE3148 2 M R TV MR — 817 -
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

GERETRER

For the year ended 31 December 2021

HE-F &+ - A=1—HILFE

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(UAREZTR)
2021 2020
—E-—F —ECEREF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Hite AR¥FT AREFT
Operating activities REER
Cash generated from operations ERAEIRS 21(b) 1,464,844 1,109,296
Income tax paid B ATER 28(a) (131,220) (135,050)
Land Appreciation Tax (“LAT") paid EAS T3 IBE R ([ T3 (ER ) 28(a) (329) (848)
Net cash generated from RETHMERETHE
operating activities 1,333,295 973,398
Investing activities BREEH
Interest received BB 78,083 53,899
Proceeds received upon maturity of RERBF R %
pledged deposits BURFTIS B 2,224,825 1,878,340
Payment for pledged deposits BT (2,263,186) (1,721,861)
Payment for purchase of property, EEME BMEREBEZHR
plant and equipment (686,834) (438,918)
Payment for deposit of commodity EmEEE NEe 2K
futures contracts (15,000) (160,000)
Proceeds received from deposit of ErEmElE A L e WA
commodity futures contracts FriS k18 28,861 175,354
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE MERREBHIE
plant and equipment 2,815 3,213
Proceeds from disposal of associate HERE N R TS RIE 10,000 -
Dividend received from associates B E QR 2 IR 27,655 =
Payment for purchase of equity securities B & R ANTE & 2 0 (11,183) -
Loss of control on a subsidiary, net of 2L X ¥ B A FIHY 3% | #E
cash disposed HBRELEZRE (854) =
Net cash used in investing activities R&EEEFTHREFE (604,818) (209,973)
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
GERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BHE-_FT-_—F+_A=+—HIFFE

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(UARBZT)

2021 2020

—E-—F —ECERF

Note RMB’000 RMB’000

Ffet AREFT ARETT

Financing activities

Capital element of lease rentals paid

Interest element of lease rentals paid

Interest paid

Proceeds from loans and borrowings

Repayment of loans and borrowings

Proceeds from shares issued under
share option scheme

Dividends paid to equity shareholders
of the Company

Net cash generated from/(used in)
financing activities

Net increase/(decrease) in cash
and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at
1 January

Effect of foreign exchange
rate changes

Cash and cash equivalents at
31 December

BLESEE
ENEE 2 ARSI 21(c) (1,603) (4,041)
EAE 2 a8 21(c) (397) (654)
EETT%U 21(c) (92,742) (101,351)
REEEEIIE 21(c) 3,267,714 1,958,924
1,%-\;&%;,&&1%% 21(c) (2,646,647) (2,527,740)
B EETEIE T E BTN 2
FTiS 508 6,084 316
[SEDEAVNGIL: Tl & Pl 3
29(b) (123,631) (106,904)
BMEFTEHME (TR BSFHE
_______ 408,778 (781,450
BeERBELSEYWEM (GRD)
FEE 1,137,255 (18,025)
R—BA—BNEBELREBESZEY
21(a) 509,639 528,003
ExEgFH o
(3,761) (339)
R+=—BA=+—8W
BERBELSEEY 21(a) 1,643,133 509,639

The notes on pages 178 to 314 form part of these financial —Z178EE314E » it A E Mz — ) -

statements.
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e EHRERME
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(= BIERS)  BEEAARKEST)

1

Significant accounting policies

(a)

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”), which collective term
includes all applicable individual International Financial
Reporting Standards, International Accounting
Standards (“IASs”) and Interpretations issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (the
“IASB"), accounting principles generally accepted in
Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial
statements also comply with the applicable disclosure
provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited. Significant accounting policies adopted by the
Group are disclosed below.

The IASB has issued certain amendments to IFRSs that
are first effective or available for early adoption for the
current accounting period of the Group. Note 1(c)
provides information on any changes in accounting
policies resulting from initial application of these
developments to the extent that they are relevant to
the Group for the current accounting periods reflected
in these financial statements.

1

TEEFHHE

(a)

BREH

ZEPBRERIVRBAABER 2 BEKR
frs RS R ([ BRI E 2R ) -
ZoEEEERe LN RES((H
REFENEREE® ) BEMHTAEER
BB BEFR B #5 s 2E Al - BER g5t &
A (TEREHER] R2E) BEAQ
REFTRAUAREBERAGE 2 BE
RERE - RSV BBERASTAER
BERGMAERARES EHMARIZ
ERBEEE - ARERAZETESR
TR ©

BResrEAZEgEmmeE TEE
B mEERMEE]  ZFENAR
AEBARSTHBEERNERKATIRTE
K- YIRERAZEEAEEE@ 2
BRSO 75 R 5 2RI FT SIS AT g 5T B
MzERESTBRED  SRERZ
EPBMEN - BAERIEH M
1(c) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(b)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2021 comprise the Company and
its subsidiaries (together referred to as the “Group”)
and the Group's interest in an associate.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (“RMB"), rounded to the nearest thousand,
which is the functional currency of the major
subsidiaries carrying out the principal activities of the
Group.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis except
that the following assets and liabilities are stated at
their fair value as explained in the accounting policies
set out below:

— investments in debt and equity securities (see
Note 1(f)); and

—  derivative financial instruments (see Note 1(g)).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with IFRSs requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application
of policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities,
income and expenses. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and
various other factors that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances, the results of which form the
basis of making the judgements about carrying values
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

e BBRRME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(b= HHEHS)  BREUANREST)

1 FESTEHE®)

(b)

MBRRmRERE

HE-_ZT-_—F+=_A=1+—HL*F
EREGEAUEHRERBAR A RENB
NE(HE [ AERE ] AR AEE R
BN EmMAERK o

REMBHRERIDEBARE (AR
27 YEHNBEREON T - A
RERREAEBRTIZXB 2T EM
BRAIZEER -

MBEBRZWMBABELRALERTE
& BT XAE 2 S5 HERM
ME UTEERABREAFEA
BRERSN ©

— REBEBARBHFHNRE (K
F10) - &

— {TESBRIARME1Q)-

EEERUTABBRYHRE LR
EZHMBHRERE - AFHFERRE
AMEREE BERKRIEEH
HIEr - AFT AR o R F At
BERDREBELRLEEBRER
ZEBRTEBAENSHEMEARE
- SAERBEHEZEEENE
REEZREScEERBBEREE
ZER  BRERTEEZEFMHETT
[A] o
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e EHRERME
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(= BIERS)  BEEAARKEST)

1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements
(Continued)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimate is revised if the revision affects only that
period, or in the period of the revision and future
periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

Judgements made by management in the application
of IFRSs that have significant effect on the financial
statements and major sources of estimation
uncertainty are discussed in Note 2.

Changes in accounting policies

The Group has applied the following amendments to
IFRSs issued by the IASB to these financial statements
for the current accounting period:

° Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4
and IFRS 16, Interest rate benchmark reform —
phase 2

o Amendment to IFRS 16, Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions beyond 30 June 2021

None of these amendments have had a material effect
on how the Group’s results and financial position for
the current or prior years have been prepared or
presented. The Group has not applied any new
standard or interpretation that is not yet effective for
the current accounting period.

FESHBE®)

(b)

(c)

MBHRZEREE ()

At MEERREFER - @514
BPACHE A HE R LI ERE
FEZHE) SHAE RTHAR S R AR (1
EHEZ EEINE VI nE

B TR e A B R B % e o E AR T4
BT ERRBEEAZEN A R
ATHEERRZ EBHORHNHIFE2 -

B BREH

ARBERANSHHENUEM R
RARMATERGHEAZE SR
o BV BIRR B 5 3R 5 R 2 18R] ¢

s BERMBHEEAFIN  BRF
SETERE 395 - BRI 15
SEAFTH - BRPHREE
RIZE 457 K BIRR Bf %5 o &5 22 Bl 58
165RIBFT A - M REENRE —
%R

o BB mMEERNEI65IEET
N R-FE-—FNA=+H%E
2 Covid-19 B B+ B&

BECALFETEARERRIZE

BEMABEFRERPBRARELE
FE - AREARFBETAREA

SRR AR LB HO R ER R AR o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(d)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with
the entity and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the entity. When assessing
whether the Group has power, only substantive rights
(held by the Group and other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that
control commences until the date that control ceases.
Intra-group balances, transactions and cash flows and
any unrealised profits arising from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in full in preparing the
consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses
resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated
in the same way as unrealised gains but only to the
extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to the
Company, and in respect of which the Group has not
agreed any additional terms with the holders of those
interests which would result in the Group as a whole
having a contractual obligation in respect of those
interests that meets the definition of a financial
liability. For each business combination, the Group can
elect to measure any non-controlling interests either at
fair value or at the non-controlling interests’
proportionate share of the subsidiary’s net identifiable
assets.

e BBRRME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

1 FESTEHE®)

(d)

(b= HHEHS)  BREUANREST)
i) PNCDSE R e

B 88 1 B 5 P AN S B4 6 A
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B
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RHEREREAREEBRNRAMER
HEEZEMNRER NN ERES
MBBRREEEEE -  SEAREMHE
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SR NEE - EERERER

IREHETT -
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e EHRERME
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(= BIERS)  BEEAARKEST)

1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(d)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(Continued)

Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position within
equity, separately from equity attributable to the
equity shareholders of the Company. Non-controlling
interests in the results of the Group are presented on
the face of the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income as an allocation of the
total profit or loss and total comprehensive income for
the year between non-controlling interests and the
equity shareholders of the Company. Loans from
holders of non-controlling interests and other
contractual obligations towards these holders are
presented as financial liabilities in the consolidated
statement of financial position in accordance with
Notes 1(r) or (s) depending on the nature of the
liability.

Changes in the Group's interests in a subsidiary that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions, whereby adjustments are made to
the amounts of controlling and non-controlling
interests within consolidated equity to reflect the
change in relative interests, but no adjustments are
made to goodwill and no gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in
that subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in
that former subsidiary at the date when control is lost
is recognised at fair value and this amount is regarded
as the fair value on initial recognition of a financial
asset or, when appropriate, the cost on initial
recognition of interest in an associate (see Note 1(e)).

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
impairment losses (Note 1(m)).

FESHBE®)

(d)

M B R IR R AR ()

FREBRES R A MBI R Z
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(e)

Associate

An associate is an entity in which the Group has
significant influence, but not control or joint control,
over its management, including participation in the
financial and operating policy decisions.

An investment in an associate is accounted for in the
consolidated financial statements under the equity
method. Under the equity method, the investment is
initially recorded at cost, adjusted for any excess of the
Group’s share of the acquisition-date fair values of the
investee’s identifiable net assets over the cost of the
investment (if any). The cost of the investment includes
purchase price, other costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of the investment, and any direct
investment into the associate that forms part of the
Group’s equity investment. Thereafter, the investment
is adjusted for the post acquisition change in the
Group’s share of the investee’s net assets and any
impairment loss relating to the investment (Note 1(m)
(ii)). At each reporting date, the Group assesses
whether there is any objective evidence that the
investment is impaired. Any acquisition-date excess
over cost, the Group's share of the post-acquisition,
post-tax results of the investees and any impairment
losses for the year are recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, whereas the Group’s share
of the post-acquisition post-tax items of the investees’
other comprehensive income is recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

When the Group's share of losses exceeds its interest
in the associate, the Group’s interest is reduced to nil
and recognition of further losses is discontinued
except to the extent that the Group has incurred legal
or constructive obligations or made payments on
behalf of the investee. For this purpose, the Group’s
interest is the carrying amount of the investment
under the equity method, together with any other
long-term interests that in substance form part of the
Group’s net investment in the associate, after applying
the ECL model to such other long-term interests
where applicable (see Note 1(m)(i)).

e BBRRME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
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e EHRERME
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(= BIERS)  BEEAARKEST)

1

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(e)

()

Associate (Continued)

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from
transactions between the Group and its associate are
eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in the
investee, except where unrealised losses provide
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred, in
which case they are recognised immediately in profit
or loss.

In all other cases, when the Group ceases to have
significant influence over an associate, it is accounted
for as a disposal of the entire interest in that investee,
with a resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit
or loss. Any interest retained in that former investee at
the date when significant influence is lost is recognised
at fair value and this amount is regarded as the fair
value on initial recognition of a financial asset (see
Note 1(f)).

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investment in associate are stated at cost less
impairment losses (see Note 1(m)).

Other investments in debt and equity securities

The group'’s policies for investments in debt and equity
securities, other than investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures, are set out below.

Investments in debt and equity securities are
recognised/derecognised on the date the group
commits to purchase/sell the investment. The
investments are initially stated at fair value plus directly
attributable transaction costs, except for those
investments measured at fair value through profit or
loss (FVPL) for which transaction costs are recognised
directly in profit or loss. For an explanation of how the
group determines fair value of financial instruments,
see Note 30(f). These investments are subsequently
accounted for as follows, depending on their
classification.

1
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(f)  Other investments in debt and equity securities
(Continued)

(i)

Investments other than equity investments

Non-equity investments held by the group are
classified into one of the following measurement
categories:

— amortised cost, if the investment is held
for the collection of contractual cash flows
which represent solely payments of
principal and interest. Interest income
from the investment is calculated using the
effective interest method (see Note 1(w)

(V).

— fair value through other comprehensive
income (FVOCI) — recycling, if the
contractual cash flows of the investment
comprise solely payments of principal and
interest and the investment is held within
a business model whose objective is
achieved by both the collection of
contractual cash flows and sale. Changes
in fair value are recognised in other
comprehensive income, except for the
recognition in profit or loss of expected
credit losses, interest income (calculated
using the effective interest method) and
foreign exchange gains and losses. When
the investment is derecognised, the
amount accumulated in other
comprehensive income is recycled from
equity to profit or loss.

— fair value through profit or loss (FVPL) if
the investment does not meet the criteria
for being measured at amortised cost or
FVOCI (recycling). Changes in the fair
value of the investment (including interest)
are recognised in profit or loss.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
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e BRRME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(b= BIEHS)

 BEAAREST)

1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(f)  Other investments in debt and equity securities
(Continued)

(ii)

Equity investments

An investment in equity securities is classified as
FVPL unless the equity investment is not held for
trading purposes and on initial recognition of
the investment the group makes an irrevocable
election to designate the investment at FVOCI
(non-recycling) such that subsequent changes in
fair value are recognised in other comprehensive
income. Such elections are made on an
instrument-by-instrument basis, but may only be
made if the investment meets the definition of
equity from the issuer’s perspective. Where such
an election is made, the amount accumulated in
other comprehensive income remains in the fair
value reserve (non-recycling) until the investment
is disposed of. At the time of disposal, the
amount accumulated in the fair value reserve
(non-recycling) is transferred to retained
earnings. It is not recycled through profit or loss.
Dividends from an investment in equity
securities, irrespective of whether classified as at
FVPL or FVOCI, are recognised in profit or loss as
other income in accordance with the policy set
out in note T(w)(vii).

(g) Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are recognised at fair
value. At the end of each reporting period the fair
value is remeasured. The gain or loss on
remeasurement to fair value is recognised immediately
in profit or loss, except where the derivatives qualify
for cash flow hedge accounting or hedges of net
investment in a foreign operation, in which case
recognition of any resultant gain or loss depends on
the nature of the item being hedged (see Note 1(h)).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(h)

Hedging

The Group designates the derivative as hedging
instrument to hedge the variability in cash flows
associated with highly probable forecast transactions
arising from changes in foreign exchange rates,
variable rate borrowings or commodity price risk (cash
flow hedges).

Cash flow hedges

Where a derivative financial instrument is designated as
a hedging instrument in a cash flow hedge, the effective
portion of any gain or loss on the derivative financial
instrument is recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated separately in equity in the hedging
reserve. The ineffective portion of any gain or loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

If a hedge of a forecast transaction subsequently
results in the recognition of a non-financial asset such
as inventory, the associated gain or loss is reclassified
from equity to be included in the initial cost of the
non-financial asset.

For all other hedged forecast transactions, the amount
accumulated in the hedging reserve is reclassified from
equity to profit or loss in the same period or periods
during which the hedged cash flows affect profit or
loss (such as when a forecast sale occurs or interest
expense is recognised).

If a hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge
accounting (including when the hedging instrument
expires or is sold, terminated or exercised), then hedge
accounting is discontinued prospectively. When hedge
accounting is discontinued, but the hedged forecast
transaction is still expected to occur, the amount that
has been accumulated in the hedging reserve remains
in equity until the transaction occurs and it is
recognised in accordance with the above policy. If the
hedged transaction is no longer expected to take
place, the amount that has been accumulated in the
hedging reserve is reclassified from equity to profit or
loss immediately.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
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e EHRERME
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(= BIERS)  BEEAARKEST)

1

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

0}

()

Investment property

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which
are owned or held under a leasehold interest (see Note
1(l)) to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation. These include land held for a currently
undetermined future use and property that is being
constructed or developed for future use as investment
property.

Investment properties are accounted for using the cost
model and stated in the statement of financial position
at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses (see Note 1(m)). The cost of investment property,
less its estimated residual value and accumulated
impairment losses, is depreciated using the straight-line
method over its estimated useful lives as follows.
—  Land use rights 50 years
—  Buildings and plants held for own use which are
situated on leasehold land are depreciated over
the shorter of the unexpired term of the lease
and their estimated useful lives, being no more
than 35 years after the date of completion.

Property, plant and equipment and right-of-use
assets

Property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets
are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses (see Note 1(m)).

The cost of self-constructed items of property, plant
and equipment includes the cost of materials, direct
labour, the initial estimate, where relevant, of the
costs of dismantling and removing the items and
restoring the site on which they are located, and an
appropriate proportion of production overheads and
borrowing costs (Note 1(y)).

Construction in progress is transferred to respective
items under property, plant and equipment when it is
ready for its intended use. No depreciation is provided
against construction in progress.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

()

Property, plant and equipment and right-of-use
assets (Continued)

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal
of an item of property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets are determined as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the item and are recognised in profit or
loss on the date of retirement or disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use
assets, less their estimated residual value, if any, using
the straight-line method over their estimated useful
lives as follows:

— Buildings and plants held for own use which are
situated on leasehold land are depreciated over
the shorter of the unexpired term of the lease
and their estimated useful lives, being no more
than 35 years after the date of completion.

—  Machinery 3-20 years
—  Motor vehicles 3-5 years
—  Office equipment and others 3-10 years

— Right-of-use assets are depreciated over the
period of the lease term

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost of the
item is allocated on a reasonable basis between the
parts and each part is depreciated separately. Both the
useful life of an asset and its residual value, if any, are
reviewed annually.
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e BRRME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B~

1

1EEIS) - BREANRBEST)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(k)

U}

Intangible assets (other than goodwiill)

Intangible assets that are acquired by the group are
stated at cost less accumulated amortisation (where
the estimated useful life is finite) and impairment
losses (see Note 1(m)).

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful
lives is charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis
over the assets’ estimated useful lives. The following
intangible asset with finite useful lives is amortised
from the date it is available for use and their estimated
useful lives is as follows:
—  Patents 10 years

Both the period and method of amortisation are
reviewed annually.

Leased assets

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether
the contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration. Control is
conveyed where the customer has both the right to
direct the use of the identified asset and to obtain
substantially all of the economic benefits from that
use.

(i) As alessee

Where the contract contains lease component(s)
and non-lease component(s), the Group has
elected not to separate non-lease components
and accounts for each lease component and any
associated non-lease components as a single
lease component for all leases.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

() Leased assets (Continued)

(i)

As a lessee (Continued)

At the lease commencement date, the Group
recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease
liability, except for short-term leases that have a
lease term of 12 months or less and leases of
low-value assets which, for the Group are
primarily laptops and office furniture. When the
Group enters into a lease in respect of a low-
value asset, the Group decides whether to
capitalise the lease on a lease-by-lease basis. The
lease payments associated with those leases
which are not capitalised are recognised as an
expense on a systematic basis over the lease
term.

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability
is initially recognised at the present value of the
lease payments payable over the lease term,
discounted using the interest rate implicit in the
lease or, if that rate cannot be readily
determined, using a relevant incremental
borrowing rate. After initial recognition, the
lease liability is measured at amortised cost and
interest expense is calculated using the effective
interest method. Variable lease payments that
do not depend on an index or rate are not
included in the measurement of the lease liability
and hence are charged to profit or loss in the
accounting period in which they are incurred.
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e EHRERME
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(= BIERS)  BEEAARKEST)

1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

() Leased assets (Continued)

(i)

As a lessee (Continued)

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease
is capitalised is initially measured at cost, which
comprises the initial amount of the lease liability
plus any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, and any initial direct costs
incurred. Where applicable, the cost of the right-
of-use assets also includes an estimate of costs
to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or
to restore the underlying asset or the site on
which it is located, discounted to their present
value, less any lease incentives received. The
right-of-use asset is subsequently stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses (see Notes 1(j) and 1(m)(ii), expect for the
following types of right-of-use asset:

—  Right-of-use assets related to interests in
leasehold land where the interest in the
land is held as inventory are carried at the
lower of cost and net realisable value in
accordance with Note 1(n).

The initial fair value of refundable rental deposits
is accounted for separately from the right-of use
assets in accordance with the accounting policy
applicable to investments in debt securities
carried at amortised cost (see Notes 1(f)(i), 1(w)
(v) and 1(m)(i)). Any difference between the
initial fair value and the nominal value of the
deposits is accounted for as additional lease
payments made and is included in the cost of
right-of-use assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

() Leased assets (Continued)

(i)

As a lessee (Continued)

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a
change in future lease payments arising from a
change in an index or rate, or there is a change
in the Group's estimate of the amount expected
to be payable under a residual value guarantee,
or there is a change arising from the
reassessment of whether the Group will be
reasonably certain to exercise a purchase,
extension or termination option. When the lease
liability is remeasured in this way, a
corresponding adjustment is made to the
carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is
recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount
of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to
zero.

The lease liability is also remeasured when there
is a change in the scope of a lease or the
consideration for a lease that is not originally
provided for in the lease contract (“lease
modification”) that is not accounted for as a
separate lease. In this case the lease liability is
remeasured based on the revised lease payments
and lease term using a revised discount rate at
the effective date of the modification. The only
exceptions are rent concessions that occurred as
a direct consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic
and met the conditions set out in paragraph 468
of HKFRS 16 Leases. In such cases, the Group
has taken advantage of the practical expedient
not to assess whether the rent concessions are
lease modifications, and recognised the change
in consideration as negative variable lease
payments in profit or loss in the period in which
the event or condition that triggers the rent
concessions occurred.

In the consolidated statement of financial
position, the current portion of long-term lease
liabilities is determined as the present value of
contractual payments that are due to be settled
within twelve months after the reporting period.
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e EHRERME
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(= BIERS)  BEEAARKEST)

1 Significant accounting policies (Continued) 1 FESHEBEX®
(I) Leased assets (Continued) (n HEBERE)

(i) As alessor (i) FEBHEA

When the Group acts as a lessor, it determines
at lease inception whether each lease is a
finance lease or an operating lease. A lease is
classified as a finance lease if it transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental
to the ownership of an underlying assets to the
lessee. If this is not the case, the lease is
classified as an operating lease.

When a contract contains lease and non-lease
components, the Group allocates the
consideration in the contract to each component
on a relative stand-alone selling price basis. The
rental income from operating leases is
recognised in accordance with Note 1(w)(iv).

When the Group is an intermediate lessor, the
sub-leases are classified as a finance lease or as
an operating lease with reference to the right-
of-use asset arising from the head lease. If the
head lease is a short-term lease to which the
Group applies the exemption described in Note
1()(i), then the Group classifies the sub-lease as
an operating lease.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(m) Credit losses and impairment of assets

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments and
lease receivables

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECLs
on the following items:

— financial assets measured at amortised
cost (including cash and cash equivalents,
trade and other receivables, which are
held for the collection of contractual cash
flows which represent solely payments of
principal and interest); and

—  lease receivables.

Other financial assets measured at fair value,
including equity securities designated at FVOCI
(non-recycling) and derivative financial assets,
are not subject to the ECL assessment.

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of
credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the
present value of all expected cash shortfalls (i.e.
the difference between the cash flows due to
the Group in accordance with the contract and
the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive).
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 BEAAREST)

1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(m) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments and
lease receivables (Continued)

Measurement of ECLs (Continued)

The expected cash shortfalls are discounted
using the following discount rates where the
effect of discounting is material:

— fixed-rate financial assets and trade and
other receivables: effective interest rate
determined at initial recognition or an
approximation thereof;

— variable-rate financial assets: current
effective interest rate;

— lease receivables: discount rate used in the
measurement of the lease receivable;

The maximum period considered when
estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual
period over which the Group is exposed to credit
risk.

In measuring ECLs, the Group takes into account
reasonable and supportable information that is
available without undue cost or effort. This
includes information about past events, current
conditions and forecasts of future economic
conditions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(m) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments and
lease receivables (Continued)

Measurement of ECLs (Continued)

ECLs are measured on either of the following
bases:

— 12-month ECLs: these are losses that are
expected to result from possible default
events within the 12 months after the
reporting date; and

— lifetime ECLs: these are losses that are
expected to result from all possible default
events over the expected lives of the items
to which the ECL model applies.

Loss allowances for trade receivables are always
measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs.
ECLs on these financial assets are estimated
using a provision matrix based on the Group’s
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
factors that are specific to the debtors and an
assessment of both the current and forecast
general economic conditions at the reporting
date.

For all other financial instruments, the Group
recognises a loss allowance equal to 12-month
ECLs unless there has been a significant increase
in credit risk of the financial instrument since
initial recognition, in which case the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs.
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1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(m) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments and
lease receivables (Continued)

Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of
default occurring on the financial instrument
assessed at the reporting date with that assessed
at the date of initial recognition. In making this
reassessment, the Group considers that a default
event occurs when (i) the borrower is unlikely to
pay its credit obligations to the Group in full,
without recourse by the Group to actions such
as realising security (if any is held); or (ii) the
financial asset is 120 days past due. The Group
considers both quantitative and qualitative
information that is reasonable and supportable,
including historical experience and forward-
looking information that is available without
undue cost or effort.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(m) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments and
lease receivables (Continued)

Significant increases in credit risk (Continued)

In particular, the following information is taken
into account when assessing whether credit risk
has increased significantly since initial
recognition:

— failure to make payments of principal or
interest on their contractually due dates;

— an actual or expected significant
deterioration in a financial instrument’s
external or internal credit rating (if
available);

— an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating results of
the debtor; and

— existing or forecast changes in the
technological, market, economic or legal
environment that have a significant
adverse effect on the debtor’s ability to
meet its obligation to the Group.
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 BEAAREST)

1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(m) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments and
lease receivables (Continued)

Significant increases in credit risk (Continued)

Depending on the nature of the financial
instruments, the assessment of a significant
increase in credit risk is performed on either an
individual basis or a collective basis. When the
assessment is performed on a collective basis,
the financial instruments are grouped based on
shared credit risk characteristics, such as past
due status and credit risk ratings.

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date to
reflect changes in the financial instrument’s
credit risk since initial recognition. Any change in
the ECL amount is recognised as an impairment
gain or loss in profit or loss. The Group
recognises an impairment gain or loss for all
financial instruments with a corresponding
adjustment to their carrying amount through a
loss allowance account.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(m) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments and
lease receivables (Continued)

Basis of calculation of interest income

Interest income recognised in accordance with
Note 1(w)(v) is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless the
financial asset is credit-impaired, in which case
interest income is calculated based on the
amortised cost (i.e. the gross carrying amount
less loss allowance) of the financial asset.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses
whether a financial asset is credit-impaired. A
financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
more events that have a detrimental impact on
the estimated future cash flows of the financial
asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired
includes the following observable events:

— significant financial difficulties of the
debtor;

— a breach of contract, such as a default or
past due event;

— it becoming probable that the borrower
will enter into bankruptcy or other
financial reorganisation;

— significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment
that have an adverse effect on the debtor;
or

— the disappearance of an active market for
a security because of financial difficulties
of the issuer.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRRME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(= BIERS)  BEEAARKEST)

1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(m) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Credit losses from financial instruments and
lease receivables (Continued)

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset,
lease receivable or contract asset is written off
(either partially or in full) to the extent that there
is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally
the case when the group determines that the
debtor does not have assets or sources of income
that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay
the amounts subject to the write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was
previously written off are recognised as a
reversal of impairment in profit or loss in the
period in which the recovery occurs.
Impairment of other non-current assets
Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to
identify indications that the following assets may
be impaired or an impairment loss previously
recognised no longer exists or may have
decreased:

— investment property;

—  property, plant and equipment;

—  right-of-use assets;

— intangible assets;

— interest in an associate; and

— investment in subsidiaries in the
Company’s statement of financial position.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated.

1 FEETEE@®)

(m) FEBBEREEREGE)

(0]

(i)

EHMTAREERUNEZIFE
EiR (&)

IR R

EBHERER EARYEIFIE - B
S (BoH2EH) ERMEE
HERUKIESR AN EENER
HfE - %ERRTHRERKE
BEEHBARBEENTELR
SRR E WA RIFIREEE
MIHH S EE -

e 1& Y [ 5T AT 38 2 B EE R )
HifR B E AR AR ERED -

Hth I 7% B & E R E

AEENERESMREMNABL
SNBERL UREE TINEERR

BEP R KT AR 2 BUEEER
EANBFELATEERD -
— REWME:

— BE - BEEERE:

— EREEE

—  R—MEmSATER R

—  ARRFHARE S RH
BRANERE -

W FEERBRTR - Bl
BEZAHEEER -



XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED 2587 242 §% B R 2 5] / Annual Report 2021 F 3§

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(m) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

(i) Impairment of other non-current assets

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the
greater of its fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to
the asset. Where an asset does not
generate cash inflows largely independent
of those from other assets, the recoverable
amount is determined for the smallest
group of assets that generates cash
inflows independently (i.e. a cash-
generating unit). A portion of the carrying
amount of a corporate asset (for example,
head office building) is allocated to an
individual cash generating unit if the
allocation can be done on a reasonable
and consistent basis, or to the smallest
group of cash-generating units if
otherwise.
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e EHRERME
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(= BIERS)  BEEAARKEST)

1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
(m) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

(i) Impairment of other non-current assets
(Continued)

—  Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit
or loss if the carrying amount of an asset,
or the cash-generating unit to which it
belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount.
Impairment losses recognised in respect of
cash-generating units are allocated to
reduce the carrying amount of the assets
in the unit (or group of units) on a pro rata
basis, except that the carrying value of an
asset will not be reduced below its
individual fair value less costs of disposal (if
measurable) or value in use (if
determinable).

—  Reversals of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if there has
been a favourable change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable
amount.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited
to the asset’s carrying amount that would
have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised in prior years.
Reversals of impairment losses are credited
to profit or loss in the year in which the
reversals are recognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(m) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

(iii) Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited, the Group is required to prepare an
interim financial report in compliance with IAS
34, Interim financial reporting, in respect of the
first six months of the financial year. At the end
of the interim period, the Group applies the
same impairment testing, recognition, and
reversal criteria as it would at the end of the
financial year (Notes 1(m)(i) and (ii)).

(n) Inventories and other contract costs

(i)

Inventories

Inventories are assets which are held for sale in
the ordinary course of business, in the process of
production for such sale or in the form of
materials or supplies to be consumed in the
production process or in the rendering of
services.

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and
net realisable value as follows:

—  Aluminium profiles manufacturing

Cost is calculated using the weighted
average cost formula and comprises all
costs of purchase, costs of conversion and
other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and
condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business
less the estimated costs of completion and
the estimated costs necessary to make the
sale.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e EHRERME
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(= BIERS)  BEEAARKEST)

1 Significant accounting policies (Continued) 1 FESHEBEX®

sale comprises all costs of purchase, costs
of conversion and other costs incurred in
bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition.

In the case of completed properties
developed by the Group which comprise
of multiple units which are sold
individually, the cost of each unit is
determined by apportionment of the total
development costs for that development
project to each unit on a per square foot
basis, unless another basis is more
representative of the cost of the specific
unit. Net realisable value represents the
estimated selling price less costs to be
incurred in selling the property.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount
of those inventories is recognised as an expense
in the period in which the related revenue is
recognised.

The amount of any write-down of inventories to
net realisable value and all losses of inventories
are recognised as an expense in the period the
write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any
reversal of any write-down of inventories is
recognised as a reduction in the amount of
inventories recognised as an expense in the
period in which the reversal occurs.

(n) Inventories and other contract costs (Continued) n) FEREMEHRA(Z)
(i)  Inventories (Continued) (i) H#E(E)
—  Completed property held for resale — BEEECZEEKYE
The cost of completed properties held for BFEFEZEERMERK
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e ERERME
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(b= HHEHS)  BREUANREST)

1 Significant accounting policies (Continued) 1 FESHEER®)
(n) Inventories and other contract costs (Continued) n) FEREMEHNRA(E)
(ii) Other contract costs (i) EME#HHKX

Other contract costs are either the incremental
costs of obtaining a contract with a customer or
the costs to fulfil a contract with a customer
which are not capitalised as inventory (see Note
1(n)(i)) or property, plant and equipment (see
Note 1(j)) or intangible assets (see Note 1(k)).

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract are
those costs that the Group incurs to obtain a
contract with a customer that it would not have
incurred if the contract had not been obtained
e.g. an incremental sales commission.
Incremental costs of obtaining a contract are
capitalised when incurred if the costs relate to
revenue which will be recognised in a future
reporting period and the costs are expected to
be recovered. Other costs of obtaining a contract
are expensed when incurred.

Costs to fulfil a contract are capitalised if the
costs relate directly to an existing contract or to
a specifically identifiable anticipated contract;
generate or enhance resources that will be used
to provide goods or services in the future; and
are expected to be recovered. Costs that relate
directly to an existing contract or to a specifically
identifiable anticipated contract may include
direct labour, direct materials, allocations of
costs, costs that are explicitly chargeable to the
customer and other costs that are incurred only
because the Group entered into the contract (for
example, payments to sub-contractors). Other
costs of fulfilling a contract, which are not
capitalised as inventory, property, plant and
equipment or intangible assets, are expensed as
incurred.
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e EHRERME
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(= BIERS)  BEEAARKEST)

1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(n)

(o)

Inventories and other contract costs (Continued)
(ii) Other contract costs (Continued)

Capitalised contract costs are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment
losses. Impairment losses are recognised to the
extent that the carrying amount of the contract
cost asset exceeds the net of (i) remaining
amount of consideration that the Group expects
to receive in exchange for the goods or services
to which the asset relates, less (ii) any costs that
relate directly to providing those goods or
services that have not yet been recognised as
expenses.

Amortisation of capitalised contract costs is
charged to profit or loss when the revenue to
which the asset relates is recognised. The
accounting policy for revenue recognition is set
out in Note 1(w).

Contract assets and contract liabilities

A contract asset is recognised when the Group
recognises revenue (see Note 1(w)) before being
unconditionally entitled to the consideration under the
payment terms set out in the contract. Contract assets
are assessed for expected credit losses (ECL) in
accordance with the policy set out in Note 1(m)(i) and
are reclassified to receivables when the right to the
consideration has become unconditional (see Note

1(p)).

A contract liability is recognised when the customer
pays consideration before the Group recognises the
related revenue (see Note 1(w)). A contract liability
would also be recognised if the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration before the
Group recognises the related revenue. In such cases, a
corresponding receivable would also be recognised
(see Note 1(p)).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(o)

(p)

Contract assets and contract liabilities (Continued)

For a single contract with the customer, either a net
contract asset or a net contract liability is presented.
For multiple contracts, contract assets and contract
liabilities of unrelated contracts are not presented on a
net basis.

When the contract includes a significant financing
component, the contract balance includes interest
accrued under the effective interest method (see Note
1(w)).

Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A right to
receive consideration is unconditional if only the
passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due. If revenue has been recognised
before the Group has an unconditional right to receive
consideration, the amount is presented as a contract
asset (see Note 1(0)).

Trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component are initially measured at their
transaction price. Trade receivables that contain a
significant financing component and other receivables
are initially measured at fair value plus transaction
costs. All receivables are subsequently stated at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method
and including an allowance for credit losses (see Note

T1(m)(i)-
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e EHRERME
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(= BIERS)  BEEAARKEST)

1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(a)

(r)

(s)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and
on hand, pledge deposits with bank and other
financial instruments, and short-term, highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been
within three months of maturity at acquisition. Cash
and cash equivalents are assessed for expected credit
losses (ECL) in accordance with the policy set out in
Note 1(m)(i).

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair
value. Subsequent to initial recognition, trade and
other payables are stated at amortised cost unless the
effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which
case they are stated at invoice amounts.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are measured initially at
fair value less transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.
Interest expense is recognised in accordance with the
Group’s accounting policy for borrowing costs (see
Note 1(y)).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(t) Employee benefits

(i)

(ii)

Short term employee benefits and
contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement
plans and the cost of non-monetary benefits are
accrued in the year in which the associated
services are rendered by employees. Where
payment or settlement is deferred and the effect
would be material, these amounts are stated at
their present values.

Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to
employees is recognised as an employee cost
with a corresponding increase in a capital
reserve within equity. The fair value is measured
at grant date using the binomial lattice model,
taking into account the terms and conditions
upon which the options were granted. Where
the employees have to meet vesting conditions
before becoming unconditionally entitled to the
options, the total estimated fair value of the
options is spread over the vesting period, taking
into account the probability that the options will
vest.
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e BRRME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(b= BIEHS)

 BEAAREST)

1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(t) Employee benefits (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Share-based payments (Continued)

During the vesting period, the number of share
options that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any
resulting adjustment to the cumulative fair value
recognised in prior years is charged/credited to
the profit or loss for the year of the review,
unless the original employee expenses qualify for
recognition as an asset, with a corresponding
adjustment to the capital reserve. On vesting
date, the amount recognised as an expense is
adjusted to reflect the actual number of options
that vest (with a corresponding adjustment to
the capital reserve) except where forfeiture is
only due to not achieving vesting conditions that
relate to the market price of the Company’s
shares. The equity amount is recognised in the
capital reserve until either the option is exercised
(when it is included in the amount recognised in
share capital for the shares issued) or the option
expires (when it is released directly to retained
profits).

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the
earlier of when the Group can no longer
withdraw the offer of those benefits and when
it recognises restructuring costs involving the
payment of termination benefits.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(u)

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities.
Current tax and movements in deferred tax assets and
liabilities are recognised in profit or loss except to the
extent that they relate to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which
case the relevant amounts of tax are recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect
of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being
the differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes
and their tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from
unused tax losses and unused tax credits.
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e BRRME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(= BIERS)  BEEAARKEST)

1

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(u)

Income tax (Continued)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which the asset can be utilised, are
recognised. Future taxable profits that may support
the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences include those that
will arise from the reversal of existing taxable
temporary differences, provided those differences
relate to the same taxation authority and the same
taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either in
the same period as the expected reversal of the
deductible temporary difference or in periods into
which a tax loss arising from the deferred tax asset
can be carried back or forward. The same criteria are
adopted when determining whether existing taxable
temporary differences support the recognition of
deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses and
credits, that is, those differences are taken into
account if they relate to the same taxation authority
and the same taxable entity, and are expected to
reverse in a period, or periods, in which the tax loss or
credit can be utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from the initial recognition of assets or liabilities
that affect neither accounting nor taxable profit
(provided they are not part of a business combination),
and temporary differences relating to investments in
subsidiaries to the extent that, in the case of taxable
differences, the Group controls the timing of the
reversal and it is probable that the differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the case of
deductible differences, unless it is probable that they
will reverse in the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured
based on the expected manner of realisation or
settlement of the carrying amount of the assets and
liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period. Deferred
tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(u)

Income tax (Continued)

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and is
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow the
related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction is
reversed to the extent that it becomes probable that
sufficient taxable profits will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the
distribution of dividends are recognised when the
liability to pay the related dividends is recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from
each other and are not offset. Current tax assets are
offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax
assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company
or the Group has the legally enforceable right to set
off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and
the following additional conditions are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities,
the Company or the Group intends either to
settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously; or

— in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities,
if they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either:

—  the same taxable entity; or

— different taxable entities, which, in each
future period in which significant amounts
of deferred tax liabilities or assets are
expected to be settled or recovered, intend
to realise the current tax assets and settle
the current tax liabilities on a net basis or
realise and settle simultaneously.
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e BRRME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(= BIERS)  BEEAARKEST)

1

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(v)

(w)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a legal
or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value
of money is material, provisions are stated at the
present value of the expenditure expected to settle the
obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits
is remote.

Where some or all of the expenditure required to
settle a provision is expected to be reimbursed by
another party, a separate asset is recognised for any
expected reimbursement that would be virtually
certain. The amount recognised for the reimbursement
is limited to the carrying amount of the provision.

Revenue and other income

Income is classified by the Group as revenue when it
arises from the sale of goods, the provision of services
or the use by others of the Group's assets under leases
in the ordinary course of the Group’s business.

Revenue is recognised when control over a product or
service is transferred to the customer, or the lessee has
the right to use the asset, at the amount of promised
consideration to which the Group is expected to be
entitled, excluding those amounts collected on behalf
of third parties. Revenue excludes value added tax or
other sales taxes and is after deduction of any trade
discounts.
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e BBRRME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(b= HHEHS)  BREUANREST)

1 Significant accounting policies (Continued) 1 FESHEER®)

(w) Revenue and other income (Continued)

(w) WaERHEAMBA (E)

Where the contract contains a financing component
which provides a significant financing benefit to the
customer for more than 12 months, revenue is
measured at the present value of the amount
receivable, discounted using the discount rate that
would be reflected in a separate financing transaction
with the customer, and interest income is accrued
separately under the effective interest method. Where
the contract contains a financing component which
provides a significant financing benefit to the Group,
revenue recognised under that contract includes the
interest expense accreted on the contract liability
under the effective interest method. The Group takes
advantage of the practical expedient in paragraph 63
of IFRS 15 and does not adjust the consideration for
any effects of a significant financing component if the
period of financing is 12 months or less.

Further details of the Group’s revenue and other
income recognition policies are as follows:

(i) Sale of aluminum products

Revenue is recognised when the customer takes
possession of and accepts the products. If the
products are a partial fulfilment of a contract
covering other goods and/or services, then the
amount of revenue recognised is an appropriate
proportion of the total transaction price under
the contract, allocated between all the goods
and services promised under the contract on a
relative stand-alone selling price basis.
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e BRRME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(KRS HEHI - HEEAAREST)

1 Significant accounting policies (Continued) 1 FESHEBEX®
(w) Revenue and other income (Continued)

(w) WERHEAEAE)

(i) Sale of properties (i) HEY*

Revenue arising from the sale of properties
developed for sale in the ordinary course of
business is recognised when the property is
accepted by the customer, or deemed as
accepted according to the contract, whichever is
earlier, which is the point in time when the
customer has the ability to direct the use of the
property and obtain substantially all of the
remaining benefits of the property. Deposits and
instalments received on properties sold prior to
the date of revenue recognition are included in
the statement of financial position under
contract liabilities (see Note 1(0)).

When residential properties are marketed by the
Group while the property is still under
construction, the Group may offer a discount
compared to the listed sales price, provided the
customer agrees to pay the balance of the
consideration early. In such cases, if the advance
payments are regarded as providing a significant
financing benefit to the Group, interest expense
arising from the adjustment of time value of
money will be accrued by the Group during the
period between the payment date and the
completion date of legal assignment. This
accrual increases the balance of the contract
liability during the period of construction, and
therefore increases the amount of revenue
recognised when control of the completed
property is transferred to the customer. The
interest is expensed as accrued unless it is
eligible to be capitalised under IAS 23,
Borrowing costs, in accordance with the policies
set out in Note 1(y).
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1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(w) Revenue and other income (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

Services income

Revenue from services rendered is recognised in
profit or loss at the time of provision of the
service is completed.

Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating leases
is recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments
over the periods covered by the lease term,
except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the pattern of benefits to be
derived from the use of the leased asset.
Variable lease payments that do not depend on
an index or a rate are recognised as income in
the accounting period in which they are earned.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues under
the effective interest method using the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
through the expected life of the financial asset
to the gross carrying amount of the financial
asset . For financial assets measured at amortised
cost that are not credit-impaired, the effective
interest rate is applied to the gross carrying
amount of the asset. For credit-impaired
financial assets, the effective interest rate is
applied to the amortised cost (i.e. gross carrying
amount net of loss allowance) of the asset (see
Note 1(m)(i)).
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(= BIERS)  BEEAARKEST)

1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(w) Revenue and other income (Continued)

(x)

(vi) Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the
statement of financial position initially when
there is reasonable assurance that they will be
received and that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to them. Grants that
compensate the Group for expenses incurred are
recognised as income in profit or loss on a
systematic basis in the same periods in which
the expenses are incurred. Grants that
compensate the Group for the cost of an asset
are initially recognised as deferred income and
subsequently recognised as other income in
profit or loss over the useful life of the assets.

(vii) Dividends

—  Dividend income from unlisted investments
is recognised when the shareholder’s right
to receive payment is established.

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of the
reporting period. Exchange gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss, except those arising from
foreign currency borrowings used to hedge a net
investment in a foreign operation which are
recognised in other comprehensive income.
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1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(x)

(y)

Translation of foreign currencies (Continued)

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the transaction dates. The transaction date is the date
on which the Group initially recognises such non-
monetary assets or liabilities. Non-monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are
stated at fair value are translated using the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was
measured.

The results of foreign operations are translated into
RMB at the exchange rates approximating the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions.
Statement of financial position items are translated
into RMB at the closing foreign exchange rates ruling
at the end of the reporting period. The resulting
exchange differences are recognised directly in other
comprehensive income and accumulated separately in
equity in the exchange reserve.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset
which necessarily takes a substantial period of time to
get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as
part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs
are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the
cost of a qualifying asset commences when
expenditure for the asset is being incurred, borrowing
costs are being incurred and activities that are
necessary to prepare the asset for its intended use or
sale are in progress. Capitalisation of borrowing costs
is suspended or ceases when substantially all the
activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for
its intended use or sale are interrupted or complete.
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(= BIERS)  BEEAARKEST)

1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
(z) Related parties

(@ A person, or a close member of that person’s
family, is related to the Group if that person:

(i)  has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group;
or

(i) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the Group’s
parent.

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(i)  The entity and the Group are members of
the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others).

(i)~ One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which
the other entity is a member).

(i) Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

(iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a third
entity and the other entity is an associate
of the third entity.

(v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of either
the Group or an entity related to the
Group.

(vi)  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (a).

FESHBE®)

BER

(a

MBATAL E“JE?/\iﬁE%/\
TR REAEEERE

() EHIREREAREE

(i) HAREEEARE N

(i) RAEEHAEEFNTE
ZEEEEREKE -

W& TN RS - RIZEERE
N E A R

() %EEBRASHEHEBR-
BMZRER T(EDX!
CIRN I PNCIDSAEEN )=
RARILEERE) -

iy —HEBAR— :‘?-T“%ZH‘&%

BATRABOE (R

T AN E A2 &S
TREATZHEARS
ALY

(i) MEAERHA/E-—F=7

ZRERHE

ivv —REBRE=-NERBZ
BELE ME—ERR
RE=ZTERZBENRT -

ﬁfﬁﬁz EEHE

W EEAEEMSAERE
% > BB B -

(vi) EBX(AMERNALE
i S FE )



XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED 2587 242 §% B R 2 5] / Annual Report 2021 F 3§
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1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(2)

(aa)

Related parties (Continued)

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies: (Continued)

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the
Group or to the Group's parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence, or
be influenced by, that person in their dealings with
the entity.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each
segment item reported in the financial statements, are
identified from the financial information provided
regularly to the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purposes of allocating resources
to, and assessing the performance of, the Group’s
various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and
are similar in respect of the nature of products and
services, the nature of production processes, the type
or class of customers, the methods used to distribute
the products or provide the services, and the nature of
the regulatory environment. Operating segments
which are not individually material may be aggregated
if they share a majority of these criteria.
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e BRRME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(= BIERS)  BEEAARKEST)

2 Accounting judgements and estimates

Sources of estimation uncertainty

Notes 27 and 30 contains information about the
assumptions and their risk factors relating to valuation of
fair value of share options granted and financial instruments.
Other significant source of estimation uncertainty are as
follows:

(i)

(ii)

Depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives, after
taking into account the estimated residual value. The
Group reviews annually the useful life of an asset and
its residual value, if any. The depreciation expense for
future years is adjusted if there are significant changes
from previous estimation.

Loss allowance for trade receivables

The Group estimates the loss allowances for trade
receivables by assessing the ECLs. This requires the use
of estimates and judgements. ECLs are based on the
Group's historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
factors that are specific to the debtors, and an
assessment of both the current and forecast general
economic conditions at the end of reporting period.
Where the estimation is different from the original
estimate, such difference will affect the carrying
amounts of trade receivables and thus the impairment
loss in the period in which such estimate is changed.
The Group keeps assessing the expected credit loss of
trade receivables during their expected lives.

2

2o H B R A

et RHEE M 2 RIR

MEE27 R30I AR R L BAREL S/
TEARAFEBREZRERERBERZE
£t o Hfpfhat MHEE M 2 T EHRIRE T M

T

(0]

(ii)

E

WME - BFE RRBE R RS E
B EEATERFHANERE
FE - AEEZFRIEEMNAER
FREFKEEWHR) - WBEME

BEARE ARBARFEMNFE
P
R BB AR E

AEEEATEBRBEERERTR
S EW AR EIREE - LR EER
et R - BHEEBEBRDRRE
AEEHBEEEERRLHR AR
BEHEANERIEL 2 BB MR RE S
REE A M IR BB ®
FHEGH o A EYa AT HIRE
2 FHZEBFEXIFIRUFEDN
REE - Bt AR EREARE
EEeLAES - AEESERHNY
RATERFHER 2 BEFAENTERE
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3 Revenue and segment reporting 3

(a)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRRME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

Revenue (a)

The principal activities of the Group are manufacturing
and sale of aluminium profiles and property
development. Further details regarding the Group's
principal activities are disclosed in Note 3(b).

(i) Disaggregation of revenue

(b= H1EHS)  BREUANREST)

WK o B E

W
AEEZEIBXHA/RERFERL

MEMEER BEEAKETIEZEK
ZHE—HHBERBERMEE3(D)

(i) WzBEH

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with

BRIBEMIMBREND 2P

customers by major products or service lines is as AHWEERAAIN T -
follows:
2021 2020
- —T-FHF
RMB'000 RMB’000
AR¥FT ARETT
Revenue from contracts with BRI R B 35 3R 25 2E B
customers within the scope EI5REERZ
of IFRS 15 EEEHNKE
Disaggregated of product lines or 1R AR S RIS 43
service line Elo 2 BR4
— Sales of aluminium profiles — HEWREM 14,963,364 11,581,973
— Sales of aluminium panels, — BRIk - IRE S
aluminium alloy, moulds and RARZEM
spare parts 451,543 279,010
— Sales of completed properties — HEER I 13,079 14,984
— Revenue from processing — IIRBE W=
service contracts 4,914 10,895
15,432,900 11,886,862

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with
customers by the timing of revenue recognition
and by geographic markets is disclosed in Notes

3(b)(i) and 3(b)(iii) respectively.

The Group’s customer base is diversified and
does not include any individual customer (2020:
Nil) with whom transactions have exceeded 10%

of the Group’s revenue.

WS R R IR R I T 5 2
DZEPAHWESERA D B M
=T 3(b)(0) K2 3(b)(iii) IR FE -

REBEFPEMZ T BX T
BEXSHEAEBWEEIBE10%
ZEARENEF(ZE_ZF :
) o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRRME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(= BIERS)  BEEAARKEST)

3 Revenue and segment reporting (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Revenue (Continued)

(ii)

Revenue expected to be recognised in the
future arising from contracts with
customers in existence at the reporting date

As at 31 December 2021, the transaction price
allocated to the remaining performance
obligations under the Group’s existing contracts
is expected to be recognised as revenue within
one year.

Segment reporting

The Group manages its businesses by product lines. In
a manner consistent with the way in which the
information is reported internally to the Group’s most
senior executive management for the purposes of
resource allocation and performance assessment, the
Group has presented the following reportable
segments.

Industrial aluminium profiles: this segment
manufactures and sells plain aluminium profiles,
mainly for industrial usage.

Construction aluminium profiles: this segment
manufactures and sells aluminium profiles with
surface finishing, including anodic oxidation
aluminium profiles, electrophoresis coating
aluminium profiles, powder coating aluminium
profiles and PVDF coating aluminium profiles.
Construction aluminium profiles are widely used
in architecture decoration.

3

W 2 K%

DEHRE &)

(@) Wak (&)

(ii)

REBEEAHEFHENEFL BN
ELRHARAEERZ W

R_E-_—F+_-_A=+—H"
BRIBEASEERBE N REFI
BHAEEHNXRSERBHN—F
WNER AW -

AEEZEMRERELRE - RER
AEESEEHTEEABRLEZRE
FHAETE R B MAERG A~
T AEEC 25T I RES R -

THE@RIM X0 MBRENRHE
ApsRBIM  TERETERE -

FEEIRAIM O RENEE
RERMERIBIEALN - BIEBERS
{EIRAIA « BIKBERAM « B
oK M8 % 83 AU A N PVDF & 2 8 A
Mo BEIRAIME S AREER

& o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 Revenue and segment reporting (Continued)

(b) Segment reporting (Continued)

(i)

All other segments: include the revenue
generated from processing service contracts
related to aluminium products, sale of office
premises and residential properties and sale of
aluminium panels, aluminium alloy, moulds and
spare parts.

Segment results, assets and liabilities

For the purposes of assessing segment
performance and allocating resources between
segments, the Group’s senior executive
management monitors the results attributable to
each reportable segment on the following bases:

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the
reportable segments with reference to sales
generated by those segments and the expenses
incurred by those segments or which otherwise
arise from the depreciation or amortisation of
assets attributable to those segments. However,
other than reporting inter-segment sales of
aluminium profiles, assistance provided by one
segment to another, including sharing of assets,
is not measured.

The measure used for reporting segment profit
is gross profit. The Group’s senior executive
management is provided with segment
information concerning segment revenue and
profit. Segment assets and liabilities are not
reported to the Group's senior executive
management regularly.

e BRRME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(K= BRI

P BEEAARBIT)

3 WHaRDIB®HE @)

(b)

(i)

]S ()

FrE Hih o3 - BIEiRE MR
MIRBEL  HERREWE
REEWMEUREERR - 885
& BEREHHEAZRE -

DEBHE  BERAE

RETH AN LD HBEE
RO AEBRRATERA
BRUATEEEREERRED
EYEE S

Was M T2 EZE D BTE
EZHERZENBAEEZH
XHZEFNBEIGEETENE
HATEL < ER S D B E A R
ENER - R BREE D ABE A
BN ZHEIN » R—DEA5—
DEREZ B (BEAREE)
WAEHEEA -

ARmENEEN 287 A
EM - AEERANTEERAR
B Bl Fos Az o

MEH - DHMEERABALETE
HRAXEESRRTEEAERR

==
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e BRRME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(= BIERS)  BEEAARKEST)

3 Revenue and segment reporting (Continued) 3

(b) Segment reporting (Continued)

W 2 K%

DEHRE &)

(b) ZEHE(E)

(i) Segment results, assets and liabilities (i)
(Continued)
Information regarding the Group's reportable
segments as provided to the Group’s most
senior executive management for the purposes
of resource allocation and assessment of
segment performance for the years ended 31
December 2021 and 2020 is set out below:
Industrial aluminium Construction aluminium
profiles profiles
TEERM BEHEUM
2021 2020 2021 2020
—B--f —Z-TF B —Z-TH
RMB'000  RMB'O00 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000
AREFT AEKFT AREFT AREFRT

DERE  BEREE (&)

REBEE—_T-_—FR-ZFTFTHF
T+ A=+—BULFEZERS
BERDHERFTETE @ AAE
EsmRTEEABREZEH
REEA RE DI ERF T a0
T

All other segments Total
FERMD B EH
2021 2020 2021 2020

—B--% —TCTHF B _TCEF
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTFRL ARNMTT ARMFT ARETT

Reportable segment T3} %5 5 3k
revenue

Revenue from RENREFZ

external customers  Jtas (BEFE %)

(point in time) 2,869,879 2,320,269 12,093,485 9,261,704 469,536 304,889 15,432,900 11,886,862
Reportable segment  F[#{% % B A

profit
Gross profit E 211,714 228,534 1,430,870 1,246,404 169,260 154,481 1,811,844 1,629,419
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 Revenue and segment reporting (Continued)

(b) Segment reporting (Continued)

e BRRME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

3

(i) Reconciliations of reportable segment profit

(iii)

(b= H1EHS)  BREUANREST)

WK D ERE (&)
(b) S EWE(45)

(i) FHEDEBEF 2R

2021 2020
—EB-—fF il Sale a3
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMFT ARETT

Reportable segment profit derived REXSEIAREFZ

from the Group’s external customers — A] 25 53 2B % 1,811,844 1,629,419
Other income H AWz 132,983 146,409
Distribution costs PaR Tz DN (314,575) (359,999)
Administrative expenses TR (401,076) (396,106)
Impairment loss on trade and R 5 R E At FEWFRIE

other receivables BIEEE (79,455) (53,058)
Finance costs B 75 Ak 2N (101,063) (101,592)
Share of (loss)/profit of an associate 7 {5 — Bk A

(&), & F (581) 8,339
Gain on disposal of an associate & — RS AR 2 e 3,460 -
Gain on loss of control on a subsidiary & 25 % — & B A 7~

22 | 2 e 3,664 -
Consolidated profit before taxation I BTAR A5 ) 1,055,201 873,412

Geographic information

Analysis of the Group's revenue and results as
well as analysis of the Group’s carrying amount
of non-current assets by geographical market
has not been presented as over 98% (2020:
99%) of the revenue are generated from the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") market.

(iii) HEZEH

I 25| A K E iR & T i5E o
2R REEDTARARERIE
RBEERABCOWN  REA
BI8% (ZEZFF 1 99%) 2
Wesg kg E ARERE (T4
B])mis o
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e BRRME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(= BIERS)  BEEAARKEST)

4 Otherincome 4 Hfblz
2021 2020
—B--F T -ZHF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TFrT AREFT
Interest income F BUA 78,083 53,899
Government grants (i) R #66 Bd (7)
— Unconditional subsidies — AR MHAL 31,185 30,341
— Conditional subsidies (Note 26) — BEMmRE (et 26) 16,420 26,274
Rental income WA 14,764 13,594
Net foreign exchange loss SNFE BT 18 H R (2,171) (3,769)
Cross currency interest rate swap: R E# 8 BRI -
cash flow hedges, reclassified from BemEE A -
equity (Note 9(b)) B ANE D88 (B aE 9b)) - (737)
Changes in fair value of commodity TR R U R Y
future contracts recognised as AmEBEEHNZ
hedge ineffectiveness (Note 30(e)) NYEEB) (M5F30() 4,589 26,067
Changes in fair value of forward EHNES K 2 A EEE)
exchange agreements (Note 17) (Kt 17) (5,908) -
(Loss)/gain on disposal of property, HEME - WEREE
plant and equipment and AR RREEER
right-of-use assets (E518), Mz (3,979) 740
132,983 146,409
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ERERME
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(b= H1EHS)  BREUANREST)

4 Other income (Continued) 4 E#uhz e
(i)  Government grants in the form of cash subsidies were () BThEHRFSKEESRSHEIETER
received from various PRC government authorities. M T BG o

Unconditional subsidies

The entitlements of certain government grants
amounting to RMB31,185,000 (2020:
RMB30,341,000) were unconditional. The funds
were to subsidise the operating expenses of the
PRC subsidiaries of the Group during the current
year.

Conditional subsidies

The remaining government grants were
conditional government grants and initially
recorded as deferred income. The amount of
conditional government grants charged to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss for the
year ended 31 December 2021 was
RMB16,420,000 (2020: RMB26,274,000).

AR AL

+ 5 A ANR31,185,000L( =
T T AR %30,341,000
L) ZE TR HREAEK
o ZEEeBFRNAEEZF
B BAR S ER Rt
A o

B 15T Rk

B TNB B AEEERTE
Bh - WA BIREW A o B
EZE_—F+ZA=+—H1t
FEZEFEERRANNRZBK
R EREAARE
16,420,000 C( —ZE-FF : A
R #26,274,0007T) °
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e BRRME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(= BIERS)  BEEAARKEST)

5 Profit before taxation

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

(a)

5 BRBANER

PR B AT B DB (GE ) AT & IRZ S

H o
Finance costs: (a) BFFERKAN :
2021 2020
—B-—F —ZT-FF
RMB'000 RMB’000
AR¥FT AREFT
Interest expenses on bank loans RITERZFEFAX
(Note 21(c)) (BtaE21(c) 63,467 92,177
Interest expenses on discounted bills BMREE 2FERXY
(Note 21(c)) (H1aE21(c) 37,199 7,629
Interest on lease liabilities (Note 21(c)) HEBBEFB (WiE21(0) 397 654
Total interest expense on financial WIEE AT EF A B
liabilities not at fair value through ZEmBEFE
profit or loss % B5E 101,063 100,460
Cross currency interest rate swap: R Gkt BiFI R
cash flow hedges, reclassified from WeREE -
equity (Note 9(b)) BARAE# 588 (L 9b)) = 1,132
101,063 101,592
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5

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Profit before taxation (Continued)

(b)

Staff costs:

e BRRME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(b= H1EHS)  BREUANREST)

Contributions to defined contribution M) R TR IR

BHFET &R
VAR {7 7 Lt
RIS SRFA S (BfaF 27(b))
e ITERHEAMETR

retirement plans
Equity-settled share-based payment AR HEAEE
expenses (Note 27(b))
Salaries, wages and other benefits

Pursuant to the relevant labour rules and regulations
in the PRC, the PRC subsidiaries participate in defined
contribution retirement benefit schemes (“Schemes”)
organised by the local authority whereby the PRC
subsidiaries are required to make contributions to the
Schemes based on certain percentages of the eligible
employees’ salaries. The local government authorities
are responsible for the entire pension obligations
payable to the retired employees.

The Group also operates a Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme (“the MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for
employees employed under the jurisdiction of the
Hong Kong Employment Ordinance and not previously
covered by the defined benefit retirement plan. The
MPF scheme is a defined contribution retirement plan
administered by independent trustees. Under the MPF
scheme, the employer and its employees are each
required to make contributions to the plan at 5% of
the employees’ relevant income, subject to a cap of
monthly relevant income of HKD30,000 (2020:
HKD30,000). Contributions to the plan vest
immediately, there is no forfeited contributions that
may be used by the Group to reduce the existing level
of contribution.

The Group has no other material obligations for
payments of retirement and other post-retirement
benefits of employees other than the contributions
described above.

BB A=A (2)
BTRA:
2021 2020
—E-—-F —ERCERE
RMB'000 RMB’'000
ARBFT  ARETFT
81,500 57,423
627 1,794
936,999 900,312
1,019,126 959,529

RIFFEMEBSSHRAEIER - F
B /B8 7 ) 22 B g 1 75 KT A A 4 4 Y
ERERERRENFE (T5H8]) - &
o PENBARARAERREES
EW—EB AR EIELHER - it
TRFKEAEREHEESEEM
RINEBERHER -

REBMBEE BRI ME ARSI
&h - BEEBEBELN TIERT
ZEAMATEARKTEREZES
mEBEHEANBLTE(BREL T
gl]) - wiEE 8 AR EHIERET
g HBIEIATE - RERES
E BEEREREYAESZTEIR
EEABZWABD 2 AEHER
T A BB 2 EBR A30,0007% T
TE T 1 30,00087T) c fEH Z
HRENEFHAZE - REEBT2E)
FBE 3R UL H 1 FOREK IR B B 30K

PR DAt KON - REEY BB TR
BERAREMERRENAEELMBE
REME-
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e BRRME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(= BIERS)  BEEAARKEST)

5 Profit before taxation (Continued)

(c) Otheritems:

5 BREADEF (&)

(0 HfEAR:

2021 2020
—E—fF —EEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TFT ARETFT
Depreciation charge EMX
— Investment properties (Note 11) —REWMEHE1) 2,487 2,093
— Property, plant and equipment — Mm% - BERRERE
(Note 11) (Mtat11) 371,165 393,800
— Right-of-use assets (Note 12) — R EE M 12) 10,058 12,409
Amortisation cost of intangible assets B A 2 B SR AR
(Note 13) (Btat13) 369 343
Provision/(reversal) of WTEBREBEZ
impairment losses on R, (Fm)
— trade receivables (Note 30(a)) — R P EWERIE (B 7% 30(3)) 79,675 52,870
— other receivables (Note 19) — B EERIE (M 19) (220) 188
Auditors’ remuneration = ERRT BN &
— audit services — EBZIR 1,395 1,355
— other services — H bR 784 760
Cost of inventories (i)/(Note 18) FERAG), (Kt 18) 13,621,056 10,257,443
Research and development costs (i) B BX X (i) 689,641 526,769

(i)

(ii)

Cost of inventories for the year ended 31
December 2021 included RMB987,126,000
(2020: RMB959,500,000) relating to
depreciation and staff costs, which amount is
also included in the respective total amounts
disclosed separately above or in Note 5(b) for
each of these types of expenses, and net gain of
RMB97,660,000 (2020: RMB96,952,000)
reclassified from other comprehensive income
on commodity futures contracts which were
designated as cash flow hedging instruments.

Research and development costs for the year
ended 31 December 2021 included
RMB174,509,000 (2020: RMB139,380,000)
relating to depreciation and staff costs of
employees, which amount is also included in the
respective total amounts disclosed separately
above or in Note 5(b) for each of these types of
expenses.

(ii)

HE-_T-_—F+=-_H=+—H
IFFE FEXNARFBERFTER
EIKRATXEB 2 ARE
987,126,000 L (ZZE =Z4F : A
R #959,500,0007T) * 3% &8 I8
B EF A £k R 5(b) 7 F # B
MNEERSYBE - FEEBEE S
HEAHN(ETARSRELF
TE)EMBAEZEFT S EHRE
JF 58 AR #97,660,000L( ==
— T4 AR¥96,952,0007T) °

HE-_T-_—F+=-_H=+—H
EFEZMERABDFETER
BECZEIXRAEB I AR
174,509,000 (= =F4F : A
R #139,380,0007T) * i &%
IRET A £ 3Tk M 3 5(b) 7 R # 5
BN -
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e ERERME
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(b= H1EHS)  BREUANREST)

6 Income tax in the consolidated statement 6 RESERRINZFESR

of profit or loss

(a) Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit () RECEBRRAZFHES:
or loss represents:
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-THF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREFIT
Current tax BENHRFE 18
Provision for PRC corporate income tax ~ FRE{>ZFT15F
("CIT") ([EZEmSH ) B E 156,729 113,931
Provision for PRC LAT B M G (E R B 1,864 1,332
158,593 115,263
Deferred tax IEIERE
Reversal and origination of temporary FeRF ERRRE MEL
differences (Note 28(b)) (KtiE28(b)) 9,491 (3,310)
168,084 111,953

(i) Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the
Cayman Islands and the British Virgin Islands (the
“BVI"), the Group is not subject to any income
tax in the Cayman Islands and the BVI.

(i)  The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax is
calculated at 16.5% (2020: 16.5%) of the
estimated assessable profits for the year ended
31 December 2021, except for one subsidiary of
the Group which is a qualifying corporation
under the two-tiered Profits Tax rate regime.

() REFAEHERABRELES
(TRBRZES )RR -
AEEBABMRERS NEEB
BREE S ZAERPAEH o

iy BEMNSHBHEHIRBEZEZZ
T+ A=t+—HIFEZ
HEHERBEFA165% (=ZF
—TF 1 165%) MR E
AEBE—BHAFESHERALE
BEREZHBRTRRIN
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e EHRERME
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(= BIERS)  BEEAARKEST)

6 RESBEBRAZAEHR @

6 Income tax in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss (Continued)
(a) Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit (a) REcEBRAZFES : ()
or loss represents: (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

(Continued)

For this subsidiary, the first HK$2 million of
assessable profits are taxed at 8.25% and the
remaining assessable profits are taxed at 16.5%.
The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for this
subsidiary was calculated at the same basis in
2020.

The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for
2021 is taken into account a reduction granted
by the Hong Kong SAR Government of 100% of
the tax payable for the year of assessment
2020/21 subject to a maximum reduction of
HK$10,000 for each business (2020: a maximum
reduction of HK$20,000 was granted for the
year of assessment 2019/20 and was taken into
account in calculating the provision for 2020).

Pursuant to the income tax rules and regulations
of the PRC, the PRC subsidiaries of the Group
are liable to PRC corporate income tax at a rate
of 25% for 2021 (2020: 25%) except for
Guangdong Xingfa Aluminium Co., Ltd.
("Guangdong Xingfa”), Xingfa Aluminium
(Chengdu) Co., Ltd. (“Xingfa Chengdu”) ,
Guangdong Xingfa Aluminium (Henan) Co., Ltd.
(“Xingfa Henan”) and Guangdong Xingfa
Aluminium (Jiangxi) Co., Ltd. (“Xingfa Jiangxi”)
which were certified as “High and New
Technology Enterprises” (“HNTE") and entitled
to the preferential income tax rate of 15% for
2021 (2020: 15%).

(ii)

(iii)

(%)

RHMBARME  B2BEE
TTFE AR 0% F LA 8.25% HY Y R 14
o MR TR R 16.5%
MR - LB AR ZEE
FIESHBE IR - _ZFH
E R EAETE -

TR —FEBNEHRBEK
AREARANTRERNS=Z
CEFER T FEREIHRE
SR R B9 100% $058 28 (&
ﬁ%%mmmﬂﬁ%mwma
L) (ZE=FF —NF=E
:;_tﬁﬁﬁf%m#ﬁwm
HJREE 20,0008 7T« BRETE
E;yiﬁﬁkaﬁ&%mﬁ
LEPID

RIBFFRBEATSHAEN LRI - K
EEZFBEMNBRARR T =—

FREZ25%(ZETF 25%)
RN FETEH -
f%ﬂi%&ﬁﬂ%ﬁlﬂﬁi(ﬁ%
) - EEIRE (KER) BRAH
([EEERCED ) - ERE IR E
Crum)ARAR([#3mm ) &
BREZRIEECTIA) BRAF
([E2T]) BB [ mHEmt
¥ (oMt &R
b_/\i%ﬁ:—ﬂ5¥ﬁ‘|5%, :g:
T 15%) LABBFTEHBE -
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6 Income tax in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss (Continued)

(@) Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss represents: (Continued)

(iv)

Pursuant to the new tax law in the PRC, from 1
January 2008, non-resident enterprises without
an establishment or place of business in the PRC
or which have an establishment or place of
business in the PRC but whose relevant income
is not effectively connected with the
establishment or a place of business in the PRC,
will be subject to withholding tax at the rate of
10% (unless reduced by tax treaty) on various
types of passive income such as dividends
derived from sources within the PRC. Pursuant
to the Sino-Hong Kong Double Tax Arrangement
and the related regulations, a qualified Hong
Kong tax resident will be liable to a reduced
withholding tax rate of 5% on dividends from a
PRC enterprise if the Hong Kong tax resident is
the “beneficial owner” and holds 25% or more
of the equity interest of the PRC enterprise. The
Group's subsidiary in Hong Kong has obtained
the Certificate of Resident Status of the Hong
Kong Special Administrative Region and
therefore have adopted the withholding tax rate
at 5% for PRC withholding tax.

As at 31 December 2021, deferred tax liabilities
of RMB28,583,000 (2020: RMB10,977,000)
(Note 28(b)(i)) have been provided for in this
regard based on the expected dividends to be
distributed from the PRC subsidiaries in the
foreseeable future in respect of the profits
generated since 1 January 2008.

e BRRME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(b= H1EHS)  BREUANREST)

6 NEEEZERAZFAEH @

() REEBEBRAZBESR: (B)

(iv)

REBFEHFHE A-_TTN\F
—A—HE  EPBERARRKRL
s - BFT REHETEERA
RIEE - SATERB 2 AR
ANBEERBIERMREE - 5
PR BABERBMEZIFERER
1 AR % B E WA (AR
BIR Az BB ) B 10% B X (B
FEIR BB TE R R ) B TR AR
Bl RBAMEFBTTLM(E
BB LH) RERER - W—
ZEERBEANBERA[ER
BAAN] AR BEFEDRE25% %K
A LRI - RIZBAERBER
AER AP EEENREIRE
BRERS% HMTALEN - NEE
REENMNBAREESERR
MITRRERSDERE Bt
RATHRBRRHERRES
5% °

WZZE-_—F+-_A=+—8"
LA R B B8 1 R) 72 A 78 B ¥ 2R 3t
BE-EEN\F-—H—BEME4L
FEBeREMNFERAREASE
% - B3t AR 28,583,0007T(=
T -FT4F : AR%10,977,0000T)
BT B EE L B E (T
28(b)(i)) °
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e EHRERME
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(= BIERS)  BEEAARKEST)

6 Income tax in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss (Continued)

(a) Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss represents: (Continued)

(v)

(vi)

During the year of 2021, Guangdong Xingfa,
Xingfa Chengdu, Xingfa Henan and Xingfa
Jiangxi obtained approval from local tax
authorities to claim super deduction on research
and development expenses incurred in 2020. As
such, the income tax for 2021 was reduced by
RMB22,124,000 (2020: RMB18,002,000). Such
additional tax deduction on research and
development expenses equals 75% (2020: 75%)
of the amount actually incurred.

LAT is levied on properties developed in the PRC
by the Group for sale, at progressive rates
ranging from 30% to 60% on the appreciation
of land value, which under the applicable
regulations is calculated based on the proceeds
of sales of properties less deductible
expenditures including lease charges of land use
rights, borrowing costs and relevant property
development expenditures.

6 NEEBERAZFAER @)

(a)

REGBRBRAZHER : (B)

(v)

(vi)

RZTBZ—F  FEREH - @3
RED - BN R R TR E B
BBt G - NFEL
e S E S B
At - —E=-—FZFREEHRD
ANR#22,124,000(ZE=F
F£: AR®18,002,0007T) - B
BT B B S 2 BEAMNFRARE R
BERELESEZI5%(ZE-F
1 75%) o

THIEER I AEE LSRN TER
B, 7 38 W) 5 ok 10 (B 45 (B 3% 1 38
ERRERR30% 2 60% =K -
RIBERARTE - EEGERD
05§ FTS FORR 2 A FR L
L(EELERREEEER -
BERAREAMEZERAS) -
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e BRRME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(b= H1EHS)  BREUANREST)

6 Income tax in the consolidated statement 6 RLESEXRRINZIAER &)
of profit or loss (Continued)

(b)

Reconciliation between tax expense and

BERRERFE 2 HAMXEE TS

accounting profit at applicable tax rates: FIEER -
2021 2020
—EB-—fF il Sale a3
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥FT ARETFT
Profit before taxation e 5 B A 1,055,201 873,412
Less: LAT B DI (E R 1,864 1,332
Profit before CIT and Hong Kong PR{®EEFTIST R
Profits Tax BB ME AR 1,053,337 872,080
Notional tax on profit before taxation, ZEE R AR EA
calculated at the rates applicable HMERAE 2 BRTA
to the jurisdiction concerned Az ZERIE 268,991 214,115
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses TR NG 2 FH A% 777 760
Tax effect of share of profit of paN =l 1] /N
an associate A2 ISR = (1,251)
Effect of tax concessions HiSBERZEE (107,030) (90,369)
Super deduction on research and F—FE B
development expenses in respect gl Els
of prior year (Note 6(a)(v)) (Ktzt6(a)v) (22,124) (18,002)
Effect of withholding on undistributed  F& 3071 BT & A &)
profits retained by PRC subsidiaries R BCAR B & A
(Note 28) B & (K7t 28) 25,606 5,368
CIT and Hong Kong Profits Tax R REENEH 166,220 110,621
Add: LAT o I ER 1,864 1,332
Income tax expense SR X 168,084 111,953
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRRME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(= BIERS)  BEEAARKEST)

7 Directors’ emoluments 7 EEME
Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) BIEESQNTHENFE383MNIER AT (HKE
of Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the ESMEER)AOE 2B EBRCESHE
Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of s

Directors) Regulation are as follows:

Salary,
allowance  Contribution
and benefits  to retirement Share-based 2021
Fees inkind  benefitplan  Bonus paid Sub-Total payments Total
11 BINER NRHAE =B=-%
we  RENAZ SHEfR BAEA Mt EBRHAER @t
(Note)
(H2)

RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000
ARBTR  ARBTT ARETR ARBFT ARETR ARETRZ  ARETR

Executive directors HITES
Mr. LIU Libin El iy 235 472 13 2,457 3177 35 3212
Mr. LIAO Yuging BEELE 795 264 - 2,615 3,674 - 3,674
Mr. LAW Yung Koon BREAA 517 - 15 2,334 2,866 - 2,866
Mr. WANG Zhihua IHERE 544 139 17 1,577 2,217 30 2,307
Ms. ZHANG Li RAZL

(resigned from the positionof ~ (R=Z=—4

an executive director on NATBEHE

4 August 2021) $173) - 416 9 1,525 1,950 30 1,980
Mr. LUO Jianfeng BRI 398 = = = 398 - 398
Mr. Wang Lei TREE

(appointed to the position of (W=Z=—F

an executive director on NAEBEZE

4 August 2021) BH1ES) = = = = = = =
Non-executive directors FHTES
Ms. XIE Jingyun HEELL - - - - - - -
Mr. ZUO Manlun EmREE 299 - - - 299 - 299

Independent non-executive ~ BUFHTES

directors
Mr. CHEN Mo RS 115 - - - 115 - 115
Mr. HO Kwan Yiu MEZLE 160 - - - 160 - 160
Mr. LAM Ying Hung, Andy MEBEE 180 - - - 180 - 180
Mr. Wen Xianjun NEERE
(appointed on 4 August 2021)  (PA=Z=—F
NARBEZE) - 75 - - 75 - 75
Mr. LIANG Shibin iR EE
(resigned on 4 August 2021) (R-Z-—%
NATWBEE) - 150 - - 150 - 150

Total @t 3,243 1,516 54 10,508 15,321 9 15,416
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Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

Salary,

allowance

and benefits

Fees inkind
58 28

#e  REMIE

RMB000  RMB'000
ARBTEL  ARETR

e BRRME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(b= H1EHS)  BREUANREST)

BEEME &)

Contribution

to retirement Share-based 2020
benefit plan Bonus paid Sub-Total payments Total
BIGER Nikle ZT-%F
HEL [RABPZAN et EEHRR L6y
(Note)
(Hizt)

RMBO0O  RMB'OO0  RMB000  RMBO0O  RMB000
ARETL ARETT ARETZ ARETZ ARETR

Executive directors HITES
Mr. LIU Libin EIATY 300 606 23 1,732 2,661 100 2,761
Mr. LIAO Yuging BIELE 636 264 - 1,927 2,827 - 2,827
Mr. LAW Yung Koon BRELE 552 - 13 2,649 3214 - 3214
Mr. WANG Zhihua THERE 416 90 12 1,555 2,073 84 2,157
Ms. ZHANG Li RAZL - 677 12 467 1,156 83 1,239
Mr. LUO Jianfeng BEBEE 425 - - - 425 - 425
Non-executive directors FYTES
Ms. XIE Jingyun HEELL - - - - - - -
Mr. ZUO Manlun Pl pe 319 - - - 319 = 319
Independent non-executive ~ BUFHTES

directors
Mr. CHEN Mo BT 150 - - - 150 - 150
Mr. HO Kwan Yiu MERRAE 150 = = = 150 5 150
Mr. LAM Ying Hung, Andy MEBEE 180 - - - 180 = 180
Mr. LIANG Shibin 2R EE 55 83 - - 138 - 138
Total & 3,183 1,720 60 8330 13,293 267 13,560
Note: Bitet -

These represent the estimated value of share options granted to the directors
under the Company’s share option scheme. The value of these share options
is measured according to the Group’s accounting policies for share-based
payment transactions as set out in Note 1(t)(ii) and, in accordance with that
policy, includes adjustments to reverse amounts accrued in previous years
where grants of equity instruments are forfeited prior to vesting.

The details of these benefits in kind, including the principal terms and number
of options granted, are disclosed under the paragraph “Share option
scheme” in the Report of the Directors and Note 27.

ZECHEERBARFRBREABRTESNBEREN
BEHEE - ZSBEREANBE BRI 106) ARASE
BRABRNDNRRZOEFBRFE - MRBERHEE
ZEHERBAFEEMRLES TARBEA UMK
MIER TR REEE -

ZERMABORE - DEDRHBREN T BERR
A EREFERE N [BREH S —BRHE27
R -
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e BRRME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(= BIERS)  BEEAARKEST)

8 Individuals with highest emoluments 8

Of the five Individuals with the highest emoluments, three
(2020: four) of them are directors whose emoluments are
disclosed in Note 7. The aggregate of the emoluments in

REHMAL

hE&sSHFMALYH =R(Z2-FF:
MB)BESR REZMES N E7RE -

HMME(ZE-_ZTF: —8)5

=mEFMAL

respect of the other two (2020: one) individuals are as NS @zEmT
follows:
2021 2020
—E-—F —EIERF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT ARMTFT
Fees we = =
Salary, allowance and benefits in kind He EZREYA R 1,119 330
Contribution to retirement benefit plan RIREFIFT B R 51 12
Bonus paid BAE4L 3,500 1,400
Share-based payments PARRAD B EL TR &I 5K 46 60
4,716 1,802
The emoluments of the two (2020: one) individual(s) with ME(ZE-ZTF: —Z)mad ATHRE
the highest emoluments are within the following bands: NFTFEE
2021 2020
—E-—F —ETHF
Number of Number of
Individuals Individuals
AE AE
Nil-HK$ 1,000,000 £ % 1,000,000 7T - -
HK$1,000,001-HK$ 1,500,000 1,000,001 & 7T £ 1,500,000 7 7T - -
HK$1,500,001-HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 & 7T E 2,000,000 7 7T - -
HK$2,000,001-HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 7T 2 2,500,000 7T - 1
HK$2,500,001-HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 # 7T Z 3,000,000 77T 2 -
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e ERERME
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(b= H1EHS)  BREUANREST)

9 Other comprehensive income 9 Htt2mEWKz=
(a) Tax effects relating to each component of other (a) EEHMEAWSZSEAKBD 2HB
comprehensive income -4 4
2021 2020
—B--F it S %22
Before-tax Tax  Net-of-tax Before-tax Tax Net-of-tax
amount expenses amount amount benefit amount
BRBAT BE BBl BREEAT PR BRI
&8 353 &8 g Flaa g

RVMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB0O00  RMB'O00  RMB'000
ARETT ARBFRL ARBTR ARETIL ARETT ARETE

Exchange differences on BWENATERZ

translation of: BRZES:
— financial statements of ~ — B4MIIB AR Z
overseas subsidiaries BBW|E (1,287) - (1,287) 3,094 = 3,094
Cash flow hedge: BeRes:
net movement in HrREEeTE
hedging reserve 14,774 (2,217) 12,557 (5,680) 852 (4,828)

Other comprehensive income  E 2 & 13,487 (2,217) 11,270 (2,586) 852 (1,734)
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e EHRERME
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(= BIERS)  BEEAARKEST)

9 Other comprehensive income (Continued) 9 HZmEWKE®
(b) Components of other comprehensive income, (b) EHibZHEWFZ2AEKID > BREEH
including reclassification adjustments DERE
2021 2020
—E-—F —ETHF
RMB’000 RMB’'000

ARMFT ARETT

Cash flow hedges: HEmEH

Effective portion of the cash flow hedge  ZKEAfE A E At 2 E U&=

recognised in other comprehensive RAZIRERELH

income during the period ZBME S 112,434 89,403
Reclassification adjustments for amounts =B S 5EH)

transferred to profit or loss: EFOEAE

— finance costs (Note 5(a)) — BB A (K17t 5(a)) - 1,132

— foreign exchange loss (Note 4) — SNEEE (Hfat4) = 737

— cost of inventories (Note 5(c)) — FERA (MaE5() (97,660) (96,952)
Net deferred tax (charged)/credited to (F0BR),FTAE b 2 EURESH

other comprehensive income RIETRIB R EE (K771 28(b)(1))

(Note 28(b)(i) (2,217) 852

Net movement in the hedging reserve REAMEE RS ER
during the period recognised in ZERREIR R 2
other comprehensive income BE)FE 12,557 (4,828)
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e BRRME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(b= H1EHS)  BREUANREST)

10 Earnings per share 10 SREF

(a) Basic earnings per share (a)

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on
the profit attributable to ordinary equity shareholders
of the Company of RMB887,800,000 (2020:
RMB765,385,000) and the weighted average number
of 418,923,000 ordinary shares (2020: 418,008,000
ordinary shares) in issue during the year, calculated as

BREXEF

FRERZFNTIREARR R L BRE
7 % R A 6 A1 A R 5 887,800,000 7T
T -FF : AR¥765,385,000T)
FERBEHETEBRMEFSH
418,923,00008( — & — =T 4
418,008,000 I EBAR) FHEWT ¢

follows:
Weighted average number of ordinary shares EERNEFIGE
2021 2020
—E-— —EEF
‘000 ‘000
FR Fhir
Issued ordinary shares at 1 January R—HA—BME#EITETRER 418,068 418,000
Effect of share options exercised TEERENTE
(Note 29(c)(ii) (Bt &£ 29(c)ii)) 855 8
Weighted average number of ordinary W+ —-A=+—HH
shares at 31 December TRAR N E 418,923 418,008
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e EHRERME
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(= BIERS)  BEEAARKEST)

10 Earnings per share (Continued)

(b)

Diluted earnings per share

10 BEREN =)

(b)

The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based
on the profit attributable to ordinary equity
shareholders of the Company of RMB887,800,000
(2020: RMB765,385,000) and the weighted average
number of ordinary shares of 420,268,000 shares

(i)

(ii)

BREERF

BREERNIRBEART

EimaE

= IR R B A v 1) A R 5 887,800,000 7T
(=T 4 : AR¥765,385,0007T)

38 % N S 5 $0420,268,000 %

(ZZT—F4F : 419,115,000 %) st & a0

(2020: 419,115,000), calculated as follows: N
Profit attributable to ordinary equity (i) FATEZBERERRRELEF
shareholders of the Company (diluted) (#%)
2021 2020
—E-—F —ERCERF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT AEEFT
Profit attributable to ordinary equity 3@ A% #E 5 I 2R
shareholders (diluted) FEAE & ) (BEE) 887,800 765,385
Weighted average number of ordinary (ii) ZAERNEFGE (EE)
shares (diluted)
2021 2020
—EB--F T -FTHF
‘000 ‘000
TR T
Weighted average number of R+—A=+—H2
ordinary shares at 31 December TR NS & 418,923 418,008
Effect of deemed issue of BIERBARRZ
shares under the Company’s BT EIEE
share option scheme for BITRMD 2 &
nil consideration (Note 27) (Hiaz27) 1,345 1,107
Weighted average number of W+=ZA=+—82
ordinary shares (diluted) TIRATINE S 8
at 31 December (#5%) 420,268 419,115
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Investment property and property, plant
and equipment

(a)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Reconciliation of carrying amount

e BRRME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BB E5HL BB R
11 %ﬁ%%&ﬂﬁ%%~ﬁ%&%

() FREEZHE

Office
Buildings Motor equipment  Construction Investment
and plants Machinery Vehicles and others in progress Subtotal properties Total
WAERE
BEREE BE AE RE# ERIR et REME @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000
ANREFTL ARBFT  ARETL AREFT  ARETL AREFT  ARETR AEEFT
Cost: 2%
At 1 January 2020 WZE-%5-A-A 1,150,788 2,425,083 29322 187,979 203,533 3,996,705 82,061 4,078,766
Additions AE 4,079 281,434 2,057 12,504 176,990 477,064 S 477,064
Transfer from inventory HBRARE 3,062 - - - - 3,062 - 3,062
Transfer from construction HEpERIR
in progress 34,195 69,677 785 2,293 (106,950) = = =
Transfer from property, EEELER T
plant and equipment to RXEERENE
investment property (1,617) - - - - (1,617) 1,617 -
Transfer from right-of-use assets ~ BEAFMAELE - S S - - - 2,79 2,79
Disposal e = (6,658) (1,925) (507) = (9,090) = (9,090)
At 31 December 2020 i S 23
and 1 January 2021 +=A=+-Ak
—E-%-A-A 1,190,507 2,769,536 30,239 202,269 273,573 4,466,124 86,473 4,552,597
Additions "E 18,184 324,302 3,483 21,834 248,635 616,438 - 616,438
Transfer from inventory BEATE - - - - - - 127,512 127,512
Transfer from construction BRAEETR
in progress 154,504 141,295 0 2,189 (298,078) - - -
Transfer from investment HRERANER
property to other property, g BELEE
plant and equipment 29,564 - - - - 29,564 (29,564) -
Transfer to right-of-use assets BRAFAREE - - - - - - (6,268) (6,268)
Disposal bt (3,050) (14,447) (1,420) (4,542) = (23,459) 5 (23,459)
At 31 December 2021 i S 3
+-A=t+-A 1,389,709 3,220,686 32,392 221,750 224130 5,088,667 178,153 5,266,820
Accumulated depreciation: 2ithE:
At 1 January 2020 W-E-FF-f-AH (228,689) (1412,277) (20,004) (147,062) = (1,808,032) (10,367) (1,818,399
Transfer from property, ERan% - K5
plant and equipment to REEERENE
investment property 3n - - - - 3n (372) -
Transfer from right-of-use assets ~ HEBFREEE - - - - - - (633) (633)
Charge for the year FEXI (38,599) (344,151) (2,484 (8,566) - (393,800) (2,093) (395,893)
Written back on disposals HEBER - 4,406 1,742 435 - 6,583 - 6,583
At31 December 2020 i S 3
and 1 January 2021
(266,916) (1,752,022) (20,746) (155,193) S (2,194,877) (13,465) (2,208,342)
Transfer from investment BRERENEE
property to property, n% - BERE
plant and equipment (5,244) - - - - (5,244) 5,244 -
Transfer from right-of-use assets ~ HEAFERELE = - - - - - 1,982 1,982
Charge for the year FEXH (31,219) (326,255) (2,537) (11,154) - (371,165) (2,487) (373,652)
Written back on disposals HEREG 1,011 10,771 1,348 3,649 - 16,779 - 16,779
At 31 December 2021 i 3
Si=A=1+-H (302,368) (2,067,506) (21,935) (162,698) - (2,554,507) (8,726) (2,563,233)
Net book value: REFE:
At 31 December 2021 WZE=—-F
+=A=t+-A 1,087,341 1,153,180 10,457 59,052 224130 2,534,160 169,427 2,703,587
At 31 December 2020 i S 3
+ = H 923,591 1,017,514 9,493 47,076 273,573 2,211,241 73,008 2,344,255
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e EHRERME
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(= BIERS)  BEEAARKEST)

11 Investment property and property, plant
and equipment (Continued)

(a) Reconciliation of carrying amount (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

All properties owned by the Group are located
in the PRC.

Up to the date of this report, the Group is in the
process of applying for the title certificates of
certain properties with carrying value of
approximately RMB150,422,000 as at 31
December 2021 (2020: RMB74,673,000). The
directors of the Company are of the opinion that
the use of and the conduct of operating
activities at the properties referred to above are
not affected by the fact that the Group has not
yet obtained the relevant property title
certificates.

Certain plants with net book value of
RMB370,597,000 (2020: RMB577,227,000)
were pledged as securities for bank loans of the
Group as at 31 December 2021 (Note 24).

11 REYEREMYE  BERR
&)

RREEZ H iR (&)

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

REBHEAN Y EHLIRN T
o

HEARSAS AEELEEA
RZBE-_—F+-_A=+—HZ
SRMEELH A AR 150,422,000
(T T F: AR ¥
74,673,00070) 25 TERR
HIREREE - RAREERAE
FEALIMMERE EAMENRS
KRBT e R AR 5 E 1A AR ER
SHEEAVEEEZIEMZI
&,

R_E-_—F+_-_A=+—H"
IR M FE A AR 370,597,000
T(ZFE T F: AR ¥
577,227,000 7T) 2 & T EE K
FIEEAREBERBRITERZER
(MF5E24) ©
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11 Investment property and property, plant
and equipment (Continued)

(b)

Investment property

The Group leases out owned properties under
operating leases and treat these properties as
investment properties because the Group held these
properties in the long-term for capital appreciation or
rental income. The leases typically run for an initial
period of 1 to 5 years, with an option to renew the
lease after that date at which time all terms are
renegotiated. Lease payments are usually increased
every year to reflect market rentals. None of the leases
includes variable lease payments.

Undiscounted lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases in place at the reporting date will be
receivable by the Group in future periods as follows:

e BRRME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(b= H1EHS)  BREUANREST)

11 REYEREMYE - BERRK
1)

(b)

REMFE

AEERBEKEHELERERYE
VTHZEMERBRENE  RAR
AEBRERPERBERISHEHE W
AMBEZENE - WE—RONT R
HMESF - WHBERER  ERAT
By essiEn - HEMNTAR
SEFEM URRTIZHEEKFE -
FEEMEATRESEHEENK

AEEBRRRAFRENRE A
BTS2 AT R B AR 2 TH B WA R B
RHEENZOT

2021 2020

—E—— —E-FTF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TFT AE®FT

Within 1 year 1R 914 744

Investment properties of the Group were stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.
Fair value of these investment properties is
RMB205,400,000 as at 31 December 2021 (31
December 2020: RMB138,810,000). The valuations of
fair value were carried out by an independent firm of
surveyors, Jones Lang LaSalle Corporate Appraisal and
Advisory Limited, who have staff with recent
experience in the location and category of property
being valued.

REBWNREWE TN GEAMERR
FKIERARRTITE REBEEY -
REREDWER_T=_—F+=A
T+ HWAFEAEARE
205,400,000t ( ZE =T F + = A
—+—H: AR®138,810,0007T) °
AN EGETHRB ST 25
THEFHREAERARMT &
BEHNEEMEMEME KB E
B AR o
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e BRRME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(= BIERS)  BEEAARKEST)

12 Right-of-use assets 12 FHEEE
Land use Right-of-use
rights assets Total
T i A
fERRE EEE et
(Note (i) (Note (ii))
(K1 3) (Ha% i)
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFIT AREFIT AREFIT
Cost: RN :
At 1 January 2020 RZE-_FTF—H—H 416,891 24,258 441,149
Additions NE = 3,000 3,000
Transfer to investment property B EIGEYE (2,795) = (2,795)
Disposal k= = (15,094) (15,094)
At 31 December 2020 AZEZTF
and 1 January 2021 +-A=t+—8k
T —4%—H—H 414,096 12,164 426,260
Additions NE - 164 164
Transfer to investment property BRI A 6,268 — 6,268
Disposal HE - (663) (663)
At 31 December 2021 N-E-—%F
+-—A=+—H 420,364 11,665 432,029
Accumulated amortisation: Sty
At 1 January 2020 R -_FTF—H—H (78,773) (3,756) (82,529)
Charge for the year KFEESLH (8,292) (4,117) (12,409)
Transfer to investment property BRI E Y 633 - 633
Disposal HeE - 4,232 4,232
At 31 December 2020 RIE_ZTF
and 1 January 2021 +=-A=+—HBK
—E-_—F—H—H (86,432) (3,641) (90,073)
Charge for the year REELTH (7,798) (2,260) (10,058)
Transfer to investment property BB E Y (1,982) = (1,982)
Disposal HeE - 549 549
At 31 December 2021 W —%F
+=-—A=+—H (96,212) (5,352) (101,564)
Carrying amount: BREE
At 31 December 2021 A e
- — )5 =) 324,152 6,313 330,465
At 31 December 2020 R-IE-_FTF
= =-—1[g 327,664 8,523 336,187
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e BRRME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(b= H1EHS)  BREUANREST)

12 Right-of-use assets (Continued) 12 FRAEEE®
The analysis of the net book value of right-of-use assets by HIHBEERR DT EREEERTFED
class of underlying asset is as follows: T:
2021 2020
=B _T_THF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Hst AR®FRT ARETFT
Included in “Right-of-use assets”: FATERAEEE]:
Land use rights, carried at RITEKAFIERA
depreciated cost + b {sF FE#E (i) 324,152 327,664
Other properties leased for own use,  IRITER AR E1E
carried at depreciated cost BRAMEMYE (i) 6,313 8,523
330,465 336,187
Included in “Inventories and FATRFE
other contract costs”: Hith&HIKA ] -
Land use rights under developed EHBHFEMED
properties for sale T s R 27,843 28,273
Included in “Investment property”: STATIREYZE] -
Land use rights, carried at RITE AT AR
depreciated cost s R 14,638 19,900
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12 Right-of-use assets (Continued)

The analysis of expense items in relation to leases recognised

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e EHRERME
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(= BIERS)  BEEAARKEST)

12 FHAEEE®)

REBHEERZHERH 2AXIAR SN

in profit or loss is as follows: "IT :
2021 2020
—E-—F —EIERF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TFrT AREFT

Depreciation charge of right-of-use LIEEEERRE D
assets by class of underlying asset: @Eﬁﬁﬁééﬁ?%ﬁ%ﬁﬁi :

Land use rights o b R 7,798 8,292
Plants %= 2,260 4117
Interest on lease liabilities (Note 5(a)) HEBEMNB (K 5a) 397 654
Expense relating to short-term leases BB AHEEE X 846 459

During the year, additions to right-of-use assets were
RMB 164,000 (2020: RMB3,000,000). This amount primarily
related to the capitalised lease payments payable under new
tenancy agreements.

Details of total cash outflow for leases, the maturity analysis
of lease liabilities and the future cash outflows arising from
leases that are not yet commenced are set out in notes
21(d), 30(b) and 31, respectively.

The land use rights under right-of-use assets with carrying
value of RMB270,182,000 (31 December 2020:
RMB327,346,000) were pledged as securities for bank loans
of the Group as at 31 December 2021 (Note 24).

(i) Land use rights

As at 31 December 2021, the remaining period of the
land use rights ranges from 35 to 50 years (31
December 2020: 35 to 50 years).

(ii) Other leases

The Group has obtained the right to use other
properties as its plants and machinery through tenancy
agreements. The leases typically run for an initial
period of 2 to 10 years. Lease payments are usually
increased to reflect market rentals.

FA FRAEEERERBARY 164,000 7T
(ZZE_ZTF: AR¥3,0000007T)° %%
BT EZEFHERRE THENMENEE
NRBEE -

HERSRLAE HEaE2SHE LW
MEAMBOEENMEENAKRBESRED
B A EF 21(d) ~ 30(b) K231 °

W_ZE-—F+-A=+—H FEEBEAA
R #270,182,000c( = =& F + = A
=+—H : AR 327,346,000 7T) Hy{F FA#E
EEE T T RAECEREAAERRT
EREEI R (FsE24) -

(i) LTiefERAE

R-ZE-_—F+-_A=+—H " ti#
FRENFIBRHR N F35FE50F (=
EZ-2F+_HA=+—H:35F8F50
&)

(i) HHE=E

AEEEBEERRESER LMY
X(ERERE L) WiEN - HE
—RFRE2E10F - HERFA
BRI - ARBRTISHEEKF
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e ERERME
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(b= H1EHS)  BREUANREST)

13 Intangible assets 13 BREE
Patents
=R
RMB’000
ARETFT
Cost: R :
At 1 January 2020 N_ZE_FF—H—H =
Addition through contribution by BEFEEREREERNE
non-controlling interest 4,122
At 31 December 2020, 1 January 2021 and RZZEZTF+-_H=+—H
31 December 2021 B —F—-A—BRK
—E-—F+=ZA=+—H 4,122
Accumulated amortisation: i“l‘ﬁﬁ‘ﬁ e
At 1 January 2020 R-ZZEZ_TF—-H—H =
Charge for the year REEZH (343)
At 31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021 RZEZEF+=-—A=1+—H
r—_E-_—F—H—H (343)
Charge for the year AEE=E (369)
At 31 December 2021 RZZB-_—F+-A=+—H (712)
Net book value: BRENFEE :
At 31 December 2021 R-_EBE-_—F+-_A=+—H 3,410
At 31 December 2020 RZZB_TF+-_A=+—H 3,779

The amortisation charge for the year is included in

AEEE S T A SRR BERITTRRAX] -

“Administrative expenses” in the consolidated statement of

profit or loss.
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e EHRERME
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(= BIERS)  BEEAARKEST)

14

Investments in subsidiaries

The following list contains only the particulars of subsidiaries
which principally affected the results, assets or liabilities of
the Group. The class of shares held is ordinary unless

otherwise stated:

14 RBAT2RE
THEESREIDYEREEEE  BEXS

BEZMBRRIFE - A BREAEIN - ERFF
B 2B ER SR

Proportion of ownership interest

BEELD
Authorised/
Place of incorporation registered and Group's
and business/ fully paid-up effective  Held by the Held by a
Name of companies date of establishment capital interest Company subsidiary  Principal activities
ERBLIEER AR/ MR s3] AR ANELF
DRER EEEH/RIBH BREX BRRsE B8 BE IEEH
China Xingfa (BVI) Limited BVI United States 100% 100% - Investment holding
("Xingfa BVI") (i) 2 October 2007 Dollars ("USD")
2,000/USD2,000
China Xingfa (BVI) Limited KBRTES 2,000%7T RERR
(IXingfa BVIJ) (i) —ZT+FE+AZA (B34
2,00037T
Xingfa Aluminium (Hong Kong) Limited ~ Hong Kong HKD1,000/ 100% - 100%  Sales of aluminium
("Xingfa Hong Kong") (iii) 14 April 2008 HKD1,000 profiles
AERE (BB ERATA ) 1,000,/ HERAM
(r&smE]) (i) “2Z)\FNATHA 1,007
Guangdong Xingfa Holdings Limited PRC RMB50,000,000/ 100% = 100%  New materials
ERBEIRRABR AR ()i)i) 25 January 2021 Nil technology research
("Guangdong Xingfa Holding") and development
FER EBHEIRA R AR (i) i) i AE% MRS
(TBREZER]) ZZZ-F-F=+HAB  50,000,0007
3
Guangdong Xingfa Aluminium Co., Ltd ~ PRC RMB360,040,000/ 100% - 100%  Manufacturing and sales
EREEEEERAT (i) 26 May 2006 RMB360,040,000 of aluminium profiles
("Guangdong Xingfa")
EREHREBRDR (/i) i N EERHEREM
(TRRER)) ZETRFRAZTRE 360,040,000/
AR%
360,040,000 7T
Xingfa Aluminium (Chengdu) Co., Ltd. ~ PRC RMB130,000,000/ 100% - 100%  Manufacturing and sales
Egin % () AR ()i) 7 July 2009 RMB130,000,000 of aluminium profiles
("Xingfa Chengdu”)
B (RE) BRAR (i) i AR% EERHEREM
(rEsms)) “ETAELALH 130,000,0007%,/
AR

130,000,0007C
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e BRRME

14 Investments in subsidiaries (Continued)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(b= H1EHS)  BREUANREST)

Proportion of ownership interest

14 AMBARZIRE (#)

BERRELA
Authorised/
Place of incorporation registered and Group's
and business/ fully paid-up effective  Held by the Held by a
Name of companies date of establishment capital interest Company subsidiary  Principal activities
MBI ER EE/ R S 3] HARE  ANELH
DNEER BESH/HIAE BREX BRER B8 BE IEER
Guangdong Xingfa Aluminium PRC RMB100,000,000/ 100% = 100%  Manufacturing and sales
(Jiangxi) Co., Ltd. 14 August 2009 RMB100,000,000 of aluminium profiles
ERARIEE (IH) BB AR (i)
("Xingfa Jiangxi")
ERELRE (TH) BRAA (N e - EERHERAM
:ani)) ZZTRAENATEE 100,000,000,/
AR%
100,000,0007C
Guangdong Xingfa Aluminium PRC RMB100,000,000/ 100% - 100%  Manufacturing and sales
(Henan) Co., Ltd. 10 May 2010 RMB 100,000,000 of aluminium profiles
ER AR () BRAF (i)
("Xingfa Henan")
ER AR5 (7)) BR AR (i) e AR% EERHEREM
G “Z2-ZFRATH 100,000,000 75,/
=
100,000,000 7T
Foshan Xingfa Real Estate Co., Ltd. PRC RMB8,000,000/ 100% - 100%  Development, sales
BITEEEHEREERRF ()  5June 2013 RMB8,000,000 and management
("Xingfa Real Estate”) of properties
BUmREEHEREERAFA NN TE AR% NERE  HE
(I2sREwE]) kil 8,000,007, KkER
AR%
8,000,000 7T
Foshan Xingfa Trading Co., Ltd. PRC RMB10,000,000/ 100% - 100%  Trading of aluminium
BILTREHEERAF (i) 3 December 2014 RMB10,000,000 profiles
("Xingfa Trading”)
BUTREFEERAF (Vi) HE ARE EENES
(r2%ma)) “ET-mF+-A=R 10,000,0007C,
AR%
10,000,000 7T
Guangdong Xingfa Precision PRC RMB200,000,000/ 100% - 100%  Manufacturing and sales
Manufacturing Co., Ltd. 26 September 2017 RMB200,000,000 of precision products
ERBEERIEBRRR (i)
("Xingfa Precision”)
ER BT R AR (i) e ARE HERHERTER
(BzRR)) ZZ—+FNAZTRE 200,000,000/
N

200,000,0007T
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(= BIERS)  BEEAARKEST)

14 Investments in subsidiaries (Continued) 14 KRB ARIZIRE (&)
Proportion of ownership interest
BEELS
Authorised/
Place of incorporation registered and Group's
and business/ fully paid-up effective  Held by the Held by a
Name of companies date of establishment capital interest Company subsidiary  Principal activities
ERMBLEER EE/ MR s 3] HARE  ANELH
DAER BESH/ IR BREX BREs <2 BE IEER
Guangdong Xingfa Aoke Architecture PRC RMB20,000,000/ 51% - 51%  Manufacturing and
Technology Co., Ltd. 20 July 2018 RMB19,622,070 sales of architecture
B M BRIRER B R AT (i) products
("Xingfa Aoke")
EXBEAMBERBARDA ) FE ARE HERHEREER
) ZB-\EtA=TH 20,000,007t/
AR%
19,622,070 T
(i)  These entities are all PRC limited liability companies. () %EEELHATPHERAT - ZERQ
The English translation of the company names are for BIEBZEYHEEHRZE - ZE N
reference only. The official names of these companies FIZIER BB AT HE -
are in Chinese.
(i) The subsidiary was established in 2021 and is a wholly iy ZMBARNR-ZT=——FKL BN
foreign owned enterprise. EEENNE -

(iiy  The subsidiaries are companies with limited liabilities. (iy ZEMBRARABREMRT -
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Interest in an associate

Details of the Group's interest in the associate, which is
accounted for using the equity method in the consolidated
financial statements, are as follows:

e BRRME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(b= H1EHS)  BREUANREST)

15 REE QR 2ER

AEEREE QR MRS (REEMHRE
ERREEEAR)FIBOT

Proportion of
ownership interest
REELD
Form of Place of Particulars Group's
business incorporation of issued and effective Held by  Principal
Name of associate structure and business paid-up capital interest  asubsidiary activities
EETR TEE  HWEAR
BENTEH EBRBKY  EMRUREBBE BREFHE ERER BE TEEHR
Jiangxi Province Jingxing Aluminium Panel  Limited liability ~ People’s Republic Registered capital of - - Manufacturing and
Manufacturing Co., Ltd. company of China RMBS5,000,000 sales of aluminium
IS REREREERRAR () panels
("Jiangxi Jingxing")
IRE S EERIREEER AR )i) BRAF hEARLTE HMER EEREERR
(NIARE]) AR¥5,000,0007C
Guangdong Xingfa Environment Limited liability ~ People’s Republic Registered capital of 40% 40%  Manufacturing and
Technology Co., Ltd. company of China RMB30,000,000 sales of environment
ERALREREAER AT (i) protection products
("Xingfa Environment”)
ERBERIERBARA A (N BRAA REARLRE HMER EERFERR
s AR30,000,0007C
(i)  The English translation of the company name is for i) RNAEBIEXWEREHZ2E %A
reference only. The official name of the company is in RIZ FREMAF XA -
Chinese.
(i)  On 4 February 2021, Xingfa Jiangxi and Guangzhou (ii) “E--F_A@A - BERHANA

Jingxing Construction Technology Company Limited
(“Guangzhou Jingxing”) entered into an equity
transfer agreement (the “Equity Transfer”), pursuant
to which Xingfa Jiangxi agreed to transfer its entire
equity interest in Jiangxi Province Jingxing Aluminium
Panel Manufacturing Co., Ltd. (“Jiangxi Jingxing”)
(representing 80% equity interest in Jiangxi Jingxing)
to Guangzhou Jingxing. The consideration of the
Equity Transfer was RMB10,000,000. The Equity
Transfer was completed on 12 March 2021.
Immediately upon completion of the Equity Transfer,
the Group ceased to hold any interest in Jiangxi
Jingxing and Jiangxi Jingxing ceased to be an associate
of the Group.

The Group recognised a gain of RMB3,460,000 in
respect of the disposal of its entire equity interest in
Jiangxi Jingxing.

S
BMNsBR2ERBEERAR(EMNER
B | )R] R i e ([ AR sERE ) -
Bt BRSEFEBEENIAE S
R EREEARAR(IASE])
B2 SRR (5T 70 2 B180% ik ) 82
ETEMNSEH - BREEZENREAA
R #10,000,0007T ° FEAEEZEE K =
E-—F=A+-HxKk  ZRERE
HETRE  AEETEBEIAR
ER IR MIASETBAK
EENBLE AT -

AEBREEEN TS B2
HERER UL 25 A R 3,460,000 7T ©
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(= BIERS)  BEEAARKEST)

15 Interest in an associate (Continued)

(iii)

On 6 September 2021, Guangdong Xingfa, Jiangsu
Yongbao Environmental Technology Co., Ltd.
("Yongbao Environmental”) and Guangdong Xingfa
Environment Technology Co., Ltd. (“Xingfa
Environmental”), a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Group, entered into a capital injection agreement (the
“Capital Injection”), pursuant to which Yongbao
Environmental injected capital of RMB18,000,000 to
Xingfa Environmental for the subscription of 60% of
the equity interest in Xingfa Environmental as an
additional registered capital. Upon completion of the
Capital Injection, the equity interest held by the Group
in Xingfa Environmental decreased from 100% to
40%. Xingfa Environmental ceased to be a subsidiary
of the Group and became an associate of the Group
as the Group was regarded as having significant
influence over Xingfa Environmental, and is accounted
for in the consolidated financial statements using
equity-accounting method since the date of
completion. The Group recognised a gain of
RMB3,664,000 in respect of losing the control over
Xingfa Environmental.

Xingfa Environmental is an unlisted corporate entity
whose quoted market price is not available. The fair
value of the interest retained in Xingfa Environmental
at the date when control was lost was RMB9,556,000,
and was recognised as the cost on initial recognition
of interest in the associate. For the year ended 31
December 2021, the amount of the Group’s share of
loss from this associate is RMB581,000 and no
dividend was declared to the Group.

(iii)

15 REENT 2R B)

R-ZE-—FAAH EREZ.
TEROKERAEBHEER AR ([ KER
RNEREFRL2ENBE LR EREE
BRERMEARAR([EEBIRE AT
EEBE(DEED - B KEERR
[ E IR )T B8 AR 18,000,0007T -
LA SR B BB IR 5 IR ) 60% 1E R BB AN
EMER NIEETKE  NEEFT
BHAEREZRENRERI00%BIE
40% - MEBERIBTIBAAREBENNE
AE - ARAEEWR A EHBEIRE
BEEEAFE HBRRBRERALTEE
MBS WASTKZ BRERAE
HAFEEREEMBRERPIIER - K
EER A EHHEBEIRBOITHERER
U 55 A R ¥ 3,664,000 7T °

EBIRIEAELITRARERE  WET
BHE - RREZHIEZ B RERN
ERRROEZNAFTEAARE
9,556,000 7T + i £ #) 44 T FRH & A &)
R ERABKEN BEZT - —F
+-ZA=+—HLFE  KEBEEWN
ZHMERATNBESEAARE
581,0007T * MALB W &S KA E °
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e ERERME
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(b= H1EHS)  BREUANREST)

Equity securities designated at FVOCI 16 EEZEAFEFAEMEERKE
ZRAEF" S

2021 2020

—EC--F —T-FH
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMTFT ARKTFT
Investments in unlisted equity securities FEFTRAFEERE 11,183 -
On 3 December 2021, the Group acquired approximately MR-ZZTEZ—F+HA=0  xEEKER
3.33% equity interest in Guangdong Guangxin Innovation Guangdong Guangxin Innovation Research
Research Institute Co., Ltd (“Guangxin Institute”), a Institute Co., Ltd ([ Guangxin Institute] * 7
company incorporated in PRC and mainly engaged in FREEMAZMAR  EXEXERARE
research and experimental development. The Group BRfHE) B43.33% R - AEBIEEER
designated its investment in Guangxin Institute at FVOCI Guangxin Institute (3% & BIE A FEFTAH
(non-recycling), as the investment is held for strategic toEmE (T geE)  RERZRENA
purposes. No dividends were received on this investment KEEB MR - AFEE WM ZIREWRK

during the year (31 December 2020: nil).

Derivative financial instruments

B(ZE-FE+-A=+—80:\)o

17 fTE€@mITHE

2021 2020
—E-—F —EFF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®FT ARETIT
Derivative financial assets ESMIA
— held as cash flow hedging instruments ~ — & {ER & REHT T A
(Note 30(e)&(f)) (H1a 30(e)8(F)) 15,289 14,471
2021 2020
—E-—F —ETEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT AEETTT
Derivative financial liabilities mEEMIA
— Forward exchange contract (Note 30(f) — R ERINE S 49 (F15E 30(f)) (5,908) =
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18

Inventories and other contract costs

18 FEREMEHME

2021 2020
—E-—F —ERCERF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT AREFT
Inventories FE
Aluminium profiles manufacturing ta A BliE
— Raw materials — R 473,738 383,304
— Work in progress — EE5 146,574 132,942
— Finished goods — BIpk 728,692 485,981
1,349,004 1,002,227
Completed properties for sale BRTHEME
— Land use rights — i AR 27,843 28,273
— Deed tax — 2 2,796 2,839
— Construction costs — EER A 102,160 219,168
132,799 250,280
1,481,803 1,252,507

The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as an
expense and included in profit or loss is as follows:

HRAEAIRHABGZFESEITH
T

2021 2020

—E-—F —ERCERF

RMB’'000 RMB’000

AR¥FT ARBFT

Carrying amount of inventories sold BEETFERTE 13,621,056 10,257,443

All of the inventories are expected to be recovered within
one year, except for completed properties for sale which is
expected to be recovered after more than one year.

FBEFERHAIR—FRKE - EBHR—
FUAR AW EZ ERTREMERRIN
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19 Trade and other receivables

e BRRME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(b= H1EHS)  BREUANREST)

19 XEKEMEWRKIE

2021 2020
—E-—F —ECERF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
it AR¥T T ARMFIT

Trade debtors and bills receivable, 2 5 EN R TE & FE N ZE 5
net of loss allowance (¥BrEsE RS (i) 4,526,155 3,411,421
Other debtors, net of loss allowance  E fth & U X I8 (FO 5 5B B 45 ) (i) 141,414 106,927

Financial assets measured at HEHEKATEZ

amortised cost SREE 4,667,569 3,518,348
Dividend receivable eI AR B = 27,655
4,667,569 3,546,003

(ii)

(iii)

Bills receivable of RMB968,015,000 was pledged as
securities for issuance of bills payable of the Group as
at 31 December 2021 (31 December 2020:
RMB671,890,000) (Note 22).

As at 31 December 2021, loss allowance on other
debtors is RMB2,262,000 (31 December 2020:
RMB2,482,000).

The Group’s trade and other receivables as at 31
December 2021 included amounts due from related
parties of RMB53,254,000 (31 December 2020:
RMB48,005,000) (Note 33(b)(i)). The amount of trade
and other receivables that is expected to be recovered
after more than one year is RMB11,702,000 (2020:
RMB10,165,000), which relates to retention money of
construction contracts. All of the other current trade
and other receivables are expected to be recovered or
recognised as expense within one year.

(ii)

(iii)

R-ZZT-—F+=-A=+—H EK
=9 AR 968,015,000 o B K {EA
AEBFETENERHERR(ZZ =
EF+ A=+ —H: AR®
671,890,000 7T ) (KI5E22)

R-T-_—F+=-A=+—H Hitb
FBWFRBEB2EERBEAAR
2,262,000t — 2 T F + = A
=+—H: AR#2,482,0007T) °

AEEBR-_ZE-_—F+=-A=+—H
732 5 K B b JE U RROE B FE FE Uk B 2
FRIEARKES3,254,000 L (—F =%
F+ A=+ —H8B: ARK
48,005,000 7T) (Fi5E33(b)(0) - X5 K
H b fEGRIBTE R — F AR I A
R#11,702,000 0 (ZZE=FF : AR
#510,165,0007T) @+ HEFEELELHZIR
BeHB - MTAEHEMENBARS REAM
JEBGRIAETESR —F A E R E
S o
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e BRRME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B FEBAS) - BEEAA REZT)
19 Trade and other receivables (Continued) 19 RERHEAMBWRKIE )
Ageing analysis MR 24T
As of the end of the reporting period, the aging analysis of REREHR - BB E QBT EW R EER
trade debtors and bills receivables (which are included in B X GEWTERERER (AT AR
trade and other receivables) based on the invoice date and SREMPEIEIE) ZREITINT ¢
net of loss allowance, is as follows:
2021 2020
—B—F —T_FF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT ARETFIT
Within 1 month —fEA A 2,099,689 1,671,973
1 to 3 months —z==1aA 1,187,352 839,427
3 to 6 months =E=XEA 790,216 676,307
Over 6 months a8 7N 1E A 448,898 223,214
4,526,155 3,411,421
Trade debtors and bills receivable are due within 30 days to TEEKNFBELEKREENFEZEHE%30
120 days from the date of billing. Further details on the HE120BREH - FARKEEFEBER
Group's credit policy and credit risk arising from trade T HEWFEREREEELANEEREN
debtors and bills receivable are set out in Note 30(a). R IBE M EE30() ©
20 Pledged deposits 20 2HEFFEXR
As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, pledged deposits RZEBE-_—FR_TE_FEF+_A=1+—
represented bank deposits pledged to bank as securities for B BREEFEZIECERTERITERENE
bills payable (Notes 22). B2 R BITER(HFE22) ©
21 Cash and cash equivalents and other 21 RERBAESEEYREMRER

cash flow information

(@) Cash and cash equivalents comprise:

() RERRSEB/YWEE:

2021 2020
—E-—F —Z-F
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARYT T ARBF T
Cash at bank and on hand RITRFHERE 1,643,133 509,639
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21 Cash and cash equivalents and other 21
cash flow information (Continued) -1 )
(b) Reconciliation of profit before taxation to cash (b)

generated from operations:

e BRRME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(b= H1EHS)  BREUANREST)

BERRESEYRAMRER

BB ADEFEXBEAERE 2 HR

2021 2020
—B--F —T-EFHF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Kta AR®TFT AREFT
Profit before taxation B F5 AT 4 ) 1,055,201 873,412
Adjustments for: BB S IEFE
Depreciation e 5(c) 383,710 408,302
Amortisation B 5(c) 369 343
Impairment loss on trade and R 5 R E b EWFKRIA
other receivables RIEEE 5(c) 79,455 53,058
Equity-settled share-based VAR A 45 LA R 1)
payment expenses RERE R 5(b) 627 1,794
Finance costs B TSR AR 5@) 101,063 101,592
Interest income FLE A 4 (78,083) (53,899)
Changes in fair value of U ) 7 S
commodity future contracts HEaH2
as hedge ineffectiveness NEEEZH 4 (4,589) (26,067)
(Loss)/gain on disposal of property, — HEWZE - ME K& HE
plant and equipment URERAEEEY
and right-of-use assets (E518), e 4 3,979 (740)
Share of loss/(profit) of FE{GE — B2 A )
an associate &8, CaF) 15 581 (8,339)
Gain on disposal of an associate HE—BBE AR W 15 (3.460) -
Gain on loss of control on ERH—FHNE AT
a subsidiary 2 PRSI Was 15 (3.664) =
(Realised)/unrealised profit g B — R EE A F]
from transactions with THH(BEEIR),
an associate REIR R 15 (221) 11
Changes in fair value of forward ~ REASNE %A FEE S
exchange agreements 4 5,908 -
Net foreign exchange loss YINGE 518 F 5 2,474 3,433
Changes in working capital: BEES 2 EE)
Changes in inventories and T8 RHEAME LKA
other contract costs EHE (356,808) (121,194)
Changes in trade and R 5 K E At e RIE
other receivables 23 (1,223,996) (676,127)
Changes in prepayment TR RIA# E) (249) (20,190)
Changes in trade and R 5 RkEAMERFRIE
other payables e 1,460,768 554,870
Changes in contract liabilities ERAEZED 30,604 33,643
Changes in deferred income IRIEUT A 2 11,175 (14,606)
Cash generated from operations ¥#EELECRE 1,464,844 1,109,296
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e EHRERME
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(= BIERS)  BEEAARKEST)

(o)

21 Cash and cash equivalents and other 21 RERBASEEYREMRER
cash flow information (continued) =410 )
Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing ()0 BMETBHEEMNEBZHER
activities
Cross
currency
interest
rate swaps
held to
hedge
Loans and Interest Lease borrowings
borrowings payable liabilities (liabilities) Total
FRXXEY
FIREHU
HHEE
EXREEE ERFE HEERE (Bf) @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFr AREFT AREFT ARKFT AREFT
(Note 24) (Note 22) (Note 25) (Note 30(f)(i))
(Hizt24) (Biz22) (Frzt25)  (HfzF30(00)
At 1 January 2020 RZZ2=-FTF—A—H 1,698,412 2,209 20,828 698 1,722,147
Changes from financing MEREREZED .
cash flows:
Proceeds of new bank loans RITERZFERE 1,958,924 - - - 1,958,924
Repayments of bank loans BBETER (2,527,740) = = = (2,527,740)
Capital element of lease EREERE 2 A& HH
rentals paid - - (4,041) - (4,041)
Interest element of lease EREERE ZFEHS
rentals paid - - (654) - (654)
Finance costs paid B BB A = (101,351) = = (101,351)
Total changes from financing BEREREYZ
cash flows 29eE (568,816) (101,351) (4,695) - (674,862)
Exchange adjustments EXAE 696 - - - 696
Changes in fair value AVLEZY = = = (698) (698)
Other changes: Hit2g
Increase in lease liabilities from  AEEIUHEEESE
entering into new leases ZHEERBEM
during this year - - 3,000 - 3,000
Decrease in lease liabilities from ~ AFERERILAEESE
early termination of leases ZHEBERHD
during this year - - (10,896) - (10,896)
Interest expenses (Note 5(a)) FIBRY (M3t 5(a) - 100,938 654 = 101,592
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e ERERME
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(b= H1EHS)  BREUANREST)

21 Cash and cash equivalents and other 21 RERBAESEEYREAMRER
cash flow information (continued) EE8 )
Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing () BETHELNEEZYERE)
activities (Continued)
Cross
currency
interest
rate swaps
held to
hedge
Loans and Interest Lease borrowings
borrowings payable liabilities (liabilities) Total
FRIXEY
FEEHH
HHEE
EXREE ENFE HEEE (Bf8) @5t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT
(Note 24) (Note 22) (Note 25 (Note 30(f)(i)
(Biit24) (Hiz222) (Fizt25)  (HfaF30000)
At 31 December 2020 and R-E-ZF
1 January 2021 +-A=+—-HkK
—T--%-f—-H 1,130,292 1,796 8,891 - 1,140,979
Changes from financing BEREREZEE .
cash flows:
Proceeds of new bank loans HRTERZ B TUE 3,267,714 - - - 3,267,714
Repayments of bank loans BEERTER (2,646,647) = = = (2,646,647)
Capital element of lease EREERE 2RSS
rentals paid - - (1,603) - (1,603)
Interest element of lease ERNEERE 2 FEHS
rentals paid - - (397) - (397)
Finance costs paid BB BRA - (92,742) = = (92,742)
Total changes from financing ~ REREREZEFBE
cash flows 621,067 (92,742) (2,000) - 526,325
Exchange adjustments ERzAR - - - - -
Changes in fair value ALELE = S = S S
Other changes: Hit2g
Increase in lease liabilities from  AEEFTUHAEEL 2
entering into new leases HEABEM
during this year - - 164 - 164
Interest expenses (Note 5(a)) FBEX (HfaE50a) - 100,666 397 - 101,063
At 31 December 2021 R-E-—&
+-A=+—-H 1,751,359 9,720 7,452 - 1,768,531
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e EHRERME
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(= BIERS)  BEEAARKEST)

21 Cash and cash equivalents and other 21 RERBASEEYREMRER
cash flow information (Continued) EER )
(d) Total cash outflow for leases (d) HEBRLSHKRHHAZE
Amounts included in the cash flow statement for MEEF AR ERERNESBBEIEI
leases comprise the following: T
2021 2020
—E-—F —EIERF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFT AR®TT

Within operating cash flows BREERERE 846 459
Within financing cash flows BREEReRE 2,000 4,695
2,846 5,154

These amounts relate to the following: ZESEEATRIERM :
2021 2020
—EBZ—fF e Sl a3
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMFT ARETT

Lease rentals paid BEEE 2,846 5,154
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e BRRME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(b= H1EHS)  BREUANREST)

22 Trade and other payables 22 RERHEMESTRIE
2021 2020
—E-—F —ECERF
RMB"000 RMB000

ARETFT ARETT

Trade payables RS ENRIE 1,723,242 951,766
Bills payable ANES 2,269,526 1,616,647
Accrued payroll and benefits FEEt L& RIEF] 258,855 265,037
Other payables and accruals HAib R ZIE R ESHE A 447,329 470,096
Interest payable (Note 21(c)) FERTFILE. (FtaE21(c) 9,720 1,796
Deferred income (Note 26) WA (B 7% 26) 16,552 16,280

4,725,224 3,321,622

Apart from those mentioned in Note 23, all of the trade and BRI sE23 BTt &SN - TR 5 M E b et
other payables (including amounts due to related parties) A (BIEEMNBEM T RE) BHER —FER
are expected to be settled or recognised as income within B ER AR AKX EERKEE -

one year or are repayable on demand.
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e EHRERME
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(= BIERS)  BEEAARKEST)

22 Trade and other payables (continued)

Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost
(including amounts due to related parties) (Continued)

As of the end of the reporting period, the aging analysis of
trade payables and bills payable (which are included in trade
and other payables), based on the invoice date, is as follows:

22

REREMENSNTRIEE)

REBGERATEZTRA R (BERNRAE
FFIR) (&)

RBEHR - REFAHHE 2 X FRNAK
BN ENRE (BT AR S K E AR
) ZREDITIT

2021 2020
—EBZ-fF —ETEF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMFT ARETT

Within 1 month —EAR

1 to 3 months —=={@A4
3 to 6 months =EXEA
Over 6 months B~ E A

As at 31 December 2021, bills payable of RMB394,448,000
was secured by bills receivables of the Group (31 December
2020: RMB267,847,000) (Note 19), bills payable of
RMB1,459,989,000 was secured by pledged deposits of the
Group (31 December 2020: RMB1,084,500,000).

1,566,333 706,016
709,742 594,588
609,776 747,522

1,106,917 520,287

3,992,768 2,568,413

MN-ZT-——F+-A=+—08 ENEEA
R 394,448,000 0( = —ZFF + = A
—+—H: AR¥267,847,0007T) (M 5
19) HAEE BIRNERERIE - BNEE
AR #1,459,989,000 T (ZZE-_ZTF+_ A
=+—H: AE®¥1,084,500,0007T) AL
B2 BB F R o
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e BRRME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(b= H1EHS)  BREUANREST)

23 Contract liabilities

23 SHEE

2021 2020
—E-—F —ECERF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FRT ARETTT
Aluminium profiles contracts AR A4
— Billings in advance of performance — BHTERRIA 228,274 194,408
Completed properties for sale BERTHEME
— Forward sales deposits and — BYRBHEE RS
instalments received Ko HARR = 3,262
228,274 197,670

Typical payment terms which impact on the amount of

fERsRaAT

HERRAWABSEBRTEN KA

contract liabilities recognised are as follows:

Aluminium profiles contracts

When the Group receives a deposit before the
production activity commences this will give rise to
contract liabilities at the start of a contract, until the
revenue recognised on the contracts exceeds the
amount of the deposit. The amount of the deposit, if
any, was negotiated on a case by case basis with
customers.

Completed properties for sale

The Group receives 50%-100% of the contract value
as a deposit from customers when they sign the sales
and purchase agreement. The deposit is recognised as
a contract liability until the properties are legally
assigned to the customer. The rest of the
consideration is typically paid when legal assignment is
completed.

SREH B A

HAREREETDFHEIKERE
BREHRERELEANEE BEE
HENERNUABHIZE BB -
ReBE(WE) HREARBRERAR
F#E °

ERTHEME

AEBREFEZEEEHERBREE
ZBEM50% E 100% EBIRE - %
REeMRAANAGE HEMESE
HETEE  HHRREBRERETHE
EIEAE T AL -
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(= BIERS)  BEEAARKEST)

23 Contract liabilities (continued) 23 ENEE#w)
Movements in contract liabilities EHEEET
2021 2020
—B-—F —EETF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT ARBTFIT
Balance at 1 January R—A—Bz&% 197,670 164,027
Decrease in contract liabilities as a result of ~ E#EZFE AU ER
recognising revenue during the year that GtAFTELHEaE)
was included in the contract liabilities mMEAZEHEE
at the beginning of the year B (197,670) (164,027)
Increase in contract liabilities as a E & E S TE RIE M
result of billing in advance of BERHESRMAEEM
manufacturing activities 228,274 194,408
Increase in contract liabilities as a result of  FhIF R E R 2
receiving forward sales instalments MEWEE B E
during the year in respect of properties DENRMERE L
not delivered as at the year end B EIE - 3,262
Balance at 31 December R+—A=+—RHz&& 228,274 197,670
All of the contract liabilities are expected to be recognised FIEERNaBEREMN —FRERRKA

as income within one year.
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24 Loans and borrowings

e BRRME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(b= H1EHS)  BREUANREST)

24 ERREE

(@) The analysis of the repayment schedule of loans and

borrowings is as follows:

(@) ERREEZEFREERITMT

2021 2020

—E-—F —ZETF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®FT ARBTFIT

Within one year or on demand —E R 492,617 811,424
After 1 year but within 2 years —FRERFNRN 742,610 171,250
After 2 years but within 5 years MEBRBRFNR 407,250 72,460
After 5 years EaRGEEE S 108,882 75,158
1,258,742 318,868

1,751,359 1,130,292

(b) Assets pledged as security and covenants for

loans and borrowings

At 31 December 2021, the loans and borrowings were

(b) EBEMERERREEERRZEN

&E

RZFZ_—F+ZA=+—H EX

secured and guaranteed as follows: REEHEMREROT -
2021 2020
—E—— —E-FTF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT AEEF T

Secured and guaranteed bank loans BERBMEREBTERMER

and borrowings 1,751,359 1,080,292
Unsecured bank loans and borrowings 3K IRIEITE N RIEE - 50,000
1,751,359 1,130,292
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e BRRME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(= BIERS)  BEEAARKEST)

24 Loans and borrowings (Continued) 24 EFRKREE®)

(b) Assets pledged as security and covenants for (b)
loans and borrowings (Continued)

At 31 December 2021, the secured bank loans were
secured by the following assets of the Group.

EEFERERREERRREZ®EN
BE(E)

RZE-_—F+-_A=+—H" B
HIRITERBAEB U T EEELK
#D

2021 2020
—EBZ-fF —ETEF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMFT ARETT

Carrying value of assets: BEREE

Other property, plant and equipment Hi% - BRE REH
(Note 11) (Btaz11)

Right-of-use assets (Note 12) CREEE (Kit12)

Total HRET

As at 31 December 2021, banking facilities of the
Group totaling RMB9,023,000,000 (31 December
2020: RMB9,377,000,000) were utilised to the extent
of RMB5,185,000,000 (31 December 2020:
RMB2,770,000,000).

As at 31 December 2021, certain bank loans of the
Group, amounted to RMB531,000,000 (31 December
2020: RMB218,000,000), are subject to the fulfilment
of covenants relating to certain of the subsidiaries’
balance sheet ratios, which are commonly found in
lending arrangements with financial institutions. If the
Group were to breach the covenants, the drawn down
loans would become repayable on demand. The
Group regularly monitors its compliance with these
covenants. Further details of the Group’s management
of liquidity risk are set out in Note 30(b). As at 31
December 2021, none of the covenants relating to
drawn down loans had been breached (2020: Nil).

370,597 577,227
270,182 327,346
640,779 904,573

RZZB-—F+=-A=+—0  BWK
£ B A H AR#9,023,000,0007T (=
E-_TE+-_A=+—H8: ARK
9,377,000,0007t) Z $RITIEEH © A
R #5,185,000,000c( = T = T 4
+ = A=Z+ —HB: AR
2,770,000,000 7C) &£ 2 EH A

R-E-_—F+-_A=+—0 K&
ExTFHRITER AR 531,000,000 7T
(ZE-EF+-_A=1+—H8: AR¥
218,000,000t ) BfFEX B BB A
AETEEABRUEERZZN(ERR
MO BB 2 BEREHE) &5 Al {E
B WAEEERZERY  BIRM
ZERAEREREEE AEBETH
ERHERRETHERY - BAE
B REcREK s EEE— T
BERKIFE300) c RZE=Z—F+=
A=+—H TEERIMNAEBEEIE
BRERCRY(ZZE_FF : §|) -
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e ERERME
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(b= H1EHS)  BREUANREST)

25 Lease liabilities 25 HEAE

At 31 December 2021, the lease liabilities were repayable as RZE-_—F+-_A=+—HBH HEEERE

follows: RTRYIREEIER -
2021 2020
—E-—F —ZETF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBETFIT AREFIT
Within 1 year or on demand — &R 2,005 2,368
After 1 year but within 2 years —FREMRFNR 2,903 3,167
After 2 years but within 5 years MERBRFR 2,544 2,508
After 5 years hF& - 848
5,447 6,523
7,452 8,891
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(= BIERS)  BEEAARKEST)

26 Deferred income 26 ELEWA
The movements in deferred income as stated under current IR MRIERBEBEE N CRLEWRA &
and non-current liabilities are as follows: R
2021 2020
—E-—F —ETHF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR®TFT ARETFT
At 1 January w—HA—H 30,943 45,549
Received during the year RENEIF 27,595 11,668
Recognised in profit or loss (Note 4) REZNER (Kt 4) (16,420) (26,274)
At 31 December R+—A=+—H 42,118 30,943
Less: current portion included in trade R BIAR S R E At FE T IR
and other payables (Note 22) ZmENERD (Bt et 22) (16,552) (16,280)
25,566 14,663
Deferred income represents government grants obtained for B ANIES A R B 2 BN A & B
the purposes of subsidising the Group’s operation costs and INER B B & FE A B T EE A 2 AN T BUS
sponsoring the costs of acquisition of fixed assets incurred HITHBIE o ARG 2 SR BY & #1200 ER
by the Group. Government grants received are initially G AR R AR BEEWA -
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position as deferred income.
Government grants received to subsidise the operation costs L4 AL 48 & B AR T BRAS 2 BURT 46 Bh 2 i AB
are amortised through profit or loss on a systematic basis in KA AESE 2 AR BARR R G AR R
the same periods in which the related costs of operation are Bm o
incurred.
Government grants received for sponsoring costs of LU (B 7E & EE PR A A 2 & B AN I BUS
acquisition of fixed assets are recognised in profit or loss R REEFRAFHNERA®ER

over the useful life of the assets.
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27 Equity settled share-based transactions

The Company has granted share options pursuant to a share
option scheme on 15 October 2018. Pursuant to the share
option scheme, the directors of the Company are
authorised, at their discretion, to grant share options to
employees of the Group, including directors of any
Company in the Group, to subscribe for shares of the
Company and other eligible participants. The options
granted will vest after two years to four years from the date
of grant and are then exercisable on or before 14 October
2023. Each option gives the holder the right to subscribe for
one ordinary share in the Company and is settled gross in
shares.

(a) Details of the options granted on 15 October
2018 are as follows:

e BRRME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(b= H1EHS)  BREUANREST)

27 URESEEUROD/ERNRS

ARBR=—F—\F+A+REARE—AE
Bt IR B RE AR - RIBBAUESTE) - K
NEEFERERBRARERE (BENX
SEEAXEAREZTREMBAEER2EE
BRHBREARBARRRD - BRBARE
BERHAMERMENFERNREBERERN -
T+ ATEBEKZAA TITE - &0
BREE THAAEMNRBEARR] —RER
B RIAR D AR BRAE R -

(@) R=B-NF+ATHEEREZER
REFHEWT :

Number of Contractual life
underlying shares Vesting conditions of options
HERG BB BB BRESHFH
Options granted to directors:
RIAT B FES 2 BAGE
—on 15 October 2018 204,334 2 years from the date of grant 5 years
— —_ZE-N\F+HA+AHA B &% B EE R hF
—on 15 October 2018 204,333 3 years from the date of grant 5 years
——Z-N\F+A+HAH BERLAHE=F RF
—on 15 October 2018 204,333 4 years from the date of grant 5 years
——T-N\F+HA+AH Sk el SEEE Utk hF
Options granted to employees:
AT BB T8 B 2 IEAHE
—on 15 October 2018 1,189,000 2 years from the date of grant 5 years
— ZZE-N\Ft+ATHH B L B ER R E 1
—on 15 October 2018 1,189,000 3 years from the date of grant 5 years
——ZT-N\F+HA+AH B AR =F hEF
—on 15 October 2018 1,189,000 4 years from the date of grant 5 years
— - \F+A+aH Skehpspilt Jusfes HF
Total share options granted 4,180,000

ERHBREA
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(= BIERS)  BEEAARKEST)

27 Equity settled share-based transactions
(Continued)

(a)

Details of the options granted on 15 October
2018 are as follows: (Continued)

The exercise of the options granted on 15 October
2018 is conditional upon (i) the fulfilment of certain
requirements on the Company as set out in the
respective offer letters, including, among others,
Guangdong Xingfa and its subsidiaries having
achieved the financial performance target, the auditor
expressing no disclaimer or adverse opinion in the
annual financial report of the Group, there being no
relevant institutions, supervisory boards or audit
departments for state-owned assets investors raising
major objections to the annual financial report of the
Group and there being no significant breaches by the
Company or punishment of the Company by relevant
government authorities; and (ii) the fulfilment of
certain requirements on the grantee as set out in the
respective offer letters, including, among others, there
being no serious dereliction of duty by the grantee,
there being no breach of any rules or regulations or
constitution of the Company by the grantee, there
being no corruption or other violations and
misconducts by the grantee which caused damage to
the Company and there being no situations where the
grantee fails to perform his/her duties up to the
required standard or fails to pass the assessments of
the Group.

27 URESEEURODR/ERNRS

(&

(a)

R-B-NE+ATERRHZBR
EHEBOT (&)

RZE-N\F+ATHEERLZEBR
AN T ERBERK - TRITTE
(VEITEENREREHARR A
THE HETERERRZELENEB
NADEIMBREER  RBEL
BERAKE s FREMBRERTEZX
RABARBREOERR LEEAB
BELEANMARKE EE9xF
SIS AKRBEZ FEM B RE R
EREZ  URARFAMEZELEEX
ERT AR ENER BT B EE
K (i) BITE BRI EEARAZ
ETHE EREBRARALERE
KRB ARALEERZRERRAIER
Pl R RRINER  ARALEES
SEHMERTRARIETAMEAR
AIEKER AR ERE AR AE
EBEEREIREBBASE 2
(AP
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(B 5 EIEHSN - BEEAN REEST)
27 Equity settled share-based transactions 27 LIRELELUROGAEBRNTS
(Continued) (4

(b) The number and weighted average exercise (b) BEREHBRMEFHETEEDT :
prices of share options are as follows:

2021 2020
—B--f —ECTE
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise Number exercise Number
price  of options price  of options
R 19 BRE  ETH R
7@ A 176EE #8
‘000 ‘000
F 713
Outstanding at the beginning FEARITRE
of the year HKD5.46 4,027 HKD5.46 4,180
5.46 87T 5.46 47T
Exercised during the year FREATE HKD5.46 (1,428)  HKD5.46 (68)
5.46 BT 5.46/87T
Lapsed/Expired during the year FREBELB R HKD5.46 (87)  HKD5.46 (85)
5.46 & T 5.46 87T
Outstanding at the end of the year FXREAIT{E HKD5.46 2,512 HKD5.46 4,027
5.46 87T 5.46 47T
Exercisable at the end of the year ~ FRAJ17{E HKD5.46 1,153 HKD5.46 1,309

5.46 T 5.46 /87T
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(= BIERS)  BEEAARKEST)

27 Equity settled share-based transactions 27 LIRELELUROGAEBRNTS

(Continued) (&

(b)

The number and weighted average exercise
prices of share options are as follows: (Continued)

Save as disclosed above, no share option was lapsed
or exercised during the year ended 31 December
2021.

The weighted average share price at the date of
exercise for share options exercised during the year
was HKD9.97. The weighted average share price
immediately before the dates on which the share
options were exercised was HKD9.91.

The options outstanding at 31 December 2021 had an
exercise price of HKD5.46 (2020: HKD5.46) and a
weighted average remaining contractual life of 1.79
years (2020: 2.79 years).

The Group recognised share option expenses of
RMB627,000 during the year ended 31 December
2021 (2020: RMB1,794,000).

(b)

BREHERMETITEEDT :
(%)

fREXPIBREESN RBE_T——
ERMEETRE -

FRBITEBRERITE B Mg
FHRERI7TETT - REBIIEE
171 B HIR B D I F 9B R 9.91 78
7T|: o

R-B-_—F+-A=+—H @®&X
TEBREZ TEE A4 (ZF
ZTF 5468 70) RINEF AT SRE
HNEBMRBITIF(ZEZFF 279
F) o

BHE-_ZTE-_—F+=-A=+—HL*F
B AEEEAERERIARE
627000L( — T T F: AR
1,794,000 7T) °
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27 Equity settled share-based transactions
(Continued)

(9]

Fair value of share options and assumptions

The fair value of services received in return for share
options granted is measured by reference to the fair
value of share options granted. The estimate of the
fair value of the share options granted is measured
based on a binomial lattice model. The contractual life
of the share option is used as an input into this model.
Expectations of early exercise are incorporated into the
binomial lattice model.

Fair value of share options and assumptions

Fair value at measurement date (HK$) 1.74~1.78
Share price (HK$) 5.27
Exercise price (HK$) 5.46
Expected volatility 45.10%
Option life 5 years
Expected dividends 2.70%
Risk-free interest rate 2.38%

The expected volatility is based on the historic volatility
(calculated based on the weighted average remaining
life of the share options), adjusted for any expected
changes to future volatility based on publicly available
information. Expected dividends are based on
historical dividends. Changes in the subjective input
assumptions could materially affect the fair value
estimate.

Share options were granted under a service condition.
This condition has not been taken into account in the
grant date fair value measurement of the services
received. There were no market conditions associated
with the share option grants.

e BRRME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(b= H1EHS)  BREUANREST)

27 URESEEUROD/ERNRS

(&

(9]

BRENDFERRR

AR P I h B AR R AR A B 2
B DH2EMELBREN D FER
EB-MELBERENATFEGE R
“HAAEEEAGE BREZAD
HREAFHRENEAZRE - =17
ANEERACBRRERITEZEY -

BRENATFERER
REt=2 HER 1.74~1.78
AFEGET)

IR E &) 5.27
IEECET) 5.46
SEEENA 45.10%
FE AR 1 5B 54
TEHARR B 2.70%
472 [ gz ) 2.38%

TEHRIR R TY LA IR 8 A A 19 D42 7 19 R
HRERFENELRIEREE - A5
BARMBEMAENEMEHAR
MR ENEH AR - TR BT AE
SEREFE - TBRBAREKNELT
EEHAFENRBHELEARE -

BB DR IR IR AS IR It o LA
REtEMWEBURB R B A F
ERTEFEERN - BRERHIL S
B 75 11 353 AR A4 o
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(= BIERS)  BEEAARKEST)

28 Income tax in the consolidated statement 28

of financial position

RiEa M BRRRAZFAEH

(a) Current taxation in the consolidated statement (a) MEEHBMRRERA NP EE

of financial position represents:

2021 2020

—E-—F —E-THF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARB¥T T AREFIT

At 1 January n—HA—H 54,013 68,648
Transfer from deferred tax liabilities EEORLHIBERE 8,000 6,000
Provision for LAT (Note 6(a)) T IBE R (M 6(a)) 1,864 1,332
Provision for CIT (Note 6(a)) R FTIS TS (37 6(a)) 156,729 113,931

Income tax paid =ANIZIESE (131,220) (135,050)

LAT paid BT g (BT (329) (848)
At 31 December R+—A=+—8 89,057 54,013
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

of financial position (Continued)

e BRRME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(b= H1EHS)  BREUANREST)

(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised:

(i)

Movement of each components of deferred
tax assets and liabilities

The components of deferred tax assets/(liabilities)
recognised in the consolidated statement of

28 REZEHMBEMRRRAZAMBH @)

(b) ERAELEHBEEREE:

() EEHEBEEEREEEZHHZE

L7/

FARERA BB RER B
EMBEEE/(AfE) B R

financial position and the movements during the BEINT :
year are as follows:
Unrealised
profit from
Temporary Foreign intra-group Government
Impairment of differences exchange transfer of grantsin Undistributed
non-current from right- Credit loss forward certain land deferred Cashflow  profit of PRC
financial assets ~ of-use assets allowance Taxloss* contract use right income hedges subsidiaries Total
£ENLEE
BEETLH HE
Deferred tax assets/ FEEZELHE ¥RE  RREEEZ RAREL:  ETNARZ il e
(liailities) arising from £E/(50) SHEERE BREE  CEEEER REEE  AEENRY AERER BfABE  RERRHR AR &3t
RMB000 RMB000 RMB00 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB00
NEEFT NEEFT NEETT NEEFT A NEEFT NREFT NREFT NREFT NEHTT
At 1 January 2020 1781 4 14007 5893 S 14,148 1751 = (11,609) 32,032
Credfted!{charged) to
profit or loss (Note 6(a) S S 7989 3078 S (197) (219) & (5,368) 3310
Credlitedi{charged] to reserves - - - - - - - 852 - 852
Transferred to current tax - - - - - - - - 6,000 6,000
At 31 December 2020
1781 4 19% 891 13,951 5,565 852 (10977) 1%
At 1 January 2021 1781 4 19% 89n & 13,951 5,565 852 (10977) 1%
Credited/{charged) to
profit orloss (Note 63) - 130 11,944 1,708 886 213) 1,660 - (25,606) (9.491)
Crecfted/{charged) to reserves - - - - - - - @2 - 21
Transferred to current tax - - - - - - 8,000 8,000
At 31 December 2021
1781 179 33940 10,679 886 13738 1205 (1,365) (28583) 38,486
g Deferred tax assets are recognised on unused tax e BLEREEERRAKREE THE

losses of certain subsidiaries of the Group. They are

now progressing to their normal operation stage and

are deriving profits. Accordingly, it is considered

probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available

in the future to utilize their unused tax losses before

they expire. As at 31 December 2021, tax losses of
RMB40,544,000 will expire from 2022 to 2026.

REINARBARBEEIEMIER © %
SNRIERERHERELEEEE
B BRI EE A FI| o B BEAR{E AR 2R
AL B T M FE R B R AZE B
HREARSDARBKER - R=F
——F+-A=+—8 BHEBE
AR 40,544,000 TR —T ==
FEZTZRFHH -
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e BRRME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(= BIERS)  BEEAARKEST)

28

Income tax in the consolidated statement 28
of financial position (continued)

(b)

(o)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised:
(Continued)

(ii) Reconciliation to the consolidated statement
of financial position

REGEMBRRRAZAER @

(b)

ERABELEHEEERAE  (£)

(i) BEEMBMRIRIHE

2021 2020
e —ETEF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMFT ARETT

Net deferred tax assets recognised in 4R & BT HA N %

the consolidated statement of R 2 IR IE
financial position BESE

Net deferred tax liability recognised in A4R& B AR R
the consolidated statement of R ELER IR
financial position BEFEE

Deferred tax liabilities not recognised

The Group is subject to 5% withholding tax on
dividends receivable from its PRC subsidiaries in
respect of their profits generated since 1 January
2008. As at 31 December 2021, deferred tax liabilities
in respect of temporary differences relating to such
undistributed profits of RMB3,493,805,000 (2020:
RMB3,043,871,000) were not recognised as the
Company controls the dividend policy of these
subsidiaries and it has been determined that those
profits will not be distributed in the foreseeable future.

(o)

68,434 53,171

(29,948) (10,977)

38,486 42,194
AR ZBELEHHAE

AEBERRBEEFEMBARBZ
EENF—A—BHREMEASFPE
W R 28840 5% B FNETEL © B AR A
THZEMNBARMBRERE W E
BETERARRKDIEE B EF
R —_E-_—F+-_A=+—H8" 1
AREZERDREBENARKE
3,493,805,000 (= ZE=—FF : AR
¥ 3,043,871,0007C ) B B Y & B =58
RELEHTBEE -
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29 Capital, reserves and dividends

(a)

e BRRME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(b= H1EHS)  BREUANREST)

29 BRA - REREE

Movements in components of equity (a) RERIHEH
The reconciliation between the opening and closing NEFBGEEZKSLHZETIRER
balances of each component of the Group's ERZEHBEERNGEAEREHEK - K
consolidated equity is set out in the consolidated ANEERERAKTORETNRER
statement of changes in equity. Details of the changes ZEEEEHNNET
in the Company’s individual components of equity
between the beginning and the end of the year are
set out below:
The Company Y|
Retained
earnings/
Share Share Capital Other Exchange (Accumulated
capital premium Reserve reserve reserve loss) Total
RERH/
B RAEE BA G HitffE EiffE  (RiER) &zt
Note RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
st AREFT  AREFT  AREFT ARETT  ARETT  ARETT ARETr
Note29(c)  Note 29 (d)()  Note 29 (d)ii) ~ Note 29 (d)(ii) ~ Note 29 (d)(v)
Mit29() W29 M9 WE29@00 K290
Balance at 1 January 2020 RZB=F5-A-B
5B 34 3,731 179,568 2,886 441,976 (10,677) 4,830 622,364
Changes in equity for 2020 I TEEREY - - - - - - -
Profit for the year EREM S = = = = 92,164 92,164
Other comprehensive loss Hip2EE - - - - (33,794) - (33,794)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) £ 2 Bz / (E518)
for the year ik - - - - (33,794) 92,164 58,370
Shares issued due to exercise of  R{TE AR E:TE
Share Option Scheme mETHRE 29(c) 1 417 (102) = S S 316
Recognition of Employees’ T BB 8l
Share Option Scheme 27(b) - - 1,794 - - - 1,79
Dividend approved in respect of ~ EEHEZ RS
the previous year 29(b) - - - - - (106,904) (106,904)
Balance at 31 December 2020  H-E-FE+-f
and 1 January 2021 + BR=Z=-F
—A-BzEH 34 3,732 179,985 4,578 441,976 (44,471) (9,860) 575,940
Changes in equity for 2021 I -FREREY - - - - - - -
Profit for the year ERER - - - - - 137,800 137,800
Other comprehensive loss HEiw2EEE - - - - (13,981) - (13,981)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) £ 2 Bz / (E518)
for the year k) = S = S (13,981) 137,800 123,819
Shares issued due to exercise of  R{T B E:TE
Share Option Scheme ME{TRRR 29(c) 12 8,063 (1,991) S S = 6,084
Recognition of Employees’ TR BB 8l
Share Option Scheme 27(b) - - 627 - - - 627
Dividend approved in respect EEREZRE
of the previous year 29b) - - - - - (123,631) (123,631)
Balance at 31 December 2021 R-Z-_—%
TZRA=t-Bz&4% 3 3,744 188,048 3214 441,976 (58,452) 4,309 582,839
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(KRS HEHI - HEEAAREST)

29 Capital, reserves and dividends (Continued) 29

(b) Dividends

(i) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of
the Company attributable to the year

BRA - FERKRE @)
(b) RE

() ENFXFEZALTRZRREK
£

2021 2020
—E-—F ZEZEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TFrT AREFT
Final dividends proposed after RI|EFREZRRNZ
the end of reporting year of KA B B E AR
HKDO.8 per ordinary share 08B (ZTTF -
(2020: HKDO.36) FA0.36 %) 274,593 126,697

The final dividend proposed after the end of the
reporting period has not been recognised as a
liability at the end of the reporting period.

(i) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of
the Company attributable to the previous
financial year, approved and paid during

RS MRRERIRN 2 KRR
BYERREPRERARAE -

(i) REA#ERIRNZ L —EE
FEZENE R B ERRRKR

the year
2021 2020
—E-—F —ETEF
RMB'000 RMB’000
AR¥FT ARETTT
Final dividends in respect of the P R HLE KR _E—1&
previous financial year, approved B 2 RHEARR B
and paid during the year, of BiEER0.3648TT
HKDO.36 per ordinary share —EZFF :028%7T)
(2020: HKDO0.28) 123,631 106,904
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29 Capital, reserves and dividends (Continued)

(0

e BRRME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(b= H1EHS)  BREUANREST)

29 BA - RERRKRE (#)

Share Capital (0 B=
(i) Issued share capital (i) EBEBTRA
2021 2020
—BZ-F ZTCTE
No. of Nominal value of No. of Nominal value of
shares fully paid shares shares fully paid shares
RBEE HEROEE It g8 BRROHEE
RMB RMB
equivalent equivalent
("000) HKD'000 ‘000 ("000) HKD'000 ‘000
(FR) FET @ (F&) FET £
AREFT AREFT
Ordinary shares, issued ER{TRHE
and fully paid ZER
At 1 January ®—A—H 418,068 4,181 3,732 418,000 4,180 3,731
Shares issued under share 1R 5B % #2512
option scheme BITHRID 1,428 15 12 68 1 1
At 31 December R+=-—A=+—8H 419,496 4,196 3,744 418,068 4,181 3,732

(ii)

The ordinary shares of the Company has a par
value of HKD0.01 per share.

Shares issued under share option scheme

In 2021, share options were exercised to
subscribe for 1,428,134 (2020: 68,200) ordinary
shares in the Company at a cash consideration
of HKD7,441,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB6,084,000), of which RMB12,000 and
RMB8,063,000 were credited to share capital
and the share premium account respectively.
The balance of RMB1,991,000 was transferred
from the capital reserve to the share premium
account in accordance with the Company’s
accounting policy set out in Note 1(t)ii).

ARAEEB 2 EERSREK?0.01
BT

(i)

WRIGIE IR T BIR AT IR 17

R —F  BEREETEN
REBANT 1,428 134 (ZE =
T 68,2000%) BB Be
REAE7,441,0008 T (FHERL
AFR#6,084,0007T) EFAR
#12,0007T & A K ¥ 8,063,000
TR BIEF AR A R B AD s (B BR o
BEBEMEI1OMATH AR NS
FHEERE - &g AR 1,991,000
TEBEAREERERGRE
EE °
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e EHRERME
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(= BIERS)  BEEAARKEST)

29 Capital, reserves and dividends (continued)

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves

(i)

(ii)

Share premium

The share premium represents the difference
between the par value of the shares of the
Company and proceeds received from the
issuance of the shares of the Company.

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman
Islands, the funds in the share premium account
and other reserve account of the Company are
distributable to the shareholders provided that
immediately following the date on which the
dividend is proposed to be distributed, the
Company will be in a position to pay off its
debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of
business.

Other reserve

The other reserve of the Group represents the
difference between (a) the nominal value of
share capital and the existing balance on the
share premium account of a subsidiary acquired,;
and (b) the nominal value of the shares issued by
the Company in exchange under the re-
organisation of the Group on 29 February 2008.

The other reserve of the Company represents
the difference between (a) the consolidated net
assets of the subsidiaries acquired; and (b) the
nominal value of the shares issued by the
Company in exchange under the re-organisation
of the Group on 29 February 2008.

29 B - BERERE @)

RBETEERAE
() ReEE

(ii)

R EEAR ARG mE R
TR R WER B PTG FRIE 2
IR Z%8 o

RERSEFHERFE  ARFZ
BiaBREEMREERZES
Al IR T RO - HERBEEZE D K
BREERE  ARABEEFER

REEXRBERTE I ZET -

Attt

REBZEMHEBREATREZ
ZR (D WEHB AR RN E
EBRzZBEAEEBENMERERR &
O ARRFRBER_ZFZTNF_A
“tTtABEAREESERRIME
T2k mE -

AAR 2 B EBIEATME Z
ZHQEWBHBARZES
BERE: BO)ARFRER
—EENF_AZTNABEREH
BA/RBMBITZERMEE -
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29 Capital, reserves and dividends (continued)

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Capital reserve
The capital reserve comprises the following:

— waivers of liabilities due to related parties;
and

—  the portion of the grant date fair value of
unexercised share options granted to
employees of the Company that has been
recognised in accordance with the
accounting policy adopted for share-based
payments in Note 1(t)(ii).

PRC statutory reserves

PRC statutory reserves were established in
accordance with the relevant PRC rules and
regulations and the articles of association of the
PRC subsidiaries of the Group. The subsidiaries
are required to transfer at least 10% of their net
profit, as determined under the PRC accounting
rules and regulations, to statutory general
reserve until the reserve reaches 50% of the
registered capital. The transfer to this reserve
must be made before distribution of a dividend
to equity shareholders.

PRC statutory reserves can be used to make
good prior years’ losses, if any, and may be
converted into share capital by issuing new
shares to equity shareholders proportionate to
their existing percentage of equity interests
provided that the balance after such issue is not
less than 25% of the registered capital.

e ERERME
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(b= H1EHS)  BREUANREST)

29 B - BERRE @)

(d) REMERAZRGE)
(i) B EE
BERRHERATRE:

— RERRZENBETAE:
K

— BYFAAREBEKRTE
ZERECEERBAF
B2 E 5 BARE M & 1))
AR AR B E 2 o FUR
7 SETBURIER o

(iv) FECEERE

FEDATE FEIIREE B ER
AR EARAEEREN B A
Az ERARIRT - HEBA
RIABRARBTES AR
REBEZANNZEDLIONE
EE—RER EERBEIE
MEARZ50% &1L o [ HEFT
TFEB VAR D RIS T RS
RZAEH »

PBEEREER B BEF
EzEEE)  WAiREER
RERIREREST S LI LB m %
LEATHRMD IR RA - B
BEITR 2 EHRTEBONEME
K2 25% °
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29 Capital, reserves and dividends (continued)

(d)

(e)

(f)

Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)
(v) Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation
of the financial statements of companies with
functional currency other than RMB.

(vi) Hedging reserve

The hedging reserve comprises the effective
portion of the cumulative net change in the fair
value of hedging instruments used in cash flow
hedges pending subsequent recognition of the
hedged cash flow in accordance with the
accounting policy adopted for cash flow hedges
in Note 1(h).

Distributability of reserves

The aggregate amount of distributable reserves
of the Company as at 31 December 2021 was
RMB579,095,000 (2020: RMB572,208,000).

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, so that it can continue to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders, by pricing products and services
commensurately with the level of risk and by securing
access to finance at a reasonable cost.

(d)

(e)

()

29 B - BERERE @)

REMERAR(E)
() Exf#E

EXFEEERRENREEEL
FERARBHRAMIERRAE
EZBESERE -

(vi) #HEE

REMT D AERRSREY
PTERN 2 @R BUR - SR
BIEREAFERERH RS
MEZREREBH P2 HHITA
MAFERTFESH ZERE

g7 °

A Ik

RZEZ—F+=A=+—H  &AQ
BZARSERHERAEAARYE
579,095,000 C(ZE=FF : ARK
572,208,000 7T) °

EXER

AEENTI2EAEEABRA/RER
SEBERENES  RISERERK
FREMMRBGEE  LAGEKAN
BSRE  NEERRREHDKR R
REMFBNEREREF
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29 Capital, reserves and dividends (continued)

()

Capital management (Continued)

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages
its capital structure to maintain a balance between the
higher shareholders returns that might be possible
with higher levels of borrowings and the advantages
and security afforded by a sound capital position, and
makes adjustments to the capital structure in light of
changes in economic conditions.

The Group monitors its capital structure on the basis
of an adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio. For this
purpose, adjusted net debt is defined as total debt
(which includes interest-bearing loans and borrowings,
and lease liabilities) plus unaccrued proposed
dividends, less cash and cash equivalents and pledged
deposits. Adjusted capital comprises all components of
equity, other than amounts recognised in equity
relating to cash flow hedges, less unaccrued proposed
dividends.

During 2021, the Group's strategy, which was
unchanged from 2020, was to maintain the adjusted
net debt-to-capital ratio at a level considered
reasonable by the Group’s management from time to
time with reference to the prevailing market
conditions. In order to maintain or adjust the ratio, the
group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, issue new shares, raise new debt
financing or sell assets to reduce debt.

e BRRME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(b= H1EHS)  BREUANREST)

29 B - BERRE @)

()

EXREE ()

AEEBEEGTE RIS REEEEAR
B NEARBSEEKFAIESER
B = R [0 B ER S TR AR B SRS P
WRME S RREZEOFE - W
RBERBNBEH ERNRETHE -

AEERERHBFABER L RER
BARE -BME ARERLH
EFRBEERAEBAR(BERE
REEE  ARBEERE) IR ER
FREBRRELRSFEYARDE
HER  KAREANBEESZAA
BB (IR RE L H AR 2 #Ea P
RZEFRIN) BORFTIRZZ S,

RZEZ—F AEEZREHE_-T
ZEFRBIEDBEARFERE
R REFREAEEEEELL2EE
BmRAETRREREZKE - B
BRARLE  AEEAEFHERRK
REMRE - BITHRG - EEHE
BRERHEBENRDER
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29 Capital, reserves and dividends (Continued)

(f) Capital management (Continued)

The Group's adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio at 31

29

BRA - FERKRE @)

BEXREE ()

AEER_FT-_—FR_FT_FF

December 2021 and 2020 was as follows: T+ AZ+—BZ2EABRFEEERN
HeRaT
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
—E—F —E-FF
+=A +=H
=+—H =+—H
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
BaE AR¥FT AREFIT
Current liabilities: MENAE

Loans and borrowings EREEE 24 492,617 811,424
Lease liabilities HEAE 25 2,005 2,368
494,622 813,792

Non-current liabilities: ERBEE
Loans and borrowings BEREEE 24 1,258,742 318,868
Lease liabilities HEAE 25 5,447 6,523
Total debt BET548%E 1,758,811 1,139,183
Add: Proposed dividends o EERE 29(b) 274,593 126,697
Less: Cash and cash equivalents & : & MBS ZEY 21 (1,643,133) (509,639)
Pledged deposits BEBEFR 20 (208,919) (170,558)
Adjusted net debt ERBIESFER 181,352 585,683
Total equity AR 4,479,400 3,697,933
Less: Hedging reserve T ‘;“T}Elﬂﬁ%% 29(d) (7,727) 4,830
Proposed dividends EERE 29(b) (274,593) (126,697)
Adjusted capital IEAEER 4,197,080 3,576,066
Adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio £ FE A (G B AL R 4% 16%

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are
subject to externally imposed capital requirements,
except that banking facilities granted to certain
subsidiaries are subject to the fulfilment of covenants
relating to the subsidiaries’ balance sheet ratios (Note
24). The Group will actively and regularly monitor its

compliance to such covenants.

AR A R E AR E A BRI R

BARBERS

ERTETHEAR

MIRTEEAMRHBARNEERE

RIEITHE

s (MY EE24) BRON - REE

R THERHERRETREHE -
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30 Financial risk management and fair
values of financial instruments

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate, currency risks and
commodity price risk arises in the normal course of the
Group's business.

The Group’s exposure to these risks and the financial risk
management policies and practices used by the Group to
manage these risks are described below.

(a)

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will
default on its contractual obligations resulting in a
financial loss to the Group. The Group’s credit risk is
primarily attributable to trade receivables. The Group's
exposure to credit risk arising from cash and cash
equivalents, bills receivable and derivative financial
assets is limited because the counterparties are banks
and financial institutions, which the Group considers
to have low credit risk. The Group's exposure to credit
risk arising from refundable rental deposits is
considered to be low, taking into account (i) the
landlords’ credit rating and (ii) the remaining lease
term and the period covered by the rental deposits.

The Group does not provide any guarantees which
would expose the Group to credit risk.

Trade receivables

The Group has established a credit risk management
policy under which individual credit evaluations are
performed on all customers requiring credit over a
certain amount. These evaluations focus on the
customer’s past history of making payments when due
and current ability to pay, and take into account
information specific to the customer as well as
pertaining to the economic environment in which the
customer operates. Trade receivables are due within
30-120 days from the date of billing. Debtors with
balances that are more than 1 month past due are
requested to settle all outstanding balances before any
further credit is granted. Normally, the Group does
not obtain collateral from customers.

e ERERME
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
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e EHRERME
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(= BIERS)  BEEAARKEST)

30 Financial risk management and fair
values of financial instruments (Continued)

(a)

Credit risk (Continued)
Trade receivables (Continued)

The Group has no significant concentration of credit
risk in industries or countries in which the customers
operate. Significant concentrations of credit risk
primarily arise when the group has significant
exposure to individual customers. At the end of the
reporting period, less than 1% (2020: 1%) and 12%
(2020: 13%) of the total trade receivables was due
from the Group’s largest customer and the five largest
customers respectively within industrial aluminium and
construction aluminium.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade
receivables at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, which
is calculated using a provision matrix. As the Group’s
historical credit loss experience does not indicate
significantly different loss patterns for different
customer segments, the loss allowance based on past
due status is not further distinguished between the
Group's different customer bases.

The following table provides information about the

30 eRERMEERSMIAZAY

B

(a)

FERRE(E)
REEWIR (B)

AEERBEFEEZITESBRIT &
EXEFEERR - FERRSES
FrEREERNAEEYHENEFE
EBERERBAEREL - RWEER -
RSGBEWERBELTR1%(ZEZ
TE %) RNR%B (2T - T F:
1%@“%XE$EII¥ﬁMM&%
SR D EHEARABFRAREF -

AEBRREABRERTENH2H
BHERERESN B BRI
W BRSO B R o AR E 8
&mﬁﬁﬁm%iﬁ%ﬁfﬁﬁﬁ“

/*/Flu:u K%ITH%)EE%:U&E@
Hﬁi%ﬁ’ﬂ@ﬂ%ﬁéﬁ g

TRIEH AR AN R E 5L 5 M8 R R

Group’s exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade FEEEERE LEHEZEEENE
receivables: S
2021

g £
Expected Gross carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
BRI E IREAE EiERE
% RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT AR¥FT
Current (not past due) BNER (R HER) 0.50% 1,674,789 8,374
1-180 days past due BE1 £ 180K 5.00% 1,157,353 57,867
181-360 days past due BEI181 =360k 10.00% 288,021 28,802
361-720 days past due #mEI361 2720 K 50.00% 114,175 57,087
More than 720 days past due  #iHAfBiB 720K 100.00% 71,481 71,481

3,305,819 223,611
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30 Financial risk management and fair

30 eREMEEREMIAEZAY

values of financial instruments (Continued) B &)
(a) Credit risk (Continued) (a) =EERREE)
Trade receivables (Continued) RBEWR (&)
2020
ZETF
Expected  Gross carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
SER) R i=n S BRI 4BE EiartE
% RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFIT AREFIT
Current (not past due) BNER (k@ HR) 0.50% 1,165,701 5,829
1-180 days past due BEI1 £ 180K 5.00% 1,168,439 58,422
181-360 days past due #mEI 181 £360 K 10.00% 143,316 14,332
361-720 days past due #HEI361 2 720K 50.00% 46,723 23,362
More than 720 days past due  #HAFRE 720 K 100.00% 41,991 41,991
2,566,170 143,936

Expected loss rates are based on actual loss experience
over the past 3 years. These rates are adjusted to
reflect differences between economic conditions
during the period over which the historic data has
been collected, current conditions and the Group's
view of economic conditions over the expected lives of
the receivables.

BHEEL R RBE=FNERE
BREBRAME  ZFLERTIERAE - A
2 B Uit 5 S B4 A ) M) A RO
B BRI A B AN 5 [ 5 R W R IR Y T8
H AFEHBMREGERR B ENE
H o
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(BB H1585)  BEEUNRESR)
30 Financial risk management and fair
values of financial instruments (Continued)
(@) Credit risk (Continued)
Trade receivables (Continued)

Movement in the loss allowance account in respect of
trade receivables during the year is as follows:

30%@@@%@&@@132@“
()

(@) FERMRE)

RBEKFR (&)
FRN RHERFENEERERY
BT ¢
2021 2020
—B-—F T -TF
RMB’000 RMB’'000

ARETFT ARETT

Balance at 1 January R—A—Bz&%#% 143,936 91,066
Impairment losses recognised ERERREEE 79,675 52,870
Balance at 31 December N+ A=+—H24%&% 223,611 143,936

The following significant changes in the gross carrying
amounts of trade receivables contributed to the
increase in the loss allowance during 2021:

— increase in days past due over 180 days
resulted in an increase in loss allowance of
RMB77,685,000 (2020: RMB25,176,000).

AT RSN =B —FERRELM
X 5 I RUE R A E A B AR
& :

—  WHAIREULEINEBI180K  HE
18 BB 18 hn A R 77,685,000
T(ZFZFF: ARK
25,176,000 7T) ©
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30 Financial risk management and fair
values of financial instruments (Continued)

(b)

Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are
responsible for their own cash management, including
the short term investment of cash surpluses and the
raising of loans to cover expected cash demands,
subject to approval by the parent company’s board
when the borrowings exceed certain predetermined
levels of authority. The Group's policy is to regularly
monitor its liquidity requirements and its compliance
with lending covenants, to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash and readily realisable
marketable securities and adequate committed lines of
funding from major financial institutions to meet its
liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.

The following tables show the remaining contractual
maturities at the end of the reporting period of the
Group's non-derivative financial liabilities and
derivative financial liabilities (excluding contract
liabilities) and derivative financial liabilities, which are
based on contractual undiscounted cash flows

e BRRME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(b= H1EHS)  BREUANREST)

30 %Eﬂﬁﬁﬁ%fi&ﬁ@lﬂZﬁ"
(#)

(b)

REBE SRR
AEBARNMENLLERAEHES

BENREEE (BEREEHKNERR
BUNBEEFURAREPRS S
K)o EREERBBE T REEREA
KA ARESSHE - ARENK
ROVEHERARDESTFEALE
STEEZRBENER  UERERTR
ReRBRESTERNEGERSFN
REZSREBARIEREHNES
BME - AENEEHEERMRSES

o .
™ 2

TRINTRBERRAEREZIENTE
TRABLMTESRARE (TEERD
BE) 2 RBREOBMFIA - THEE L
AMRBARE(BRERAHMXHL (N
FE)BRBERRZBITMERFELZ
MEFR) MAKEAXNZ&ERAH

g

(including interest payments computed using aTE
contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates current
at the end of the reporting period) and the earliest
date the Group can be required to pay:
2021
—E--F
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
BRRBRRSRE
More than More than Carrying
Within  1year but 2 years but amount
1yearor  lessthan  lessthan More than at 31
on demand 2 years 5 years 5 years Total December
R+=A
— R —F# MmE# =+-H
EEX ERFR EBIFR LF# @zt ZKREE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBFT ARMTRT ARETRT ARETT AREFT
Loans and borrowings B RIS 498979 780,969 445696 130,737 1,856,381 1,751,359
Lease liabilities HEBE 2,062 3,016 2,657 - 7,735 7,452
Bills payables, creditors and ENEE - BANERER
accrued charges* RIEFER* 4,708,672 - - - 4,708,672 4,708,672
5,209,713 783,985 448,353 130,737 6,572,788 6,467,483
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30 Financial risk management and fair

30 eREMEERESMIAEZAY

values of financial instruments (Continued) B
(b) Liquidity risk (Continued) (b) REELE(E)
2020
e 223
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
ARRERR LR
More than ~ More than Carrying
Within - 1yearbut 2 years but amount
1 year or less than less than ~ More than at 31
on demand 2 years 5 years 5 years Total ~ December
R+=A
—F R —Fig [GEt =+-H
EER EMFA  EREFR hFE FE S
RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB'000
AREFT AREFT ARBFT AREFT AREFT AREFT
Loans and borrowings ERREE 820,434 178,747 83,071 92,971 1,175,223 1,130,292
Lease liabilities HEAR 7,557 6,334 3,059 1,103 18,053 8,891
Bills payables, creditorsand ~ EERNZ1E « ERER
accrued charges* 3,305,342 - - - 3,305,342 3,305,342
4,133,333 185,081 86,130 94,074 4,498,618 4,444,525
* The balance included trade payables, bills payable, accrued & HERBIEXFEMNZRIE  ENZE - Bt

payroll and benefits, other payables and accruals and interest

payable, which were financial liabilities in nature.

As shown in the above analysis, bank loans and
related interest expense of the Group amounting to
RMB508,699,000 were due to be repaid during 2022
(2020: RMB822,240,000). The short-term liquidity risk
inherent in this contractual maturity date was not
significantly changed after the reporting period.

FESREN  HUEMFURRETER
MEMANE - DEEREENE -

B AR AREBEABAR
#5508,699,000 (=T =FF : AR
¥ 822,240,000 7T ) 2 IRITEF KM
MERX TN T - —FERBHE T
B - RAAWEHEESE 2 EHR
BECRBNRE PRI ESKES -
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30 Financial risk management and fair
values of financial instruments (Continued)

(9]

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future
cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates. The
Group's interest rate risk arises primarily from long-
term borrowings. Borrowings issued at variable rates
and fixed rates expose the Group to cash flow interest
rate risk and fair value interest rate risk respectively.
The Group's interest rate profile as monitored by
management is set out in (ii) below.

(i)  Interest rate profile

The following table, as reported to the
management of the Group, details the interest

e BRRME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(b= H1EHS)  BREUANREST)

30 %Eﬂﬁﬁﬁ%fi&ﬁ@lﬂ?&"
(#)

(0 R=EEME

FMERB AR TIAZ N FESIKRK
RenERREMSN XS MK
ZER e REBZMNERBERRE
RHIEE - M E R EE N EE
HZEED RS AREEAZE R
ENERER LD FENXRER - Nk
BHEREEERZMEHRHEN TX
(ii) ©

(i) FIEHR

AASEEREMERZ TRF
IIREERRERRABERTEZ

rate profile of the Group’s interest-bearing F AR o
borrowings at the end of the reporting period.
2021 2020
—EB--F —E-TF
Effective Effective
interest interest
rates Amount rates Amount
BIRF= &8 VB Gk
‘000 ‘000
Fr Fr
Fixed rate borrowings: TEEE
Lease liabilities HERRE 3.4%-4.9% 7,452 4.90% 8,891
Bank loans RITER 1.5%-4.9% 632,617 2.9%-4.51% 509,684
640,069 518,575
Variable rate borrowings: % B (&E
Bank loans RITER 3.4%-4.9% 1,118,742 3.55%-4.99% 620,608
Fixed rate borrowings TEEEENEE
as a percentage of BEAOL
total borrowings 36% 46%
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e BRRME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(b= BIEHS)

 BEAAREST)

30 Financial risk management and fair
values of financial instruments (Continued)

(9]

(d)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

(ii)

Sensitivity analysis

At 31 December 2021, it is estimated that a
general increase/decrease of 100 basis points in
interest rates, with all other variable held
constant, would have decreased/increased the
Group's profit after tax and retained profits by
approximately RMB9,509,000 (2020:
RMB5,123,000).

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the
instantaneous change in the Group’s profit after
tax and retained profits that would arise
assuming that the change in interest rates had
occurred at the end of the reporting period and
had been applied to re-measure those financial
instruments held by the Group which expose the
Group to fair value interest rate risk at the end
of the reporting period. In respect of the
exposure to cash flow interest rate risk arising
from floating rate non-derivative instruments
held by the Group at the end of the reporting
period, the impact on the Group’s profit after
tax and retained profits is estimated as an
annualised impact on interest expense or income
of such a change in interest rates. The analysis is
performed on the same basis for 2020.

Currency risk

Renminbi is not a freely convertible currency and the
remittance of funds out of the PRC is subject to the
exchange restriction imposed by the PRC government.

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily
through sales and purchases which give rise to

receivables, payables, cash balances and loans and
borrowings that are denominated in a currency other

than the functional currency of the operations to
which they relate. The currencies giving rise to this risk
are primarily HKD and USD.

30%@@@%@&@@132@“
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fhEt R REEEE 38, T 1001@
I mMEMABEHEFTT
B KEBZBRBERNREKRE
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30 Financial risk management and fair
values of financial instruments (Continued)

(d)

Currency risk (Continued)

(i)

Exposure to currency risk

The following table details the Group’s exposure
at the end of the reporting period to currency
risk arising from recognised assets or liabilities
denominated in a currency other than the
functional currency of the entity to which they
relate. For presentation purposes, the amounts
of the exposure are shown in Renminbi,
translated using the spot rate at the year end
date. Difference resulting from the translation of
the financial statements of foreign operations
into the Group’s presentation currency is
excluded.

e BRRME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(b= H1EHS)  BREUANREST)

30 %Eﬂﬁﬁﬁ%fi&ﬁ@lﬂ?&"
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(d) E¥mEgE)
() IEmEpREE

TRFANAEENREHREN
NEBRANEEE N ZEME
HitE<CREEXRREME
EZEBEBEE- - R2EH
mE - BREAEZSEAARE
SR WAFHE B 2BRE XK
8o mEBI R ERREAN
SE2INEMMELE 2 ZBI T
BREEA -

Exposure to foreign currencies (expressed in RMB)

S mBRARE (AARMSIR)

2021 2020
—EB--& —T-TF
HKD UsD HKD UsD
BT EY BT e
‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000
Fr Fr Fir Fir
Trade and other receivables 3 5 & £t e Ye 7008 17,523 35,299 8,954 4,846
Cash and cash equivalents  JR& MIREEEY 33,379 12,539 21,256 20,901
Trade and other payables % 5 R E i fE (7B (28,189) (12,644) (18,128) (13,304)
Loans and borrowings ERLEE (4,088) (167,279) = -
Gross and net exposure BERBEER
arising from recognised BEEEZ
assets and liabilities Rk iEEE % 18,625 (132,085) 12,082 12,443
Notional amounts of forward iz Ei5NE 4 4)#
exchange contracts 2ETH = 167,279 - -
Net exposure arising from  EHREENEE
recognised assets and EERAFRR
liabilities 18,625 35,194 12,082 12,443
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30 Financial risk management and fair

30 eRERMEERSMIAZAY

values of financial instruments (Continued) =X¢9)
(d) Currency risk (Continued) d) EHEEE)
(i)  Sensitivity analysis (i) BBEDH
The following table indicates the instantaneous TERBREAEEBRRERKRE
change in the Group's profit after tax and EAREBAREEERNEZ BB
retained profits that would arise if foreign BE) - WRRATA H b E o S8
exchange rates to which the Group has W NEE VBRI ET
significant exposure at the end of the reporting MARBB % F 0] g H IR 2 BB &
period had changed at that date, assuming all B o
other risk variables remained constant.
2021 2020
—BC-F —_Z_THF
Effect on Effect on
Increase/  profit after Increase/ profit after
(decrease) tax and (decrease) tax and
in foreign retained in foreign retained
exchange rate profit exchange rate profit
HERBE HREE
Ext#f/  BARRE EXLH/  EFRRA
(T &Efzxeg (TR)  HFz®
‘000 ‘000
Fr F
United States Dollars EIH 1% 300 1% 124
Hong Kong Dollars BT 1% 152 1% 121

Results of the analysis as presented in the above
table represent an aggregation of the
instantaneous effects on each of the Group
entities’ profit after tax and equity measured in
the respective functional currencies, translated
into Renminbi at the exchange rate ruling at the
end of the reporting period for presentation
purposes.

ER2NNZOMERIBHAEE
BERANTEZEERHEL
BRI 1&m N M st 2 B FTRIBF 82
£ YHEJBEWREEHRZ
ERBESARE -
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30 Financial risk management and fair
values of financial instruments (Continued)

(d)

(e)

Currency risk (Continued)
(i)  Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the change
in foreign exchange rates had been applied to
re-measure those financial instruments held by
the Group which expose the Group to foreign
currency risk at the end of the reporting period,
including inter-company payables and
receivables within the Group which are
denominated in a currency other than the
functional currencies of the lender or the
borrower. The analysis excludes differences that
would result from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations into the
Group’s presentation currency. The analysis is
performed on the same basis for 2020.

Commodity price risk

The Group used commodity futures contracts in the
Shanghai Futures Exchange to manage the commodity
price risk exposure in respect of the highly probable
forecast purchase of aluminium products. The Group
designates those commodity future contracts as
hedging instruments in cash flow hedges and does
not separate the forward and spot element of the
commodity future contracts but instead designates the
commodity future contract in its entirety in a hedging
relationship.

The Group applies a hedge ratio of 1:1 and determines
the existence of an economic relationship between the
commodity future contracts and the highly probable
forecast purchase transactions based on: the
underlying for hedging instruments and the hedged
items are economically related. The basic variables of
the hedging instruments and the hedged items are
standard aluminium prices. The effect of credit risk
does not dominate the value changes.

e BRRME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
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30 Financial risk management and fair
values of financial instruments (Continued)

B

30 eRERMEERSMIAZAY

(e) Commodity price risk (Continued) (e) FHMERERE)

The balance of commodity future contracts of
RMB15,289,000 represented the principals and fair
value upward of the commodity future contracts as at
31 December 2021 (31 December 2020:
RMB14,471,000).

The following table provides a reconciliation of the
hedging reserve in respect of commodity price risk and
shows the effectiveness of the hedging relationships:

Hm B E A D&% AR 15,289.000
TAR-_ZE-_—F+-_A=+—H&
mBEANNAEAS R AFEEMED
—E_ZTF+-A=1+—H: AR¥
14,471,000 7%) °

TR mERRROE P EEY
R XFIREDREIER R A RE -

2021 2020
—®-—F —TCTF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TFT ARBTT
Balance at 1 January R—A—B2&&% (4,830) =
Effective portion of the cash flow hedge R HEMEEURFER 2
recognised in other comprehensive WeREE P2 BRI S
income 112,434 91,270
Amounts reclassified to profit or loss ENMOBEBRE A
(Note (i)) (HaE () (97,660) (96,952)
Related tax GElE D s (2,217) 852
Balance at 31 December (Note (i}) R+ A=+—Hz#&
(B (i) 7,727 (4,830)
Change in fair value of the commodity ilﬁﬂ?‘ﬁuuﬁﬁm/\%ﬁz
future contracts during the year N EEE 117,023 117,337
Hedge ineffectiveness recognised in B TR 2 SR Rkt
profit and loss (Note 4) (Ktat4) (4,589) (26,067)
Effective portion of the cash flow hedge RE M2 EUzEHER 2
recognised in other comprehensive REMEE R 2B
income (Note 9(b)) (B15£9(b)) 112,434 91,270
(i)  Amounts reclassified to profit or loss are 0) é%ﬁ DEEERZFENRGEE

recognised in the “Cost of sales” line item in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

(i) The entire balance in the hedging reserve relates (ii)
to continuing hedges.

SmARAHERA 4B ARER -

B A P RS R B R R Y
WA
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30 Financial risk management and fair
values of financial instruments (Continued)

(f) Fair values measurement

(i)

Financial assets and liabilities measured at
fair value

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the
Group's financial instruments measured at the
end of the reporting period on a recurring basis,
categorised into the three-level fair value
hierarchy as defined in IFRS 13, Fair value
measurement. The level into which a fair value
measurement is classified is determined with
reference to the observability and significance of
the inputs used in the valuation technique as
follows:

° Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured
using only Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted
guoted prices in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities at the
measurement date

° Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured
using Level 2 inputs i.e. observable inputs
which fail to meet Level 1, and not using
significant unobservable inputs.
Unobservable inputs are inputs for which
market data are not available.

° Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured
using significant unobservable inputs
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
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e EHRERME
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(= BIERS)  BEEAARKEST)

30 Financial risk management and fair 30 SRiEREEREMIAEZAY
values of financial instruments (Continued) =X¢-))
(f)  Fair values measurement (Continued) f) 2DFEFEE)
(i)  Financial assets and liabilities measured at (i) BAFHEGTEZLHBEERERE
fair value (Continued) (&)
Fair value hierarchy (Continued) N FEER (E)

Fair value measurements as at
31 December 2021 categorised into

Fair value at R-ZB--F+ZA=+—-HZ

31 December DNVEFESER
2021 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
R=-Z=—-%f
t=A
=t-8
ZDYE E—& =W s5=m

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARMTRL ARETR AR¥TT ARETR

Recurring fair value REMEQNTETE

measurements
Assets: BE -
Unlisted equity securities  3F_F TR AN 35 5 11,183 - - 11,183
Derivative financial THESRIA:
instruments:
— Commodity future —ERHEEY
contracts 15,289 15,289 - -
26,472 15,289 - 11,183
Liabilities: BifE:
Derivative financial TESRBIA:
instruments:
— Foreign exchange — INEEHIE A

forward contract (5,908) (5,908) - -
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30 Financial risk management and fair
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e BRRME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(b= H1EHS)  BREUANREST)

30 eREMEEREMIAEZAY

values of financial instruments (Continued) =E D)
(f)  Fair values measurement (Continued) f) 2DFEFEE)
(i)  Financial assets and liabilities measured at (i) BAFHETEZLHEERARE
fair value (Continued) (%)
Fair value hierarchy (Continued) NFEER(E)

Fair value measurements as at
31 December 2020 categorised into
RZEZZTF+ZA=+—HZ

Fair value at
2020 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
RZE-TF
+=A
=+—H
ZNTHE E—& FE-R& E=H
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFTT AREFT ARETT ARETT
Recurring fair value REMQNTETE
measurements
Assets: BE
Derivative financial TELmIA :
instruments:
— Commodity future —ERHEEY
contracts 14,471 14,471 - -

During the years ended 31 December 2020 and
2021, there were no transfers between Level 1
and Level 2, or transfers into or out of Level 3.
The Group's policy is to recognise transfers
between levels of fair value hierarchy as at the
end of the reporting period in which they occur.

HE_Z-_ZF-_FT=-_—F+=
BA=+—BI&E F—REFE
By G- 13 B ) 3 N
BZRMKEAFEZRERD - A&
B 2 BUR AR B E 2 & B RE
RERNFERBH M2 EE -
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e BRRME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(= BIERS)  BEEAARKEST)

30 Financial risk management and fair
values of financial instruments (Continued)

(f)

Fair values measurement (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

30 eRERMEERSMIAZAY

B

() 2AVEFEGE)

Financial assets and liabilities measured at (i) EBAFEFAEZEHREERERE
fair value (Continued) (&)
Information about Level 3 fair value measurements BRE =R FEFEREHR
Relationship
Valuation of significant
techniques Significant  unobservable
Fair value andkey  unobservable inputs to fair
Financial instruments hierarchy inputs inputs value
EAFABE
fEELER ERFABE WAERE
$RIA AREER BEBAE WAE  DATENER
Financial assets at FVOCI
— Unlisted equity securities Level 3 Net asset value Not applicable Not applicable
BATESARMZ ARG eRERE E=R BERE TEA TEA

— JEEMBRAES

As at reporting date, fair value is estimated using
the net asset value model. As the unquoted
equity security is not listed on any stock
exchange, a quoted market price is not available;
there were also no recent observable arm’s
length transactions in the shares.

Any gain or loss arising from the remeasurement
of the Group’s unlisted equity securities held for
strategic purposes are recognised in the fair
value reserve (non-recycling) in other
comprehensive income. Upon disposal of the
equity securities, the amount accumulated in
other comprehensive income is transferred
directly to retained earnings.

Fair value of other financial assets and
liabilities carried at other than fair value

The carrying amount of the Group’s financial
instruments carried at cost or amortised cost
were not materially different from their fair value
as at 31 December 2020.

(i)
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5 e
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e BRRME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(b= H1EHS)  BREUANREST)

Commitments 31 A&iE
Capital commitments outstanding at 31 December 2021 not RZZEZ—F+ZH=1—8 ' R %Hm=E
provided for in the financial statements were as follows: WEBERN RBITENRENT :
2021 2020
—E-—F —ZETF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AREFT ARETFT
Contracted for 2ET4
— Purchase of property, plant and — BRE T2 EEEMES
equipment for the production base L E NS
in Chengdu City 125,582 19,702
— Purchase of property, plant and — RERMEEENMEE
equipment for the production base M - WE R
in Yichun City 12,791 7,388
— Purchase of property, plant and — AT =KEZ EEEM
equipment for the production base BEME - BWEME&E
in Sanshui, Foshan City 166,599 254,458
— Purchase of property, plant and — BbaTh 2 EEEM
equipment for the production base BEWX  BERRKRHE
in Qinyang City 21,830 6,126
Authorised but not contracted for EERENERETA 95,636 -
422,438 287,674
In addition, the Group was committed at 31 December A REBER-_ZE-_—F+-A=1+—H
2021 to enter into a new lease of 3 years that is not yet AR LHARBR =FHHEE HIET 2
commenced, the lease payments under which amounted to MERZAEE 1,094,800 (HHERAR
AUD1,094,800 (equivalent to RMB5,060,166) per annum ¥ 5,060,166 L) (ZZE_FF : &) -
(2020:Nil).
Contingent liabilities 32 HREE

The Group had no material contingent liabilities as at 31
December 2021 (2020: Nil).

RZBZ_—F+A=+—H AEETE
BEASRBBE(CZ_ZF H)-
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e EHRERME
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(= BIERS)  BEEAARKEST)

33 EXBELXRS

33 Material related party transactions

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed
elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group entered
into the following material related party transactions:

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the directors are
of the view that related parties of the Group include the
following individuals/companies:

Name of related parties

BRER AW

Bk 35 ﬁ%#&%ﬁmﬁﬁfﬁﬁﬂ&éﬁéﬁ’]?&%&ﬁ
BRIN - ANER

ETATERMERRS

RBE-_T-_—F+_A=1+—RHLFE"
EAREERBAT AL RABKERN
HER

Relationship with the Group
BEAKERR

Guangdong Xingfa Curtain Wall, Door & Window Co., Ltd.
("Xingfa Curtain Wall") (ER B2 EEMERRAR) ()

FEREZEERPIEERAE ([HBERHK]) ()

China Lesso Group Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries

(“China Lesso Group”) (R BBt B =@ ITRBR A G N EFAE])

(FEMEEEERARARRE TR ([hEBEEE])

Jiangxi Jingxing Aluminium Panel Manufacturing Co., Ltd.
(IfE REEEREEFR DA () (Note)
TAEREREREERRAE ) (ML)

(i)  The English translation of the company names is for
reference only. The official names of these companies
are in Chinese.

Owned as to 21% by Mr. Liao Yuging.
Mr. Liao Yuging is an executive director
of the Company.

HEEELEEE21% Em -
BEBEERTRBMITES -

Substantial shareholder of the Company
RRABFERE

Associate of the Group before
12 March 2021

RZE-Z—F=A+=AHH
RAEE 2 BE R 7]

ZENANEXEZLERSZE - ZF
RANFR N BB LG -
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e ERERME
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(b= H1EHS)  BREUANREST)

33 Material related party transactions

(Continued)

33 ERBEIRS (#)

(a) Transactions @ X%
Sales and purchase BE
2021 2020
—EB-—F —ECEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TFT AREFT
Sales of goods to HEEmT
— Xingfa Curtain Wall — EE 132,872 114,224
— Jiangxi Jingxing (Note) — IS E(FE) 2,675 14,894
— China Lesso Group — B 2R 60,568 33,722
196,115 162,840
Properties leased out MEHET
— Jiangxi Jingxing (Note) — IR () 709 5,022
— China Lesso Group — R 2B R [ 5,695 4,264
6,404 9,286
Purchase of raw materials HE RV R
— Xingfa Curtain Wall — BERE 1,883 164
Purchase of construction service FREEZ R RS
— Xingfa Curtain Wall — IR 8,417 -
Proceeds from disposal of an associate to HEBE NG FATARZ
FRiS kIR
— China Lesso Group — R EE 10,000 =
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e BRRME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(= BIERS)  BEEAARKEST)

33 Material related party transactions
(Continued)

(b) Balances with related parties

As at the end of the reporting period, the Group had

(i)

(ii)

33 ERBEIRZ (#)

(b) EREELHERR

RIEHR - NEEERET SRR

the following balances with related parties: O

Trade and other receivables (i) XBEREMEKRE
2021 2020
—E-—F —EEF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥FRT ARETT

Trade related B 5HH

— Xingfa Curtain Wall — R 24,545 15,994
— Jiangxi Jingxing (Note) — IS E(MF) = 9,029
— China Lesso Group — B EE 28,709 22,982
53,254 48,005

Trade and other payables (i) XBREMENHE
2021 2020
—E-—F —ETEF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥FRT ARETFT

Trade related B 5 HH

— China Lesso Group — B EE 55 124
— Xingfa Curtain Wall — HEBEE 1,377 -
1,432 124

The amounts due from related parties are
unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed terms

of repayment.

Note: Jiangxi Jingxing became the subsidiary of China Lesso
Group and ceased to be an associate of the Group

immediately upon completion of the Equity Transfer

(Note 15). Subsequent to the Equity Transfer, the

transactions between the Group and Jiangxi Jingxing
were included in the transaction between the Group

and China Lesso Group.

EKREET FAREERR 28

Btat - TIPERER AT R R E B

NAF] - BHEREEEEKETER
A& @ ey B AR (B EE15) « B
e AREETAREY
Y22 5 4 A7 S (B £ v B G 28 4
B 2R
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33 Material related party transactions

e BRRME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(b= H1EHS)  BREUANREST)

33 ERBEIRS (#)

(Continued)
(c) Key management personnel remuneration () EZEEEAEMS
Remuneration for key management personnel, FEEBAB WS (BIEWET7 KM
including the amounts paid to the Group's directors as AN REBE XN TAKREES
disclosed in Note 7 and the senior management as SREEBABRNSE) T
disclosed in Note 8, is as follows:
2021 2020
—E-—F —ETEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT ARBTFT
Short-term employee benefits HEEERT 26,900 22,977
Contribution to retirement benefit plan R /K8 5245 172 131
Equity settled share-based VAR HE 48 S AR ) A%
payment expenses AEWHNFREE 201 627
27,273 23,735
Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (Note e aagEst Al 8 T I(MizE5(b)) °
5(b)).
(d) Applicability of the Listing Rules relating to (d) LHHRAFREREERZ2ERM

connected transactions

The related party transactions of sales and/or purchase
above constitute connected transactions or continuing
connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing
Rules”). The disclosures required by Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules are provided in the section headed
“Connected Transactions” of the Report of the
Directors of this annual report.

ERER/HEZEEALRSHEK
BEBMARIMAERARESFLHR
AT ETRADF14AZTRRAELZH
BRPAFEBERS - LTRANE
VUABREZRBEHIRNAFRES
SWmEZ [FERXS] —Fi-

311



312

XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED 287 242 i B R 2 5] / Annual Report 2021 F 3

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRRME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(= BIERS)  BEEAARKEST)

34 REIEEMBARREK

34 Company-level statement of financial

position
2021 2020
—EZ—-F —ETEF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Mt ARBT T ARBF T
Non-current asset kRBEE
Investment in subsidiary KRB AR ZIKE 14 567,522 584,182
Current assets REBEE
Amounts due from a subsidiary FE U — M B A 713 TE 90,831 91,992
Cash and cash equivalents BeNBEEEY 5,172 1,777
96,003 93,769
Current liabilities REBEE
Amounts due to subsidiaries FENTHT B A R IR 70,648 94,820
Other payables E b e FE 10,038 7,191
80,686 102,011
Net current assets/liabilities REEE AEFEHE 15,317 (8,242
Total assets less current liabilities #EERATHEE 582,839 575,940
Net assets EEEE 582,839 575,940
Capital and reserves BRAR 29
Share capital R A 3,744 3,732
Reserves HiE 579,095 572,208
Total equity AT 582,839 575,940
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e BRRME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(K= BRI

P BEEAARBIT)

Non-adjusting events after the reporting 35 REHIRE ZFEFAREIR

CEREEEBRERN

B ERRE29(b) ©

period

() After the end of the reporting period, the directors () FPWEHEREZ
proposed a final dividend. Further details are disclosed f& B o #E—EF
in Note 29(b).

(i)  After the end of the reporting period, an aggregate of iy MIEEIRIE

320,000 ordinary shares were issued upon exercise of
share options granted under the share option scheme

& 320,000 A% E @A
RIBEARR G ERER ST L 2 B
HEIRIT B TR 5.46 B TTITIE 18 E S

of the Company at an exercise price of HK$5.46 per 1T e

share.
Possible impact of amendments, new 36 RBEE-_FE_—F+-_A=+—
standards and interpretations issued but H JJ:fT—F"E,ﬁEﬁEfE' RERKE
not yet effective for the year ended 31 3 HMEARZENBESE
December 2021
Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HEZSUMBEREDNTIBAE - BRezt%E
IASB has issued a number of amendments, and a new AZEEBedBh NS EREEZE 2 —_—%
standard, IFRS 17, Insurance contracts, which are not yet —I—:H +—HIEFE®RERERDHE ;.T&*
effective for the year ended 31 December 2021 and which T ER R S HmEERFENTHRERE S
have not been adopted in these financial statements. These A MZEWIERRITEBEMNZSEL] - ai
developments include the following which may be relevant ZXRRERAIE T AR EEEBHBET -

to the Group.

begi
B

Effective for
accounting years
nning on or after
RTIBEMR 2%
BHNEHFEEN

Amendments to IFRS 3, Reference to the Conceptual Framework

BB B A ¥R 5 2R RIS 3 SRAS BT ANBE AL 2 A 1AL

Amendments to IAS 16, Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before Intended Use
REFERIE 6 RNERI AYFE - 5 Kkt - #EE SR Fr#s R

Amendments to IAS 37, Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract

BIFR @5t ERIE 37 ISR BRI A A — BITE AR A

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2018-2020 Cycle
B BRELER - \FE_T_TFRPFEUIE

Amendments to IAS 1, Classification of liabilities as current or non-current

BRGNS 1 SRIERT NS B AR I A B 18

Amendments to IAS 1 and HKFRS Practice Statement 2, Disclosure of account/ng policies

B G RS 1 R REAY B REENEHERAE 2RETARKEETHE

Amendments to IAS 8, Definition of accounting estimates

BER et ERE 8RBT AN Gat 2 EHE

Amendments to IAS 12, Deferred tax related to assets and liabilities arising from a single
transaction

Bt RNF 1 2R EE - ZELAEER BB AELE

1 January 2022

T F—AF—H

1 January 2022
T-_F—A—H

1 January 2022
F--F—A—H

1 January 2022

—F--fF—A—H

1 January 2023
E—=F—HA—H

1 January 2023
T_=%—H—H

1 January 2023
E_=F—HA—H

1 January 2023

—E-=F—H—H
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(= BIERS)  BEEAARKEST)

36 Possible impact of amendments, new 36 RBZE-_ZE_FF+_-_A=+—

standards and interpretations issued but HitFECEMERERNIE
not yet effective for the year ended 31 ] HERARZRENBESZE )
December 2021 (Continued)
The Group is in the process of making an assessment of REEEEFEZSEENBAERARERE
what the impact of these developments is expected to be in HAZSE - KEEIZS BIERBIRMNZ S
the period of initial application. So far it has concluded that BHGAEVBBRREEERTZEMNAREET
the adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant impact N

on the consolidated financial statements.
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hEHRE
(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UARBZT)
As at 31 December
R+=A=+-H
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017

—E--F ZZ-THF ZT-hEF ZT-N\F ZT—+F
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB000
ARMTT ARETFT ARMTT ARMTFT AREFT

Assets and liabilities BEERER

Non-current assets FERBEE 3,126,054 2,743,711 2,668,419 2,376,862 2,301,489
Current assets REEE 8,216,134 5,692,350 5,092,971 4,731,621 4,142,972

Current liabilities mEAaE 5,543,085 (4,387,097) (4,262,373) (4,190,051) (3,810,506)
Non-current liabilities EE =R 1,319,703 (351,031)  (460,137)  (414,574)  (564,920)
Net assets BESHE 4,479,400 3,697,933 3,038,880 2,503,858 2,069,035

Capital and reserves R K

Share capital g7 3,744 3,732 3,731 3,731 3,731

Reserves B 4,475,598 3,693,460 3,034,604 2,500,379 2,065,304

Total equity attributable to &7 TR R

equity shareholders of FEfL R R
the Company 4,479,342 3,697,192 3,038,335 2,504,110 2,069,035
Non-controlling interests FEERER 58 741 545 (252) =

Total equity R 4,479,400 3,697,933 3,038,880 2,503,858 2,069,035
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LFEHE
(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UKARB3T)
For the year ended 31 December
BET-HA=+t—-HLEE
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
—Bo-F —T-TF —TNF ZT-N\F ZTLF
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFT ARBFT ARETFT AREFT AREFT
Results E4
Revenue BEE 15,432,900 11,886,862 11,280,848 9,924,517 7,239,658
Profit before taxation MR AR A 1,055,201 873,412 723,470 607,916 444,445
Income tax FTiS i (168,084)  (111,953)  (120,864)  (113,938) (61,815)
Profit for the year FEERA 887,117 761,459 602,606 493,978 382,630
Attributable to: LU AL FEqY -
Equity shareholders of AREEERR
the Company 887,800 765,385 606,109 495,230 382,630
Non-controlling interests IR i e (683) (3,926) (3,503) (1,252) =
887,117 761,459 602,606 493,978 382,630
Earnings per share BRER
Basic (RMB yuan) ERNARET) 2.12 1.83 1.45 1.18 0.92
Diluted (RMB yuan) BE(ARKT) 2.1 1.83 1.45 1.18 0.92

The summary above does not form part of the audited BN FEREEGSTERER T 215 ©
consolidated financial statements.
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